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GLOBAL DISTRIBUTION NETWORK
%sz/j-j\ﬁh l“ﬂl“%

Countries and Regions March 2022 31 March 2021
ERRME 2022F3H81H | 202143831H

“Lukfook” Shops 75181 &

* Mainland China =2 Bl 33t

 Hong Kong SAR & B3 BII{TEl&? 47 3
* Macau SAR RFIFBITEN&@? 13 +2
* Canada & A 2 0
* The United States EI 3 0
o Australia 2 M 1 0
* Malaysia 537538 2 0
* Singapore N3 1 0

Sub-total /)\5t

 Mainland A3t

o The Philippines JE2 5 2 0
 Cambodia S23#%E 1 1
o Laos £ 0 +1
Sub-total /st 2,138 +436
Total 485t +435
Sub-brands/Product Lines in Mainland P33t & 18 /& 4R

* “Goldstyle” -3

* “Dear Q"

* “Goldstyle”

o “Lukfook Joaillerie” 754215 AR 0 +2
* “Heirloom Fortune” I4& &5 0 +3
Worldwide Total 21k48 5t 2,366 +443

! Mainland China: Hereafter refers to as “Mainland” 1 B3 @ £ 78 % TPy
2 Hong Kong SAR: Hereafter refers to as “Hong Kong” & HH51THE : THREAEH)
B Macau SAR: Hereafter refers to as “Macau” 2P RIITEE © & EA DR

“LUKFOOK” DISTRIBUTION NETWORK IN MAINLAND | I75%81 I3 70 #3549 4%

As at 31 March 2022
202243831 H

Total No. of shops [ 48 8¢ 2,646(+434)
Total No. of Licensees &ah# 48 81 767(+163)
Total No. of Provinces 48 27(0)
Total No. of Municipalities & £/ 428 4(0)
Total No. of Cities 1 5 4284 596(+82)

BT "R o
56(+2)

Tier | —48 725(+127) 781(+129) 20(+4)
Tier Il =4 3(-4) 398(+55) 401(+51) 20(+1)
Tier ll =48 11(+3) 425(+46) 436(+49) 65(+1)
Tier IV & below P45 B ST (1) 1,021(+206) 1,028(+205) 509(+90)

Self- operated Mun|c|palmes Cmes
mhg

Northern China 235 & 25(0) 692(+124) T17(+124) 7(-1) 200) 187(+27)
Central China #HhE 30(3) 539(+122) 569(+119) 6(0) 1(0) 166(+34)
Southern China £EE 00) T74(+85) 774(+85) 4(0) 00) 90(+6)
Eastern China £RE 22+3) 412(+68) 434(+71) 40) 10) 125(+11)
Western China £ & 0(0) 162(+35) 162(+35) 6(+1) 00) 28(+4)

[l Northern China ZEJt&E 0 Terl —#8

. - . — Remarks &
[ CentralChina #EH&E Tier Il =48 o ook shops only RUEIE TS
I Southern China EHE I Tierlll =48 . The percentages refer to the contribution to the total no. of shops in Mainland
Y B LEARZIEHYE S AMtEHER G
B EasternChina ZEHE&E Tier IV & below ORI T . Figures in brackets refer to the 12-month changes &SRB F 5+ 88 2 &1t
[ Western China AR



OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
=EREE

REVENUE AND PROFIT ANALYSIS | WA R &EFRID

Revenue and Segment Profit by Market
IS EI S B A B 2 3R F

[REVEVE] ofit | Segment Profit
HK$M BEE T 5 vi)

42.9%
(40.1%)

10.7%
(5.7%)

89.3% 5,032 187
(94.3%) (gg-ég//o) +41.7% +148.9%  +1.6pp. EEDE
.9%
6,706 1,563 23.3%
+26.3% +25.2% -0.2 p.p. BE D
Segment
Revenue Profit
WA EREF
Hong Kong, Macau & Overseas
&~ mPIRKiESH . .
Mainland
b H

Revenue and Segment Profit by Business

BREBR T HMIA R 53 8B iF

Revenue | Segment Profit | Segment Profit Margir
WA PaN= )

AN

63.1% 20.7%
(55.9%) (14.8%) 24.2%

(30.9%)

7,408 4.9%

(giégﬁ) +49.6% +84.9%  +09p.p. EEDE
0,
(10.796) 26.2%
(33.4%) 3,077 424 13.8%
+3.9% +3.6%  +0.0 p.p. EEDE
Segment
Revenue Profit

WA SEREF 1,253 964 77.0%
;eéailing B B +32.4% +34.2%  +1.0pp. BEEDE

Wholesaling .
Hes 4,378! 424 9.7%
+8.6% +3.6% -0.4 p.p. EEDEE

Remarks:  Figures for the year ended 31 March 2021 are shown in brackets

&t HE2021F3A31 BILFEZHFRIERAET

! Adjusted Wholesaling Revenue = Revenue of Wholesale Business to External Parties + Inter-Segment Wholesale Revenue
BRI = BIMEBEZEBWO + DEEH LA



OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
=EREE

REVENUE AND PROFIT ANALYSIS (continved) | YA R HAI D #r @

Sales! and Gross Profit? by Product

RESREIDHHE REF?

A% .8% 3 = W=
@7.0%) (4319%) HK$M B BT = E7 ERME
5,527 981 17.7%

56.2% y
(36.99%) (g;:gg;;) +48.6% +19.9%  -43pp. EEHH
4,958 1,258 25.4%
+18.2% +16.4% 0.4 p.p. EEDH

Sales Gross Profit
HE E7

Fixed Price Jewellery
TEEEH .

Gold & Platinum?®
HEREE®

RETAIL SALES PERFORMANCE | ZEHERIR

For the year ended 31 M
HZE3H31HIEEE

Overall 288 o 450% o 445%

Gold & Platinum & K iHE . 458% . +51% -32%
Fixed Price Jewellery TE{E &l O 432% O 434% -51%
Hong Kong & Macau & # R :®F C +46% C +42% -47%
Gold & Platinum & & e O 4+49% O +44% -39%
Fixed Price Jewellery 718 & & C 439% C 439% -58%
Mainland Pyit: o 448% S +40% -5%
Gold & Platinum &£ & ins . +65%  +61% 2%
Fixed Price Jewellery TE{E &l 4% 4% -9%

Remarks:  Figures for the year ended 31 March 2021 are shown in brackets

3 HE2021F3A31 B ILFEZHFRIERAET

! Sales = Revenue - Licensing Income
THE = WA - RAREBIRA

2 Gross Profit = Consolidated Gross Profit — Gross Profit of Licensing Income
EF) = IREEF - RIBEBRAET]

8 Gold & Platinum refers to gold & platinum products sold by weight basing on international market price, i.e. at non-fixed price
HERPERREFERTHEEREBHENESRIACER BIIFEM®)

4 Same store sales growth (“SSSG”) represented a comparison of sales of the same “Lukfook” self-operated shop having full day operations in the comparable periods and such data did not
include sales of licensed shops and Mainland’s e-commerce business.

FEHERE (REHSRE) SRR B EENTHERENEREAEENHERLE ARBBL AN OEREERAMBTBBEBNHER-



@ FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MR E

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE | B1#%IR

Operating Margin 48 & H| =R
Net Margin 737 %=

14.0% +0.0 p.p. BEDE:
11.5% +0.4 p.p. EED

HKSM BB #TT 2021/2284 &' 2020/2184 42
Revenue I A - 1738 8,861 +32.5%
Gross Profit £ - 324 2,632 +22.9%
Operating Profit 87| 1648 1,244 +32.1%
Profit for the Year £ P37 1392 1,019 +36.6%
Profit Attributable to Equity Holders #3558 AfE(EF  [11,8927 1,017 +36.9%
Basic Earnings per Share SR B A& . HK$237THRT HK$1.7338 7T +37.0%
Final Dividend per Share MRk 8 ~ HKSO.55%7T HK$0.503# 7% +10.0%
Special Dividend per Share® &8558 8° = HK$0.50787% N/A &8
Annual Dividend per Share 882 2 8 © HK$1.10%7T HK$1.503# 7% -26.7%
Dividend Payout Ratio J& 8 b3 o 464% 86.6%  -40.2pp. EEDY
Gross Margin FEF% _ 29.7% 21 pp BEDE

S 10%

S Mm%

- s

o 189%

S Ta%

EBITDA* R&tHI B~ IRIE T E R AT B A 1,354 +29.1%
EBITDA Margin* R 517 8 ~ 118 ~ 7 5 Ko R S i 2 A1) 3= 15.3% -0.4 p.p. BEDE
Total Operating Expenses to Revenue Ratio*

ARSI B 7 (G WA LB =R 19.1% -3.6 p.p. BB DR
Effective Tax Rate B £ X 18.8% 1.5 p.p. EEDE

FY2021/22: Hereafter refers to as “FY2022" 2021/22844F & 1F 1185 2022044

FY2020/21: Hereafter refers to as “FY2021” 2020/21844F © F#&F8 4 2021844

Celebration of the 30th anniversary of the establishment of “Lukfook” B4 (778 f 37 = +iB &
Represent non-HKFRS measures 163F & B R &SR T2

KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS | FTZEBI#151Z

Debt-to-Equity Ratio® & &z tE3&e
Return on Equity (ROE)* & B4 i o] $R 2¢
Return on Total Assets® 485 2 [O]#R K5
Current Ratio JiEHEEER

28.1% +6.2 p.p. EEDES
9.0% +2.5p.p. BEDE
7.0% +16pp. BEEDH

4.0 0.7

HKSM B & &7t 202281 5 2021814 REE
Inventories 7 & L 8769 7,322 +19.8%
Average Inventory Turnover Days' 15775 /EEH" . 356 451 -95
Closing Inventory Turnover Days? #1777 & /& &5 H2 - 444 -56
Cash and Bank Balances IR& & $R1745 6% 3492 3,546 -1.5%
Bank Borrowings & Gold Loans ST &Rk EEEE 1955 1,089 +79.5%
Net Cash BIR% 1587 2,457 -37.4%

S 3%

o 15%

S 86%

83

! (Opening Inventory + Closing Inventory) + 2 = Cost of Inventories Sold x Number of Days for the Year
(HEE + BBRES ~ 2 - BEGERA x EREH

2 Closing Inventory = Cost of Inventories Sold x Number of Days for the Year
HREE - BEEFEMAx FREH

3 (Long-term Liabilities + Current Liabilities) + Capital and Reserves Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company
(RABE + RBEMA + FADERFAABGERKREE

4 Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company - Capital and Reserves Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company
RATERFEARIEER +~ NADEERFE ABEERREE
Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company = (Long-term Assets + Current Assets)
RABREFRFAE ARG ER — (RIEE + RBEE)

1 Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7548 E (B HIRAE)



CORPORATE
PROFILE

EE/BT

Established in 1991, Luk Fook Holdings (International)
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) is one of the leading jewellery
retailers in Hong Kong and Mainland. The Group principally
engages in the sourcing, designing, wholesaling, trademark
licensing and retailing of a variety of gold and platinum jewellery
and gem-set jewellery products, with a total of over 2,800 points
of sale in 10 countries and regions across Hong Kong, Macau,
Mainland, Malaysia, Cambodia, the Philippines, Laos, the United
States, Canada and Australia.

The Company was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in May 1997.

NEEE @R BRAR ((RRE)) REMB AR @rig A%
B BRI E ) BEARAMTBLRETER 2 — A&
ErENESEENCaMAEEEMERZRE Rt it
E HERERTEER EEREESAE VR AR
FAD SRIBEE JERE B = MEABCRMNE10ERE KR
B & A 12,8008 T & 2 o

KRB FE R EEBMERBAARAT ER LS -

CORPORATE VISION

The corporate vision of the Group is to be the “Brand of Hong
Kong, Sparkling the World”. This is also our core brand value. The
Group always puts forth maximum effort for “Lukfook” to reach its
goal of becoming a globally recognised and desired brand, and
as one of the Hong Kong’s most renowned brands in the luxury
industry, the Group commits to crafting the finest jewellery for
customers to further establish its reputation in the international
market.

MEBRNE « BFEE REAEENTERI R RBEZMEE-
AEE-—BHEFAW BOBAETNE RAEKEAREE
B - FRBEBNLEERE FERR N B2 HERRM
BEEH UWE—PRUENBERTS LHNEE-

Annual Report 2021/22 4R



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
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WONG Wai Sheung & &%
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 3 J& T 1T AR &,

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 75i25&E (Ef%) BIRAE




CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
BRI

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group” or “We”), | hereby present the Group’s annual results
for the year ended 31 March 2022 (“FY2022" or the “Year under
review”).

Benefiting from the low base effect, the encouraging recovery
of retail atmosphere and the favourable gold sales, the Group’s
total revenue for the Year under review increased by 32.5%
over the corresponding period last year to HK$11,737,803,000
(2021: HK$8,861,335,000). Besides, profit attributable to equity
holders increased by 36.9% to HK$1,392,364,000 (2021:
HK$1,017,335,000), and the earnings per share were HK$2.37
(2021: HK$1.73). The board of directors of the Company
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.55 per
share, together with the interim dividend of HK$0.55 per share
paid in December 2021, the total dividend for FY2022 amounted
to HK$1.10 per share (2021: HK$1.50 per share). The dividend
payout ratio is 46.4% (2021: 86.6%) on a full year basis.

During the Year under review, the Group added a net total of 435
“Lukfook” shops worldwide, including 434 net addition of licensed
shops in Mainland. As at 31 March 2022, the Group had a global
network of 2,809 shops (2021: 2,366 shops), including 2,719
“Lukfook” shops (2021: 2,284 shops), with business spanning
across Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland, Singapore, Malaysia,
Cambodia, the Philippines, Laos, the United States, Canada and
Australia.

BRER :

AANEARNBERE R BRARF ((E2Q
B) REWBAR (WEHE %83 M3HM)
EILIREAEEE E2022F3831HEFE
(T20228f FF | RO FE)) 22 F &

TERBEHRVNE -TERAMERTFRE
SHIESIT AEBMPNOBEEENERAR
A FEEAENN32.5%Z%E11,737,803,0008 7T
(20214 : 8,861,335,0005E 1) © tE4h > #E %
A AEMEERIEA136.9%ZE1,392,364,000
HIT (20214 1,017,335,000587T) » SRAE
F| 22 37T (20214F 1 1.7387T) c AAFE
HEEFIRCOKRPRESRSEBT ERE
522021512 BRI R RA IR E & R0.558 7T
20220 F R R EHATIR1.108 7T (20214 ¢
Fi%1.50870) » 2EIRELEA46.4% (2021
F 1 86.6%) °

CIEEEER &N EB R 2 BOF 1884350 /X
Bl EH BEN AP I RAB4R RAETE o
1R2022F3831H » AERBEN 2IKHF2,809
REIE&m (20214 : 2,366R) » v @1152,719R
(7548 (B8 (20214F © 2,284R8) » BREH-
EPT~ O S BTN~ SR PEEE N SRIEEE  JER
EEWR =6/ ME AR o

Annual Report 2021/22 5§



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
BRI

During the Year under review, due to the low base effect, the
same store sales of the Group had a turnaround to a positive
growth. However, with the resurgence of the pandemic in Hong
Kong and Mainland in February and March 2022, respectively,
the Group’s overall same store sales from March to April 2022
recorded a decline again. Nevertheless, with the improving
pandemic control and the help of a new round of consumption
vouchers, the Group recorded a satisfactory sales performance
in the Hong Kong market since April 2022. As a result, the same
store sales growth of Hong Kong and Macau market recorded a
slight growth from 1 April to 21 June 2022, while the overall same
store sales of the Mainland market, including both self-operated
and licensed shops, recorded a decrease of around 15% for the
same period. In addition, the Group’s overall SSSG turned around
to a positive growth again in May 2022.

Moreover, subject to the pandemic development, with further
expansion of our retail network, the progressive relaxation of the
lockdown measures in Mainland and the Central government’s
commitment to implementing economic push measures and
consumption encouragement policies, we target to achieve
a double-digit growth in revenue in the coming year and look
forward to reaching record high profit in 3 years.

The Group has set up its brand new three-year corporate strategy
with Mainland Market Expansion, Branding and Operational
Efficiency as its three main focuses so as to foster its future
business growth.

As the Mainland government continuously launches measures to
stabilise economic growth, with a particular focus on policies to
promote consumption and investment growth, the Group remains
optimistic about the mid— to long-term business prospects in
Mainland. Therefore, the Group will focus its expansion in the
Mainland market, and expect to net add 500 “Lukfook” shops
which will be mainly licensed shops in fourth-and fifth-tier cities
in the new financial year, while the target for net addition of new
brands’ stores in Mainland is about 50 shops, which will also be
mainly licensed shops.

REIEFER ARNEEEE  ZEENE
EHEEZEBER/E-BR EBRAMD
AL 2022F 2B RABEERERE  ~&EE
122022F 3B M EAR VRIS HE R
BEZETE-2AM EEHHERBESE
Mot & R —wmEE SR E BT > #2022
FAR 17 FAtG > $51HIER - EIE > AEE 2022
FARHE6R21 AR TSR EEH SIS
REFEMARE AT HEEEEEE KRR
RIS BV EE R RIS S & 1R — BRI R 45 K49
15%BYERIE ° 57 5h > AE BB ISR E 5 £ 18
Ri2022F5 8 1) BRESTHIE

BE AYRBHNER ETEEBNE—D
YRR~ POsth B I RS Bl M AR R R e PR BT iR
EREHIFEBERAEEITHRERT XK
FRAUBAZEURFTHESBR LH
ER=FRF BTN

FEBEFT UM =ZFEERE LITRt
MR~ TR HERER & EEW ) 1F
MERBL UBHEEREBHRRER

ERMBARFEELRECERRER L
HEEREHERKREERBRT  +&H
HREPRGEDBIRDRESR > RILRK
BRMRERN AT S I TR —R
FIPIRERE00ME (718 58 T2 RIS
TSR ARSI~ T AR I T o 7 T R dm hR S AR Y 3
R E > BIRRAtFIE RAS0E SR T2
VLYK

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
BRI

The Group will further strengthen its brand image and positioning
through leveraging of innovative approaches and making use
of various media. Apart from that, the Group will also enhance
its product quality assurance, optimise service quality, improve
support for licensees and offer products that meet market needs.

Moreover, the Group will adopt holistic approach to seize the
development opportunities in the middle-class, wedding and kids
markets by understanding customers’ spending habits. It will also
continue to attract customers and encourage local consumption
by visual merchandising enhancement, cross-selling boosting and
VIP promotional activities, so as to improve sales and profits.

Besides, we will also explore the enhancement of offline shopping
experience and possibility of cross-over collaboration with other
industries or brands to further enhance synergy between online
and offline sales channels.

The Group also recognises the importance of environmental
protection and climate change and the increasing awareness
of environmental protection and relevant demand for products
among stakeholders, including consumers. Therefore, the
Group will implement measures to reduce the carbon footprint
of its products and set up a long-term goal of carbon reduction
to enhance the Group’s contribution to environmental
protection.

In order to strengthen its competitive edge, the Group will
improve its operational efficiency by revamping its supply
chain management and implementing full automation, big data
management and data analytics system. The Group will also strive
to maximise employees’ productivity by cultivating and nurturing
cultures of continuous improvement and innovation.

RERAF D ARSBEENER  AEERK
#E— PR CmE TR EN  IL5h ) ARE B TR
SMREREERSE BLRFER =Y
REBST IR WRRHA G N BB ROESR-

D:I_l:
=

[n]s]

o AEET BB T REZTIHESE
EREEMEEELUNERE - BEMNEFD
RN ERKE AREEEEBMARE
RS XX HAVIPH EES RS IEX
EBALHE  LURSHENFIE-

SO WA ERRETHR TR R 2
HthTXSmBETERSIEREN  E—
TR ERG T IHEEBZHRME-

AEBETHABIRERENRIGECHER
MRFNESREEEHBIRMENEHAN
MEFERYE BRI TR A > B REER
WETT R /D 2E SR B B EN AU B IR Ko 5T 1L BUAR R 32
BERURALERHIRIZRENTM

#HEEGFED AEEREBENREMH
RREENEAZEHC  REBEEERH
BONMBRKUNEREEN G - ~EETE
RN ELERIBEE FENE KA X E LB

RABTIERERSKF-
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
BRI

| would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude to all our staff
members, shareholders, customers, business partners and other
stakeholders for their unfaltering support and contributions to
the Group’s continuing success. Going forward, the Group will
adhere to pragmatic and sound growth measures, strengthen its
competitive advantages and further enhance its leading position
in the market, so as to generate sustainable returns for its
shareholders and set a new benchmark for corporate excellence.

By order of the Board
WONG Wai Sheung

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 June 2022

AEBEFENAY EEBXMANET KR
BE - EBBANEMSNENRNZFEN
B RAZBERUROEE I RF > ~EH
MEUFERBHE RS MARFED
E—SBRERAEERNTIS LRS- 5
PR ER A SR A (D) ¥R e 1 17 R DAY (2R R EE o

AEEZ
FEFETHAER
BEE

& 2022E6828H

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEEREDSEan

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

©

Revenue
A
HK$11,738M
11,738HE #E T
+32.5%

Basic Earnings per Share
SRESEF
HK$2.37
23787
+37.0%

i Dividend Payout Ratio: 46.4%
IKEEEE [ 46.4%

Operating Profit
gEnn
HK$1,643M
1,643 E AT
+32.1%

&)
E-'.$'

Profit Attributable to Equity
Holders
R ARG
HK$1,392M
1,392 E BT
+36.9%

;
m ’
Proposed Dividend
per Share'
kg s

HK$0.55
0.55%8 7T

(1]

Overall Net Shop Additions
BRBIERES
+443

Annual Report 2021/22 5§
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

va)il

SEERE

Results

The Group recorded an increase in revenue of 32.5% to
HK$11,737,803,000 (2021: HK$8,861,335,000) for the Year
under review due to the low base effect, encouraging recovery of
retail atmosphere and favourable gold sales. However, the gross
margin of gold products declined as it gradually returned to a
normal level. Gross profit therefore increased by 22.9% only to
HK$3,233,827,000 (2021: HK$2,632,315,000). Benefitting from
the improvement in operating leverage, operating profit increased
by 32.1% to HK$1,643,224,000 (2021: HK$1,244,113,000), and
operating margin remained flattish at 14.0% (2021: 14.0%). In
addition, with increased net interest income and reduced effective
tax rate due to reversal of prior year's over-provisions, net profit
rose by 36.6% to HK$1,392,337,000 (2021: HK$1,019,134,000),
and net margin was 11.9% (2021: 11.5%). Profit attributable to
equity holders increased by 36.9% to HK$1,392,364,000 (2021:
HK$1,017,335,000) and the basic earnings per share increased
by 37.0% to HK$2.37 (2021: HK$1.73).

Overview

During the Year under review, the Group operated a total of 1
brand and 4 sub-brands/product lines under the multi-brand
strategy. There was a net addition of 443 stores that were mainly
“Lukfook” shops. During the Year under review, the Group added
a net total of 435 “Lukfook” shops worldwide, including a net
addition of 434 licensed shops in Mainland.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had a global network of 2,809
shops (2021: 2,366 shops), including 2,719 “Lukfook” shops
(2021: 2,284 shops), with business spanning across Hong
Kong, Macau, Mainland, Singapore, Malaysia, Cambodia, the
Philippines, Laos, the United States, Canada and Australia, and
operated a total of 84 “Goldstyle” shops (2021: 80 shops), 1
“‘Dear Q" shop (2021: 2 shops), 2 “Lukfook Joaillerie” shops
(2021: Nil) and 3 “Heirloom Fortune” shops (2021: Nil) in
Mainland.

E$ 5

THREENE-ZERAMERTIRES
HIBHIE T » AEE R [C] B F E U ALY
fN382.5%%11,737,803,000/8 75 (20214 :
8,861,335,000/&7T) » M=% E mENEE
BIER(Em T AEMRIL R IN22.9%E
3,233,827,0003 75 (20214F : 2,632,315,000
Br)  REREERENNS KEEH
#IN32.1%%E1,643,224,000% 75 (20214 :
1,244,113,0008 70) » K& G FIEKFUFF
P14.0% (20214 : 14.0%) o kL4 > 10 £5%
FMEWAENERBEEEBERENE
BMLERRETE BB LA36.6%E
1,392,337,0003 7 (20214F : 1,019,134,0005%
70) B MEE11.9% (20214F © 11.5%) o
HB AELEREN036.9%ZE1,392,364,0005
75 (20214 1 1,017,335,000/8 7T) * GRERR
B IN37.0%E2.3778 75 (20214 1 1.738
JT) ©

=

REBEEFER T2 RERE T AEEGH
B RERMERE RAE S ERiE FIER
443 EE HERFEAINEIES - [7N&1E
PN OBEEEASICRIER435E BIFNK
#7518 2R 434 RS o

12202243831 H » REBMN 2 IRHEF 2,809
[5#5 (20214  2,366[H) » EHEIE2, 719/ 75
fBUEE (20214 1 2,284f8) » BRE A BT
PO FTI0I s 2R PEEE  SRIBEE FERE E
BB~ = INEABSEIN » LB T A 48 84
l'Goldstyle J J[E & (20214 : 80fd) ~ 175 Dear
QJE# (20214 1 2/8) ~ 2/ /NGB 5 R 5 &
(2021£F : Off)) K3 M@ mESR EH (2021
&0/
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE MR

Revenue and Segment Profit by Business

REBE DRI A R D ER i F)

63.1%
(55.9%)
— 20.7%
(14.8%)

24.2%
(30.9%)

55.1%
(54.3%)

26.2%

(10.7%)
Segment
Revenue Profit

WA D ERET)

Retailing
ZE

Wholesaling
5 |

Licensing
mIEE .

By Business M E# 2|2 Revenue Segment Profit Segment
HKSM BE& AT WA D ELEF] Profit Margin

HEBEAE

7,408 362 4.9%
+49.6% +84.9% +0.9 p.p. BEHE
3,077 424 13.8%
+3.9% +3.6% +0.0 p.p. B E
1,253 964 77.0%
+32.4% +34.2%  +1.0pp. EEDE
4,378 424 9.7%
+8.6% +36%  +04pp. BEDE

Remarks: Figures for FY2021 are shown in brackets

5t RSB0 FHF

1

Adjusted Wholesaling Revenue = Revenue of Wholesale Business to External Parties + Inter-Segment Wholesale Revenue

EEERAR WA = EIMEBE B + DEREHLE WA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

va)il

SEERE

The retail business was the Group’s primary source of revenue.
As a result of the low base effect, gradual recovery of retail
atmosphere and outstanding gold sales performance, the
Group’s total retail revenue increased by 49.6% year-on-year to
HK$7,407,905,000 (2021: HK$4,953,317,000), accounting for
63.1% (2021: 565.9%) of the Group’s total revenue. With improved
operating leverage, its segment profit increased by 84.9% to
HK$361,768,000 (2021: HK$195,692,000), accounting for 20.7%
(2021: 14.8%) of the total, and its segment profit margin was
4.9% (2021: 4.0%).

Despite the increase in the number of licensed shops, the growth
in retail sales in Mainland was mainly driven by the sales of gold
products, while the sales of diamond products recorded lackluster
performance. The Group’s revenue from wholesaling business
which mainly comprised of the sales of diamond products,
therefore, increased by 3.9% only over the corresponding period
last year to HK$3,076,720,000 (2021: HK$2,961,827,000),
accounting for 26.2% (2021: 33.4%) of the Group’s total revenue.
Its segment profit increased by 3.6% to HK$423,676,000 (2021:
HK$408,894,000), accounting for 24.2% (2021: 30.9%) of the
total. Its segment profit margin was 13.8% (2021: 13.8%).

During the Year under review, licensing income increased by
32.4% to HK$1,253,178,000 (2021: HK$946,191,000) due
to the increase in the number of licensed shops, accounting
for 10.7% (2021: 10.7%) of the Group’s total revenue. lts
segment profit margin was 77.0% (2021: 76.0%), while its
segment profit increased by 34.2% to HK$964,435,000 (2021:
HK$718,683,000), accounting for 55.1% (2021: 54.3%) of the
total.

EEEKALAERFERARE EF
MEEWRARBEEUNE -ZTERAZ
TWMERECHERESEMIRZ FIE
M49.6%E7,407,905,000% 75 (2021
£ 1 4,953,317,00087T) » ha4~ % B4
W AB3.1% (20214 : 55.9%) o H &
EAEEEBREMNNEZ TEME4.9%E
361,768,000 7T (20214 : 195,692,000
BIT) HEEA20.7% (202146 1 14.8%) »
BB EAHL4.9% (20214F 1 4.0%) °

WARBIEARIZN ERMMTEHER
ETZHECERHEESH BRERH
EXRFE— MR- AEERBTEHRTITERNEH
EEOER HRAREFRPHRIL R E
MT3.9%ZE3,076,720,000% 75 (2021
£ 1 2,961,827,00087T) (M ARE B AW
ABI26.2% (20214 : 33.4%) o 9D ¥
F A NN3.6%E 423,676,000 7T (2021
£ 1 408,894,000 7T) b A24.2%
(20214 1 30.9%) " EHEO I BN EXAH
13.8% (20214 : 13.8%) °

CIEFERN > B EFIAEE®EE T
BB®EMMmLEFA32.4%%E1,253,178,000
T (20214 : 946,191,000 ) »
HAREEBIWAMNIO.7% (20214
10.7%) c ENZmFIEAH77.0% (2021
F176.0%) >  EDEaF AL MN34.2%E
964,435,000 75 (20214 : 718,683,000
BIT) M EEA55.1% (20214 1 54.3%) ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE MR

Sales! and Gross Profit? by Product

BREMEDHHE REFN?

52.7%
(47.0%)

43.8%
(43.1%)

56.206
(56.9%) 47.3%
(53.0%)

Sales  Gross Profit

HE el
Gold & Platinum?®
BERAD . .
Fixed Price Jewellery
EEEA

By Product M E & E| 9 Gross Profit Gross Margin
HKSM B R AT £ E ik

5,527 981 17.7%
+48.6% +19.9%  -43p.p. EAEDHY
4,958 1,258 25.4%
+18.2% +16.4%  -04p.p. EHDE

Remarks: Figures for FY2021 are shown in brackets
5 ISR A2021 B E T

! Sales = Revenue — Licensing Income

HE=WA - RIBEBBA

Gross Profit = Consolidated Gross Profit — Gross Profit of Licensing Income

EF =5 EMN - mEEBRAER

Gold & Platinum refers to gold & platinum products sold by weight basing on international market price, i.e. at non-fixed price
B2 KiERIEREBERTSERRESHENSeAHEER BIIFEB)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

va)il

SEERE

Sales amount of gold and platinum products increased by 48.6%
to HK$5,526,978,000 (2021: HK$3,720,143,000), accounting for
52.7% (2021: 47.0%) of the overall sales amount (Group revenue
minus licensing income). Gross margin of gold and platinum
products declined to 17.7% (2021: 22.0%) as the gross margin
of gold products gradually returned to a normal level. Its gross
profit, therefore, increased by 19.9% only to HK$980,728,000
(2021: HK$818,089,000), accounting for 43.8% (2021: 43.1%)
of the overall gross profit (consolidated gross profit of the
Group minus gross profit of licensing income). Besides, sales
amount of fixed price jewellery products increased by 18.2% to
HK$4,957,648,000 (2021: HK$4,195,001,000), accounting for
47.3% (2021: 53.0%) of the overall sales amount. Gross margin
of fixed price jewellery products remained roughly flattish at 25.4%
(2021: 25.8%). Its gross profit, as a result, increased by 16.4%
to HK$1,258,395,000 (2021: HK$1,080,964,000), accounting for
56.2% (2021: 56.9%) of the overall gross profit.

During the Year under review, the overall SSSG of the Group has
a turnaround to a positive growth of +45.4% (2021: -39.9%).
SSSG for the Hong Kong and Macau market was +42.0% (2021:
-47.1%) and +40.1% (2021: -4.7%) for the Mainland market.
SSSG for gold and platinum products was +51.5% (2021:
-31.9%) and +33.8% (2021: -50.7%) for fixed price jewellery
products.

The Group has been striving to diversify its product mix to offer
customers with more choices and has been engaging in the
mid- to high-end watch business since 2010. As at 31 March
2022, the Group was the authorised dealer of 11 watch brands,
including COINWATCH, DOXA, ENICAR, HAMILTON, LONGINES,
MIDO, OMEGA, RADO, ROMAGO SWISS, TISSOT and
BIJOUMONTRE. For the Year under review, the watch business
contributed revenue of HK$71,702,000 (2021: HK$43,429,000),
accounting for 0.6% (2021: 0.5%) of the Group’s total revenue.

BehiHEERBERILEMI8.6%6F
5,526,978,0003# 7T (20214F : 3,720,143,000
B B ESE (REBRKRARES DK
WA B952.7% (20214 1 47.0%) &
EintERAESERENZHBESLM
TFEE17.7% (20214 : 22.0%) » EEFIE I
D1 1019.9%F 980,728,000 7T (20214 :
818,089,000/ 7t) » HEEEEF (KAEELKS
EFRERBEFBWAEF]) B943.8% (2021
F1431%) o BIN TEEHMERNIHERE
#HN18.2% % 4,957,648,0008 77 (20214 :
4,195,001,00078 7T) » (L EAEIHEEBRI47.3%
(20214 : 53.0%) ° EEE /N EmEFIZEEY
P HET25.4% (20214 © 25.8%) » HEF
H I H016.4%ZE1,258,395,0005% 7T (2021
£ 11,080,964,000%87T) * HEE AL EF]#956.2%
(20214F : 56.9%) ©

REBEFERN AEREEREHEERS
BATEE+45.4% (20214 1-39.9%) - BFHEK
SEP IS E SN E R EA+42.0% (2021
T 1-471%) > TR ZE] 2+40.1% (2021
F-4.7%) cBE RIS ERVFEHEEE
#+51.5% (20214F :-31.9%) > EEEHE &
81| 4+33.8% (20214 :-50.7%) ©

AEB-—BRBIAEZTLER ABEER
HELEIE T E2010FEHETSEER
o R20224E3H31H » NEE A11EE
MmENEERHEE REBERNRXE B
BRI EKBE GRE - EE BoLm
BE - HTEAR KEBREB&HK NOESE
ER 2k BB EFRUWAAT1,702,00078 7T

(20214F : 43,429,000 7T) » (G A B 4E UK
A0.6% (20214F : 0.5%) ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE MR

BUSINESS REVIEW e A0 ||

Revenue and Segment Profit by Market
IS8 A RS EREF

42.9%
(40.1%)

10.7%
(5.7%)

89.3%
(94.3%)

57.1%
(59.9%)

Segment
Revenue Profit
WA bar:iyvill
Hong Kong, Macau & Overseas
B/E  BPIRIBIN . .
Mainland
by N

By Market X158 7 Revenue Segment Profit
HK$M B E BT A ax= il

Remarks: Figures for FY2021 are shown in brackets

5t RSB0 FHF

Segment

Profit Margin

HEEHE

5,032 187 3.7%
+41.7% +148.9%  +1.6 p.p. EEDE:
6,706 1,563 23.3%
+26.3% +252%  -02p.p. AEDE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BRSO

Hong Kong, Macau and Overseas

B BPIRAEIH

78.3%

136%  (26.0%)

(61.4%)
8.1%

0.5% (64.6%) 97.0%
0,
PE—
2.5%
(7.3%)
Segment
Revenue Profit

UN A EpETF

Rgeéailing . .
\?/t\ﬁgglesaling .

Licensing

g T

HKSM B EATT Revenue Segment
WA Profit Margin

A=

4,881 147 3.0%
+50.4% +848.4%  +3.6p.p. EEDE
127 15 12.0%
-51.2% -68.6%  -6.6p.p. EEDE
24 25 104.0%
-46.7% -451%  +32p.p. EEDE
5,032 187 3.7%
+41.7% +1489%  +1.6p.p. EEDEH
1,311 15 1.2%
+37.4% 68.6%  -3.9p.p. EEDL

Remarks: Figures for FY2021 are shown in brackets
i ISR 42021 EH T

! Adjusted Wholesaling Revenue = Revenue of Wholesale Business to External Parties + Inter-Segment Wholesale Revenue

ST R AV B U = BN B TSR + DR HLE WA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Hong Kong, Macau and Overseas

Hong Kong

According to the statistics on visitor arrivals to Hong Kong
published by the Hong Kong Tourism Board in February 2022,
visitor arrivals from Mainland in 2021 decreased by 97.6% year-
on-year to approximately 66,000. According to the statistics
on visitor arrivals to Hong Kong published in April 2022,
Mainland visitors from January to March 2022 decreased by
25.9% year-on-year to approximately 9,000. Due to sound
pandemic control for most of the year and benefiting from the
Consumption Voucher Scheme launched by the government,
local consumption atmosphere gradually recovered. As a result,
the Group’s retail revenue in the Hong Kong increased by 27.6%
to HK$2,684,577,000 (2021: HK$2,103,657,000) during the Year
under review. As at 31 March 2022, the Group operated a total of
44 self-operated shops (2021: 47 shops) in Hong Kong.

Macau

According to the market figures released by the Macao
Government Tourism Office, Mainland visitor arrivals to Macau
in 2021 increased by 48.2% over last year to 7 million and per
capita spending of Mainland visitors increased by 44.7% year-on-
year in 2021. The number of Mainland visitor arrivals to Macau
from January to March 2022 increased by 9.9% year-on-year.
Under the low base effect, the Group’s revenue generated from
Macau increased substantially by 85.8% to HK$1,734,715,000
(2021: HK$933,455,000) during the Year under review. As at 31
March 2022, the Group had a total of 15 self-operated shops
(2021: 13 shops) in Macau.

H#& R R EIN

5%

RIESBIRELZEBN2022E28 A2
BIRE A st HUIE B 0 20214 57 78 A A iR
BIGEIR97.6%ZE 966,000 A2 5 MH2022
FLR N ZhBREH T BIEET 2022
F1REIRPFARMKREIREER LA
125.9%ZF £99,000 A 2 o B FY 5 P9 K 2619 B
MEBEGNRE MESERBFHESZ
HH AL HBERAZS ME AERRE
BEFETEANZEWRARILIEMN27.6%E
2,684,577,0005 75 (20214F : 2,103,657,000%
70) © jA20224F3831H » REBEEFBLEN
L A44E BE L (20214 © 47[) ©

b |
RFBPIFRITHRE B G RERSERMN TS
B BIN 0 2021 FEH BN R EZF &R A F I
A82%ETEHB AR 2FRBRMBIRE A
HH BRI LR FFH44.7% 202218 &3
BpshBRH RS A ER LG 09.9%  7E
BEFEWNET BEEER KEBKREE
PRI U A A1 N85.8% % 1,734,715,00078 7T
(20214 : 933,455,000 7T) © iR2022438
31H > AEBERMHRF15M B EE (2021
4 13[) o
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Overseas

As at 31 March 2022, the Group operated a total of 14 overseas
shops (2021: 12 shops), including self-operated shops of 1 in
Singapore, 2 in Malaysia, 3 in the United States, 2 in Canada and
1 in Australia, as well as 2, 2 and 1 licensed shops in Cambodia,
the Philippines and Laos respectively.

During the Year under review, retail revenue from the Hong
Kong, Macau and overseas markets increased by 50.4% to
HK$4,880,879,000 (2021: HK$3,245,173,000), accounting for
41.6% (2021: 36.6%) of the Group’s total revenue. Its segment
profit turned around from a loss to a profit of HK$146,299,000
(2021: loss of HK$19,547,000), which accounted for 8.4% (2021:
-1.5%) of the total. Its segment profit margin was 3.0% (2021:
-0.6%). However, its wholesale business revenue decreased by
51.2% to HK$126,955,000 (2021: HK$260,135,000) as there
was no sale of gold raw material this year, accounting for 1.1%
(2021: 2.9%) of the Group’s total revenue. Its segment profit
decreased by 68.6% to HK$15,204,000 (2021: HK$48,489,000),
accounting for 0.9% (2021: 3.7%) of the total, while its segment
profit margin was 12.0% (2021: 18.6%). As the segment profit
of wholesale business included the profit of inter-segment sales
to self-operated shops, if including inter-segment sales in the
denominator, its segment profit margin would be 1.2% (2021:
5.1%). Apart from that, Hong Kong licensing income decreased
by 46.7% to HK$24,358,000 (2021: HK$45,726,000) due to shift
of certain consultancy services to Mainland, accounting for 0.2%
(2021: 0.5%) of the Group’s total revenue. Its segment profit was
HK$25,333,000 (2021: HK$46,110,000), accounting for 1.4%
(2021: 3.5%) of the total, and its segment profit margin was
104.0% (2021: 100.8%)).

Overall speaking, revenue from the Hong Kong, Macau and
overseas markets increased by 41.7% to HK$5,032,192,000
(2021: HK$3,551,034,000) during the Year under review,
accounting for 42.9% (2021: 40.1%) of the Group’s total revenue.
Its segment profit increased by 148.9% to HK$186,836,000
(2021: HK$75,052,000), accounting for 10.7% (2021: 5.7%) of
the total, while its segment profit margin was 3.7% (2021: 2.1%).

The SSSG for gold and platinum products in the Hong Kong,
Macau and overseas markets was +47.4% (2021: -34.2%) and
+40.8% (2021: -55.7%) for fixed price jewellery products.

g2

12202293831 H » AEBEAR LS 14840
JE& (20214F © 12f]) » BFE1RIAIRFT IR ~ 2
BRI A B R PR 8 ~ BRI £ E ~ 2RI A N =
RARBIAL SR B =S IR SR
JFERERERDRIRB2M 2/ K1 W hE
Eo

REIBEEARN > &8 BEFAREIINTEN
TEIWAENNS50.4%E4,880,879,0007%8 75
(20214 : 3,245,173,000 70) > (HER
BEU A BI41.6% (20214F : 36.6%) o 4 Hf
A Bl B S A 2 E 146,299,000 7T (2021
£ E51819,547,0008 70) » (HEEEMS.4%
(20214F :-1.5%) » HDZEFE£H3.0%
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£126,955,000% 75 (20214 : 260,135,000
Bro) o HEBEEREBUWANI.1% (2021
F:2.9%) HN#EFATEG8.6%E
15,204,0007 75 (20214F : 48,489,000/ 7T) »
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46.7%Z24,358,00078 75 (20214 : 45,726,000
BT HEEEIEW AN 2% (20214 :
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(20214 : 46,110,000/ 7T) * HEREA1.4%
(20214 1 3.5%) » EDTWEFIE£H104.0%
(20214F : 100.8%) ©

wEms  NOBEEER F8  BMPKEIN
ISR AIENN41.7%E5,032,192,0005 75
(20214 : 3,551,034,000 70) 15 A EEH
FEREWT AN 42.9% (20214 : 40.1%) » EHEP
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£ 1 75,052,000%7T) * HEFEHI10.7% (2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE MR

Mainland

At

37.7%
(32.2%)
_(32.2%)

13.8% 26.1%
(17.2%) (28.9%)

18.3%
(16.9%)

60.1%
(53.9%)

44.0%
__(50.9%)

Segment
Revenue Profit
WA bax:ibiuill

%itgailing . .
?thgglesaling .

Licensing
mIEE .

HKSM B &% TT Revenue Segment Profit Segment
O DEEF Profit Margin

2,527 215 8.5%
+47.9% +01%  -41pp. AEHY
2,950 409 13.9%
+9.2% +13.3%  +06 p.p. EEDE
1,229 939 76.4%
+36.5% +39.6% +1.7p.p. EAEDE
6,706 1,563 23.3%
+26.3% +252%  -02p.p. EEDE
3,068 409 13.3%
-0.4% +133% +1.6p.p. EEDE

Remarks: Figures for FY2021 are shown in brackets
i ERAR2021 I EHE
' Adjusted Wholesaling Revenue = Revenue of Wholesale Business to External Parties + Inter-Segment Wholesale Revenue

SRR R A =HSME B EFEWOA + DERRHE WA
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Mainland

During the Year under review, with sound pandemic control
for most of the year and strong gold sales, retail revenue
of the Mainland market increased significantly by 47.9% to
HK$2,527,026,000 (2021: HK$1,708,144,000), accounting for
21.5% (2021: 19.3%) of the Group’s total revenue. However, as
gross margin of gold products declined to a more normal level,
its segment profit remained basically flattish at HK$215,469,000
(2021: HK$215,239,000), accounting for 12.3% (2021: 16.3%) of
the total. Its segment profit margin was 8.5% (2021: 12.6%). The
SSSG for gold and platinum products in Mainland was +61.2%
(2021: -2.1%) and -4.3% (2021: -9.4%) for fixed price jewellery
products.

Despite the increase in the number of licensed shops, with
poor retail sales of diamond products, revenue of the wholesale
business in the Mainland market, which was mainly sales of
diamond products, rose by 9.2% only to HK$2,949,765,000
(2021: HK$2,701,692,000), which accounted for 25.1% (2021:
30.5%) of the Group’s total revenue. Its segment profit increased
by 13.3% to HK$408,472,000 (2021: HK$360,405,000),
accounting for 23.3% (2021: 27.2%) of the total. Its segment
profit margin was 13.9% (2021: 13.3%). As the segment profit
of wholesale business included the profit of inter-segment sales
to self-operated shops, if including inter-segment sales in the
denominator, its segment profit margin would be 13.3% (2021:
11.7%).

Licensing income in the Mainland market rose by 36.5% to
HK$1,228,820,000 (2021: HK$900,465,000) as a result of
the increase in the number of licensed shops, accounting
for 10.5% (2021: 10.2%) of the Group’s total revenue. lts
segment profit increased by 39.6% to HK$939,102,000 (2021:
HK$672,573,000), accounting for 53.7% (2021: 50.8%) of the
total, and its segment profit margin was 76.4% (2021: 74.7%).

Paith

REBEFEERN > KASDEFBEIBEGIEE
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50.8%) » H 3 aFEAR76.4% (20214
T4.7%) ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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To meet the customer needs of different profiles, the Group
actively created different sub-brands and product lines. The
Group has developed the popular product collections of
“Goldstyle”, which was well known for pioneering exquisite
techniques, and “Dear Q”, which featured creative and playful
ideas, into independent shops since May 2019. During the
Year under review, the Group also newly added shops of
“Lukfook Joaillerie”, which were targeting at high-end market,
and “Heirloom Fortune”, which were famous for traditional
craftsmanship. Therefore, during the Year under review, the Group
operated a total of 84 “Goldstyle” shops, 1 “Dear Q" shop, 2
“Lukfook Joaillerie” shops and 3 “Heirloom Fortune” shops in
Mainland. Apart from that, the Group added a net total of 434
“Lukfook” licensed shops (2021: 257 shops), while the number of
“Lukfook” self-operated shops remained unchanged (2021: net
reduction of 33 shops). Details are as follows:

Mainland Distribution Network

31 March

Shop Number of Different Brands/Product Lines
Bmhs/ EmiR s e

AHEIRABEZSENSE R AEERIBRIA
A& R E AR o BRI2019F5 8 1L » &
HMERRIUEZKEEINEERETEM
09T Goldstyle | Kz g & B 2 Tk A9 Dear
QIEBBIIEFIN REBEFEEN » TRl
HEEHMIBN NEERB UG EEE
TERBNIERESR G ALt AEEA
FE P TE QI AR =848 T Goldstyle J [5 ~ 118
MDear QJJ& 2 75725 mER] IE K ~ 3 &
TESR ] JE o BRILE Z 4h > TR IBER 743418 75
BIRMRIE (20214 : 257R9) » M /NB1 B &S
HEBRBNE) (20214 : FR/33[) <5215
T

Py ith 53 S4B 4E

31 March
2021
20214
3H31H

“Lukfook” Self-operated
73481 BEE 77 0
Licensed
SRHEE 2,135 +434
Sub-total
INEH 2,212 +434
“Goldstyle” Self-operated
BEE 8 -3
Licensed
mmhR s 72 +7
Sub-total
/NEE 80 +4
“Dear Q” Self-operated
BB 2 1
“Lukfook Joaillerie” Licensed
TRBE MR mmhEfE 0 +2
“Heirloom Fortune” Licensed
MEimEs mohEfE 0 +3
Total Self-operated
ECEo BEE 87 -4
Licensed
SRHEE 2,207 +446
Total
mY 2,294 +442
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As at 31 March 2022, the Group had a total of 2,736 shops
(2021: 2,294 shops), including 2,646 “Lukfook” shops (2021:
2,212 shops), 84 “Goldstyle” shops (2021: 80 shops) which
comprised 79 licensed shops (2021: 72 shops) and 5 self-
operated shops (2021: 8 shops), 1 “Dear Q" individual self-
operated shop (2021: 2 shops), 2 “Lukfook Joaillerie” shops
(2021: Nil) and 3 “Heirloom Fortune” shops (2021: Nil) in
Mainland.

ERE

During the Year under review, the overall same store sales growth
of “Lukfook” licensed shops in Mainland was +15.7% (2021:
+8.0%), while the same store sales growth for its gold and fixed
price jewellery products was +31.7% (2021: +11.9%) and -5.8%
(2021: +1.5%) respectively.

1£202243831 8 » AEEN A £ F2, 736
5 (20214F @ 2,294f8) » EHrh 582,646/
fBITESS (20214F © 2,212f%) ~ 84 Goldstyle |
JE&8 (20214F © 80f&) (BIE79M M5 (2021
F 1 72/) KRB BEEE(R0214 & 8f)) ~ 1
MDear QB BEE (20214 © 2f8) ~ 2/ 7%
A5 SRR JE & (20214 @ OR) R&3R8 MEm1E
5[5 (20214 © Off) o

REREEER > AN E MRS REEBEEH
EFIEA+15.7% (20214 :+8.0%) > MES
EREEEHERNBEHEABRDNS
+31.7% (20214 :+11.9%) &%-5.8% (20214 :
+1.5%)

FY2022 Mainland E-commerce Business Performance

2022 F M B FREABEHRER

’ lIRsze]v\enue ‘

1 +60.2% Y-0-Y Changes %&£t

Contribution to Mainland Retail
Revenue'

EPth EERA"

53.7% (2021: 49.5%)

\ 4
¢

Contribution to the Group’s
Retail Revenue'
HERZTERA

18.3% (2021: 17.1%)

Remarks: Figures for FY2021 are shown in brackets

& ERAA1M EHT

! Sales of self-operated shops and e-commerce business
BEEREFHFHEHE

2 ASP included value-added tax (VAT)
THEBEGSRER

Average Selling Price?

FiEE

RMBA E #1,5007T

T +15.4% Y-0-Y Changes & 415

FY2023 Revenue Growth Target
20238t FIR AL RB R
20%

Sales by product
HENERD S

Gold & Platinum
HERHE

16.0%
(22.0%)

Fixed Price Jewellery
TEEE
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Revenue of e-commerce business from Mainland increased by
60.2% to HK$1,355,791,000 (2021: HK$846,112,000) during the
Year under review, accounting for 53.7% (2021: 49.5%) of the
retail revenue in Mainland. Sales of gold and platinum products
accounted for 84.0% (2021: 78.0%) of its sales mix while sales
of fixed price jewellery products accounted for 16.0% (2021:
22.0%).

Overall speaking, during the Year under review, revenue from
the Mainland market increased by 26.3% to HK$6,705,611,000
(2021: HK$5,310,301,000), accounting for 57.1% (2021: 59.9%)
of the Group’s total revenue. Its segment profit increased by
25.2% to HK$1,563,043,000 (2021: HK$1,248,217,000),
accounting for 89.3% (2021: 94.3%) of the total, and its segment
profit margin was 23.3% (2021: 23.5%).

Financial Impact in relation to Investments and
Operating Activities in HKRH? & Its Subsidiaries

Gain/(Loss)
Wss, (B518)

HK$M
BEBTT

50% Share of Loss of Associate
B & A B150%E5 18 B Rk

Reversal of Impairment Provision on Amount Due
From HKRH
REIEWEBERER

Wholesale Gross Profit

HEEF]

Fair Value Loss on Provision for a Financial
Guarantee Contract

MHBERENBREZANERE

Interest Income on Working Capital Loan

MREBEZEMRABWA

Total
2E

During the Year under review, the total losses in relation
to investments and operating activities in HKRH & its
subsidiaries slightly narrowed to HK$31,000,000 (2021: loss of
HK$38,000,000).

i HKRH represents Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited (Stock
Code: 2882) which conducts jewellery retail and franchise businesses under
the brand name of “3D-GOLD” in Hong Kong and Mainland.

FY2022 FY2021
202204 £ 202184 5

|
—

NHMEFEIFEREZBRAREBBEE L
F60.2%%E1,355,791,0003 75 ( 20214 :
846,112,000/ 7t) > A ZE WA RIS3.7%
(20214 1 49.5%) - EEE£ MHEERIH
E(ELEA84.0% (20214 : 78.0%) » MEEE
EHEfERBMEEE16.0% (20214 © 22.0%) ©

BEms ROBEEER RE ARSI
AIENN26.3%%E6,705,611,0007 75 (20214 :
5,310,301,0007 7t) » HAEBE LW AS7.1%
(20214F : 59.9%) o EE0aF] A8 1025.2%
%1,563,043,00078 7T (20214 : 1,248,217,000
A7) o (HEEEERY80.3% (20214 © 94.3%) » H
DEEFZEA23.3% (20214 © 23.5%) ©

RERERER'REMBARNIRER
EEERBZMBRE

Y-o-Y Changes
s

(22) @

(20) 3

(38) 7

ROEFER REBEREREENEA
ANREREEEINBERBRBWESR
31,000,00077T (20214F : 38,000,000 7045
8 -

¢ EBERERAREBERZRARAD RHGK

5% 1 2882) NEBRAMGEUEES MBS
KERERFREER
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Non-HKFRS Financial Measure

To supplement the consolidated results of the Group prepared in
accordance with HKFRS, certain non-HKFRS financial measures,
EBITDA, EBITDA margin and total operating expenses to
revenue ratio have been presented in this report. The Company’s
management believes that such non-HKFRS financial measures
provide investors with clearer view on the Group’s financial
results, and with useful supplementary information to assess the
performance of the Group’s strategic operations by excluding
the impact of certain non-cash items. Nevertheless, the use of
this non-HKFRS financial measure has limitations as an analytical
tool. These unaudited non-HKFRS financial measures should be
considered in addition to, not as a substitute for, analysis of the
Company’s financial performance prepared in accordance with
HKFRS. In addition, these non-HKFRS financial measures may be
defined differently from similar terms used by other companies.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s cash and bank balances
amounted to HK$3,492,000,000 (2021: HK$3,546,000,000).
Net cash was HK$1,537,000,000 (2021: net cash was
HK$2,457,000,000). The debt-to-equity ratio was 34.3% (2021:
28.1%), being the ratio of total liabilities of HK$4,142,000,000
(2021: HK$3,188,000,000) against total shareholders’ equity of
HK$12,079,000,000 (2021: HK$11,325,000,000). As at 31 March
2022, the Group’s banking facilities amounted to approximately
HK$4.2 billion (2021: HK$3.9 billion), of which HK$2.0 billion
(2021: HK$1.1 billion) has been utilised. The Group’s income
and expenditure streams are mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

FERMBHREENMBHE

/AR AERRBEEBYHTREENREY
REFEE FEBYBREERMBFERET
MBI ITEREHA BN RFAFE R
B TEREHEA RN RBEEREWA
EERERFBRERES - AADEEEME
ZIIFERMBREERNYHAESREER
HERMBNAEBMBEG  WIRHARBNE
RERD ZBRMGRE TIFRSEENTZE ¥
HAEEBERBEENRER AT EHAZEE
AMBREENVHSAERRSOWM IAERE
BRI - IL AR BIZIFE BB RS ER
SFERRRAREESBMBTREENRRYN
RRABMHBRBEDNOETRMIFEASE UL
Sho ILTEIFEBMBRE R BAENTER
FISEREMAB PRAEMUFER AR -

MHEERUFEER

2022638310 » AEMB IR & K IRIT4E 5
#3,492,000,00058 75 (20214 : 3,546,000,000
HBIT) o B L A1,537,000,0005 7T (20214 :
BIRE A2 457,000,000 70) c BEEELEE
%34.3% (20214 : 28.1%) » ILJhiR4 &5
4,142,000,0003# 75 (20214F : 3,188,000,000
Bo) IHH IR E#EmAEEE12,079,000,0007 75
(20214F : 11,325,000,00058 70) = LE G5+ & o
[R20224F3831H AEENIRITEEEES
42 0fE3# 7T (20214F @ 39.0f8#7T) » EH120.0
BATT (202145 : 11.0E8BT) KEHH - KAE
BrWZEEEELETYE
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Inventory

=8

Inventory Turnover Days (By Product)

FEEEEY (UERES)

Average Inventory

FY2022
202201 £

Turnover Days
BAEA%

Gold

=E

Fixed price jewellery
EEEH

Overall

B

mE

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s inventory increased by 19.8%
to HK$8,769,000,000 (2021: HK$7,322,000,000). As the retail
sales grew significantly, the average inventory turnover days
declined to 356 days (2021: 451 days) with the average inventory
turnover days of gold products being 251 days (2021: 344 days)
and 478 days (2021: 544 days) for fixed price jewellery products.

The inventory turnover days calculated basing on closing
inventory were 388 days (2021: 444 days) with the closing
inventory turnover days of gold products being 282 days (2021:
351 days) and 513 days (2021: 527 days) for fixed price jewellery
products.

Capital Expenditure

During the Year under review, the Group’s capital expenditures
amounted to approximately HK$558,000,000 (2021:
HK$243,000,000), including the costs of properties, leasehold
lands, land use rights, leasehold improvements, furniture, fixtures
and equipment.

Capital Commitments
As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s total capital commitments
amounted to HK$23,000,000 (2021: HK$37,000,000).

Y-0-Y Changes

Closing Inventory

HXES

Y-0-Y Changes
HE

7202238310  AEBENFEIEN19.8%
%£8,769,000,00078 75 (20214F : 7,322,000,000
B MEFHEEEREHERATEHE KNIB
1 EMmiR/DE356H (20214 : 451H) » Hrh
BoEmMmZFHTEREREA251H (2021
& 344R) c EEEMESRRA478H (2021
F 1 5440H) o

MR EEE 2 EAEHE 53880 (2021
F 1 4440) HPF B EMNBPAREFERER
HA282H (20214 1 351H) » EEEHHERA
#5138 (20214 : 527H) ©

[=¢: Y5 k-2

REEFERN AEBEELABINS
558,000,0007 75 (20214 : 243,000,000
o) BREYE-HELH - THERE RS
YERE R EBE R RE A AS o

B EKIE
202238310 » AEBMPI B A KIEEEES
23,000,000 7% (20214 : 37,000,000 7T) ©
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Contingent Liabilities and Guarantee

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had corporate financial
guarantee amounting to HK$1,075,000,000 (2021:
HK$1,075,000,000) to banks in respect of 50% of the aggregated
amount of banking facilities granted to an associate. As at 31
March 2022, the banking facilities utilised by the associate were
HK$1,564,000,000 (2021: HK$1,486,000,000).

As at 31 March 2022, a loss allowance amounted to
approximately HK$37,000,000 estimated under the expected
credit loss model in respect of such corporate financial guarantee
of the Group was recognised (2021: HK$20,000,000).

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, save as disclosed above, the
Group had no significant contingent liabilities.

Human Capital Policy

As at 31 March 2022, the number of employees of the Group was
6,000 (2021: 5,900). The management reviews and examines
the remuneration policies on a regular basis to ensure that fair
rewards and compensation are provided to our employees.
Remuneration packages are determined with reference to
comparable market rates while bonuses and other rewards are
linked to the performances of the Group and the employees. This
policy aims to motivate employees with monetary incentives to
work together to enhance the Group’s business performance.

FABERIER

12202238310 » AEERE—EHE A B
BFYZIRTTMELIEZ50% B HBRITEHA
A BB FEHE1R1,075,000,0005 75 (20214 :
1,075,000,0007% 75) 722022438318 > %
e AR B8 ARITRIE1,564,000,00074 75
(20214 : 1,486,000,0007T) ©

2202243831 H  IRIBFFEHE S ERIE
5t BERAEETZA BT HEFRNEREEE
#97337,000,0007%8 75 ( 20214 : 20,000,000
7T) ©

R2022F %2021FE3831H B EXIRESE
o REBUWBEEARINEE

ANEFHE

522022938310 » AEE M E T A #%46,000
A (20214 1 5,900A) - EEEB TR B
IZERBNEER » AR (R A B T IR A A K 8
BeosBlFBIEEEBRaHBKFRER
MICAL R Hth i B R A E K B B /IR #H
HWolt R ETEUSRRE TBE TiHNHiE
IR F AEEERRIENEZ
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During the Year under review, due to the low base effect, the
same store sales of the Group had a turnaround to a positive
growth. However, with the resurgence of the pandemic in Hong
Kong and Mainland in February and March 2022, respectively,
the Group’s overall same store sales from March to April 2022
recorded a decline again. Nevertheless, with the improving
pandemic control and the help of a new round of consumption
vouchers, the Group recorded a satisfactory sales performance
in the Hong Kong market since April 2022. As a result, the same
store sales growth of Hong Kong and Macau market recorded a
slight growth from 1 April to 21 June 2022, while the overall same
store sales of the Mainland market, including both self-operated
and licensed shops, recorded a decrease of around 15% for the
same period. In addition, the Group’s overall SSSG turned around
to a positive growth again in May 2022.

Moreover, subject to the pandemic development, with further
expansion of our retail network, progressive relaxation of the
lockdown measures in Mainland and the Central government’s
commitment to implementing economic push measures and
consumption encouragement policies, we target to achieve
a double-digit growth in revenue in the coming year and look
forward to reaching record high profit in 3 years.

REBEER > AINMEEENE AEBNFE
EHEEEEEAAL B2 FBKRMD
AIR2022FE 2 ARSEKRERIENRE K&
1R2022FE3 810 E48 (B R EER) 5 88 & A I
BERES TR -AM FEMBERIBZEHIE
MREREN—WEESNER T #2022
FARM R » $5151E8 o At ) REE 2022
FAF1HE6H21BEB BRI E RI[F E & 18
REBE/EMAR A TIZEEREE kM
PR RS R EIHE R B — R RRRE AL
15% MY ELIE © B oh » RE B EFE[E 5 IH 18
RR2022F5 815 B REREFAIE

BE RBYIEBNER ATEEBNE—D
PR AR EE R R R P RBUFIRE
EREEEEERMOEBFERT  REHK
PUBAZEUHEFAERER THER=
FRAEEIRIFS -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BRSO

SUSTAINABLE GROWTH
FRIER

FOCUS ON MAINLAND MARKET
EXPANSION
FiER A TIGRRE

FOCUS ON
OPERATIONAL
EFFICIENCY
FENEEN =

FOCUS ON
BRANDING
BIER aa R R SR S

The Group has set up its brand new three-year corporate strategy AEBEI U 2= FEBZHEHRE - TR
with Mainland Market Expansion, Branding and Operational HiE#E) « (RIS E KRR K & B0 1F
Efficiency as its three main focuses so as to foster its future A= KE (> UBNEEEEEFRFIRKILE -
business growth.
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Mainland Market Expansion

As the Mainland government continuously launches measures to
stabilise economic growth, with a particular focus on policies to
promote consumption and investment growth, the Group remains
optimistic about the mid- to long-term business prospects.
Accordingly, the Group will still focus its expansion in the Mainland
market, particularly the markets in fourth-and fifth-tier cities.

In the upcoming year, the target for net addition of “Lukfook”
shops in Mainland will be at around 500 shops annually, mainly
focusing on opening licensed shops in fourth- and fifth-tier cities,
while the target for net addition of new brands’ stores in Mainland
is nearly 50 shops, which will also be mainly licensed shops. In
addition, the Group is also committed to further developing its
e-commerce business and strengthening cooperation with various
e-commerce platforms in Mainland, and at the same time will
also establish its own e-commerce platform, aiming to sustain
the online sales performance at a target of 20% sales growth
of e-commerce business in the upcoming year. In light of the
enormous spending potential of young consumers on online sales
platforms, the Group will continue its endeavours to promote the
sales of affordable luxury jewellery products to expand its footprint
in the young consumer market.

Pt IS iR
ERMBFREE R RELEERER LH
FREEHERRERRERT  AEEHR
HPRGEFRRDREEE » B R BE R
REEEFR PSP G SO E T~ AR TS ©

Mt 2R 74 I5 8 B IRF E REF 475500
B> ETERERRE LW THRRBEE M
ENmENERESE BRRAMFIRERY
S0 E® > EBTF A mAENE o B4 RERTR
SREEANMBEELRBEFEH XS MaA
BEBTANEF BRTERIBXEFH
BIa FEEAELHENRE LUE
HBEHHEER20% A AR —ENER-F
REKHEENBLEETYONHEREE
[RE ZEBREERHSEERIIHKE
B ZHE LIARFEHEET S
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Branding

The Group will further strengthen its brand image and positioning
through leveraging of innovative approaches and making use
of various media. Apart from that, the Group will also enhance
its product quality assurance, optimise service quality, improve
support for licensees and offer products that meet market needs.

Moreover, the Group will adopt holistic approach to seize the
development opportunities in the middle-class, wedding and
kids markets by understanding customers’ spending habits.
It will also continue to attract customers and encourage local
consumption by visual merchandising enhancement, cross-
selling boosting and VIP promotional activities, so as to
improve sales and profits. Given the importance of social media
in product promotion, the Group will continue to allocate more
resources on various online media and APPs to reach out to
target customers and catch up with online marketing trends,
including RED, Tiktok, Bilibili and e-sports.

Besides, we will also explore the enhancement of offline
shopping experience and possibility of cross-over collaboration
with other industries or brands to further intensify the synergy
between online and offline sales channels.

The Group also recognises the importance of environmental
protection and climate change and the increasing awareness
of environmental protection and relevant demand for products
among stakeholders, including consumers. Therefore, the
Group will implement measures to reduce the carbon footprint
of its products and set up a long-term goal of carbon reduction
to enhance the Group’s contribution to environmental
protection.

Operational Efficiency

In order to strengthen its competitive edge, the Group will
improve its operational efficiency by revamping its supply
chain management and implementing full automation, big data
management and data analytics system. The Group will also strive
to maximise employees’ productivity by cultivating and nurturing
cultures of continuous improvement and innovation.

in R [ R B
REAM D ZRESBERNER ~£8K
E—TrCmB TR KR EN - A& BTN
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R WIRHTEHEERNER
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EREEMEREUMERE  BHENHFH
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mmfRF s XA AVIPHE EES RS BEX
EHATHE  UIRSHEMFE i
RETERHENEZRE AEEREE
MBRERRFEREATORBESZEIRU
EZEEREFE TREERTHES 88
MIZHE BB FHEIEE

S AT ERREA R TRBYE > 2
HthTX A mBETERGIFAEN  E—
TIEE ERGTIHEEBZ HEMAE-

AEETHRAIRERENRIEZEECNER
MERFHECREEEHGEBIRENEHN
HENERBRIAEIGI - Fit > ZEEK
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In order to consistently align with the branding theme of “Love
is Beauty”, the Group has built a welcoming and warm-hearted
brand image to strengthen customers’ emotional attachment
to the brand, and has strived to become a globally recognised
jewellery brand through outstanding marketing campaigns and
excellent customer service programmes.

Adhering to the service motto of “Exquisite Craftsmanship,
Quality Services and Customer Orientation”, the Group acts in
the customers’ best interests in our operational management,
and is meticulous from product design, quality assurance to sales
services. To tie in with our “Six Heartfelt Services” standard, we
are dedicated to fulfiling customers’ need with a caring heart
and offering sincere quality services, aiming to provide the most
enjoyable shopping experience for customers.

Meanwhile, we also extend the concept of “love” to our
employees. We strive to promote a caring culture and create a
friendly and harmonious working atmosphere. We treat employees
as our family members and care for their physical and mental well-
being in order to enhance their sense of belonging and foster a
corporate culture of Lukfook Family.

BBZUEHMEH 2R NEEEEEE
AEE-EEBHEBHNHSHEREREMIER
ERFBE 8 BIURYMMEI AR > 158
BEHRRNERER BLOIBNRARIX
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LUKFOOK JEWELLERY
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HAR

INEAREE
Lukfook Family
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Six Heartfelt
Services
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MARKET ORIENTED STRATEGY

Targeting the mid- to high-end markets, the Group has adopted
comprehensive marketing strategies, and launched diversified
product offerings with exquisite designs, together with meticulous
services to seize the development opportunities in the middle-
class, wedding and kids markets.

155 A SR E&

HERBEEET R AEERREEOHIBEEER B
REtHER %mmME%HA&E@%@%W%’MW%$
B EERRT IS AR R RIS

MIDDLE-CLASS MARKET

To cope with our market positioning, we have endeavoured
to further penetrate the middle-class market through various
channels. During the Year under review, the Group continued to
hold the “Lukfook Jewellery Raceday”, and showcased a series of
glamorous diamond jewellery to the guests and audiences, so as
to raise our brand awareness among the middle-class population.

Nowadays, running marathon has become one of the most
popular sports among the middle-class in pursuit of a healthy
lifestyle. Therefore, during the Year under review, the Group
sponsored medals for the Hong Kong and Shanghai marathons to
honour marathon finishers. In addition, we collaborated again with
the well-known running mobile application “Joyrun” in Mainland to
boost brand awareness and seize the business opportunities from
the middle-class market.

REMS

ARATEENTBEMN RERNBBTAREE—FLE
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Middle-class pays attention to quality and details, the Group
unveiled the “DiaPure” Collection which only accepts the
diamonds with none or faint fluorescence and selects the
diamonds in accordance with eight strict standards to present
customers stunning diamonds as pure as water. Each piece
of this Collection comes with an exclusive gift box, a brand
certificate card printed with a unique number and a diamond
fluorescence indicator card. The pure white gift box is specially
designed with a white and ultraviolet spotlight under which
customers can better view the diamond, making it an elegant,
decent collectible or gift.

In view of the middle-class customers’ preference for versatile
and classic style, the Group meticulously crafted the “Hexicon”
Collection with stylish and textural designs. Simple versatile
hexagons, paired with sleek lines and multi-angle refraction,
enhance the light reflection effect, giving the accessories a more
glamorous look. In response to the middle-class customers’
demand for trendy diamond jewellery, the Group continued to
introduce the latest “Love is Beauty” Collection featuring a blend
of brilliant diamonds and chic aesthetic designs. Our patented
“Shiny Diamond Setting” enhances the visual effect of the pure
main stone to bring out the sparkle and brilliance of the diamond.
The Group also kicked off the new “Diamond Roadshow” where
customers can experience immersive while interactive shopping
in a giant diamond gift box styled space when walking into
the diamond-shaped entrance, creating more possibilities for
retail scenes. More than 1,000 polished diamonds, along with
personalised customisation service, were available on the spot to
create accessories with exclusivity.

With the growing popularity of the China-chic elements and
Chinese culture among the middle-class, the “Heirloom Fortune”
Collection pays tribute to traditional culture and passes on
cultural legacy. Inspired by the design concept of “passing down
the traditional virtue of filial piety and conveying the blessing for
a blissful life”, a wide array of exquisite gold jewellery of great
heritage and collectable value is finely crafted with traditional
handicraft skills to live on as a treasured family heirloom.
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WEDDING MARKET

According to the statistics released by the Ministry of Civil Affairs
of the People’s Republic of China, there were over 7.6 million
pairs of newlyweds in 2021. In order to seize this valuable
business opportunity of the wedding market, during the Year
under review, the Group has participated in different wedding
expos to increase brand exposure and enhance the brand
awareness in the wedding market.

To meet the increasing consumer demand in the wedding market,
the Group continued to introduce “Share Love in Wedding
5201314” Collection, which together denotes the meaning of ‘|
love you for a lifetime” in Chinese, into a portfolio of stylish wedding
jewellery products and caring services. At the same time, we also
held “Share Love in Wedding” roadshows, with a pink wedding-
theme showroom in which a romantic and beautiful photo-
taking zone was set up for customers, successfully attracted
customers’ attention. As nowadays consumers prefer unique
wedding jewellery, the Group introduced the “Light of Love” 18K
gold diamond ring. We use light with shadow effect to project
“1314”, “| @ U”, “5620” or other special symbols onto the specially
designed gift box to create a unique statement of lifelong love.

Chinese wedding remains indispensable for many Chinese
couples. Lukfook Jewellery joined hands with “Xiaoru Chinese
Wedding Dress”, an entity on the list of Guangdong Intangible
Cultural Heritages, to host a unique fashion show of the
Cantonese embroidery costumes and Chinese wedding jewellery.
Our “Beloved” Collection of gold wedding jewellery, which
integrates the traditional Chinese wedding culture into trendy gold
jewellery designs, was displayed at the show.
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KIDS MARKET

In response to the implementation of the three-child policy in
Mainland and the rising demand in the kids market, apart from the
“Hugging Family” Collection, our latest products of “Rilakkuma™”
Collection offers an exquisite selection of three-dimensional
accessories crafted with different techniques and designed with
lively, sweet details. During the Year under review, the Group held
“Lukfook Jewellery x Rilakkuma™” parent-child DIY cake bakery
workshop to deliver the sweet, trendy, and relaxing vibes of
Rilakkuma™.

Baby accessories has always been one of the most popular gold
products in the market. To drive strategic growth, the Group
introduced different baby accessories. The gold longevity locks
invoke the blessings for auspiciousness, peace, safety and health.
We can also print the baby’s lovely appearance in colour on the
locks, making them the unique memorable gifts to express the
elderly’s good wishes and love for babies.
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In light of customers’ growing demand for diversified products,
the Group introduces multiple product lines and brands in
accordance with the market changes to cater for different tastes
of customers, in order to increase our market share, enhance our
competitiveness and further strengthen our leading position.

To tie in with the development of China-chic culture, the Group
introduced the “Heirloom Fortune”, which integrated cultural and
historical elements and traditional handicraft skills with modern
creative designed gold accessories to pass down the sincerest
blessings from generation to generation and live on as a treasured
family heirloom. During the Year under review, the grand opening
of the “Heirloom Fortune” specialty shops has been well received
by consumers.

With the increasing purchasing power, customers are looking for
high-quality stylish products that can reflect their personal taste.
During the Year under review, the Group revamped and enhanced
the shop image of “Lukfook Joaillerie” with high-end market
focus. Apart from providing a curated selection of sophisticated
jewellery, the brand new “Lukfook Joaillerie” is also dedicated
to integrating the brand into life, creating a novel and elegant
jewellery aesthetic experience space, and delivering superb
shopping experience to customers.

The trendy “Goldstyle” is crafted with innovative techniques to
double the hardness of gold and provides the style effects of karat
gold. “Goldstyle” not only retains the advantage of gold as a good
store of value, but also puts a new twist on gold jewellery, adding
on-trend sparkle to customers.

“Dear Q” incorporates creativity and playfulness, featuring different
styles and festive themes, so as to provide pretty, fashionable
and dainty jewellery accessories. We design a series of diamond
charms for customers to mix and match for their unique styling,
so as to cater for the consumption demand for personalised
jewellery and the ever-changing customer preferences.
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With a strategic initiative to increase brand awareness and
secure our market share in Mainland and Hong Kong, the Group
continued to strengthen the connection between love and beauty,
which is in line with our branding theme of “Love is Beauty”.

The Group has been staying innovative and keeping pace with
the market to adopt different promotion approaches to enhance
brand image and strive for continuous innovation and changes.
We actively capitalised on different promotional channels, such
as public relations activities, advertising and various kinds of
sponsorships, to enhance our brand visibility. We also captured
the rapid growth of online marketing by placing advertisements on
major social media platforms and search engines, and promoted
our products via live broadcast platforms, influential we-media
accounts, KOLs and other popular new media platforms.

To celebrate the Group’s 30th anniversary, a series of promotional
activities have been rolled out. In Hong Kong, the Group held a
lucky draw to give away more than 66 taels of gold and launched
an online game to share the joy with the public. In Mainland, the
Group also organised gold bar lucky draw on major social media
platforms, which has recorded over 300 million engagements that
effectively enhanced brand visibility and created hot topics. At
the same time, we specially introduced the “Bear of Love” gold
necklace for the 30th anniversary. Crafted with the 5G light of gold
technique, the necklace has higher resistance to deformation.
Featuring the adjustable design, the necklace can be worn in two
different ways and has became one of the best sellers. Besides, the
Group held the “Love for More, Bling for More” new product launch
event in Shenzhen and invited Mr. Li Vi Feng, Lukfook Jewellery’s
global brand ambassador, to show up and interact with audience.
The event was simultaneously live-streamed online, recording over
12 million views, to raise Lukfook’s brand awareness among young
consumers. The Group also kept up with the times to leverage
the latest technologies. We brought the glasses-free 3D screen
to various cities and held the “Love is Beauty 3D Blinging Box”
roadshows to showcase the stunning brilliance of diamonds. The
vivid three-dimensional effect as if the sparkling diamond can be
reached with hand attracted a large crowd to take photos. During
the Chinese New Year, we also invited Chinese table tennis player,
Xu Xin, to be the “Chief Fortune Officer of Lukfook Jewellery”, and
hosted the live-streaming event themed “Celebrate Chinese New
Year with Xu Xin and Lukfook”, which recorded 5 million views and
nearly 100 million views on the related topics, and realised rapid
traffic growth and improved interactions with customers, greatly
enhancing the brand penetration. In addition, in light of customers’
demand for new products, we introduced the “New 365" concept
to feature the launch of a new product every day, and endeavoured
to design and provide more diversified products to cater for the
needs of different markets.
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Riding on the wave of e-sports and animation comics booms
in recent years, the Group has created the “King Pro League”
champion rings for ten consecutive seasons, with a view to
strengthening our penetration into the millennial generation
as their purchasing power is trending upwards. Following the
“King Pro League” champion rings, we have continued to craft
the jadeite-set phoenix medals for the “Honour of Kings World
Champion Cup”, one of the highest-profile e-sports events in
Mainland, thus stepping up brand publicity and enhancing our
brand penetration into the market of younger generation.

Producing the finest products with exquisite craftsmanship and
stylish designs is one of the core competencies of the Group.
Therefore, the Group is committed to striving for excellence in
product design and quality, and bringing diverse elements to our
products to create a wide range of jewelleries with ingenious
designs and exquisite craftsmanship.

Our professional jewellery design team is the fashion-conscious
trendsetter. They have also actively taken part in various local and
international jewellery design competitions, and have won more
than 210 awards up to now. During the Year under review, the
Group’s design pieces “Good and Evil”, “Lighting” and “Dynamic
City” won the Merit Award in “The 22nd Hong Kong Jewellery
Design Competition”.

Good and Evil Lighting
e JEIR

FELFNEBH - FERH BN ELERE
7]EI$ﬁEZ%$¥E’J?¥g1ﬁﬁ FEREEIOZR
KPLEZERIBHEMBEI S RBRIBEIEN
FEZAM - EKPLEE A TS > MBS R
EeRENEGEEZ —TERBEHAEE
HIENITEESRIEVE L BRI > MN5a
mEEBNERREADRBREEDIENEE

NEBERE RTTRAFENERSEE
Bz OmFNZ— FIAAREBEERRKR
R E L@ KRB R ARRAMETREAE
me BRI H O RERERNKRES
ffie

ZK%I%%%; 5t B RS SR AV 15
BEIBEFR - Rt BT AR 2 R 2 E At
&ﬁ%f%ﬁulu+tt§ ESHERE210(E %
B ROEFERN AEBRKRERFRIE.
B DERIR BRI N THE22EEBKE
KRB IDEREREK-

Dynamic City
B EB

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 758 E (B HIRAE



BRANDING
m R FEE R R B

The Group’s continuous efforts in brand building have been
recognised with the following awards and accolades from the
industry and market, which included:

- “Hong Kong Service Awards — Quality Living Category
(Jewellery and Gold)” for fifteen consecutive years

- “Hong Kong Star Brand Award — Enterprise” for nine
consecutive years

- “Outstanding Jewellery Retail Service Award” in “01
Corporate Gold Medal Award 2021”

- “Bronze Award (Content Marketing)” in “The 22nd 1Al
Awards — Digital Marketing Category”

- “Silver Award (IP Marketing Category)” in “The 13th Golden
Mouse Digital Marketing Awards”
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The Group puts emphasis on quality control and authentication
to enhance consumers’ confidence, and is meticulous from
procurement to authentication. In 1996, China Gems Laboratory
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group which is
operated and managed by experienced and certified gemologists,
was established to provide services including authentication and
grading of diamonds, authentication of jadeite jade and coloured
gemstones, and quality testing for jewellery.
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In addition, the Group set up Victoria Gemological Institute
Limited, which principally engaged in jewellery authentication and
professional training. With branch offices established, the institute
provides services for the jewellery sector and customers. The
institute has passed the ISO/IEC 17025 accreditation of the ANSI-
ASQ National Accreditation Board (ANAB) and the accreditation
of the International Laboratory Accreditation Cooperation (ILAC),
and is authorised to issue internationally recognised reports for
diamond grading, jadeite jade, ruby, sapphire and emerald testing.

Besides, the Group also collaborated with the National Gemstone
Testing Center and became one of the first jewellery brands
to launch e-certificate, making joint efforts to provide quality
assurance for consumers and protect the interests of consumers.

The Group also cooperated with the De Beers Group Institute of
Diamonds to provide a report for Hearts & Arrows diamond sold
at our shops, so as to give customers a more comprehensive
understanding of the diamond products purchased.

Lukfook’s cultivation of a warm-hearted brand image would
not be successful without a commitment to service excellence.
Adhering to the service motto of “Exquisite Craftsmanship, Quality
Services and Customer Orientation”, we act in the customers’
best interests in our operational management. In line with the
branding theme of “Love is Beauty”, the Group has introduced
the “Delivering the Beauty of Love with Six Heartfelt Services”
excellent customer service programme to fulfil customers’
needs with a caring heart and offer quality, sincere services to
customers, with a view to providing the most enjoyable shopping
experience for customers and relaying the culture of Six Heartfelt
Services to each customer all over the world.

In view of customers’ increasing demand for instant response in
recent years, during the Year under review, the Group embraced
a new omni-channel approach which integrated various official
messaging platforms and enabled our shop staff to directly
respond to customers, in order to strengthen communication
with customers and providing more caring services. Meanwhile,
with our all-new one-on-one video shopping service, our sales
associates can show the in-store products to customers in real
time and customers can shop from the comfort of their home.
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To tie in with our fashionable and warm-hearted brand image,
our shops have applied soft champagne gold tone, and added
curvy lines to showcases at storefronts to create an elegant and
romantic ambience. Glass elements are widely used at shops to
create a more spacious feeling and impressive displays, so as to
make customers feel at home.

The shops introduce the innovative space design to create
a corridor-style shopping area where customers can stroll to
appreciate and select jewellery. The shops also provide an
independent area where customers can enjoy one-to-one service
and tailored advice offered by our staff. Besides, the Group
has established the Member Zone at shops for our privileged
members to enjoy special offers, leisure space and caring
services, aiming to deliver unparalleled shopping experience to
customers.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRI -8 RERKRS

Purpose of This Report

We are delighted to present our Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) Report (the “Report”) of this financial year
to all stakeholders with an aim to demonstrate the performance,
management approach and achievements of our sustainability
strategy in pursuit of the well-being of our employees, the
prosperity of the society and the protection of the environment.
For disclosure on corporate governance of the Group, please refer
to the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this
Annual Report.

Reporting Year and Scope

Unless otherwise stated, this Report mainly focuses on the
operations of the Group’s offices, factory, showrooms, and self-
operated shops in Hong Kong, Macau, and Mainland during FY
2022 (the “Reporting Period”). Compared to our ESG Report FY
2021, there is no significant change in the reporting scope of this
Report. The source of information this Report includes our official
documents, statistical reports, or relevant public information.

Reporting Standard

This Report complies with the latest disclosure requirements of
the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the
“ESG Reporting Guide”) set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). A content index to
the ESG Reporting Guide is enclosed to enhance its readability.

Reporting Principles

In the preparation process, the Group adheres to the “reporting
principles” stipulated in the ESG Reporting Guide of the Stock
Exchange: materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency. For
details, please refer to the table below.
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Materiality
EEH

Quantitative

E1t

Balance

T

Consistency

—Hik

Meaning
BB

The report should disclose: (i) the process
to identify and the criteria for the selection
of material ESG factors; (i) if a stakeholder
engagement is conducted, a description of key
stakeholders identified, and the process and
results of the issuer’s stakeholder engagement.
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Quantitative information should be accompanied
by a narrative, explaining its purpose, impacts,
and giving comparative data where appropriate.
BEEHENSRE BHEENREE I
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Both positive and negative information should be
presented in this Report to present an unbiased
picture of the Group’s performance.
FHREHEESHENRARTAZR UTR
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The issuer should disclose in the report any
changes to the methods or KPIs used (if any), or
any other relevant factors affecting a meaningful
comparison.
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Response of the Group
2 &£ Bl a9 [E] &

The Group identifies major sustainability
issues based on the opinions of
stakeholders. During the process,
we consider the internal and external
factors by conducting regular materiality
assessment and communication
with stakeholders, to identify material
sustainability issues and to focus on
these material issues in this Report.
Please refer to the section headed
“Material Issues” for details.
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The Group discloses its environmental
and social Key Performance Indicator
(“KPI1”) through calculation and
presentation of figures with comparison
and explanation (where applicable).
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The Group presents its sustainability
achievements and challenges in this
Report to reflect a comprehensive picture
of the Group’s sustainability performance
and development.
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The Group adopts a consistent
framework and calculation methodology
which allow a meaningful comparison for
stakeholders.

REBEBRM— AR SER KA

FANBRENIERNEE WH) HEMHEM 55 UERHERERFETEES

TEAERILLBHNBRARER-

Access to the Report

The Report is part of the Group’s Annual Report available in
both Chinese and English versions. It is accessible on the Stock
Exchange’s website and the Group’s website at lukfook.com.

Your Feedback
Collecting valuable feedback from stakeholders will enable us to
better formulate our ESG approach. You may contact us by email
at ir@lukfook.com.
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Corporate Vision
The corporate vision of the Group is to be the “Brand of Hong
Kong, Sparkling the World”. This is also our core brand value.

The Group always puts forth maximum effort for Lukfook to reach
its goal of becoming a globally recognised and desired brand. The
Group commits to crafting the finest jewellery for customers to
further establish its reputation in the international market.

Corporate Mission

The Group always puts its greatest effort to reach the
expectations of the shareholders, customers, employees and
contribute to the community:

° To add value to shareholders’ investment, maintain a steady
growth in business and profit

° To provide value-added products and services to its
customers

° To provide its employees with a professional development
environment and grow together to achieve corporate goals

° To contribute to the community through enforcing the
communications with public and participating in charity
events

Corporate Values
Practicality: Advocating a pragmatic and realistic way of doing
business

Innovation: Continuous learning and strive for change as well as
innovations

Integration: Build a harmonious corporation both internally and
externally

Excellence: Demonstrate full commitment, quest for excellence
and continuous improvement, endeavour to be the best

Corporate Management Philosophy
People Focus: The basic attitude of the Group towards its

employees

Value for Harmony: Harmonious internal and external environment
is the basic conditions for the success of the Group

Focus on Results: Refers to both efficiency and effectiveness
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Product and Service Quality

EmBREmE

Lukfook Jewellery Honoured with “Outstanding
Jewellery Retail Service Award” in “01 Gold Medal
Awards 2021”
NEHRERE01EES B AIR2021 ) Rz EHEK
BETERBARE

N

LUIKKFOOI GROUP

Ms. Wong Lan Sze, Nancy, Executive Director and Deputy
Chief Executive Officer of LukFook Group, received the
honour on behalf of the Group

NEEERTESRITHASREHGT L IARER

The Group has been recognised as “Consumer Caring
Company” by GS1 Hong Kong for nine consecutive
years

i%?@%hfﬁ%&é%?ﬁ mEBHEER O E
=1

$15E BDiRE EFTHRE

The 10'" Consumer Caring Scheme Presentation Ceremany
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Mr. Tse Moon Chuen, Deputy Chairman & Deputy General
Manager of Lukfook Group received the Award on behalf
of the Group

NEEEREIFRIBRERFRELERNXEEES

iz

The Group has been awarded “Hong Kong Star Brand
Award-Enterprise” by Hong Kong Small and Medium
Enterprises Association for nine consecutive years
FEBESENFRERTARNDETEBRSGEEN
MEBEMmhE— R HKRE

& R @R MTE2020/21

Mr. Tse Moon Chuen, Deputy
Chairman and Deputy General
Manager of Lukfook Group
(middle), received the trophy and
certificate from Mr. Leung Kwan
Yuen, President of the Legislative
Council (right)
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Environmental Protection

iﬂ iﬁ. 1% -3

The Group has been accredited “Hong Kong Awards
for Environmental Excellence” (HKAEE) organised
by the Environmental Campaign Committee, the
Environmental Protection Department and nine other
organisations for the fourth year in succession. The
Group won the Certificate of Merit under the “Shops
and Retailers” sector again amongst the pool of 2,785
entries

AERBENFRERRRENESET Hﬁ‘ﬂiaiﬁﬁ
EERNERE S TS BIRIE S A HE
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Mr. Tse Moon Chuen, Deputy Chairman and Deputy
General Manager of Lukfook Group, received the
commendation on behalf of the Group
/;f%%@%ﬂiﬁ% Bl S M EEARERER
TRER

The Group has been honoured again with the “BOCHK
Corporate Environmental Leadership Awards”, jointly
organised by Federation of Hong Kong Industries
(“FHKI") and Bank of China (Hong Kong) (“BOCHK”),
and recognised as “EcoPartner” in “Services” sector
two years in a row. The Group’s subsidiaries Luk Fook
Jewellery (Guangzhou) Company Limited and Lee Fook
Diamond & Jewellery (Guangzhou) Company Limited
have been awarded the “EcoPartner” and “5 Years+
EcoPioneer Companies” in “Manufacturing” sector for
six consecutive years

FEEBERERB I XEY (TR HPRERT &
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Lorporate bnvironmanial Leccenie: Awar
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Mr. Tse Moon Chuen, Deputy Chairman & Deputy General
Manager of Lukfook Group received the honour on behalf

of the Group
NEEEEIE
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Corporate Governance and Citizenship

TtEERRARTEE

The Group clinched three awards in the “In-house
Counsel Awards 2020” by Asia’s leading legal
magazine “China Business Law Journal”’(CBLJ),
including two team awards—Winner of the Year in
Consumer & Retail, Winner of the Year in Employment
& Labour, and the individual award of Highly
Commended Counsel in Consumer & Retail for Ms.
Irene Cheung, Senior Legal Counsel of the Group
AEBESTMNANZERZBT(EED (China
Business Law Journal)i8 25 M 2020F (A ) B 274
BARIZEKRR OETHERARTZE—FEEH
EHEEBIN M EERSSH—FEEHEBEBRIW
HEBRNESE  EESREFERKRER/NE
HEZIHEGRZE B EHBRIEALR

Trophies for 3 Awards in CBLJ In-house Counsel Awards
2020
F20205F E (B7E ) (R 2 AT R = IRFRESHT R

The Group has been honoured
with the “Hong Kong Service
Awards 2022 - Quality Living
Category (Jewellery and Gold)”
by “East Week Magazine”,
achieving an outstanding 15th
consecutive win
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Ms. Wong Hau Yeung, Executive Director and Chief
Operating Officer of Lukfook Group received the honour
on behalf of the Group
NEEERNTESREEERTILHB L TRKRERSE
ER#2 R
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Corporate Governance and Citizenship

EEERRARERE

caringcompany
Awarded by The Hong Kong Col
& %?iﬁﬁlﬁ%ﬂ"‘ﬁﬁﬁ%i‘

The Group has been awarded “10 Years Plus Caring
Company Logo” by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service (“HKCSS”) for twelve consecutive years
AREMP2020/21FE R REER T8 B EEE
105 Plus N7 R R R E ) SR B 1RE BB 12F B 4
A EEEIhE
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Haldings Company
The Group has been AERENRLE
accredited by the R—
Good MPF Emplayer
Mandatory Provident _mEsaz

Fund Schemes i
Authority (“MPFA”) as

a Good MPF Employer
rEEREXRERE T 2
BER TR TR .'f _—
BETErE =TEEE ¥

The Group was
again awarded as
“QF Star Employer”
in the “Qualifications
Framework” (QF)
Scheme launched by
the Education Bureau
of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region
REEREBERIIT
HeHBERHETHNIE
BRBEISTEPERERF A QFEREE
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The Group has been accredited “Happy Company” for
eight consecutive years under the “Happiness at Work”
promotional scheme
NERESEN\FRFALTIEEEETETERTS
MBEOEZE]

MO BY
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Caring Certificate (Enterprise Group)

The Group has been R
honoured with a
“Caring Certificate” in
the “Industry Cares
Recognition Scheme”
2021 organised by
the Federation of
Hong Kong Industries
(“FHKI")
REBREBSLHEES TN TTERE LI RGBT
E2021EREE MO RIRES

Luk Fook Holdings
(International) Ltd

SlIneS
FHKI S5

FEERES
Equal Opportunity Emplsyer

The Group has become the first Hong Kong jewellery
brand to receive the “Equal Opportunity Employer
(Family Status Equality)” Award from the Equal
Opportunities Commission
AEERABXEAKERBMEERTSEREEE
EREENTERERET (REEULTE) IRT
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Craft Inheritance and Innovation
ERIZZEEEEI

During the Reporting Period, the Group became the
first jewellery retailer in Hong Kong to launch the GIA
Cultured Pearl Classification Report service.
RIREME ZEEN AT BB RELCAREL K
DRBERFNKRETER

During the Reporting Period, “a Physical Gold With China Gems Laboratory Limited and
Ornament and an innovative Electroforming Victoria Gemological Institute Limited, the
Technology” self-developed by the Group was Group cooperates with De Beers Group
granted an “Invention Patent” by the China National Institute of Diamond to improve customer
Intellectual Property Administration. confidence in product quality.

RBREHE AEBEEMENT—EBEERTE FEBEEREREEED O HSF D
R HABELZI BREARNBERDEE 55 B2 TRAFEEGTERBELRRG
R B ReEERHEREENED

Sustainable Jewellery and Responsible Sourcing

ARHEGERARERE

During the Reporting Period, we set a series of environmental protection targets focusing on four areas, “Efficient
Use of Energy”, “Protection of Water Resources”, “Waste Recycling” and “Emissions Reduction”, in an effort
to promote environmentally friendly operation and production. We have also formulated the “Lukfook Supplier
Operational Risk Code of Conduct”, in order to integrate the concepts of environmental protection, protection
of employees’ rights, concern for social development and optimization of corporate governance into business
operations, and encourage suppliers to promote sustainable development together. We require suppliers to
establish relevant monitoring and due diligence systems to ensure that the precious metals, diamonds and
gemstones supplied to the Group are legally sourced and are not from any conflict areas. In addition, we require
our suppliers to abide by international and local laws and not to employ any child labour, forced labour, etc., to
safeguard the human rights of employees throughout the supply chain.

RIS BT 7 —RINIRRIEN B4 SRR ~ BEKER) FE‘%@H&J&FH DHEL UK
0 HERESHE T AENRREBREE - HATHIET (x\ﬁﬁlfﬂiﬁgﬁ % <PH)  BREGREIRIE

REREETI#G AV EREREBLCEEEAEESMAEBEESHR jﬁi‘z[%m\%ﬁ EEHESN O] 54
ER MR EHERERUIEHGEEREMBATHIE EET%{ tE S RE@BE %E CEAREARNRIEES
5 WIER BEMERME o BRIL 2 S MM B RHEEFHEBTFREARREMER T ERERATAEZETL -JEBRS
T% MARBEHREHENE T ARESRRE
Intensity of Greenhouse Gas Emission Intensity of Total Energy Use
mERBHREE HMEEREBE
Achieved a Achieved a
EE2021 B4 SRR Eb2021 B4 R
o o)
19% 16.5%
reduction comparing reduction comparing
to FY2021 to FY2021
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People Empowerment
AR BE

Approximate average

X Total training hours training hours per
A total workforce of ]j'he rlatlo of lmale to over emplo?/ees P
éI%@ﬁ emale employees z@iﬁ )| E#%(Eﬂ RN 4
5,920 110,000 15.6
employees 1 . 23 hours hours
& NS JNBF
Caring for the Community
MEHE
Our focus areas of community contribution Donated a total amount of approximately HK
include: BHEFCERNQBLE
BNt ERESMEBEBEE !
Sports Development, Medical $5 3 Million
Services, Anti-epidemic Actions and BB

Environmental Protection
ERZRE -BERE -hETH RIERE
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OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY
Sustainability Governance

To integrate more effectively the ESG philosophy into the
strategic planning and operational decision-making process, the
Group continues to improve its ESG management systems, and
exhibit a clear division of work responsibilities from management
to execution level. The Board of Directors bears the ultimate
responsibility for overseeing the ESG issues, evaluating and
managing material ESG issues. Starting from FY2021, the Board
started reviewing the annual ESG report at the Board meeting to
demonstrate the emphasis of the Group on the performance and
reporting of sustainability development.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has established the Risk
Management and Sustainability Committee to assist the Group in
formulating and improving the risk management system, as well
as assessing risks related to sustainability strategy and measures
of the Group and providing advice to the Board of Directors. In
addition, the Committee also monitors the implementation of ESG
related policies and measures.

Board of Directors

FFIya] 548 3% R R g
ARERRER

ATHEBRE HEREABLEARMES
R ERHRFERERRE R AEEE
BREER HERELTENEA (HERE
QTEEETRARNEEH T EETHIE
B HAREATEREEENREET B
BEANBE HEREAEEETIERE
BI{F- BEEQU0NHERREESEEY
BRBIBREEERS HEREARS U
BRAEEANTREERTERRRERD
BHRo

AEBRBSPEMRILT AREE R FE
RRZES UM EERRYKARAR
BERM URMEEB A FEEROIRE
MER FEEMZEARZEE MEFTR
HERKRBH FRILZIN ZEEGTFEERA
EREMIRE L RERBEBRRIERY
BB

o Take full responsibility for the Group’s sustainability
strategy and reporting

EEg
s HERENAUFEZRRBRER
AEREEE

N
0

Audit Committee
° Review sustainability strategy and approach

. Review annual ESG report

Risk Management and Sustainability Committee

BREEE
s  BRAUREERREKRIH
s ZFERFERR - HETKRELRS

ARERRAFEEREST

Formulate sustainable development strategy and
approach

Monitor and evaluate the implementation of sustainable
development policies and measures

|dentify sustainability risks

Review the progress against sustainability targets

Coordinate sustainable development work

Coordinate annual ESG reporting work

Ensure all functional departments and business units
effectively implement sustainable development policies

Collect and manage environmental and social KPIs

o HIFTAIREERERE KR H

s EBHERFLAFEEBRBRRE
HEBYE H 1B

o  HBRFHEZERRER

s WHAREZREREER

s ME/UIREEEIE

s KMEFERE -HEREARS
T1E

s MREBENMREHRBMYIE
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The following outlines the procedures in formulating our corporate LA A 7 HAITEHIE ¥ H BB R
sustainability strategy and goals: K BZRRAR -

TR\, DECENT WORK AND INDUSTRY, INNOVATION
W8y ECONOMIC GROWTH AND INFRASTRUCTURE

|dentify risks faced by international peers, review all 17 S

. . . SUSTAINABLE

United Nations Sustainable Development Goals and DEVELOPMENT

select 5 of them related to the Group’s business as the G;:“"::sALS "'

basis.

58 1) B R [2) 25 P T 3 =2 R B > 6 A 481 78] Bk 5 B AT 45 I 13 CuwE 1 szt
CONSUMPTION ACTION FOR THE GOALS

BIEREBERELEPSE R AL EEZERENBEE ANDPRODUCTION

AERo w @ @

Identify sustainability issues relevant to various
stakeholders through materiality assessments, ESG-
related risk assessments, internal departmental meetings,
and in our material sustainability focus areas.
FiBEBMTME  ESGIERE R s~ NERERPIE &
MR ARBIMIN ERE Pl & R 5 A 0 35l B & E 15
BRI RES REE

Conduct analysis using PESTLE' and SWOT? models.
The models evaluate the environmental and social factors
in the previous steps, as well as macro-environmental
factors such as political, economic, technological,
and legal factors, in order to assess our strengths,
weaknesses, opportunities and threats comprehensively.
MPESTLE JSWOT? A & Bt 4R _E 3t 4 BR PR e B9
RERMERERRIIN 2T EIEBUS &K il K%
FEREFRBRERZ  2EMONEMNER S
WEREE -

Formulate corporate sustainability strategies and goals
and KPI targets.

GIEREAFEZERE X EERERENIERE
BiRe

! PESTLE analysis model mainly analyses six macro-environmental factors, including political, economic, sociological, technological,
environmental, and legal factors faced by the Group
PESTLER TR A F BUAEEE BN AARRRERRED T EPEEBUA KB g 2l - BEREAERR

2 SWOT analysis model helps to identify the strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats of the Group
SWOTAMERRBUAEBNES LB - BERRBIEDT
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The United Nations Sustainable Development Goals
(“SDGs”)

To drive the world towards a sustainable future, the United
Nations came up with the SDGs in 2015. In response to the
promotion of sustainable development by the United Nations,
the Group is committed to becoming a socially responsible
corporation, supporting the SDGs, and incorporating sustainable
development into the business operations of the Group.

While expanding the development of jewellery business, we also
proactively protect environment, give back to the society and
strive to create a caring and inclusive working environment. In
order to meet the expectations and progress on sustainability
development from our customers, employees and shareholders,
we identified and managed significant potential sustainable
development risks to the Group. With reference to the 17 SDGs
and our business nature, we selected 5 sustainable development
goals as the foundation to underpin the 4 focus areas: (1)
Craft Inheritance and Innovation, (2) Sustainable Jewellery and
Responsible Sourcing, (3) People Empowerment and (4) Caring
for the Community. Through referring to this framework for the
sustainability governance, we set corresponding ESG goals
to enhance the sustainable development performance of the
Group'’s operations and business planning.

We selected 5 SDGs of highest relevance to the Group as the
foundation:

RESPONSIBLE
CONSUMPTION
AND PRODUCTION

QO

DECENT WORK AND

INDUSTRY, INNOVATION 1
ECONOMIC GROWTH

AND INFRASTRUCTURE

o

i

BEERFHEZERBR (TSDGs))

ATHIZHEDUFEN R BEEP
201552 TSDGs o A 7 Bl FEM & B ¥ o] 5
BEENESY AEER A —KREEXH
TEAENDTE > XIFSDGs B A EEEMR
AEFAERKEE o

f%%ﬁ%%%%@%ﬁﬁ HEIBRE
R Ot T ETmEENERN
IW&E‘%TEE@% BT REREHIEM
WHEMIEAFERE > BMH A ISR
HAEFEANBEINFELZRERR w2
ET17TESDGsHEE £ FEEE > EHSE A F
BERBEAER WMEIEQEEES
MWERIBZIEENHAM  QuiFELENS
SEERE -QATHERGBEEHE FEES
REERETHREZEE A MK EE
ENRIE-HERERER WMEAEEE
B ERRD LN OFERRERER

HMEHSREAE R R B ARAAISDCsIER
B

13 CLIMATE 17 PARTNERSHIPS
ACTION FOR THE GOALS

QD P
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Stakeholder Engagement

The Group actively expands communication channels and
maintains close contact with stakeholders. In our daily operations,
we establish the following channels for various stakeholders
in the hope of listening to their expectations and needs on the
our business development and continuously keeping a good
relationship with our stakeholders. Input and feedback from
stakeholders drives us to manage risks and opportunities more
effectively and create greater value for the Group and the wider
community. Listed below are the communication channels for
each of our key stakeholders with their concerns:

Focused Concerns
RRESEIE

Customers and Community
BEERE
e Occupational Health and Safety
HERREREZE
e Customer Service
BEEART

Employee

8T

e Employee Benefits
(E=EEY

e Environmental Measures and Corresponding
Environmental Production Procedures
IRRIEMAAERIRRN S E R

e Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-Discrimination
TEHE 2l RER

Licensee

anh&

e Business Expansion
EHBEE

e Product Design and Creativity
Em&TREIR

e [ntellectual Property Management

N EREE

HRE2H

FEBRBIERBERE BENERFEE
B -THEEET AMAEBASFTNE
BINTZRERE ZEETDBERMFITE
EEEFERNPERTE BFNERE
BUYURFHAFG -FHENTRMN R RS
HPEAMEERRRRESE SEEER
BAREEAGEEREE UTHRAERMS
BEXERFMNERUMNBERERMFINRE
=S

Major Communication
Channel and Frequency

FEBBREREAR

e Direct Communication (All the time)
HRER (REPED

e Social Network (Irregularly)
HRTEE (REH)

e Press Release (irregularly)
RN (RER)

e Employee Performance Appraisal
Interview (Annually)
BTENEZEN (BFEE)

e Meeting (Irregularly)

g% (R EH)

e Feedback Mailbox (Open all the time)
[k E&fE78 (REARE)

e Employee Activity (Irregularly)
BTEE (FEH)

e |icensees Meeting (Irregularly)
MR gE (REH)

e On-site Visit (Irregularly)
R (REH)

e Direct Communication (Irregularly)
BiEER FEH)
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Focused Concerns
RxH1E

Supplier

A=

Green Procurement

LR EBIREE

Marketing Promotion and Advertisement
TiBEERES

Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-Discrimination
TERELnh RIER

Investor and Shareholder

REERRR

Marketing Promotion and Advertisement
TISHERES

Intellectual Property Management
MHERERE

Employee Benefits

REEF

Major Communication
Channel and Frequency

FEBBRRERAR

Suppliers Meeting (Irregularly)
HEEm SR (FEH)
Tendering (Irregularly)
IR (FEH)
On-site Visit (Irregularly)
RS (REEH)
Exhibition (Irregularly)

BREE (REH)
Direct Communication (Irregularly)
BRERE (FEH)

Annual General Meeting (Annually)
RRBFAE (BFEE)

Annual Report/Interim Report (Annually/
semi-annual)

FR RS (BEE/¥EE)
Investor Conference (Irregularly)
CEERE (RNER)

Press Release/Announcement
(Irregularly)

WER AE (REH

Direct Communication (Irregularly)
BHEEBE (FEH)
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Materiality Assessment

Materiality assessment helps us gain a better understanding
of sustainability issues relevant to various stakeholders and
their opinions on the Group’s sustainability performance. Our
most recent materiality assessment was carried out in FY2021;
the results continue to represent the main topics raised by
stakeholders. For information on the process, please refer to
our Environmental, Social and Governance Report section in the
Annual Report 2020/21.

Material Issues

The material sustainability issues identified for our stakeholders
and the Group are as follows:

.

EEM4T>

BZEUTEERMAEFRAT BAZEFHD
EMHEANFEEREE URMAEAE
B FEERRENE L -BMRE—XN
RESE s TEE2021 S E 1T sHEE R T D
RMFMERBINZEE BREFEMTEE
2 A2 R2020/21 FRAMIRIE - HERE

AE e

EERE
HAPAHEAHEFNERETERAMERAE
ABRIFREEREZENT ¢

gt

Craft Inheritance and
Innovation

BRIZZEEHARMN

e Product assurance and
quality
EmiEsRE 8

e Customer service
BEERTS

e Intellectual property
management
MAERSE

e Marketing promotion and
advertisement
mEEERES

e Craftmanship
T&

e Product design and creativity

Em® st REIE

e Data protection and
cybersecurity
HIRREREE LS

e Economic performance
BRI

e Business expansion

EH R

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

Sustainable Jewellery and
Responsible Sourcing

IRAKERARERE

Ethical sourcing
B

People Empowerment

AZ R AE

Employee benefits
=BG

Equality, diversity, and anti-
discrimination

TEHE 2 RIER
Occupational health and
safety

WERRRZE
Employees’ development and
training

BT RERE
Employment compliance
BESHRM

Anti-corruption
RES
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ESG Risk Management

Risk management is regarded as an integral part of daily
management and sound corporate governance by the Group.
The economy, industry, regulations, and operating conditions
are constantly evolving along the line of a competitive business
landscape. The risk management mechanism can facilitate
the Group to assess and minimise risks that may hinder us
from achieving our business goals. For the details regarding
risk management measures, please refer to the “Corporate
Governance Report” section.

To ensure that we effectively respond to the sustainable
development risks and opportunities arising from our operation,
the Group conducted an ESG related risk assessment during
the Reporting Period with the assistance of an independent
sustainability consultant. We identified material ESG issues to
the Group, including climate risks and supply chain ESG risks,
at operational level by interviewing representatives from various
functional departments related to the sustainable development,
collecting stakeholder opinions, and studying ESG trends. The
ESG risks were then being evaluated and prioritised based on
its likelihood and significance to the Group. For higher-level ESG
risks, we regularly reviewed the effectiveness of relevant measures
and propose improvement plans when necessary. In addition, the
Group’s Risk Management and Sustainability Committee reported
to the Board of Directors on ESG related risks while the Board
reviewed the implementation progress of each registered risks
and countermeasures biannually and at the same time reviewed
corporate strategies, objectives, and progress on KPIs. For details
of the Group’s risk management methodology, please refer to the
section of Corporate Governance Report.

PESTLE and SWOT Model Analysis

After conducting industry analysis, selecting the appropriate
SDGs, and carrying out ESG-related risk assessment, the Group
performed further analysis by using PESTLE and SWOT models.
Apart from evaluating the environmental and social factors in the
previous steps, the models also took macro-environmental factors,
such as political, economic, technological, and legal factors, into
consideration in order to assess our strengths, weaknesses,
opportunities and threats comprehensively, and formulate
appropriate corporate strategies and goals.

The Group has also developed a set of 3-year corporate goals
(FY2023 to FY2025) with a plan to complete the formulation of
long-term carbon reduction goals and environmental protection
goals related to exhaust gas and greenhouse gases emissions,
waste, energy use efficiency and water efficiency within the 3-year
period. We also plan to incorporate sustainability elements into
each stage of our business operation and formulate environmental
measures for our workplaces and stores by making reference to the
environmental targets set by local governments in Mainland.
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WEREERRARERS BB IUNFEE
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Sustainability Strategy and Goals

The 4 focus areas formulated by the Group include:

1 RESPONSIBLE 13 CLIMATE
CONSUMPTION ACTION
ANDPRODUCTION

O | ©

AIRFEERFBRER

REEFIENMEERIBEHEIE

INI]IJS'IH INNOVATION RESPONSIBLE PARTN[RSHIPS
AND INFRASTRUCTURE CONSUMPTION FI]R THE GOALS
ANDPRODUCTION

&m@

Goal BH1Z Goal B1Z
Inherit the exquisite craftsmanship, integrate Commit to combating climate change,

innovative technology design,
and achieve the success of
jewellery from generation to

reducing resource use, protecting the
environment, and promoting a
sustainable supply chain

generation Sustainable B EHREEE R/
REBRELTIE Jewellery and DERFER REIR
=yl R Responsible 1% B R FFE R
5t AL AR - ;g';ggﬂ & ‘
fzcE E
BERE
The Legacy of Sustainability
Crafting a Low-carbon Future
JELRLT B
BrEHR KRR
Goal B1E Goal E1E
Actively People Commit to creating
- Empowerment . .

participate an ideal working
. . AZRRBE . .
in community environment, advocating

activities, care for the
community, and bear
social responsibility
B2t &R RS R
IEh=Ranp=—tas

DECENT WORK AND 17 PARTNERSHIPS
ECONOMIC GROWTH FORTHE GOALS 8

a culture of equality,
diversity and inclusiveness,
and empowering employees with
career development opportunities
RNHEEBEBITFIRR  RETE %
ToNHEUE FHAEE THFEERE
e

DECENT WORK AND 17 PARTNERSHIPS
ECONOMIC GROWTH FOR THE GOALS

i | B
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Our Progress E I E R

e Crafts Inherited from

Craft Inheritance and

Innovation

BERIZZ BRI

INDUSTRY, INNOVATION
ANDINFRASTRUCTURE

o

1 2 RESPONSIBLE
CONSUMPTION
ANDPRODUCTION

O

17 PARTNERSHIPS
FORTHE GOALS

&

Inherit the exquisite
craftsmanship, integrate
innovative technology
design, and achieve the
success of jewellery from
generation to generation
REBEEODIE BE
Bl fiT sk 5t AR AL
HEH%E

¢ During the Reporting Period, our self-

invented “a Physical Gold Ornament
and an innovative Electroforming
Technology” has been authorised by
the China National Intellectual Property
Administration to adopt new and
exquisite patented technology to create
the “Physical Gold Ornament”, with
competitive edge in its market
RREHE BB THEN—BE
RESEGLEEEH A EGER
HAERREE RAGHMEEET
BRTEATREZN ERESE
i

During the Reporting Period, the Group
became the first jewellery retailer in
Hong Kong to launch the GIA Cultured
Pearl Classification Report service
RESHE ~2EBRATBERE
HGABEL BN BB ERBHOKE
TEH

With China Gems Laboratory Limited
and Victoria Gemological Institute
Limited, we cooperate with De Beers
Group Institute of Diamond to improve
customer confidence in product quality
BMERFEREEER O ELT
SEASR TEIANERER
Sheff ReERHEREENE
l|_,\
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Focus Areas Goals Progress of FY2022 Related Section
BEEE BR 20220 FEE T
Sustainable Jewellery and  Commit to combating e The Group has set a 3-year corporate  ® Sustainable Jewellery and
Responsible Sourcing climate change, reducing goals (FY2023 to FY2025), and plans Resi)on&ble Sourcing
TEEGEEasEHRE  resource use, protecting to complete the formulation of long- EEYELaETRE
the environment, and term carbon reduction goals and
12 B promoting a sustainable environmental protection goals related  ® Combatm%(Chmate Change
ANDPRODUCTION supply chain - to exhaust gas and greenhouse gases ~ FEHR
E9)) Fgﬁﬁf%ﬁf B2 emissions, waste, energy use efficiency
‘ N ’ BREA RERE - and water efficiency within the 3-year
@]—.wjnﬁ ’Efg eﬂod
REE T TR E R (20038
13 Rrov E000551 ) » 31 B3 MR
PO L L ket
N TN LR
miEANIREER

e The Group plans to incorporate
environmental protection elements
in different stages of business
operations and formulates KPI target in
workplaces and stores, by referring to
the environmental protection targets of
Mainland local governments
AEEG AN =B ENEEREM
Akﬁp% TR RIES: 1

HEXQ?EF Eﬁ ) jtul*.lim%iﬂ"ﬁ
Hﬁaﬁaﬁf’ﬁﬁw%

¢ The Group has formulated the “Lukfook
Supplier Operational Risk Code of
Conduct”, in order to integrate the
concepts of environmental protection,
protection of employees’ rights,
concern for social development and
optimization of corporate governance
into business operations, and
encourage suppliers to promote
sustainable development together. The
Code of Conduct covers requirements
on climate change, employee
human rights, business integrity and
product and service safety, etc. We
require suppliers to establish relevant
monitoring and due diligence systems
to ensure that the precious metals,
diamonds and gemstones supplied to
the Group are legally sourced and are
not from any conflict areas. In addition,
we require our suppliers to abide by
international and local laws and not to
employ any child labour, forced labour,
etc., to safeguard the human rights of
employees f throughout the supply chaln
é T mh%lﬁf
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Focus Areas Goals Progress of FY2022 Related Section
BHEH BR 20200 FEE T

¢ During the Reporting Period, the
Group conducted ESG-related risks
assessment to identify the potential
climate risks that threaten our business
and further strengthen the Group’s
resilience to extreme weather and
climate conditions
RBEHE ZEBETTRE #
SR EREARRETG LGSR
MEFERRENETRIZERR &
—FRIEAEEHBIKEK R KL RIER
RAVIEEEE S

¢ Purchase work-related injury insurance
for employees, issue safety guidelines
to employees and place sandbags on
the ground floor for the store to use
during floods to reduce the impact of
flooding
ABIBREIGRR UMETEY
ZafEs EMERED S HIEH
EAKRERER AEKETE

e Continued to follow the “the Guideline
for Environmental Sourcing” and
required purchasing staff to select
environmentally preferrable products
and materials, and gathered
environmental requirements on the
products from the customers during
the design process to enhance product
sustainability
FERE RREENIEES B
KEBETEESEVHKREBEZER
RERRERRME LR RER
WEREFHERRHNRFRER 1B
RE AR

e Assess regularly on the environmental

protection performance of suppliers
and manage suppliers’ sustainability
performance through our “Supplier/
Contractor Environmental Operations
Record/Assessment Form”
ET R ERERENENR
B wiEBR AN MtREE /A
RREERE /TR BERMER
WA R AR
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Focus Areas Goals Progress of FY2022 Related Section
BHEH Bz 20220 FEE T

People Empowerment Committed to creating an e The Group has set a 3-year corporate  ® Diversified Talent Team
AR AE ideal working environment, goal (FY2023 to FY2025) with a plan ZE AT B

DECENT WORK AND
ECONOMIC GROWTH

o

17 PARTNERSHIPS
FORTHE GOALS

&

advocating a culture
of equality, diversity,
inclusiveness, and
empowering employees
with career development
opportunities
RAOEEERTIFRE
RETE Zm HAX
6 MESTHEEER
@

=]

to complete the formulation of goals
related to improving department
effectiveness, employee training, and
exploring innovative technologies and
other talent development goals during
the 3-year period

AEEFT U 7IFLEER (20238 F
E20258 F) » 5t BIN3FAEATAR
€ B AR T ER PI R AE B TR R
%@%ﬂﬁ%Aﬁ%EE@ﬁ%%E

During the Reporting Period, we clearly
explained protection knowledge to our
employees, and implemented a series
of anti-epidemic measures to create a
safe and secure working environment
REBESHE ANABTERRLRN
LIHERBE S > I B — 25
el BlEZeRERENL
EIRIE

Continue to advocate the principles
of diversity and equality, respect
the background and culture of
each employee, and eliminate any
discrimination related to gender,
disability, family status and race in the
workplace

REREBEZTIERTENRA &
SESINF R XEE HERS
FEEERER S BR REKRTR
TR AR

Create a culture of continuous
improvement
SERFERS L

Nurture an internal innovative culture

BB MERRIHT AL
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* Respect for Employee
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e Safety and Health of Employees
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Focus Areas Goals Progress of FY2022 Related Section
BHEH BR 20220 FEE T

e Reinforce the concept of six
management habits of the Group:
Cultivate strategic thinking and
proactive attitude of middle
management
BREAEANEEEBEMT  EER
BEEASRRBERTHBMAEE

e Promote and deepen Lukfook family
culture

ERRRCABAREXE

e Nurture managers: 24-hour training
every three years for every employee at
the deputy manager level or above
BEEEEAS  ABURISERIMU
L ETE=FRM4NEIE

Caring for the Community Proactively participate e Invest resources and cooperate with e Caring for the Community

HAENE in community activities, charitable organisations every year, MAENE
care for the community, and participate in different community
DEGENT WORK AND . o .
ECONOMIC GROWTH and bear the social activities to respond to the social needs
M responsbilties SERAERAAGEBA 24
“' BH2ETEES BE TEHER NG ERITEER
B BaHgEfR

17 PARTNERSHIPS
FORTHE GOALS

&
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CRAFT INHERITANCE AND INNOVATION BRIZZIEEHEIHN

Goal BiE

Inherit the exquisite craftsmanship, integrate innovative technology ~ AR EFE O L B & AIFT R T2 51 AURE
design, and achieve the success of jewellery from generation to A IBEHE

generation
Related SDGs Material Issues Identified
HEARERERERE BN EERE
° Product Assurance and Quality
R | 12 Sty | 17 70 Shmann
AND PRODUCTION o Customer Service
BAE AR
‘ N ’ o Intellectual Property Management
MAEREE
° Marketing and Advertising
TG EERES
° Craftsmanship
IT&
° Product Design and Creativity
EmRiT AR
° Data Protection and Cybersecurity
BIRRENAEE LD
o Economic Performance®
B FRIAS
° Business Expansion®
EBERE
8 For information on Economic Performance and Business Expansion, please refer to the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section in the

Annual Report 2021/22
BRSERRREBBRNENES2021/22F RPN MEREF HmRDITIEEH
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Chapter Highlights {5 &

Constant Improvement in
Product Quality
FERAEREE

During the Reporting Period,
the Group became the first
jewellery retailer in Hong Kong
to launch the GIA Cultured
Pearl Classification Report
service

RSB AEBHAS
BEXELH GA BBEHKS
BB ERBNGKESTER

With China Gems Laboratory
Limited and Victoria
Gemological Institute Limited,

Pursuance of Innovative
Technology
3B KRBT

During the Reporting
Period, “a Physical Gold
Ornament and an innovative
Electroforming Technology”
self-developed by the Group
was granted an “Invention
Patent” by the China
National Intellectual Property
Administration

IR S HARE > FAPI B A EERY
—EERETEEREE
B BSRERA M AR
B RETEERRER)

Awards and Honours

BRIARTRER

Being recognised as
a “Consumer Caring
Company” by GS1 Hong
Kong for nine consecutive
years
EENFREBENHEEG
FERBOEE

As at 31 March 2022, our
design team has been
rewarded more than 200
awards accumulatively

H E2022%3H31H > F A

we cooperate with De Beers
Group Institute of Diamond
to improve customer
confidence in product quality
AEBBEEHEKEEED
DS F S E RSB I
HEHEHTERERERE
P REEFHEREEMN
&0

The Group always strives for excellence and pursues perfection
in craftsmanship, design, and the use of raw materials and
technology to create jewellery masterpieces that exceed
customers’ expectations. In order to convey to customers our
long-term dedication to product quality and service quality, as well
as our emphasis on craft inheritance and innovation, we strive to
implementing the brand promotion theme of “Love is Beauty” and
practicing the principle of “Brand of Hong Kong, Sparkling the
World”. Our daily operations strictly comply with applicable laws
and regulations related to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy of products and services, as well as international and
industry standards, including but not limited to the Product Quality
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and
Interests, the Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Advertising
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Trade Descriptions
Ordinance, the Trade Marks Ordinance, the Registered
Designs Ordinance, the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, the
Broadcasting Ordinance and the TV Advertising Code of Hong
Kong, etc. During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any significant non-compliance case concerning breaches of
relevant laws and regulations related to product responsibility.

MRt BB R 5 EEEGE A
2001E %18

FEE-BERmXE  EI& K5t EME
ERMEM EARTE  BRITEHBHE R
HZENHEER - BOTREERMARAK
HEREENRBERNRNE  UKHITEIE
BRERANNESR RARNEWMERE
BRI S BRIEBRME « ARKEE)
BRE - B EEEEEERMNREERH
WREEEZE ES REALERBENER
EREEA URBERMTERE  GFER
RIS(PEARKNBEEREEE) ~ (PEA
RHEMBUHEE R REE)  (FEARH
MEIEIRE)  (PEARIMEENE) ~ (F
EARHNBEESZE) A mRBERG)
(ERRIEA) ~ GEMINREREHRAD ~ (BAE
£ FLRR) R B ~ CEREIR D R (BRES TR
FoPNREME > AEBWEY RMERBRAE
mEEEENEMERARMN S ENEKRE
BRiTRe
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Recognised as a “Consumer Caring Company” for Nine Consecutive Years
EENFESFATNOLEE

The Group has been recognised as a “Consumer Caring Company” by GS1 Hong Kong for nine consecutive years
and has been awarded the “5 Years + Award” logo again, accrediting the Group for its excellent performance in
caring for consumers.

AEBBEENFREEEREHHIEATMOLE D TBRESHFE+E 13258 URGEETRAEHES
FEHNSWRIE

We have been adhering to the principle of “customer first” for many years, understanding the needs with “heart”
and persisting in fulfilling the promise of caring service to consumers to give customers a feeling at home. Having
been recognised as a “Consumer Caring Company” for consecutive years not only encourages us to make
continuous progress, but also drives us to meet the ever-increasing demand for quality products from customers
and provide excellent customer service. In the future, the Group will continue to enhance customers’ shopping
experience and strengthen customers’ trust in the Group.

BRZERBFIUERFTIZRE B THRERRE  ZBHEBREORBNES BRETETEZNH
RS - EELFRBEAMLLEE TEXBEMTEESDS  THBRMFEREEENERRSHNEE
AR LIS M5 TE#B IR R RRAEBRFEENNIRABRTEYRRE  NNREENEE-

The “Consumer Caring Company Recognition Programme” aims to commend local companies that persist
in improving the business operations, product and service quality to provide customers with an extraordinary
consumer experience and win customer loyalty. The assessment criteria include being consumer-centric, keeping
promises, pursuing quality and caring for employees.

TEOEERFFE EERGAMECER B AESEB R EnkRBER  HESTREBNHER
B2 RGBT OHE -TEEROELUFEERF O BT EE BRAERFES T -

@ E+EBLLE R

*  The 10% Consumer Caring Scheme Presentation Ceremany

4] =0
0 =)
et £0) Mr. Tse Moon Chuen, Deputy Chairman
& Deputy General Manager of Lukfook
=9 =) Group, received the Award on behalf of
the Group

NEEEE TR REBEESNRET
ERREREZIHRE
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Craftsmanship

For a long time, the Group has focused on the design of fashion
jewellery products to realise the vision of becoming a globally
recognised brand and constantly seeking breakthroughs. The
jewellery design team of the Group comprises of top designers in
the industry. With their sharp fashion sense, innovative, unique,
fashionable and meticulous handcraft, different festive jewelleries
are designed and are constantly leading the trend. Moreover, we
keep the original intention of creating the best quality products
and relying on the exquisite craftsmanship to create every piece of
jewellery with a sincere and rigorous attitude, so that each piece
of jewellery can be passed on from generation to generation. We
hope that more customers get to know us and love our brand
when visiting our branch stores.

The Group has been preserving and continuously investing
resources in cultivating outstanding talents, and regularly
providing professional design courses for employees to stimulate
their creativity to make attempts in using different materials
and styles, bringing customers with endless stream of unique
design. So far, our team has won more than 200 awards, and
its achievements and strength have been highly recognised. We
actively encourage our design team to broaden their vision by
participating in various local and international jewellery design
competitions, so as to allow designers to absorb rich experience
and be inspired with creativity. In 2021, the Group’s design team
won three awards in the “22nd Hong Kong Jewellery Design
Competition”. The competition used “Light ¢ Shadow” as the
design theme. The Hong Kong Trade Development Council,
the Hong Kong Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Association, Hong
Kong Jewellery & Jade Manufacturers Association, Hong Kong
Jewellery Manufacturers’ Association and Diamond Federation of
Hong Kong jointly organised this competition to explore excellent
design stars for the industry and showcase high-level Hong Kong
jewellery designs. It has been five years in a row that the Group
has won awards in the competition.

EoIZ

EALR  REBEF R A RS EMR
BREEEN A2 RENES > R
BRER AEBBETHEMRTERES
TERIBLMRETEN  BEMPISER R E
S RERER L SRt R A B B
HMRFIHABEEERREBECNKEE
e SISEER o RIEZ AN P ERITERE
HERMNIO BETIERBERE  LIBHEE
ENEESEE—Haim EEMEESU
KREG FEEEESBEELERMY
DIERFSERHNEE T RE

AEB—BHESFAIM FELXRERESE
FAA UWTEHAETRMBEEERFRE
PEHEMMNAE TR KRANR ESE
HAREH ABEEER BRI ENBAR
STHIFTEERL 25 I E B B E BB 20018
BRI EMENHES ST - M BiknGE
R EENRET > SE M2 EE A MM
BB ER T AR WERELEELH &
BRI R - EERFEEN2021FEN 5E22EF
BHERILE DEE - ERIE ILEEE L
e | ARTEE THEBEZERE
EARAERCRENMEDNT BEKEEL
A - EAGENSEREEREBHE
LHREEFEE AERZEEFSNRM
B BTaKENEBHRESRt - AEEBDE
BELERZIEESERE
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Craftmanship Inherited from Innovation

To satisfy the public’s pursuit of “beauty”, the Group is committed
to innovation, constantly researching the latest craftsmanship and
technology, combining innovative technologies to launch different
products and brands, while continuing our craftsmanship. We
also provide customers with personalised customisation services,
including gold medals, ornaments, etc., following customer
preferences and needs to make the products unique such as
adding patterns and text on some products.

BRERTE

i EARRE 132 BB REBEB AR
TERFRFE AT B TEMEAM > SRR
W AR E aa A dn b2 > B B P B0 T &I
BT R -BATESBEFRERHEEMECES R
BoaERBoER PIUNEE BHE ¥
EREFNBEEMLERMX T EEMF
AB&-

Product Design Process

EmaIRTRE

WD
1

Production

BRAEE

During the Reporting Period, we launched the “Melody of Love
Collection of Physical Gold Ornament in Crystal Ball Music Box”
which adopted our self-invented “a Physical Gold Ornament and
Innovative Electroforming Technology”, marrying the merits of
different gold ornament and continuously offering high-quality
product to our customers.

PR SRR > FAFITF R BRI BT T
ERPRITEKERERESRME KA
HPEEMEN—EEEESRANAEE
BAIRETEETRES R BRI —
B AERFERESKENER-
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The Group Being Granted “Invention Patent” in China Innovation in Electroforming Technology Fostered
Industry Development Self-invented “Physical Gold Ornament” Debut

FEEFEERBZEMFAEIIANESRTEHTEEREINRERISRFITHE

“A Physical Gold Ornament and an innovative Electroforming Technology” self-invented by the Group has been granted
an “Invention Patent” (Patent No.: 201910217097.4) by the China National Intellectual Property Administration. The Group
has brought forth innovation to create the “Physical Gold Ornament” with this new and exquisite patented technology,
underlining its competitive edge in the market and remarkable accomplishments in manufacturing technology.
FEBEEBFMHEN—EBERESRGREEEH I ESEARNBERBEEZREN ) (FF 5
201910217097 4) o AEEHEFR LR SRA S EZFN M ET EATHERN EREERM » RERXES
1T0EE -

The “Physical Gold Ornament and the Electroforming method” has combined the advantages of different gold
ornaments in the market. This unique technique creates a stunning texture akin to heavy solid gold, producing an
aesthetic yet three-dimensional effect with more diversified designs. Traditional electroformed gold ornaments are
often served as display decoration only while the “Physical Gold Ornament” overcomes the limitations of traditional
statues which are soft and easily deformed. With a higher resistance to deformation, one can hold the “Physical Gold
Ornament” with hands for appreciation. The size of a “Physical Gold Ornament” is about twice that of a traditional
electroformed gold ornament of the same weight, making the “Physical Gold Ornament” better value for money.
ERSTRGRASBSESZ I2ES BeTE L TAESBH 28N —5 BRTIEEEENE LS
ﬁiﬁg# EHEMAEAURR ARXRATEE LN EY - EREESETHBHERRNBREMENER M ER
BB XEERESESREEMENZEENRE HREFNNETENZEREEIUETF LIRE 18
RERESEHSEG mETERESEE T 'BRESsRMNBEELLEREEES AN —E HEES-

The Group has been committed to providing quality products for customers. The acceptance of this invention
patent affirms our technological innovation and enhances our core competitiveness, further consolidating our
leading position in the industry. The newly launched ‘Physical Gold Ornament’, with our self-invented and patented
technology is not only demonstrating our high level of craftsmanship but also securing our first-mover advantage in
the market and promoting our business development. Going forward, we will continue to strive for innovation and
perfection to advance technological development in the industry.

AEE-—BRNDHEERHEBEER BERILEASNSETEENRINEMERKREA ZOGRFE ]

—SEEREETERANERMAU - LXELNIERESET ERRAEAER @IEH%E’J%%'J&TTI P NMER
THEESBHTEKE BRmEHHILE  REXEF R - R R IBEREF - BmKIE -

SHEBITERMENERE -

Each “Physical Gold Ornament” comes with a certificate issued by the National Gemstone Testing Center to proliferate
customers’ confidence. The “Melody of Love Collection of Physical Gold Ornament in Crystal Ball Music Box”, using the
invention patented technology, is making its debut in Mainland and is perfect for gifting and collection.
SHIERETEG EROkBERES bD%ﬁEE% S0 B IR AERENRMITEN TSI BEH RIS
KBIKERSES RSN AMESHEL > BIES R E-

Vs

Wl

B ==

Four physical gold ornaments in crystal ball music boxes produced with the patented technology
TR AR EN Sk BIKBREEEMY
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Six Heartfelt Services

In line with the tenet of “Six Heartfelt Services”,

the Group is
committed to providing high-quality and caring customer and

after-sales services with a professional, earnest, and friendly
attitude. Under the premise of “Six Heartfelt Services”, we have
implemented the “Delivering the Beauty of Love with Six Heartfelt
Services” excellent customer service programme to satisfy
customers’ needs with “heart”, in which we require employees
to strictly implement every service link from greeting etiquette for
customers entering the store, politely and patiently explaining and
communicating with customers, saying goodbye to customers
and wholeheartedly providing after-sales services, etc. During the
Reporting Period, we have received O material compliant case
related to product safety and health reasons and the percentage
of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reason is 0.

FEROBRBINRE  AEBRHUFEE
RUNMRENEERHSERMBEONER
MERRS £ 7V0RB AR T RME

TIRLERLE ERERE SHBRERS
8 E—ERBIRARE THITHEREN

2R BRBREEBYREERE SR OEER
%%%ﬁ@%i% HEERER  EHMONERR
BE ERIL THRETERE - NIREHE
HPEETOREHERBREZ2MNEARR
FoMAEBEEENCEXERBBETER
SHEEREAMARWKIB DR
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To maintain the highest quality of service, we also implement a
number of customer service measures:

Enhance Customer
Confidence in Our
Products

RABEEHERESD

Implementation of
the Mystery Shopper
Programme

WITHREEE

Evaluate and Train
Employees
FEEMENE T

»THERBENRFER  HATRTS
IRE P ARFS N

We provide customers with free cleaning and jewellery inspection services. We also
have gem microscopes in our branches. Before making a purchase, customers can
personally inspect the fine features of the products to ensure product quality. We also
provide customer with Gemstone authentication certificates to enhance customers
confidence in our products. Furthermore, we also have a laser engraving machine to
engrave the diamond’s unique number on the diamond waist by laser to verify the
number on the authentication certificate.
EMAZERRERESARKERARE  TROEREEABEMER TRERE
B2 BEEERERTERNMESE RREGNER RMRAEFRREHRE
AEmERS IBRERHERNE D LI RPN REFEHZ TR LEEF A
RIS FED EERSREZ > UEZHEERE EHARE

To optimise the service quality and fulfil the needs of customers, the Group continues
to promote the Mystery Shopper Programme, highlighting the Group’s excellent
image among its peers. We assign mystery customers to visit different branches to
evaluate the customer experience and provide feedback on the team spirit, sales
process, experiences such as service attitude and etiquette. These feedback are
recorded and analysed so that the Group can review and rectify performance. During
the Reporting Period, Hong Kong branches achieved an average score of 94.4% in
the Mystery Shopper Programme.

RIEARBERUmEEENER  AEEFEEITHWER T8> FFREREAR
EEAREMANRFER - BRMIERSWER AR DS > s EEER  HE
B RBEENCESERRETIZNEERRE - EERRNRES 2R
P UERFPET BN E L - RIS HE > S0 TR S ER st R E
"R D EEIM 4%

The Group incorporates the excellent customer service programme into special
staff training and assessment, arranges regular sales skills training for sales staff to
improve sales skills, and conducts audits on branches in daily operations to ensure
that employees will execute the tenet of “Six Heartfelt Services” thoroughly.
FEMEHERRSFFEMABLEEEIIMEZ 2 F > BiHE 5 T ERIRHH
ERIENEID EEREEERTIFHAENTETER BREIET /SOR
BINRE o

During the Reporting Period, we participated in the “Quality
Service Benchmark Assessment” organised by the Hong Kong
Retail Management Association to enhance service quality. The
“Quality Service Benchmark Assessment” aims to provide retailers
with a comprehensive and objective indicator to measure the
customer service level of each retail store by collecting important
data for improving the service level, and helping retailers pursue
excellence. In the “Quality Service Benchmark Assessment”
conducted during the period from July to September 2021, we
ranked within the top 15 among 60 brands in the industry. We will
further improve our service quality to continue leading the industry
standards.

HARBEHESEAEETEEEH TR
ey BB RFEZETG) > URARFEER -
MBEERBEEN G EEATERRER2E
FENER BERSTEEHNE P RFK
Fo BRFARB AT WERE  BHTEFHBR
Sl o 112021 F7E9R FBETH MBE R
B B> HAIEE0EITERBE R B
A+ ABUA RFIRE-TRS KPR
BEZR UFBEREARITEKTF -

Annual Report 2021/22 5§



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BIE G R EARS

Taking Preventive Measures to Fight against Pandemic with Customers

ByFpEiEhe  AEREFRE

To ensure a safe and pleasant shopping experience for our customers, we adopt the following stringent epidemic
prevention measures in each branch, and instruct colleagues to pay close attention to the latest news issued by
the government, comply with the pandemic prevention guidelines, and jointly fight the epidemic.
AEREEEAZOMIRNEYRLR AN S DEHERELL T BRERZIEH I ZREEERT)EBBUN
BHNRITEE  EFBhEfEs HETE -

° Staff are required to measure their body temperature every day, frequently use hand sanitizers and clean their
hands, wear masks, and strengthen disinfection
ERETEXREERR - KREFRHESEFRNBEZEF EHEOSMMNAEE

o To conduct shop cleaning and disinfection frequently, and adjust business hours in accordance with the
requirements of local government or shopping malls

EETERBZENES  ARESM S BFANBHEER AREXRE

° Staff are required to help customers to take body temperature and use hand sanitizers

ERETHHEABERBERERESETR

o Disinfect before and after the customer tries on the product

REEHRERNBRETHS

During the Reporting Period, the Group created anti-pandemic WhatsApp stickers to cheer the public during the
pandemic. In addition, we set up a “United Anti-pandemic Appreciation Reward”, giving Hong Kong residents who
have taken two doses of COVID-19 vaccines membership points, fashionable and practical mask covers to thank
them for their concerted efforts to fight against the pandemic.

REBPRSHABTRET FIERLE - HAFT'I‘EHH ARamRITR S RN RSHABRE E 0 TR K #
Bl #AEREMEFSEENEEERELGERD E%r'j;ﬂ% D%Eff m ABHEBERB OIE

BB =

LUKFOOK JEWELLERY

FwTLLERY

= BB |

WD RN W
MEREEERDHD
| ESERMNESBOCEEERTR:

ANMERA  WEA/ RURA

5,000%xama wnEMEES
B

LTS ] .
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“Fighting Against Pandemic with You” “United Anti-pandemic Appreciation Reward”

WhatsApp Sticker Event )
MRS Ca 9% 1 B [l M2 DR R BB
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Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

We strive to protect intellectual property rights, strictly monitor
and combat infringements, and abide by the Trademark Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Patent Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Trade Marks Ordinance and the Registered
Designs Ordinance of Hong Kong and other applicable laws
and regulations. To protect the intellectual property rights of the
Group and the designers, we have registered more than 800
trademarks, such as “LukFook”, “LukFook Jewellery”, “Dear Q"
and “Goldstyle”, and have applied for patents or copyrights for
some products and display props.

To fight against infringements, we have joined the “No Fakes
Pledge” Scheme implemented by the Hong Kong Intellectual
Property Department since 2006 to ensure all the products sold
are genuine. During the Reporting Period, we have a total of 45
branches participated in this scheme. We display the “No Fakes”
logo on the shop window for customers to identify. To protect the
interests of the Group, we have formulated various measures to
combat the merchants who run counterfeit “LukFook Jewellery”.
The accumulated total number of stores closed or rectified has
exceeded 870 to diminish the damage on the brand reputation
of the Group. In addition, to effectively protect intellectual
property rights and promote proper sales atmosphere of “No
Fakes” products, the Group has also established a system for
rewarding and reporting anti-counterfeiting to encourage reporting
of unauthorized operations, possession, or sale of products in
the name of “LukFook” and other brands of the Group that are
imitations of these brands or counterfeit of these trademarks.

Protecting Privacy

To protect the privacy of customers at all times, we provide
regular training for employees to enhance their awareness of
protecting customer privacy and set out relevant provisions in the
Staff Handbook, requiring employees not to disclose customer
information to third parties without authorisation. We comply with
the “Privacy Policy” formulated and published in accordance
with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong and
other relevant laws and regulations and explain to customers and
other stakeholders the method of collection, use, disclosure, and
storage of personal information.

R BE 0 o8k EE 1
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Quality Assurance

As a prestigious “Brand of Hong Kong”, the Group establishes
rigorous quality assurance measures and procedures to ensure
that our products meet professional recognition and the highest
quality requirements in quality control, and even exceed industry
standards.

In terms of procurement, we only cooperate with widely
recognised suppliers in the industry to ensure that the quality of
raw materials is guaranteed while fulfilled the industry standards,
including Shanghai Gold Exchange, Shanghai Diamond Exchange
and De Beers, one of the world’s largest diamond suppliers.
Furthermore, we will conduct a comprehensive quality inspection
to ensure that the raw materials meet our quality requirements
after their purchases.

The Group has a jewellery processing plant in Nansha,
Guangzhou. The plant has obtained ISO9001:2015 quality
management system certification, affirming that our design and
production meet its standards with product quality assurance.

To ensure product quality is up to the standards, we inspected
the finished products. If we receive inquiries or complaints from
customers, we will follow the impeccable Products Recall and
Complaint Handling Procedures and arrange product inspection
by the inspection centre to ensure that customer needs were
addressed and resolved. Furthermore, we have established an
Internal Product Authentication Centre and Victoria Gemological
Institute Limited and cooperated with De Beers Group Institute
of Diamond to appraise products and provide customers with
relevant authentication reports to strengthen their confidence in
product quality and the quality standards of the industry. During
the Reporting Period, the Group received a total of 105 products
and service related complaints.

HERE

ERZaRRNIEERM  RFIZILEEN
EEEMIFERRE UWHFREMNERT
BRENSTEEZEINEER T AEsHNRER
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BeersF o RMIEIEGR WG ET2EM
e BRREANSRMANEEER-

AEFBREMNEBLORBHREMNIR IKE
FEISO9001 | 201, B EE R ANE HER
MR REERGHEE BREREZ

AEREREENSEE RMIHEMM
ETRB MW EEAHERBEENTH
FEFBRMATRBEENERLKRIEHF
FRIERE THEE PO ERERE BF
RESAMRE PR R BE » MR TR
EminE R OMESF EE L2 W
EE 7 Hr 2 B §# 75 22 P (De Beers Group Institute
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China Gems Laboratory Limited

Since the establishment of China Gems Laboratory Limited
(CGL) in 1996, the Group has provided services such as
diamond authentication, grading, gold testing, jade and
coloured gems authentication and jewellery quality testing,
including the issuance of internationally recognised diamond
grading reports, gold testing reports, and jade, ruby, sapphire
and emerald testing reports. The laboratory has passed the
assessment of the Hong Kong Accreditation Service. It is one
of the few jewellery authentication centres in Hong Kong that
meets the jadeite jade test, diamond authentication grading
and gold purity test (ISO 11426) at the same time. It is also
the first jewellery authentication centre in Hong Kong that has
successfully assessed the gold testing method certification
of Chinese national standard GB/T9288, which proves that
its authentication standards have reached international and
national standards.

Victoria Gemological Institute Limited

The Group established Victoria Gemological Institute
Limited in 2013 to conduct jewellery authentication and
professional training. The Institute has passed the ISO/IEC
17025 assessment and ILAC accreditation, and can issue
internationally recognised diamond grading reports, jade, ruby,
sapphire, and emerald testing reports.

Cooperating with De Beers Group Institute of
Diamond

The Group maintains close cooperation with De Beers Group
Institute of Diamond to provide reports for Hearts & Arrows
diamond sold, helping customers gain a deeper and more
comprehensive understanding of the diamond products they
purchased.

Responsible Promotion

The Group publishes information on products, services, and
activities to the public through various promotion channels.
The Group strictly abides by the Advertisement Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Broadcasting Ordinance, the
TV Advertising Code and the Trade Descriptions Ordinance
of Hong Kong and other laws and regulations related to
advertising and labelling, and reviews the content and labels
of the promotion, guarantees its authenticity, and safeguards
customers’ rights, interests and the right to know.

REFREEEPO
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The Group became the First Hong Kong Jewellery Retailer to Launch the GIA Cultured Pearl
Classification Report Service

FEERAEEARELGARER RS RBSRBNHETEH

To further provide comprehensive information for customers and enhance the transparency of product quality, the
Group provides a GIA (Gemological Institute of America) Cultured Pearl Classification Report issued by GIA for
selected pearl items to offer customers more comprehensive information on evaluating the quality of pearls when
purchasing jewellery and enhance customers’ confidence. In the meantime, we are the first jewellery retailer in
Hong Kong to launch the GIA Cultured Pearl Classification Report service.

RE—FTIREHI2ABATHEEREAEREEERE  AEBZIEEE LB MEN ERGIAZRE AR
Prad HGIABEE DB S TR EREMNESELANE KR ETEEN MABEEBES O &
PMERBEMRASBERELEGABEE D 4R S(GIA Cultured Pearl Classification Repor) RFSHI A E T E R o

The GIA Cultured Pearl Classification Report is a detailed report that provides classification information on unmodified
cultured pearls. This report includes a detailed classification of pearl(s) based on the GIA 7 Pearl Value Factors™(Size,
Shape, Color, Luster, Surface Quality, Nacre and Matching) as well as a digital image of the pearl(s) for identification. It
is specifically and exclusively for the three major types of cultured pearls (Akoya, South Sea and Tahitian pearls).
GIABEE U D RBRERAAKBRIENBEEHRREEDIRERNFHFMARS - REMBIETHASIBRNESR
BGIAE MR mEfMEtEFZ™ R B BB R - REmE  EHRERTERY  REE SN LR
BEG ULZHN HREFEAN=ZBTZHUNBELK (WHEREEEL BmFBEEHRN AR MEBEEL
) ©

GIA 7 Pearl Value Factors™ Introduction:

GAZ B mEMHtEEZ™MEN !

o Size: Stated in millimetres, to two decimal places.
R~ B2AKRT BREENEELE M E -

o Shape: Described as round, near-round, oval, button, drop, semi-baroque or baroque.
AR © i B ~ R B s i EF  sRIDF BT s F EEFER o

° Color: A combination of the pearl’s dominant body color, overtone, and orient.
HE DENFRE -HelsXnGgs-

o Luster: The light reflected from or near the pearl’s surface, evaluated by the intensity and the sharpness of
reflection.
JEE I BHRRERRE MR RICE R 15 & 578958 N0 87 F) 72 B 2R 5Tt o

° Surface Quality: Blemishes or irregularities confined to the pearl’s surface, considering the size, number,
nature, location, visibility, and type of surface characteristics.
XEmE | KEBEPDHENRAFEHIARETHE  TREERAFBENRN N #BE KB UE 66
RERER

o Nacre: Nacre presents the condition of a pearl’s nacreous
surface. Nacre quality is related to nacre layering during a

pearl’s growth, and it affects luster, surface, and durability. /

LHE PUHBRHRNEURRERHENGE HREHg AL —

BELHRERFNEHRE DM RA R L& E2 KA ";,,/ oV (3

B RESEMWA Z ZHeV S —23
° Matching: The uniformity of appearance in strands and multi- e = ._' i

pearl groups or items.
Uit | —SR B RSB R HRINERN —E Mt -

Sample GIA Cultured Pearl Classification
Report of Luk Fook
NECAEEE D BIREHA
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SUSTAINABLE AND RESPONSIBLE JEWELLERY AIiFEHE B SEIRE
SOURCING

Goal BiE

The Group is committed to combating climate change, reducing I EH RIES(E B EREH  RER
resource use, protecting the environment, and promoting a 1% #EB {5 E (L AESE

sustainable supply chain

Related SDGs Material Issues Identified
RS ERE BHNNEERE
1 RESPONSIBLE 13 CLIMATE

CONSUMPTION ACTION ° Ethical Sourcing
AND PRODUCTION RS

CO | &

Chapter Highlights EEi{§ &

Intensity of Greenhouse Gas Promote Product i
o i . Intensity of Total Energy Use
Emission Sustainability 4 B B R
: - #2 B
BEREHREE WEE R AN .
Achieved a o During the Reporting Achieved a
EE202184 FRAE Period, we established a 202184 F RAE
0/ series of environmental 6 50/
1 9 0 protection goals, so as 1 C 0
reduction comparing to provide more direction reduction comparing
to Fy2021 on green operation and to Fy2021
production

RSB RMETILT
—ZINIRFER BAR
AREEFIRREEREE
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Apart from pursuing beauty and excellence in product design, the
Group is committed to building a sustainable operation model and
reducing our impacts to the environment, expecting customers
to reduce waste in areas such as production, administration, and
retail business. To achieve this, we have established a sound
environmental management system to regularly review and
improve our environmental protection measures. The Group’s
jewellery processing plant in Nansha, Guangzhou manages
the identified environmental elements in compliance with the
standards of ISO14001:2015 environmental management system,
to reduce the environmental risks of production processes.

To ensure our operation does not cause significant impact to the
environment, the Group strictly abides by applicable laws and
regulations relating to the environment, including but not limited
to the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Environmental Protection Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Waste and the National Catalogue of Hazardous Wastes. During
the Reporting Period, there was no non-compliance of relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group
related to environmental protection.

Apart from that, we have established a “Guideline on Green
Procurement ({IR{RIXEE TIEH551))" to require our staff
to consider selecting green products and materials during
procurement in which the consideration factors include low-
pollution production processes, recyclability, durability of products,
etc. Also, during the design process, we collect and adopt the
environmental protection requirements of the products raised
by our customers and satisfy their needs when technological
and cost requirements are met. Besides, we also evaluate the
environmental protection performance of our suppliers on a
regular basis, and clearly state the areas for evaluation under
r “Supplier/Contractor Green Operation Record/Evaluation
Form ({fH A& m/ A& VIR RIEFsC /5T &K ))”, including
whether the suppliers recycle waste, whether they receive any
environmental protections awards or certification, etc., to manage
the suppliers’ performances. The qualified suppliers or contractors
will be included in our list of approved suppliers or contractors.

We conducted an ESG-related risk assessment for the Group’s
supply chain to identify potential ESG risks in the supply chain
during the Reporting Period. The Board will closely monitor
the ESG risks in the supply chain, and regularly evaluate the
effectiveness of the control measures and explore areas for
improvement, further enhancing our supplier management
approach.
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Environmental Protection Targets IRIREE
During the Reporting Period, we set the below environmental %3 — > # & E RO FEM > BN RS
protection targets focusing on four areas, “Efficient Use of MAFJILMU FIBREE  BiEEHER 2

»oo«

Energy”, “Protection of Water Resources”,

» oW

Waste Recycling” and &K E&E R ~ TEEYRIYL ~ DR HERL IR A

“Emissions Reduction”, to further promote product sustainability [’ FREATEFE T AGENE-BREE

b 2o £

and incorporate green elements into the industry continuously.  EI T BIZRIHEHE > A2 T HEEEZ -
For the measures taken to achieve the goals, please refer to the

chapters as stated below.

Efficient Use of Energy

EMEER

We are committed to reducing electricity consumption and greenhouse gas
emissions of the Group’s business by increasing energy efficiency.
BMRNBBREERY G BV AEBREBNE N HERRERBIIR -

For the related environmental protection measures, please refer to the chapter “Efficient Use of Energy” for

more details.
TERIIR (RIE 55 2 5 & FH AL 5 E A 0

Protection of Water Resources

BEKER

We are committed to reducing water consumption by educating employees about
water-saving concepts and promoting drinking water recycling.
EMBNOEBHEELHE AN UKIRBBRKEBIRER B KERHEFE
For the related environmental protection measures, please refer to the chapter “Protection of Water

Resources” for more details.
TR RIB A 2 [ e K R Z A

Waste Recycling
EEn[E1 U

We are committed to reducing waste production and waste at source by strictly
implementing the waste classification, storage, and recycling procedure.

KM NBEBBREHITERY 2B ERALEWRARE Bl BEEYBER &
E R o

For the related environmental protection measures, please refer to the chapter “Waste Recycling” for more

details.

TERGIR (R IE 105 2 B Y[ T

Emissions Reduction

B

We are committed to reducing greenhouse gas and exhaust gas emissions during
operation by managing waste emissions and exhaust gas treatment facilities.
BMB B EETHRY REREELEERE B EEBEEHNAERE
FMBEEEBER -

For the related environmental protection measures, please refer to the chapter “Emissions Reduction” for

more details.

TERTIR (R I8 15 2 B hi L e R
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Efficient Use of Energy

To reduce the greenhouse gas emissions of the Group’s business,
we adopt both energy-saving and energy efficiency measures
during our daily operation and production. During the Reporting
Period, we implemented the following measures:

° Installed glass ceiling in the office building of the factory to
reduce the use of electric lights through natural lighting

° Reminded employees to turn off computers when they are
not in use to reduce unnecessary electricity consumption

° Promoted the use of rechargeable batteries to increase
battery life

o In response to the “Charter on External Lighting
Programme” implemented by the Environmental Bureau
of Hong Kong, with 20 branches in Causeway Bay, North
Point, Jordan, Mong Kok, Tsim Sha Tsui, Tsuen Wan and
Yuen Long turning off external lighting from 12am to 7am,
being non-business hours, to reduce energy consumption
and light nuisance. The Group was awarded the “Gold
Award” in the “Charter on External Lighting Programme”
during the Reporting Period.

=L
AEBETAREEREEBRRETHRINEIRR
FERMm A AR D S EEEBHRE
RESHEM - ¥R S HAR > HFIEREN T LU T H8
i

s ITHEMAERARKEEIR BBEBEA
PICR D BRERFT A B

s RESIZFAEENFERMABNE R
DAV EAEE

. RATREXEH EMBHES

s ZEEFBREBREBITN(RINENLNE)
&) ETo0M D MEIRIEE b A 1k
H BB RIES B RITRBE D TER
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Our energy consumption data during the Reporting Period and ~ F#&Rz¥F7IARE B #R S HIRG &2021 8 £ BE

FY2021 are specified in the table below: TREREUE -

Indicator Unit FY2022 Fy2021
518 Bl 202205 2021844
Total Energy Use MWh 18,773.23 17,274.57
“BEEIRER TE T EEF

Intensity of Total Energy (Note 1) kWh/turnover (HK$'000) 1.87 2.24
WEEREE (s1) FERE 258 (FA7T)

Direct Energy MWh 2,702.04 2,371.70
BHEER TFE T EEF

Unleaded Petrol MWh 339.17 31717
UM R R

Diesel Ol MWh 836.96 715.19
S TEF B

Natural Gas MWh 1,5625.91 1,339.33
RAR, TEF R EF

Intensity of Direct Energy (Note 1) kWh/turnover (HK$’ 000) 0.27 0.31
BEEEREE (1) TRE &5 (FEmT)

Indirect Energy—Purchased Electricity (Note 2) MWh 16,071.19 14,902.87
BEER—EEE S (fisk2) TEF R B

Intensity of Indirect Energy (Note 1) kWh/turnover (HK$’'000) 1.60 1.93
BEEREE (HsE1) FRE &5 (FET)

Note 1:The intensity figures were restated due to adjustment of the turnover figures BT -

for FY2021

Note 2:The Group'’s self-operated shops in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland FyEE2 -
were operated in leased spaces. The power supply was controlled by the
property management offices. Some of the relevant property management
offices considered that it was not practicable to provide electricity data or
sub-meters to individual tenants. Therefore, the total electricity consumption
only covered offices and self-operated shops in Hong Kong, Mainland and
Macau, staff quarter and warehouse in Hong Kong and Macau, and jewellery
processing plants in Nansha of the Group. The relocation of self-operated
shops varied from year to year and a construction work was in progress
in jewellery processing plants in Nansha in FY2022, and thus the data for
FY2022 and FY2021 could not be directly compared.

H2021 R E X BEAPRAE  RFEI T ZF
ENZEHE

D AEBERES RPIRAMBBEEEEE S

BB MEHARNEEEE TR MK
EERIABEHNELREREIER D FHIL T
AT I BEBEEREAEEMAESE NN
BHNES AMARFIMERRBEE BB R
FNETIEEREE -REVHKEMIE - MEE
ENREBERESFESEER 20220 EEHKHE
IMIMIABERTIR 20220 F 820210 /Y
HIETAEEEZENLER-
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Packaging Materials

As our business involves production, we also use packaging
materials for product packaging. The data on packaging materials
for finished products of the Group during the Reporting Period
and FY2021 are specified in the table below:

sy

HREMANEZ I REE RATEERE
EYHAERETRE - TRFANAEER
S HAR 52021 B F RV R B mn B R R BUR ©

Indicator Unit FY2022 FY2021

517 B 2022845 202184

Total Amount of Packaging Materials Used in ~ Tonnes 250.43 244.77
Finished Products

R mPTAE M NEE N

Intensity of Packaging Materials Used in kg/turnover (HK$'000) 0.025 0.032
Finished Products

K mPTABEMERNEE AF /x5 (FBmT)

Protection of Water Resources

The Group’s water is mainly sourced from local government
water supply agencies and property management companies.
During the Reporting Period, we did not encounter any difficulties
in sourcing of suitable water sources, but we still understand
the problem of global water shortage. As part of our social
responsibility, we actively save water resources and continuously
optimise sewage discharge management.

To uphold the approach of “Strengthening training, promoting
energy conservation, and making good use of resources and
continuous improvement”, we post water-saving notice in office
area to educate employees about the importance of water-
saving. Our production and daily operations generate production
sewage and domestic sewage, such as gypsum wastewater
and electroplating wastewater. To prevent unprocessed sewage
from bring negative impacts to the environment, we have set
up sewage treatment facilities in the plant area, including an
integrated treatment system for gypsum wastewater, a water
reuse system and an underground biochemical pool. Before
discharging, our gypsum wastewater, electroplating wastewater,
concentrated water and domestic sewage are pre-treated
properly, to ensure compliance with first level standard of the
second range of the Water Pollutant Discharge Limit (DB44/26-
2001). Also, we inspect the rainwater ditches and toilets of the
factory on a weekly basis, to prevent people from discharging
production sewage that is not pre-treated properly, which will
prevent contamination of the nearby water sources.

BEKER

7 5= B B A K B8 B 3 75 BURF (ki A8 &
MEEERTF - NIREHF HFIERBRER
KR ERBBEIEE BN THREIKER
RANEE - Bt EEE HABEHEEK
BERERANFETE S KERERE

FRMERI Bt SRERLFENS]
BAH BRPERAERESHKERN HEE
THEBKNEEE - HMMNEEBIEMH
HEEBEEESAEREK - BEEKELES
KFNAETE T K 2 T BH LE R B IE R BE K ¥
RESEHREEATE RPN IHREHRES
KERIBRN BEAEEK—BLLERRF
FRoK[E B & # A T A (B TEE SN RS
BB AT BEEK BEKMNAEESK
ETHERE BERFTES OKTRYEERIEE)
(DB44/26-2001) 55 —ER—RIZERIE K o It
G BT BRIEH M ACRE RS R IS E
HBHITHRNRKERMNAEFBETRE M
LEEANRREGEZEENS KL o
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To promote water circularity and reduce water consumption,
some of the processed gypsum wastewater and electroplating
wastewater will be collected and recycled for toilet flushing
and irrigation. Meanwhile, to avoid drinking water wastage, we
immediately repair leaky water facilities.

Tap
Water
2P
v Electroplating & Wastewater Pre-
} Polishing Process Treatment
BEEEIR BEKFARRIEREE
v

Reaction Tank

S Casting Process
RFE

BIELRF

Our water consumption data during the Reporting Period and FY

BT IENEKNERER B KEREE
BOEBRIBENABEEKINEEE KT RIE
T ERFPEIAETRR B BT T Y
RKHNAKRBETRENEES B28 R
REBKe

System

Tank

Water Reuse

sk B AR

Storage Replllsetin
Tank Sl
ki 0 BES
’ FIm

Sedimentation

MT # 3P #R & BRI 520218 F BB K&

2021 are as follows: ¥ -

Indicator Unit FY2022 Fy2021
i1 == v} 2022B4 5 2021844
Total Water Consumption (Note 3) m3 208,143.00 192,133.23
“aFEkE (MIsE3) iIA K

Intensity of Total Water Consumption (Note 4) m3/turnover (HK$’000)
BMIFEKERE (HI:E4) MHKEERE (FET

Note 3:Some of the Group’s self-operated shops in Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland were operated in leased spaces. The water supply was controlled by
the property management offices. The relevant property management offices
considered that it was not practicable to provide water data or submeters to
individual tenants. Therefore, the total water consumption only covered offices
and self-operated shops in Hong Kong, Mainland and Macau, staff quarter
and warehouse in Hong Kong and Macau, and our jewellery processing
plants in Nansha, where the water supply was controlled by the Group. The
relocation of self-operated shops varied from year to year and a construction
work was in progress in jewellery processing plants in Nansha in FY2022, and
thus the data for FY2022 and FY2021 could not be directly compared.

Note 4:The intensity figures were restated due to adjustment of the turnover figures
for FY2021

PF5ES -

ByeE4

0.021 0.025

REBELANER RFIRAMNBEEEERE
A SR KIS B K E S EE BT M
B X R ABERMELRERKBIERR D&
T ARE] (T RIL > 48K BEREKEESAER
ZEHINES MR EEREEE BB K
BFMETEaRAE R/ HREMIM-mE
EENRBERSESEER 20220 Fr/a b Tk
BN TERINEERILR 20220 £ 82202181 &
MR AEFE AL -

E2021 FREE AR RMAEY TZEE
EHEE R
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The following is our wastewater emissions data during the U2 F IR R4 HRD 22021 B4 EE AU 5 7K BE

Reporting Period and FY2021: HEGE -

Indicator Unit FY2022 Fy2021

51 Bl 202285 2021844

Sewage Discharge (Note 5) m® 155,781.00 117,710.00

SAKEERE (IEE5) A K

Note 5:The figure represents the amount of wastewater discharged from our  [fisE5 | ZEIBENRRBEMKEMN TS KEEKRE - F
jewellery processing plants only. Wastewater generated from our retail shops PMREB VBRFARAMTEE R NEEMEEN
and offices in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland is properly connected and SKBEEBRAMHRERRSKERM

discharged to the communal sewer drainage system.

Waste Recycling

EEYE14k

The Group generates a certain degree of non-hazardous waste HEBENBEESEMEEBRPRMELENE
in the course of daily operation and production, including food EEZEYEIERG  TEXEY B BB
waste, industrial waste, metal, plastic, paper, general waste, etc. AR~ EEEEYE -

To reduce our waste emissions and burden on the environment, 27T B/DEREYIEINR BRESRIENEZZE I
we strictly implement the sorting, storage, and recycling of waste, IR ITEEEY) 0 48 ~ A B WA RIL »
and implement several measures to reduce waste at source: FIRN B L IBIEN > ZEERBERE -

Sorting and Collecting °

DHEWE

Recycling and Reusing  ®

EI =N

Reducing Waste at °

Source

R SR R BE

Sorting bins are placed in the factories, and solid and liquid chemical hazardous waste
and general waste are collected separately

NIk E D ENIRE S ER R C2EREN —REEY 2 AR E
General solid waste is collected and treated by third-party waste collectors

—ARERE BRI R = 7o BBE Y U e rg W BE AN BR IR

Recycling wastes, including PVC rubber, waste paper and packaging materials, are
handled by recyclers

PVCRHL ~ EEAR ~ B 454} 25 ] [D| Ue ) 38 B [B1 UL 7 R I8

Employees are encouraged to reuse product packaging materials, such as waste
papers and bubble wraps

FMETRIZEEAEREEME AINEER R SEHE

Employees are encouraged to recycle carton, plastic bags and stone-filled plastic boxes
ZBMETERME -BENEGRR

Organise environmental protection events, such as recycling of red packets

AR R HERERFDE

We have been promoting the “Bring Your Own Bag” campaign at our retail outlets
since 2015. We donated all fees charged for plastic shopping bags to Green Power, an
environmental protection organisation in Hong Kong, during the Reporting Period.
015FREE T EE ST BERYRES T RSHERENBY RN
SHBEETEERRARGEBNE

Employees are encouraged to make good use of toilet papers, adopt double-sided
printing as far as possible, and promote electronic communication
SREBTERARA [ERAEENR > #HEE 7B

We select materials in the most appropriate size when cutting materials to reduce wastage
TIEIME R EER S BR THME BIRE

Use the appropriate amount of solvents/cleaners

@ﬁﬁ E/ﬁ //%E/?nm
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The following is our non-hazardous waste data during the U TFZ&FFIN RS HIM 520218 EHEEZREE

Reporting Period and FY2021: EMEIE

Indicator Unit FY2022 FY2021

517 B 202281 5 202181 4F

Total Amount of Non-hazardous Waste Tonnes 421.07 309.78

Produced (Note 6) (Note 7)

FRELXmEREEMESE (Mste) (HEE7) YNL]

Recycled Waste:

BEEINEE :

Food Waste Tonnes 9.85 9.04

BT e YN

General Industrial Waste Tonnes 41.05 39.53

— R LEREEY YN

Metal (Note 8) Tonnes N/A 0.15

&8 (IE8) NI ER

Other General Waste (Note 9) Tonnes N/A 0.52

HhE EREY (F519) YN RiEM

Paper Tonnes 15.96 21.54

Ak YN

Waste Disposed:

EREREYE

Other General Waste Tonnes 354.22 239.00

HMEEREY) YN

Intensity of Total Non-hazardous Waste kg/turnover (HK$'000) 0.042 0.040

Produced
FIESBREEEMEERE N/ E*EE (TH7T)
Note 6: The data are rounded and may not add up to the totals. fiste : RBIEHEIERARE  BEMERAIFEHERS
RFFeo

Note 7: The figure represents the amount of non-hazardous waste generated from {57 | ZEIBEERRBMBRENIHREENESEEY
our jewellery processing plants only. The non-hazardous waste generated HE -RMNESR VR MR B E S RSB
from our self-operated shops and offices in Hong Kong, Macau and EENEEERYHMESERREITRIE.
Mainland was handled by property management companies.

Note 8 : The volume of metal waste generated was minimal during the Reporting {58 : RSB EBEYELE D WARZERIKE
Period and did not reach the minimum processing volume specified by the EENRMBEEREE-
recyclers.

Note 9:  The main source of other general waste recycling was old furniture, which — [fis¥9 | EMEFEYHIEIKREEZRIRLERMEIU > K
we did not dispose of during the Reporting Period. IR R E AR BT S RIE

In addition, the Group also generates hazardous waste during
production process, including waste parts/components, empty
hazardous chemicals containers, sludge from sewage treatment
systems, waste lubricating grease, waste batteries, waste light
pipes, waste ink cartridges, radioactive waste, concentrated
acid waste solvents, concentrated alkali waste solvent, waste
lubricating oil, waste lubricating coolant, waste paint and grease
produced during cooking. To prevent environmental pollution, all
solid chemical hazardous waste must be properly stored in sealed
containers to avoid leakage.

i AEBNEEBRETEELERETER
Y BIEET HHE-EENTCR2ERRE
2 RIS KBRELERISE BEHE M B
B BEAE BEEKE -WMHEEY R
BT RERBEARK  BEREIER BB
A ERRURARBRREENRES BT
PIEERIRIE S A B BIERE 2R EY)
VAZENEFRRNEEEHTSET B#RR
i
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The chemical hazardous waste is stored in containers labelled
by the types and characteristics which are further collected and
processed by professional chemical hazardous waste handlers.
We also arrange designated staff to conduct weekly inspection to
ensure proper collection, storage, and handling of all hazardous
waste. Radioactive waste is collected and recycled by the
manufacturer. Wastes such as acid waste liquid, waste light
pipe, gypsum tile, sludge, grease trap slag, etc., are handled by
different qualified recyclers.

The following is our hazardous waste data during the Reporting
Period and FY2021:

HPEERCECREYH RS LA LR
- RHPEHEHBAREE AEXNCRERE
MBEEHREREE KM TELHEAS
ERETKE BEMBEESERMIORZ
EWE -FENEE MEUEMEHEE
BERWERBIW  MEEER BEAE AT
B SR RS EY TR ARG HKE
W R o

UFAREANRE MBI R021 FH T
RYMEE

Indicator Unit FY2022 Fy2021

517 Bl 202281 202181 &

Total Amount of Hazardous Waste Generated Tonnes 6.046 4,988
(Note 10)

FREEBEEEYMRE (EE10) N

HWO06 Waste Organic Solvent and Waste Tonnes 1.806 1.934
Containing Organic Solvent

HWOBEE B 1 A ZI L & B 1 A B EEY) YN

HWO08 Waste Mineral Oils and Waste Tonnes 0.146 0.111
Containing Mineral Oils

HWOBEE Bl ¥ B2 & B 4 S BE 4 YN\

HW12 Waste Dyes and Paints (Note 11) Tonnes N/A 0.010

HW12Ze i}~ L EEY) (FTEE11) yNL RiER

HW13 Organic Resin Waste (Note 11) Tonnes N/A 0.022

HW13FE i A48 RE ) (MA5E11) yNL] Fi#Em

HW29 Mercury Wastes Tonnes 0.130 0.120

HW29& 7R EEY) NL

HW34 Waste Acid Tonnes 0.659 0.236

HW34 & B NI

HW35 Waste Alkali Tonnes 0.995 0.784

HW35EE 7 NI

HWA49 Other Waste Tonnes 2.310 1.771

HWA49ELfhEE4) YN

Intensity of Total Hazardous Waste Generated Tonnes/turnover (HK$’000) 0.00042 0.00060
(Note 12)

FMEEBEEEEMRERE (izk12) AME SRR (FHBT)

Note 10: The figure represents the amount of hazardous waste generated from our
jewellery processing plants in Nansha only. No other hazardous waste was
generated from our self-operated shops and offices in Hong Kong, Macau,
and Mainland.

Note 11: According to the latest regulation of Guangzhou General Waste
Categorisation Management Approach, as relevant hazardous waste
is regarded as general waste, and handled by the city administration
department, the relevant waste is therefore not applicable in FY2022.

Note 12: The intensity data were restated due to adjustment of the FY2021 turnover
data.

MIEE10  ZBBEARRMAEIKRENIHAEENE S
BERMHE - HPINEE RPI R Pt B &5 Kt
FRIBEELEREERY-

MiEE11 AR (EIN T A TB IR D M E R ) IR R
AN EEA SRR BRMA R EIEEY L
THRETERITREEMEE  FILEMER
Wit2022R AL AT

MizE12 | F2021 M F R E XA PRAE  RAEY T&EF
EmEERIE-
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Emissions Reduction

In response to our stakeholder’s concerns on climate change,
the Group actively manage our emissions to reduce greenhouse
gas and air emissions produced during operation. Our direct air
emissions mainly come from the production processes of welding,
grinding, melting, pouring, electroforming, jewellery cleaning,
etc., as well as fuel emissions of vehicles. Also, our indirect
emission mainly come from purchased electricity and natural
gas consumption in the factory area. To ensure compliance and
reduce our environmental impact, we have installed activated
carbon filtration systems and exhaust gas scrubber systems in the
factory to pre-treat the exhaust gas generated in the production
process before it is discharged. Meanwhile, neutralization tower
is also set up to neutralize acid mist by adding alkali solution. We
also regularly invite third-party professional companies to conduct
emissions inspections to ensure compliance with the Ambient
Air Quality Standards (GB3095-1996). We regularly maintain
and clean the exhaust gas disposal facilities to ensure smooth
operation of the facilities.

Combating Climate Change

Climate change has become one of the major challenges in the
world. Its impacts, including temperature rise and more frequent
extreme weather events, may negatively affect the health and
safety of our employees and our business. In view of this, we
have formulated various energy-saving and emission-reduction
measures in the operation and production process to reduce the
carbon footprint of the Group’s business. To protect the health
and safety of our employees, we will closely monitor the weather
conditions. During bad weather, we will issue safety guidelines to
our employees according to the laws and regulations of the Hong
Kong Labour Department, and place sandbags for stores on
the ground floor to minimise the impacts of flooding. In addition,
the Group also purchases work-related injury insurance for its
employees, and regularly carries out inspection of occupational
hazard protection and emergency rescue facilities. If there is any
damage or problem, we will arrange maintenance in a timely
manner.

During the Reporting Period, the Group conducted an ESG-
related risk assessment to identify potential climate risks that may
pose threats to our business. We further strengthen the Group’s
ability to combat extreme weather and climate conditions by
regularly evaluating the effectiveness of existing measures and
exploring areas for improvement. We will continue to monitor the
latest situation of climate-related laws and regulations as well as
regulatory requirements regularly, to better prepare for alleviating
climate change issues.

i HER
AOEFMNEHRESLEENRE T K&
ERBETE R EIE BB EBRERN
FBERBMERE R RPN EZERE
BMEBXREBEE-TTE- B AE -BHE-
EHE S ASEET FUREWMPHHEE M
MR ETERGINEENTN TIHEEN KA
FOHE - ATHRESHEMNABIREZE FMM
WIHKRBEEERBBERGMERTKER
HoOEHIINERAEIREEBREELENERTE
SETRIE RRFRERNE > HERMNAG
BUPMEE A THERERFSIRIEEZR
BEIZHE) (GB3095-1996) > I EHIEES
S HEEMBEETHRORA X E B4 EM
BB RRIER R ITEESIE

EHREEE
RIFZCREMAMIKE A EENERKE
Z2— BERFHERNEE GRRAAS B
REMNBIHERRES > TAERNE THRE
MZ2URBRMPNEBEREETE-FE
Rt AN EEREEBRED  FIEREEH
BERBRIE I > PR R AL R E B ZEE -
HAEEINBENZE  HASBESR
KRR EBHRRA T RBEEES TRER
Pl BT #ERERiES WAMBREY
B HEFEHKREBEER  BEKER
BRI xEBTFAERBEIBE LGR
R WERRERELENENERIER
I > SN B R ARIR N E R G e R L BEEE

RBREHE ~ERETTRE - HEREAR
H A R T Ah AR N R PIEF B EE
WEETRERR BBERTGIRAREE
FEBY R AI SRR P U = E— D B
ERHBHERRAKRRGEARTVERE] T
P97 4t 48 € B AR AR S R B EABRR YA B &
REREEERNEHER AEMREEE
TRBF R
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The following is the Group’s greenhouse gas and air emissions
data during the Reporting Period and the FY2021:

Indicator Unit
151R Bl
Total Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions Tonnes of COze

(Scope 1 & 2) (Note 13)
BERBBLEIME EE1KR2) (I:E13) NP EE

Direct Emissions (Scope 1) Tonnes of CO2e
BiEHW (E&@E1) rE_EERESE
Indirect Emissions (Scope 2) (Note 13) Tonnes of CO2e
MfEHrm (EBE2) (FEE13) PSR ES

Total GHG Emissions Intensity (Scope 1 & 2)  Kg COze/turnover (HK$'000)

(Note 14) (Note 15)
RERBRASNERE @E1K2) (fi514) AF"&tRkEE
7t) (MiEE15)

Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) Kg
KA1 (NO F=
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) Kg
a1t (SO« F=
Particulate Matter (PM) Kg
5B (PM) T

Note 13:  With reference to the latest emission factors for Mainland based
operations associated with purchased electricity stated in “How to
prepare an ESG report” published by the Stock Exchange, the data of
scope 2 (indirect emission) in FY2021 has been restated.

Note 14:  The intensity data were restated due to adjustment of the FY2021
turnover data.

Note 15:  This turnover included self-operated shops in Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland only.

UTHBAEERREHER20218 FHRE
REE M EE R

FMI5E13 :

fisE14

MEE15

G (T8

FY2022 FY2021
202281 4F 2021814
10,075.03 9,649.96
641.78 581.88
9,433.25 9,068.07
1.01 1.25
1,454.31 1,123.98
3.16 2.77
97.75 74.80

RIS E T HPRP TSR (N 4R FIRIE ~ 41
EREARS) PRI AMINEENHRRE
HHM2021H FHEHE — (B BBEE
MEtEe

FE2021 B FRE X BEAPTAEE > WAEH T &
FENTERE-
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Awarded “Hong Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence” for the Fourth Year in Succession

EENFREFRRIFEEKXLE

The Group has been accredited the “Hong Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence” (HKAEE) organised by the
Environmental Campaign Committee, the Environmental Protection Department and nine other organisations for
the fourth year in succession. The Group won the Certificate of Merit under the “Shops and Retailers” sector again
amongst the pool of 2,785 entries, in recognition of its commitment and dedication to promote environmental
management and sustainable development.
AEBEBENFREHRREHEZEGHAIRGMREZRNEKBS I [EBIRE SHASE) KK AR
2,785M B2 HEKBETBERES BEATEX MINERID 5SE TAEERNHINRREERIFERE
ARG EB 7] °

The recognition of judging panels has affirmed our efforts in environmental protection and sustainable development.
Along the path of its steady growth, the Group always adheres to the principle of sustainable development, actively
shoulders environmental and social responsibilities, commits to integrate environmental protection into various
business segments, and raises our employees’ awareness of environmental protection through training as well
as strengthens environmental management systems in order to achieve the sustainability goal. As a responsible
corporate citizen, while we are committed to becoming a preferred jewellery brand of our customers, we will
continue to contribute towards a sustainable low-carbon future.
TERENSEERRMEIRERERAIFEZEAENS N EAEERSERBRER HM—E2EFT
FREERNIES BRABRRREEMEEME RAOREBRERESHAZEZED LEBZIRABTRGFRH
MBRBRREEFHE ZHERTHFEZEENER - FA—XBELEEENEE RMTERNINAERTEE
NRERENRER > TEEER BRI RHEERNERRRIELER

The HKAEE, organised by the Environmental Campaign Committee, the Environmental Protection Department and
nine other organisations, aims to encourage organisations to implement environmental management and recognise
those with excellence performance.
EBRESHAR HIRREHEZETHMAIRBRES RN ERBSI RESEZBERERIRIFEER
XEEERAERREEMZ X

\

2020
Heong Kong Awards for
Environmental Excellence
T ER S 4
Certificate of Merit
;AR

Shaps and Retalers
HHETUR

Luk Fook Haldings (Intemational)
TR () WL E

Certificate of Merit for “Shops and
Retailers” Sector
M cTEE I HNEBEREE
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Receiving Recognition again in “BOCHK Corporate Environmental Leadership Awards” under
“Services” and “Manufacturing” Sectors

FEERMPRERCERFARKRLBRBERBZIRREXRIHR

The Group has been honoured again with the “BOCHK Corporate Environmental Leadership Awards”, jointly
organised by Federation of Hong Kong Industries (‘FHKI”) and Bank of China (Hong Kong) (“BOCHK”), standing
out from a list of over 802 participating enterprises and being recognised as “EcoPartner” in “Services” sector
two years in a row. The Group’s subsidiaries Luk Fook Jewellery (Guangzhou) Company Limited and Lee Fook
Diamond & Jewellery (Guangzhou) Company Limited have also been awarded the “EcoPartner” and “5 Years+
EcoPioneer Companies” in “Manufacturing” sector for six consecutive years, in recognition of the Group’s
contribution in promoting environmental protection.

FEBBERESETEAS ((T4) BRRRT (BB (RIRER) BMESEEN THIEFBEERRELK
8 PRES ) TiBIAs02M 2 B R IRFEM L BEEMFE R A IR 2 REERE N - RPINHREAS
NEHE (EN) BRAB RENFEEAEERARINEENFN G RENRRERBHIAM 65+
2HERRABRE IR WS EERTHSIRFRAEIFLNEM

The Group adheres to fuffill corporate social responsibility with continuous endeavours to commit in protecting the

environment and community engagement, and reduces the environmental impacts within every single operating

unit — from factories, retail shops to offices. The Group will continue to optimise our current environmental

measures in order to deliver the best returns to the society while promoting sustainability.

K%@% SEEMEEER® FERRNBEZRERE IR TEEINRLE YERDSEESERDN
NEE- ZIK%%Hﬁ@,\;@fbfﬁﬁiaﬁT It > B[l 68 %iﬁ EERFEERE

Launched in 2015, the “BOCHK Corporate Environmental Leadership Awards”, co-organised by FHKI and
BOCHK, aims to encourage enterprises operating in Hong Kong and the Pan Pearl River Delta region to adopt
environmental practices to fulfil corporate social responsibility and reduce environmental pollution.

MRIRE B EIRREFL AR B2016FHRATHEETERTESH SEBEERZHR=ZAMESENTE
HITIRAREN UBTTREMSEE BVIRIRS S

L/ #MEBBOCHK (&) thikrss sazens
ERRRAEAR O O
1 2“0"‘2021-..
E “" = @itktes o @IS

ﬂ,__, L\

TENE [Bli WD - NEEWN (WM RE®
Lask: P Hbedrviri {irtir it Limstedd
Lk Fock brwellery iGuangahoul Company Limied

I T S ‘“Q

Mr. Tse Moon Chuen, =

0.':.“.?.'.. - @ rnan snzame
Deputy Chairman & Deputy 5 P
General Manager of Lukfook v @, e
Group received the honour
on behalf of the Group 1
AEEEREERFEL THEARIDNERID- RINSASESNRDD FEND (BIE) BRED
B AR EEREERR oo G o e o oy s e

S5 1A b 11 20 LS
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Responsible Sourcing

The Group is committed to improving product quality and
environmental performance through supply chain management
and hopes to promote business development and enhance
operational efficiency. To achieve this, we have developed
a comprehensive supply chain management mechanism,
including a supplier and contractor evaluation system and
management guidelines, to improve product quality and suppliers’
environmental performance through evaluation and monitoring.
To drive suppliers to practice sustainable development, suppliers
and contractors must comply with the Group’s environmental
protection policies and stringent corporate governance standards.
To ensure that suppliers and contractors comply with relevant
regulations and make continuous improvements, we regularly
review and monitor their sustainability performance.

As of March 31, 2022, we have 347 main suppliers, mostly
coming from Mainland and Hong Kong, and before formal
procurement, all suppliers were required to pass our preset
assessment process.

BEERE

FEERNEBAHEREERAERE RN
MIRRERE ARHZREXEHERLMA
BENER B WAFIET 2ENHEERE
BHG OEMESRARENGRANE
BIfFEs) RBEFENERNRAERER
URHEBRRER AT HDHEFEER
AREER HEBRANRBLABTEASE
ENRRERURBENTEEELGRE S
7 B R A P 7 A RO g 2 T A R AR E
SEE RFIERRENEEMFAIF
BERERR-

B E2022F3831H WM EMNHEFHE
B47fE » REMARBEAMKRES > BEENE
THRERFIAHEREREBRMANETE
BET BT o

Total Number of Suppliers by Geographical Region
&R R FE R AR R

15

Hong Kong &%

Mainland P

Others EAth
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We have established a comprehensive procurement process, under which all
procurement items are subject to quotations from approved suppliers or tendering
procedures based on the project budget. In addition to the quality of products and
services, we also provide a “Guideline on Green Procurement”, which encourages our
staff to consider environmental factors during their procurement process, and requires
them to state whether these guidelines have been followed.

BB RENRERR REAREEE BREERESENR I HERER
BEREETHRERF R T ERKRBRE KA RECREEEIIERSS)
BEEINRBEEERZRREREZ  wEREFASZRESLRZIES -

All approved suppliers and contractors are subject to our internal approval procedures.
We also require our suppliers and contractors to sign a “Supplier Agreement” and
“Corruption Prevention Policy” to maintain product quality and business ethics standard.
BMAP AR HEE RANENTARSHZ T BHEENA S mET (H
FER k) R(BRERXBEER ) MEERERNMEHEBEAKF-

' To ensure product quality, we regularly evaluate the qualification of our suppliers and
renew their “Supplier Agreements”. We provide some of our suppliers and contractors
with the “Environmental Protection Manual of Working Inside a Workplace”, and
conduct evaluation of environmental protection operation and on-site inspections if
necessary. Suppliers that fail the first environmental protection assessment will be
given a chance to improve. We will consider terminating our business relationships
with them if they fail the assessment again.
BTRFREMER RMATCHETHREHER TG REHREHES (HEBRH
&) oMM B MEE RAMESREGOIEALENRRFRIEESE ) RETRR
EETE WERFETEMER - R BBERIRFTENEEAFEL TS
WE WRERBEE — Nt RMEZRA LEZEEENSERE

“Conflict-free” Diamonds IFHEEIER

As part of the jewellery industry, the Group understands the EABREBITEN—HF ~EERELERE
human rights and environmental risks behind the sourcing of @IS EBEENAERNIREREK A7
diamond products. To ensure that the diamonds we source are  FERFEFIRBHE AW IE TEEE R (X8
not “conflict diamonds” (also known as “blood diamonds”, mined M > & F R IEER L EIEESENIE
in war zones and sold illegally to the market, or causing damage i FES1E ™5 > Sl £ IR IE A A G A8
to the environment and human rights), we procure diamonds &) » BN EBSEHARIZREWHELHE
from diamond suppliers that have passed the Kimberley MES#ET LB EREMEMNELELR
Process Certification Scheme. This certification proves that the IIEM BB I > MEFETEBRENIREN
rough diamonds are not mined in war zones, so there is a low  FT & &R o

environmental and social risk.
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Goal

BiR

Commit to creating an ideal working environment, advocating a & EEE TEIRIR  IREFE S H
culture of equality, diversity and inclusiveness, and empowering BEX1b: BRAEE TR BIL S
employees with career development opportunities

Related SDGs:
HHRFEEEERE

DECENT WORK AND 1 PARTNERSHIPS
ECONOMIC GROWTH FOR THE GOALS

i

Chapter Highlights EEi{§ &

Training Development

1EaNE R

o During the Reporting
Period, our total number
of training hours was up
to 110,000 hours
PR & EARE > IR
4R B33 110,000/ N B

o The average training hours
per employee was about
15.6 hours
AN IG5 3B BUAY16.6/ )\ B

Material Issues Identified

ERINEERE

Staff Welfare

(E=EEY

Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-discrimination
TEHE L RIER

Occupational Health and Safety

HWERBERZE
° Staff Development and Training
BT #EKREIN
° Employment Compliance
BEEHRM
° Anti-corruption
RE&S
Total Number of Employees Employee Health and Safety
BTHEY BTRBERER
%t%tzég;rkforoe of o During the Reporting

Period, we continuously

5 920 monitor and strengthen
)

the epidemic prevention

employees
measures of our stores
and offices, to prevent the
The ratio of male t spread of viruses
e ratio of male to P A
female emp|oyees 7‘5\ %& = HAE %Wﬂ% = *Rj
BT S LA 5 e 1N 58 5 & R 3E A 35

1:

PREGBA 5T > BE R IR S

23 FEORE

Annual Report 2021/22 5§



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRI -8 RERKRS

The Group values our employees, and outstanding talent
is essential to our success. To reward employees for their
contributions and to attract and retain talents, the Group abides
by employment-related laws and regulations, including but not
limited to the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, and the
Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong, etc. We are committed
to creating a harmonious, inclusive, equal and diverse working
environment, and prohibits any form of discrimination. We also
provide our employees with competitive salaries and benefits,
as well as adequate vocational training and development
opportunities, so as to allow our employees to grow together with
the Group.

During the Reporting Period, there was no material
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations concerning
remuneration and dismissal, recruitment, and promotion, working
hours, holidays, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
other benefits and welfare, including but not limited to the Labor
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Labor Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China and the Employment Ordinance of
Hong Kong, etc.

FERSRERMANET  BEFHATHIM
R WEREZ - B TRBETIHEHNE
B R AAAIRE AT REEIE T B
BB ERKRR BFEEFERIR(FEA
RHAMBESZSE)  (FEARKENHBEF S
BE) &R (RREIRA ) F > WWEAFTEM
S HE TEMZTENIFIRR  RIEE
WARRR - KATRETREERF N
BYFr BN A0 &8 A > 0 12 (78 e B B 3 1 51| £ 3
BHE BREETHEREHFNE-

PR SRR > A EBTER BN AR R 1EE
RET TR R FERE 2 tiEs
Rz R s BAth 58 R BAEBDE R RIRA 7
B EIREFMERNERTA BFEET
RIC(PEARKENBEEEE)  (PEARH
MESBEREE) REB(RREIEG) Z-
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The Group Became the First Hong Kong Jewellery Brand Obtaining “Equal Opportunity Employer
(Family Status Equality)” Award
TEERASREERERMRETERIEE RERUFEE IHE

The Group has become the first Hong Kong jewellery brand to receive the “Equal Opportunity Employer (Family
Status Equality)” Award from the Equal Opportunities Commission for its remarkable achievements in cultivating
the equal opportunities and inclusion values into its management strategy and operations, as well as implementing
the initiatives that promote the caring for employees, facilitate work-life balance and help them fuffill their family
responsibilities.

FEBRAEREAGEREEERTEREZERENTERERETE REBMUTE 18T UREE
ERTELREBESHASEREREEEF UABITELIME REREIT AL ETYE UKAHERERE
TRESEHENEEARN

We are very proud to become the first and only Hong Kong jewellery brand to be commended under the first-ever
“Equal Opportunity Employer Recognition Scheme”. Our employees are the most valuable assets for us and as
always, we are devoted to caring about their physical and mental well-being and realising the principle of work-
life balance. We believe that a harmonious family atmosphere is the prerequisite of achievements at work. With the
aim of building a family-friendly workplace, we provide staff training on diversity, inclusion and work-life balance.
The Group will continue to fulfill our corporate social responsibility via supporting various charity and community
activities and promoting work-life balance and family values.

BRAFERERNEE  TEREEIEZHAI AABRARE—EEARRNEBRERE AEB—BEHET
AHEREESNEE BRETEESTME  WABMMNE O RE BT TR EFENIER - HMBEN
BERENKEFREREIAIFHIGEEERENAR AERASRIRELRS TR BRAEBE TR
HERSTHEMETFEREELTENENI - SEFEENSACEMEEFRACH I RFFFU AT RMHE
EE WRETFELE T REEREBE

The “Equal Opportunity Employer Recognition Scheme” is launched by the Equal Opportunities Commission
to promote the values of equal opportunities, diversity and inclusion in the workplace, and recognise the
accomplishments of companies and organisations that demonstrate a commitment to implementing policies and
practices on these values, with a view to fostering spirits of inclusion and diversity and building an inclusive and
discrimination-free society.

PTERERERIEAFEIATERESEGHENERTE SER TIFEEETSHENZ THRNE
B URBERTITERGERRRIARRTESEN AT NEE  LUEE S THRB S BREMALE
R E o

Qo
RLEREE
e ety

Equal Opportunity Emphoyer
-

Femily Status EquaiRy

Luk Fook Holdings
(International) Limited

; .@_ g Certificate of “Equal Opportunity Employer
----- (Family Status Equality)” Award
MEERERERT (REMATE) IZ5R
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Being Accredited Three Citations in MPFA’s “Good MPF Employer Award”
BEREREREZRTREFEIIZFHI I ZEHE

The Group has again been accredited by the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority (‘“MPFA”) as a “Good
MPF Employer”, together with two Special Awards, namely the “e-Contribution Award” and the “MPF Support
Award”, in recognition of the Group’s continuous contribution on implementing electronic MPF payments and
promoting the MPF scheme.

AEBBERERRTIMEABEHEEER (BER) BENESHREIIES URBETFHRE I KBS
HER MERNRE URGEE—EEABETHARERBESHA KB BES REEE S EMNER

Adhering to “people-oriented” management philosophy and considering our employees as our core asset, the
Group always commits to provide all-rounded benefits and retirement protection. The Group has not only been
duly discharged its MPF obligations, but also offered its employees with extra retirement benefits, including
providing them with voluntary contribution for better retirement protection. The Group will continue to provide
employees with the latest MPF information in order to assist them to make a timely and proper arrangement for
their retirement.

FEBRAUAAFTINEEES GEIASEREEZNEE ALEER—BERNAETREZEANER
FABRRIE o BR T BITRBEEE AN RMAFIR R 8 TRMERINRINERN > B1F R 8 TR BBk Zih
MEEEENERARE AEBREEBBAETRESMNABBEEN HBEMMRESRARELZEN
ZHko

“The Good MPF Employer Award” is launched by the MPFA to acknowledge model employers’ efforts in fostering
and enhancing retirement protection of their employees, and encourage employers to provide better retirement
benefits. There are two Special Awards, namely “e-Contribution Award” and “MPF Support Award”, for recognising
employers in making contribution payments electronically and providing assistance to employees about MPF
account management.

B EFI ZTt23HBERFT Y SEREBRARERNBEERAEBNNESEE  MEBEFSE
BRUEENRAKERN - ZtBITRE EFEHME K ESHER MERHIRIE URGREDNEES
BEFERARERBEHEN kA fEERHEEERBSARMAHE

Luk Fook Holdings Company Limited
AEEEMARLR

s g a3 W R
Good MPF Emplayer
mEFmEE
ard prosried with. THE
a-Contribution hward B F SILE
-

WAPF Sopspeeet Amiet B & S

Certificate of “The Good MPF

Employer Award”
BT F ET IR TrEESE
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Naming as a “Happy Company” for Eight Consecutive Years

BEENFETROERIFER

The Group has been accredited “Happy Company” for eight consecutive years under the “Happiness at Work”
promotional scheme. It recognises the Group’s effort to create a harmonious working environment as well as to
raise the benchmark of happiness-at-work.

AEBEEN\FERTHAOLERIEESEIPERSA TFHORE  ROBEE 7T HREERRITIFRERIEA
BTIRETEKFERE S

The Group always considers our employees as our core asset. Creating a healthy and happy working environment
for employees helps to strengthen their sense of belonging to the Group; not merely enhancing staff morale and
efficiency, but also attracting and retaining talent, and hence, driving business growth. Therefore, we will continue
to pursue ‘People Focus’ in our corporate management philosophy so as to ensure that employees are able to
grow and develop in an optimum work environment, and integrate the corporate development in line with the
employees’ values to fulfill ‘Lukfook Family’ spirit.

FER—MGREIAEREE HEREMRNIFRIEEERETHEENTRER  ~FEFERABIL
RRESTEWE  JRal ks | RBEAT BEEFER AL RMIARKRSEBEERIA R TINEEEIRIE
SO BIREREIRERFNIFAREREHMRE BRIEEINERBENEENERERLES B
BARBEIRTIE R

The “Happiness at Work” promotional scheme is organised by the Promoting Happiness Index Foundation and
implemented by the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong. The scheme aims to promote the concept
of happiness-at-work among Hong Kong companies, raise Hong Kong people’s sense of happiness at work and
encourage the development of “corporate caring”, “corporate wisdom”, “corporate persistence” and “corporate
motivation”.
AL TEE EES RSB RARLIEHES RN AEBTEREH S SIIT STESSELELR
BN TEIRIE RSB AN ITEREKT  W(RE BEREE ~ TR~ BEF M TBES
TR

Fug m e B

>
FAIEEE (ER) R AT

Posernting Irden Fourndision

L Edatl Tk

COMPANY =2
o Syears’ mEED:

Certificate of “Happy Company”
MR EZE BT
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Diversified Talent Team

E S PN e[

The Group advocates the principles of diversification and equality, ZAEEIREZSTIERFENRE) > SESE
and respects the background and culture of each employee. We ETIMES - X{tZ - HFILERE LLEME
do not discriminate on the basis of gender, disability, family status BB ~ 535 ~ RER T A EENIEIR & E
and race in the workplace. As of March 31, 2022, we had 5,920 202243831H &I E5 9202 ETUNE
employees based in Hong Kong, Macau and the Mainland. The 7 BP9 K ot T 1F o An 52 @ iR $R 5 HA R ¥4 3
total number of employees of the Group by region, employment &~ {B1E488 « 4k B ~ FE &40 B K 14 B B9 B9
type, employment category, age group and gender during the BE4EHW T :

Reporting Period is as follows:

Total Workforce by Gender
BRI SRS

Total Workforce by Employment Type
REFRERIINESAH

FY2021
2021844

FY2022
2022844

B Female Z B Male B

FY2021
20218445

FY2022
20228445

u Part Time/Contract m Full Time
®W AN S

Total Workforce by Grading

Total Workforce by Age Group
RERER S DI RERE

EHEREI D EEAH
FY2021
B
2021844 443
8
FY2022
B
202284 % 499
8
= Senior Officer u Middle Senior
or Below Level Management Management
EREEHAT FAREEE BREEE

FY2021
2021814

FY2022
2022844

60-69 50-59 40-49 30-39 29 or Below
u 60-695% u 50-595% u 40-495% u 30-395% u 29IAT

Total Workforce by Geographical Region
&S SRS

Total Turnover Rate by Gender

BB D EE KRR

FY2021
2021814

FY2022
2022814

Mainland Macau Hong Kong

o Mgy Moy

Female
21.18%

18.42%
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Total Turnover Rate by Age Group
BERANEDHEEREER

Total Turnover Rate by Geographical Region

BRI Rk

60-69

60-695%
Mainland
50-59 19.31%
b
50-50%5 10.20% Pait
40-49
40-49%% 13.79% Moo 23.86%
30-39
30-395% Hong Kong
29 or Below o B
208 I T 34.70%

Recruiting and Retaining Talents

To attract professional and enthusiastic talents, we recruit talents
through various channels and establish an extensive talent
network, including internal training, social recruitment, overseas
recruitment, and cooperation with colleges and professional talent
recruitment agencies. We attract local and overseas technical
and management professionals through our comprehensive talent
pool of technical cadres, to continuously improve our technical
and management level and enhance our market competitiveness.

We actively provide employees with adequate training and
promotion opportunities, so as to enable employees to develop
their potentials and improve their work performance. To achieve
this, we have formulated a comprehensive career development
ladder and assessment mechanism and evaluated and assessed
the work performance of employees every year. Evaluation results,
academic qualifications, and reward and punishment records will
all be the consideration factors for employee promotion.

The Group offers its employees competitive packages to retain
our talents. Our human resources system clearly stipulates
policies on remuneration, holidays, working hours, welfare, staff
handbooks, reward and punishment system, dismissal and
termination of employment contracts. If the employee terminates
the employment contract, the human resources department will
arrange a resignation interview to understand the reasons for
the employee’s resignation and improve our human resources
management by collecting feedbacks.

EARIEEANA
ARTRNEENERBNAL  HMBEBS

BREBEAL  BUEZNAL B BFF
AZBIZ > L FIREE  BIMEEE > DU B PR AR
MBEXASRBERBSFEE -HRMBBETS
B9 52 17 8% B8 A 5 > DR 4 A 3 A0 08 Sh B9 B2 1l
MEEEAS  FERABRMAENEEEK
T RRATSZRFE Do

HPBEBEAETRHETONEIRS A
OB RBETHRELE  URERFTIFE
Ko/t HABECTSHBMELRESNE
ZE TEFEHE TN TERRBETITG
MEZ T IZE R BE - MBRECHRII G
mEIHBINEREREER-

AEBAETREERFNINGFS UHEE
BEEMAT BN ANERGEBRTH
BERAEM R TEREEBF - ET P8
REGE -BERBERSHENSERHR -HE
Iéﬂmfﬁ{%m@’)\ﬁﬁfﬁﬁ ZHEREB®E
o THRETHRNERER HEBWE KRBT
%i’—tfﬁﬁ’])\ﬁé/ﬁéﬁﬂiﬁfo
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Respect for Employees

The Group respects the rights and interests of employees,
provides employees with reasonable remuneration packages, and
strictly abides by the laws, regulations and standards related to
employment rights. We ensure that employees’ compensation
meets or exceeds market standards, and considers employees’
positions, job performance and results, personal abilities, etc.
when determining employee compensation. We make MPF
contributions for employees in Hong Kong, and social insurance
and housing provident funds for employees in Mainland. We
provide employees with a variety of benefits to ensure that
employees can get life security and achieve a work-life balance.

The benefits available to full-time employees include but not
limited to:

Annual Leave

F1& ER
ComE::\s;:nate Bonuses
s
R feAd

In order to allow employees to get enough rest, we organise
various recreational activities. The staff quarters of Luk Fook
Jewellery Park are equipped with a variety of recreational facilities,
including basketball courts, fitness facilities, karaoke rooms,
libraries, and TV rooms, etc. Due to the pandemic, we significantly
reduced staff activities during the Reporting Period to prevent the
spread of the epidemic. We look forward to resuming a number of
employee activities when the pandemic is over, so employees can
spend time together.

Employee opinions and feedback are crucial to improving the
human resources system. In order to collect employees’ opinions,
we have established a grievance mechanism, and employees can
lodge grievances with us through email, telephone or face-to-face.
The identity of the whistleblower will be kept confidential, and we
will investigate the case in a fair and impartial manner and take
countermeasures when needed.

Maternity Leave

58T

AEESEETHD METRHEGEN
S LERBETEBRREERNER R
BIF AR 2 o R FIFE(R B TRVF BIE R S8 8
THERE UEREELHFMFEEEIHN
B 28 TERBE-BAENEZ R
BEENBEIHMRES TANMNETH
mrERBENEEAET HMARETRMH
ZREN BREBEIEFINESTFRERE
M ITREEERR T e

ERXETAIZANGEHNSEERRN

Paternity Leave

FER

Marriage Leave

$ER

HEETENRFIEHNRE > RAIBRSE
MAFREERES AN EHREEBNETE
ERAZEBEARE BRENE BER
i~ RAOKE -EEREE - HRaE - EEIH\
BEBERZ BANRSHBERARANRLDE
EE) LU LB AERY 5% - FUFIRREE R E%’EJT_E
BrERNMESEE TGS B8 Tkt
EBERRERT g

ETHERMRBENTEANERFIEER
EEO%TH&%EI%%TF%E’J%E HfFIsRAL
s BTAEZBEE BEENEKTT N
B AR L R BIRAN IR ERERE
MEFAREULRTF RAENH A EMHET
BE WERFRRM L EHER-
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The Group strictly prohibits child labour and forced labour. In
order to ensure that employees are of legal working age, we
check candidates’ identification documents during the recruitment
process. The Staff Handbook sets out employment-related
policies and terms, including arrangements for working hours,
vacations, pay and dismissal, and avoidance of forced labour. If
violations are found, the Group will take immediate measures to
stop them from working. During the Reporting Period, there was
no non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations relating
to child labour or forced labour.

Training and Development

In order to maintain and enhance our business development, we
require our employees to continuously learn about the latest industry
and technical knowledge. Under the Group’s training system,
employees have access to various external and internal training
opportunities. We assign internal instructors to provide various
training courses to employees and invite external organisations to
provide external training for employees. For example, during the
Reporting Period, the Group invited professional and experienced
human resources consultants to encourage managers to break
through the inherent work model and work from top to bottom
to promote the unique and excellent management culture of the
Group. During the Reporting Period, 82%* of our employees
received training. A total of 111,177.6 hours of training were
provided by the Group, with an average training hour of 15.6 per
employee. Every employee at the deputy manager level or above wil
also receive 24-hour training every three years. Some of the training
sessions held during the Reporting Period are highlighted as follows:

SEE DRI

Product Knowledge Training

7 mm A R B

Advanced Jewellery Knowledge
Certificate Courses

HEFEIRE R AE ERE

9 Employee training data included those who quit during the Reporting Period.

‘ ETHIIBEESNREHERRNET -

The Group’s Orientation Class

FEEMHBEIRBFIF L A THRRE
ITEREINEEIFER  RMATHEESB
BHREHEEENSHRBAXHETRE -
(BT FM) 7 RERERBERERR &

EITERE R FHMMNERNZHE 8%
BEIFEH  EEHFERBN  2EE G
REEREEFLETF-REHE ~&EH
EERMETIAGISEEMEARLRG S E
WS RRAEAIERIT A

1R 3 R

mTHFNRAEDT SR AFABRETF
i IR WAL B T BY AT SR AN T R o o TE AN SR B BY
BIERT ETRES TR RAEBE
g - HABRKABEMRE TRHERE
BHIERAR > MR R I B AE R B TR HIMN
Al AN R SRR AEBBEF T EER
BEREEEANERER SBEEABRRK
EBENITIEE B LM T EE N EEE-
BHFEENC - RIREHE > %f82% M E

THEZ7TENl AREBR—HEMT111,177.6
INEFRYEE I AL IR BB 15.6/\BF o 1L

BIKEBAIMU EET N E = FEZ24/)\6
BYEZ SN o B0 3RS EARS R IT R IR0 T ¢

High-Quality Service and Jewellery
Knowledge Certificate Courses

BERFAKENHZERE

Jewellery V Class Online Learning
KEVRELER

Shatin Che Kung Temple Fair
Training
DWHEBEABREEE
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Percentage of Employees Trained by Gender

REEISHNZINETESL

30.44%
Pl

69.56%

[ Male 8 I Female &

Percentage of Employees Trained by Grading
HHEASSNRINETESE

0.10%
=
12.81%
m Senior Middle m Senior Officer
Management Level Management or Below
BREERE FIREEE BAREEIUT

The Average Training Hours Completed per
Employee by Gender (Hours)
RiERB DB ERESFTAZ I
IR (1))

The Average Training Hours Completed per
Employee by Grading (Hours)
BRSNS ESTRENIN
TR (/)

Female
% 16.02

Male 14.64

Senior Officer
or Below

BEREETIAT

Middle
Level Management

IR EEE

Senior
Management
BREER
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IR e

Luk Fook Six Leadership Habits Workshop
NEAKABEBEIEY

In order to encourage the management of the Group
to break through the inherent work mode and work
with innovative thinking, we held a workshop on the
“Luk Fook Six Leadership Habits” during the Reporting
Period, surrounding six habits, including being
proactive, achieving goals, mastering time, creating a
win-win situation, cherishing differences and making
continuous improvement, to enhance the leadership
skills of managers and create a unique and excellent
management culture of Luk Fook.
AXBAEEREEABRREAN IR UA
WEEEH T BARRSHABEM T 7@K
BEREI I BEAAKEEBRE 8FXHE
B EZERER ZEFEH REER - BREEERE
BES RAEEAESNEERIY UMEEE
H-EBFNEEXE-

Recognised as “QF Star Employer”
EZHFATQFEREE

During the Reporting Period, the Group was again
awarded as “QF Star Employer” in the “Qualifications
Framework” scheme, in recognition of the Group’s
support to the scheme, and our contribution in
enhancing employees’ competitiveness and promoting
enterprise development.
RESHE ~EBEERTAEREEIE 2
TQFEMRET)  UKRGERE ERERE T2
FrUKREBMRSEIHFNNESHEEZES
ER SRR

Luk Fook Six Leadership Habits Workshop
NEAANEEEEIES

“@F
EHRkEE
|

QF Qualifications Framework Partnerships
Commendation Ceremony
QFEEZRIEB =TS
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Safety and Health of Employees

The Group is committed to building a healthy, safe and
comfortable working environment to protect the physical and
mental well-being of our employees. The Group’s occupational
health and safety system clearly stated a set of occupational
health and safety measures, abide by the Occupational Safety
and Health Regulations, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases,
the Work-related Injury Insurance Regulations and other relevant
laws and regulations. During the Reporting Period, there was no
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations relating to
the occupational safety.

Number of Work-related Fatalities in the Past Three
Years

FY2022
2022815

Rate of Work-related Fatalities
(per 200,000 Hours Worked) (Note 16) (Note 18)

e Uik
(5200,000 TIE/NE) (5E16) (5E18)

Rate of Work-related Fatalities
(per 1,000 Employees) (Note 17) (Note 18)

AIETR 0.17
BTLED (EE17) (EF18)

Lost Days due to Work Injury (Days)

RIfGELIERS (B) 514

Note 16: Work-related fatality rate per 200,000 hours worked = number of fatalities
as a result of work-related injury/number of hours worked x 200,000.

Note 17: Work-related fatality rate per 1,000 employees = number of fatalities as a
result of work-related injury/total number of employees of the category at
the end of the reporting period x 1,000.

Note 18: During the Reporting Period, one of our employees unfortunately died of
illness due to health issue during working hours and at his post. According
to the definition of the “Regulations of Guangdong Province on Work-
related Injury Insurance”, it was defined as work-related fatality. We
promptly processed, investigated, and reported to authorities, as well as
paid medical reimbursement for work-related injury.

In order to protect the health of our employees, we have
purchased work-related injury insurance for employees and
provided protective equipment such as masks and gloves to
employees in need. In terms of safety, we conduct regular
inspections and maintenance of protective and rescue facilities
to avoid accidents. The jewellery processing plant in Nansha
also has a security department that conducts regular inspections
of factory facilities to identify and mitigate risks related to
occupational health and safety. We provide employees with
occupational safety rules and conduct regular training, including
fire drills, safety and hygiene knowledge training, etc., to improve
employees’ awareness of occupational health and safety.

ETZRE
AEBRNITERE T2 M BRI TIFIR
HoUREEING L RE  REBMBIRE
RERZ 2GRS — R 5 AR @
B2 WET (BEL2REEE)
(PEARAMBBERGGE)  (THER
RG] SREERRIRA - RIS &
EEAREZ 2 REEARZ RN TS @I EY
RAEAIERITR

BEIFERTITHAEY
FY2021 FY2020
202181 & 202081 &
0 0
0 0

Not disclosed

*EKE

Not disclosed

XEKE

#3516 1 AT T X (5200,000 T 1E/)\B) =K T 3E T 1E

EHE TERF# x 200,000°

EAIZRTCX (BTZLEI)=RITHIETEEHUE
/ZHARIRE AR E TS x 1,000

HEE17

18 ISR BMA — B T TR
{11 PO ) 5 8 R T S 1K o AR 98 (B B 8 T (1%
RAEA) % R REARTIET - B
RESIEE  (FHiBE  MERRE TENTHE
AR o

ABTREETIEE HMAEIBE LGSR
Lo HBERENETRHEOS - FELSHER

e S HTEAE I BHEN IR R &
TEHGENEE BREINEE R/
E’Jfﬂegﬂulﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁwﬂ’ﬁiﬁ?z i
EOTTHRE S EmEAREEERY
ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ’]ﬂﬁmﬁﬁ'ﬂméﬂ%f BELET

Al WEHETEI BEEEE - 22H
FAHBNE URRSETHHERRER

EEHC
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Comprehensive Pandemic Prevention Preparation for our Employees

HETFLEENHREER

During the Reporting Period, the community had more and more reported coronavirus variant cases. In view of
this, we clearly explained to employees about information on work-related epidemic prevention, and implemented
the following epidemic prevention measures to avoid the chance of virus transmission:

RREMAB e BB RRORAEBRFTER BRA RMABET/FEEH N LV AR #EA
# WEBMU T —RIINEBER BRREERNHE

° Install air purifiers in the office to maintain good ventilation
o MIRGPMERZERFCH RIFERME

o Require employees to thoroughly clean store interior cabinets, displays and other equipment with diluted
bleach every day to keep the environment clean

s EXRBISXUNBEZAKFMEZREANGE RIMIRE RERRER

o After the customer tries on the jewellery, the staff can use the ultrasonic machine to clean the jewellery from
time to time, and the water in the ultrasonic machine needs to be changed frequently
s EEFHIEENER BTAKEABBRSETENNER ILFREFRBEREARIK

° Instruct employees to wear masks at work, undergo temperature checks, wash hands frequently, disinfect
regularly, reduce meetings and maintain social distance
e IEEBT FHMEMOE HZEAEAE2EF EHE B ER LR ERE

o Suspend the tea service in stores to prevent customers from taking off their masks and having close contact
with store staffs and products
s EHEINEFRERB UBREEERTOSNER TEEB RS miES
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Business Ethics

The Group maintains a high standard of business ethics,
and highly values integrity. The Group formulated systems in
accordance with the Company Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong
Kong and other applicable laws and regulations, as well as
industrial standards, including the Kimberley Process Certification
Scheme, the “Best Practice Principles” of De Beers, the “Practice
Guidelines” of the Responsible Jewellery Council and the “Code
of Practice for the Jewellery Retail Sector” of the Hong Kong
Consumer Council, to prevent corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud,
money laundering and other illegal behaviours. We require our
employees to sign the “Integrity Undertaking ((BEZ&EE))
when they join us, whereby promising to maintain integrity and
good business ethics during work.

To ensure our suppliers, customers and partners uphold business
ethics standard, the Group requires our suppliers to sign the
“Corruption Prevention Policy ((BE/Z23ZZEE))", and issue the
“Guidelines of Soliciting or Accepting Advantages for Employees
of the Group (EBEEEZRENAWZFIzmIE5]))" to customers,
suppliers and partners to prevent any transfer of benefits
between employees. We encourage our employees to report any
suspected violations of business ethics and illegal behaviours,
and we will follow up and carry out investigations with the most
rigorous and timely attitude. Besides, if an employee accepts
the gifts from customers, he/she shall declare and register the
“Registration Form for Receiving Gifts and Red Pockets in Lunar
New Year (CGHTaFUNERfE mEFIREECTR))” with the Cashier
Department and have it signed and confirmed by the manager-
in-charge. The gifts received from customers will be collected
uniformly and later evenly distributed among colleagues for lottery
and dining together. To raise employees’ understanding and
awareness on anti-corruption, we have issued the “Prevention
of Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing Guidelines ({78
frAERERENRMERICIEIES])) to the staff of Hong
Kong, Macau, USA, Canada, Malaysia, Australia and Singapore
branches to assist the person-in-charge and colleagues of each
branch to assess and identify the risks and countermeasures of
money laundering and terrorist financing.

BEEE

FEFRFRERRE USEERME
TEBREBR(PEARAMBEAGE) ~ (PE
ARHAMBER AEERFE) RERA(HILE
BRIGD)) SBRERRRD > URITHESTR
BIEERMRIZNE T8I KDe Beersfy (& 1E
HETR) BEEREEXZSEH(UEER)
%D*Fﬁﬁ%%%ﬁ@ﬁ’](ﬁ%ﬁ‘é%ﬁﬁa %

F8)  AEEHERENR AR
RS BEM S BV R BB R MBI

L%Eﬁ?% HPBRE T ABKRRE (BRZEX
HE)  ABEELEBRETRERENREN
[HESEERD

ATHREER BLANSEBEHREEST
mﬁLﬁﬁﬁ REBERMBEEHEE (FZR
RSHBER) TEE(ERRERERN KNI G
ES)VHER - HEBNGEBH  BHIEER
HET ENFRHE HMSEE TME
MEREREEEBNE L TAETRER
WU REMRENEEMRERENAE -5
SOMB THT R EENEY) > fInEm
HH 4 2B R 3R A B AT R EE WA A R R B BT
RITHFELEZERID ELXENESR
B EWHm— U $ﬁﬁm%ﬂﬂ$¢mi
MBEEZH - ATRABIHRE SIS
M HMPREB VB -EE-MEAE
FRPGEE ~ BN R TN D AT B B 4R (1 (FERR A
ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁﬁuﬁzﬁm%hm>m%ﬁ

ERBETE RN AEERDHREN
ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁo

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRI -8 RERKRS

During the Reporting Period, the Group also organised anti-
corruption training for the directors, to allow them to have a
clearer understanding about laws and regulations in relation
to anti-corruption, the importance of integrity and learn about
the common corruption risks. We also invited commission
against corruption officer from Independent Commission Against
Corruption (ICAC) to organise ICAC training for new employees to
strengthen their understanding of laws and regulations in relation
to anti-corruption. During the Reporting Period, there was no
material non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations on
the prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

Goal

Actively participate in community event, care for social groups and
take up social responsibility

Related SDGs
HERAAEEREBE .

DECENT WORK AND 17 PARTNERSHIPS
ECONOMIC GROWTH FORTHE GOALS

o

Chapter highlights EEiEE

Our Focus Areas of Contribution

BANEEIEMEE

o The social areas we focus on include: sport
development, medical service, anti-pandemic
action and environmental protection
BEMEINHEHRCE  BEER BE
AR~ B 1TEN  IRIR IREE

The Group firmly believes that we must take the responsibility
of corporate citizenship to listen to the community needs and
provide a helping hand to the people in need, in return for the
support and recognition of the Group from the community.
Therefore, we invest resources every year to cooperate with
public welfare organisations and participate in different community
engagement events, responding to the needs of the community
with our strength. During the Reporting Period, we focused on
promoting sport development and supporting medical services,
anti-epidemic events, environmental protection, etc., upholding
the spirit of community contribution.

AEERBSHEARATAEERNRESE
s iEEl o BEEIRM T R KRBT RREF
PI-HMEEENEZERIHBRNETE
BoRPITAEBRFREIAZERBHASEME B
MABR =S MEREASEN BIEMrIE
REBFERERO TR -RNRERE £5&E
BRI LR SR MEE R EERE
BRRB G EILES REFMERRERTS

B2 EMRERE AEMHE FEEMEER

Donated a total amount of approximately HK
BHERESLBE

Million
BET

$5.

AEBBREHRMAVARECELARNEE
ERTEERANEFZ AERFEALMHELE
Fo UEIHRHERAEREBAFTFNRA -
it ZFSEHERAEREATEES
B 2ERARHLEBRAEE BRMANHIEE
BHERIR -RNREMA[ KA INED
BEER XFBERT BT -HKEL
B RIERESHTHE  RARIBLTHRB
f#o
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Providing Meticulous Support to 2021 Standard Chartered Hong Kong Marathon
BOITEEIT &R K HIHA2021

The Group has sponsored Standard Chartered Hong Kong Marathon for five consecutive years. We ingeniously
designed and produced 32 pieces of 18K gold medals inlaid with diamonds for the champions of each event
and the top 5 male and female runners in the marathon, and 18,500 exquisite finisher medals for the runners of
each event, to show our respect to each of the runners. In 2021, the Standard Chartered Hong Kong Marathon
continued to use the past gold-level road races, passing through Nathan Road, the central hub of Kowloon,
allowing runners to run on the most prosperous road in Hong Kong, and also provide more areas for supporters
and citizens to cheer the runners.

NEBEESEEBENBITESARNIL FEREOEEMR ST REERNISKE R RBE LR MAZIEES
BEENEERFAREBESABLNT  UK18500MEENTERIBEHESEESTENRF ﬁ%u&@%ﬁz
o 2021 FE BB B RN MRBENERERES  BENERROVEBANRIBE  ENFRETERE
ENRERZER TRUEEZSUEFESFEDRABRF IR

The marathon medal was designed by the Group to integrate the Standard Chartered Bank Building and
embellished with the main color of the marathon. For the champion of each event and the medals of the top 5 male
and female runners in the marathon, the designer adopted three-dimensional craftsmanship to outline the 18K gold
runner pendant inlaid with diamonds, and the pendant can be detached for daily use. The pendant is like a runner
on the track constantly running towards the finish line, bringing out the theme of “Let’s run further together”. The
marathon, half-marathon and ten-kilometer finisher medals also follow this design concept, making runners more
active in the event and striving to move forward, which is of special significance.
EREAREBBENITENFHRINEE > R quHfrE?ﬁEﬁﬂtEnw\HﬂP BRI F EFIERE - EREE
EREENEERFHIRDIZEL B XWFNRME Rt UII BN T EN S H18KE BB A M F B
MEMERIR TRIEEEMEB A ; BB BB IFTNE RS mAREE  FH I —RBRMEEE]
NEE BRI F BN TRERERETHEARERERAM S ERFMERBRAZTE - EOW
A RIERE-

In addition, in order to express the most respectful greetings, the Group not only gifted the honorable Lukfook
Jewellery White Diamond membership to all runners, runners could also add their names, finish date and time
as well as event category on the “2021 Standard Chartered Hong Kong Marathon” finisher medal for free. The
information would be engraved on the medal, witnessing a unique honor and bringing sentimental value.

5N BAEREEENBE FEENBXES SN\ EHREREEEGRBTEHEF E@%TTT?‘ F2021&3T&
BEASTERE LR EZ e TEAM  NENESARN RERE—BE_NRE WAEIEE

il e The Group
b o \ *# 2 8= designed a unique
ki) ﬂﬂi*lﬂﬁ 2021 - medal for Hong

Standard Chartered Hong Kong Marathon

—E ATEE Tosgethatr We Flun Fur ther
5
-

Kong Marathon
runners
MRBEEFITEE
— R AR
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Donation of HK$1 Million in Support of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals
1ERE100B B TR RE=x

The Group has been supporting the “Tung Wah Charity Gala” hosted by Tung Wah Group of Hospitals (TWGHS)
for many years. During the Reporting Period, the Group once again donated HK$1 million to support the TWGHSs
Lukfook Group Chinese Medicine Clinic and TWGHs' Chinese medicine services.

AEBLERBIZHFRE= RPN ML RRE ZEBR S NRSHAM ~EEBERE -8B U
S RE=[NEEEP RS A RE =R EEART

The Group has always been committed to reciprocate society and has actively supported and taken part in charity
and community programmes. The Group continues to support TWGHSs in a hope to help more needy, so as to
convey love and care to help people in need. In future, we will continue to spare no effort in community wellness
and encourage our employees to care for the community.

FEBE—BFRARBHENEM BRI R2HEZE AR EE—NHRTHRE=( > BEEHS
ELEREARTE GREEVHEBBEATE LERTENA L AU ERBE— DB N KK HMSEES
NEFHERH TEBET—RAEH g

TWGHSs is the largest charitable organisation with the longest history in Hong Kong that provides a range of
diversified medical and health, education, and community welfare services.
RE=—RRE2ERLREAKFBREANESHIEANHE AARRHRZ TENBR - HERMMEENF
AR#5 o

Ms. Wong Lan Sze, Executive Director and
Deputy Chief Executive Officer of Lukfook
Group (2nd from the right), presented the
cheque on behalf of the Group to Mr. TAM
Chun Kwok, Kazaf, Chairman of TWGHs
(1st from the right), accompanied by Ms. Koi
Ming Fai and Ms. Ng May Ying of Ming Chee
Sing Cantonese Opera
NMEEERTESRAITRESRSER
T (B KREERESHITE AR
BRI E =R/ NE K R R N E RS R B
=REFEBEESLLE (H—) ARER
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Supporting the Community to Fight Against Pandemic Together
BOBHZEHEZIFANETH

The fifth wave of COVID-19 has brought unprecedented challenges to Hong Kong. During the Reporting Period, to
help the underprivileged to overcome the epidemic, the Group donated over HK$1 million worth of anti-epidemic
materials to various charitable and social welfare organisations, including the Christian Family Service Centre,
Direction Association for the Handicapped, Hong Kong Rehabilitation Power, etc. We will continue to give full play
to the spirit of mutual help and love, fulfill our corporate social responsibility, give back to the community, and to
support the prevention and anti-epidemic through various methods and channels.
BRRNTRIEREBERAPIRERIDNE IR EHAR > %l?ﬂﬁgﬁ‘%ﬁi%m1OO%EE’J?&FWQ cE4ES
ERTEEE SEEEERERFTRAO BROKRERALHE - EBERNES  UBHHEHE #HF
EIBRIE M AEEZEBEE B E BFM U @EF@%&&H@EE CFEHE BETEA RN RREZER
BB IEe

asasenc

BT

-
QL < P sevuas
-y
o B H:-=F:=010 Donated a total of over
3 ___l- L ! B Ko B $1 million epidemic
= S EIHE —— — prevent supplies
A =l 248 [E BB 1008

THRENE

Coastal Clean-up Day
BEBRITE

To take action to protect the natural environment,
during the Reporting Period, Lukfook Volunteer Team
of the Group participated in a shorelines clean-up
volunteer activity in Wu Kai Sha organised by Green
Power. During the process of collecting and handling
shorelines’ garbage, we hope our employees can
learn about coastal ecosystem and have clearer
understanding about the importance of clean-up activity
to coastal conservation.

RARUBRITHRESARE  RWRSHAB > EEET
NEETHREMGEHEFRMERNEENERE Lukfook Vollu_nteer Team participated .in the coastal
WS TEE) L R B A R B B glg\e/\t/neL:p activity at Wu Kai Sha organised by Green
MEZENZESTRABRER ERFERTEHYE EBExIB2UAGCHEERNEEDERBEZ
REBENEE M- L

109  Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7522 E] (B HIRAE)



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BIE G R EARS

STOCK EXCHANGE ESG REPORTING GUIDE Bi3ZPRIRIR - 1 E R ERIREIE5 &R
CONTENT INDEX 3l

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPI Policy/Procedure Section/Disclosure

TEHE BE —RIESRMBENIEE BRAER EH/8H

A. Environmental

AR

Aspect A1: Emissions General Disclosure Air Emission Management Sustainable and Responsible

BEA1 : s Information on: Guideline Jewellery Sourcing

() the policies; and BERENERES OFEGERESMHRE

(o) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact Solid Waste Management

on the issuer Guideline
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, B B S
discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste. Wastewater Emission
—RHE Management Guideline

FHBERKEZEREHR- RARLHNE  SREEEES
B BEREEREEYNELSN
@ BX; &
o) BFHETABEATENHERERR
RBIER
The types of emissions and respective N/A Emissions Reduction
emissions data. AiEA OB
BB R AR R

Direct and energy indirect Greenhouse gas N/A Emissions Reduction
emissions in total and intensity. TER R BER
ERRERERREERBIREREE

Total hazardous waste produced and intensity. N/A Waste Recycling

ELBERENRERTE TER Bl

Total non-hazardous waste produced and N/A Waste Recycling
intenstty. AiEH BEMEIR
MELREERNRERERE-

Description of emissions target(s) set and steps N/A Waste Recycling
taken to achieve them. TER BEYEl
BRI INBNERRRAENELER

FRERERY B8R o

Description of how hazardous and non- N/A Waste Recycling
hazardous wastes are handled, and a & EEYEl
description of reduction target(s) set and steps

taken to achieve them.

HARERERREEENN L R

FTE] 3L VIR EE B IR R A B 5 L B IR PR HREL

BB
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPI

TEEER EE —REERMBAKER

Aspect A2: Use of
Resources

BEA2 : ERfER

KPI A2.1
R ERIERA.1

KPI A2.2
RENIERA2.2

KPI A2.3
RRENIEEA2.3

KPIA2.4
RENIERA2.4

KPI A2.5
RRERISRA25

Aspect A3: The
Environment and Natural
Resources

BEAS : BIERXAEE

KPI A3.1
R REIEIEAS.1

General Disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw materials
—RiRE

BUFERER (B1FER  KREMEMR)
RIEER o

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by
type in total and intensity.

BB DN ERR/IEEEREEERE
fgo

Water consumption in total and intensity.

BEKBREE

Description of energy use efficiency target(s)
set and steps taken to achieve them.

HWATT IR RER YR E R AELE
LB RPIRERN S iR o

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.
HAUREGE B KR LRI B AR UKk
SUNAKYEERRAERELERME
GpZ

Total packaging material used for finished
products with reference to per unit produced.
HRRMAEEMENESREEES ML
Eo

General Disclosure

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant
impact on the environment and natural
resources.

—RR IR E
REZBTARBRRRRERENEATE
HYBIR ©

Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage
them.
EREBEHHRRERARERNEATE
RERNEREABEEENTH

Policy/Procedure

HEERF

Green Office Guideline

B eiaEs|

Environmental Procurement
Guideline

BREBIFES

Office and Workshop General
Operation Guideline
WAERITH—REFES
N/A

AER

N/A
~ER

N/A
~ER

N/A
~ER

N/A
TEA

Green Office Guideline

eS|

Environmental Procurement
Guideline

BREEIFES

Office and Workshop General
Operation Guideline
WAERTH—REMFES
N/A

AEA
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Section/Disclosure

EHi/2H

Sustainable and Responsible
Jewellery Sourcing
ARERERGEERE

Efficient Use of Energy
ERER

Protection of Water
Resources
EEKER

Efficient Use of Energy
ERER

Protection of Water
Resources

EEKER

Packaging Materials

2k

Sustainable and Responsible
Jewellery Sourcing
ARERERE EERE

Sustainable Jewellery and
Responsible Sourcing
ARERERE EERE



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BB R EARE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPI

TEEER EE —REERMBAKER

Aspect A4: Climate General Disclosure

Change Policies on identifying and responding to

A4 : RIFEME significant climate-related issues that have and
may have an impact on the issuer.
—MiRE
HAREHEE R EEHBETAELY
MEAXRBEHEEEETNHE

Description of the significant climate-related
issues that have and may have an impact on
the issuer and the actions taken to manage
them.
HREERIEEHETAELREBNEX
RIFEHEE REHTH-

B. Social

Bi®

Employment and Labour Practices
ERREIER

Aspect B1: Employment General Disclosure
BmEB1 : EfE Information on:

(@ the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working hours,

rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-

discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

—RiRE

BRHMRERE BEREA TERY- R

HTERE Db RERUREMES

RABFIN

(B B &

b) BTFHETABEAZENAMLIER
RROIER o

Total workforce by gender, employment type,

age group and geographical region.

2R RERE  FRAERRMER HHE

S48

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group
and geographical region.

RGN ERARNRMEE SNEERKL
$0

Policy/Procedure

BRI

N/A
Sl

N/A
~ER

Staff Handbook
BEFMH

N/A
TEA

N/A
TEA

Section/Disclosure

=il L

Combating Climate Change
FEHRIEEE

Combating Climate Change
EHREEE

People Empowerment

AT HREE

Diversified Talent Team

SEAA B

Diversified Talent Team

S AT E
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPI

TEER EE —REERMBAKER

Aspect B2: Health and
Safety
BEB2: BREARZ

KPI B2.1
R ERIERB2.1

KPI B2.2
R ENIERB2.2

KPI B2.3
RRENIEER2.3

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@ the policies; and

(o) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working

environment and protecting employees from

occupational hazards.

—RiRE

BEREZ2TERERARREEEEREE

HRREN:

(B) B &

) BFHETAREAXENEREIER
RAINER

Number and rate of work-related fatalities
occurred in each of the past three years
including the reporting year.

BEZF (QEERERE) RIFRBGEMET
BN BB L

Lost days due to work injury.

RIBBAIFER.

Description of occupational health and safety
measures adopted, how they are implemented
and monitored.
TR R R AR 21 WURAR
R TRER %o

Policy/Procedure

HEERF

Occupational Health and Safety
Guideline for Office and Retail
Store
PAERSEENHERERZ
2153

N/A
~ER

N/A
~ER

N/A
TER
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Section/Disclosure

EHi/2H

Safety and Health of
Employees
ETZR

Safety and Health of
Employees
BIZRE

Safety and Health of
Employees
BTZRE
Safety and Health of
Employees
BIZE
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPI

TEEER EE —REERMBAKER

Aspect B3: Development

and Training
[BEB3 : R RIFH

KPIB3.1
RENIERB.1

KPIB3.2
R AR IE1RB3.2

Aspect B4: Labour
Standards
B4 : BT R

KPI B4.1
RSB IE1RBA

KPI B4.2
PR B IE1RB4.2

General Disclosure

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge
and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.

—RRIRE
ERRAREBTIERENHA RN
BUR - BB HIE S o

The percentage of employees trained by
gender and employee category.

RithRESENENNRIEER AL

The average training hours completed per
employee by gender and employee category.
rUEFNREEERE D SLEETAZ
MTEHEH -

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@ the policies; and

(o) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

—RiEE

AREALEETHRGETH

(B EE; R

b) BTHETAREAXENHEBEER
ROIMER

Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour.
s RS B ARV HE T8 R B T Rkl

5T

Description of steps taken to eliminate such
practices when discovered.

B EERERF LB HRARERARE
iR

Policy/Procedure

HEERF

Staff Handbook
EEFH

N/A
~ER

N/A
TER

Staff Handbook
BEFMH

N/A
~ER

N/A
TER

Section/Disclosure

EHi/2H

Training and Development

AR R

Training and Development

B3Rk ER

Training and Development
Bl RERE

Respect for Employees
58T

Respect for Employees
§858T

Respect for Employees
§858T
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BB B REARE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPI

TEEER EE —REERMBAKER

Operating Practices

EERA

Aspect B5: Supply Chain

Management

[EmEB5 : (HEEEE

KPI B5.1
R R IE1ER5.1

KPI B5.2
R A NIE1ER5.2

KPI B5.3
BB NIEER5.3

KPI B5.4
PR ENIERB5.4

Aspect B6: Product
Responsibility
[BTEB6 : EmE(E

General Disclosure

Policies on managing environmental and social
risks of the supply chain.

—RiEE

BEMREENIRE R G RBER

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

BB D HEHHE

Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.
HhAREAHEENES MENTEMH
BRNHEEBREE  UREHEMNNHITR
BER*e

Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along the supply
chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
HABERAHEESERONBRERTE
BEREREA > URERRATRER e

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how
they are implemented and monitored.
HRTREREERECSARRERKRR
HEVEA MR T RER R %o

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(o) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising,

labelling and privacy matters relating to

products and services provided and methods

of redress.

—MiRE

BRFTREERIRBNEREZS BES-

EREMAEEEURERHEN

(@) B, R

b) BFHETAREAXENEREER
ROIER

Policy/Procedure

HEERF

Corruption Prevention Policy

REXZHR

Engineering and Operation of
Goods Approval Process
TEREENRBRRE

Financial Authorisation and
Contract Signing Approval
Procedure
IBERERARE 2 BHRE
N/A

TR

N/A

B

N/A
TER

N/A
TEA

Comprehensive Manual
HW =] %ﬂ:ﬂ

Customer Complaint Handling
Procedure

BERHEERR
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Section/Disclosure

EHi/2H

Responsible Sourcing
BEARE

Responsible Sourcing
BEERE

Responsible Sourcing
BEERE

Responsible Sourcing
BEERE

Responsible Sourcing
BEERE

Responsible Promotion
BEMEER



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BIE B REARE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPI

TEEER EE —REERMBAKER

KPI B6.1
R ENIEIRB6

KPI B6.2
R ENIEIRB6.2

KPIB6.3
R ENIEIRB6.3

KPI B6.4
RRENIE1ER6.4

KPI B6.5
RIRENIS1RB6.5

Aspect B7: Anti-
corruption

EEBT:RES

Percentage of total products sold or shipped

subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.

BEFEEXEREYETARZAREER
MEARKNE AL

Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are dealt
with.
BEMNERKRBNRHYEURRELE A
e
Description of practices relating to observing

and protecting intellectual property rights.
R gL RER A EEEMNIED -

Description of quality assurance process and
recall procedures.

HrEEREBERERDWER -

Description of consumer data protection and
privacy policies, how they are implemented and
monitored.

B E SRR RA R > LR EH
RTRERA %o

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(o) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.

—fRIRE
BRMLER $F REFRAREN
() B R

b EFHETAEEARENRM LR
RAIRER

Policy/Procedure

HEERF

N/A
R

Customer Complaint Handling
Procedure
BERHEERER

N/A
TEF

N/A
~ER

Privacy Policy

MIZER

Staff Handbook
BEFMH

Corruption Prevention Policy
REXFHR

Section/Disclosure

EHi/2H

Six Heartfelt Services

ORE

Quality Assurance

HERE

Protection of Intellectual Property
Rights
REEFIBERE

Quality Assurance

BERE

Protecting Privacy

R

Business Ethics
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IR RERERS

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPI

TEEER EE —REERMBAKER

KPI B7.1
R AR ISIRBT 1

KPI B7.2
R ENIEIERT.2

KPIB7.3
R B IE1RBT.3

Community

#HE

Aspect B8: Community
Investment

EEBSHERE

KPI B8.1
RENIE1RBS.1

KPI B8.2
AN IERBs.2

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or
its employees during the Reporting Period and
the outcomes of the cases.
RESHRNHETAREEERLLBES
WEBTHAZHNYE RAFAER

Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.

P B R EREL UREERITR
BERA%e

Description of anti-corruption training provided

to directors and staff.
WilnEERE TRENREFE

General Disclosure

Policies on community engagement to
understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure
its activities take into consideration the
communities” interests.

—RRE
BREUHERSHERTREEMAMEEE
BREEBEHELRHETENEBR -

Focus areas of contribution.
EIEREE
Resources contributed to the focus areas.

EELERMYPER-

Policy/Procedure

HEERF

N/A
R

N/A
~ER

We are in the process of setting up
the community investment policies.

RMREREHRRERR

N/A
TER
N/A

TR
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Section/Disclosure

EHi/2H

Business Ethics
HEEE

Business Ethics
mEEE

Business Ethics
mEEE

Caring for the Community
BEHE

Caring for the Community
HEHER

Caring for the Community
BEHE



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
PEERARS

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
AND BOARD COMMITTEES

EETREFLZEIGHEE
As at 31 March 2022
202283831 H

Remarks: #3E

1 Executive Director HI{T#HE

2 Non-executive Director JFHITHES

3 Independent Non-executive Director 17 IFHITE S
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
PEERARS

The Board of the Company recognises that sound and ZAATNEEZE FE > ERBETEMN  FEH
effective corporate governance practices and procedures, E -BSUERBIEZBER T BREENZ
with an emphasis on integrity, transparency, accountability and XS AERKEFHIEFREBERRE
independence, are essential to enhance the shareholders’ value MRERBEFIBAEE - AATEKEMITREF L
and safeguard the shareholders’ interests. The Company is ¥ &AIEE > W HERIZEBFRFEERERL
committed to maintaining a good corporate governance standard RGBT

and endeavours to ensure that its businesses are conducted in

accordance with all applicable rules and regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK TEERLE

Shareholders

External Auditor

ShEE 1% 1AM The Company

L YNS

o T e e e e e e e e
e e e e e e e e e
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRS

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all
code provisions and, where applicable, the recommended best
practices of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in the then
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on Stock Exchange during the Year under review,
except for the following deviation:

Code Provision C.2.1 (Code Provision A.2.1. of the former
CG Code) provides that the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual, so that there is a clear division of responsibilities for the
management of the Board and the day-to-day management of
the Group’s business to ensure a balance of power and authority.

In view of the increasing trend of business deriving from the
Mainland market, it is believed that Mr. WONG Wai Sheung
being the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
will further enhance the business development of the Group in
the Mainland market due to its norms on “status parity” when
future business negotiations are conducted in Mainland. Besides,
members of the Board also include qualified professionals and
other prominent and experienced individuals from our community.
The Board considers that the existing Board composition, with
the support of Board Committees and two Deputy Chairmen,
can ensure a balance of power and authority. The Board will
nevertheless review this structure from time to time and will
consider the segregation of the two roles at the appropriate time.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors is aware of any
information that would reasonably indicate that the Company
is not, or was not for any part of the Year under review, in
compliance with the CG Code.

REIBEFERN  ARABDEHRABRAES L
mARR (TR BRI E14PREZ (B2
EATRAD R(EEEARS) ((BEEAT
Al) WIRA) W EBTATA TRME K2 &R
EER WBEA) - ETIREERRI

FRIFEXFEC.2.11F (MR EERTUNZTA
R FA2.1.0F) FE T ERITHARNAE
BEED UAEHE—-ARKRE FES
CEEAAEEOEEBEEC RS RS
7 LIEREDME B T

HRAMTEESHEBRER BERNEH HE
A 2B HERERBEEEREELAR
FRERITHABE TERRRERUETE
BiEER E—SRAKTEREAMTH
EHUR- I EFEMETERGERE
FANT KRG EHEMBEM  SERZER A
T BEFERA NEFTETZETRME
BERZHBE T HEEEG ZHEMAER
BONMREZ FE-BEWNI  EFER T
RET UL IRAE WS B E R R E R M D
B o

BREXRBEEIN EEHAINTEERNER
Bl IR AN B) 3R B o % [ B F [ AE 1A By
BEGEREEERTH
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TEERRS

The Company adopts the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry
of all directors, they confirmed that they had complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code and its code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions during the
Year under review.

() Board Composition

The Board currently comprises five executive directors,
three non-executive directors and four independent non-
executive directors. They include persons with a wealth of
practical experiences in the jewellery industry, accountancy
profession, securities industry, banking industry and legal
profession. The Board possesses a balance of skills,
experiences and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business. The composition
of our Board complies with Rules 3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A
of the Listing Rules. The current members of the Board are
set out as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung

(Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen (Deputy Chairman)
Ms. WONG Hau Yeung
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy
Dr. CHAN So Kuen

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP

Mr. LI Hon Hung, BBS, MH, JP

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP

Mr. HUI King Wai

The biographical details of the directors are set out in the
section of “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 153 to 163 of this Annual Report.

KRB EHFM LR E10PRE 2 (L%
TAEBRETESFXZRETH]) (BT
Al EREFETRESFXZZBRTER K
MEREFFHARESHE  KREMEINE
BFEEA—BETRETRIMEZAEZER]
NERMERETIRFR S ZBTER

() ESFEZERK
EEGRFRALHITES  Z2IEH
TESRNABIIERNTESER 2
FEERKETE StEXE BH51T7
X IRTTERIBEEABETZERLR
ZAT BEEGRERTELRARBEBA
E2HEREE - RRAZHENABAE -E
EE AT E EMHRAIFE3.10(1)&(©2)

BREIA0AK - IRFEE TN E W

T

BITES

HEBRLE
(EEFITHAEE)

BmERE BIE/E)

EI5B L+

=4 =g

BREISIEL

JEITES

=ERERE (BIEE)
FrIR AR aR T

2 HEBBS ) MHAK P4+

BIEMITESR
EBZCGBSK ML
BXAREE
BT
SFELELSTE

EFXEEFBHNAFREBIGZEES
163RTEERSREEABZREEF

B1—H&ie
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
PEERHS

(i) Attendance Records at the Board, Board (i) EFEER - EFZETEIRR
Committees and General Meetings RAgZHERER
The attendance records of the individual directors at BEERCBEFENRTZEEZER
the Board, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, B -BZEZESER RREZETEE
Remuneration Committee and general meetings during the FNEZE e aREARG o HERR
Year under review are set out as follows: &HT

No. of Meetings Attended/Held

HE/ BTEERY
Annual
Audit Nomination Remuneration General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Directors B EX® EBHRZEET RAYZET HWEZREET RRBEEAE
Executive Directors BITESR
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chairman & ®=EBE%EE (FEHF 4/4 N/A R iR il il il
Chief Executive Officer) T A%)
(Notes 1 8 2) Wist1R2)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen HRERE 4/4 N/A REA 11 N/A REA il
(Deputy Chairman) (Note 3) (EIZfE) (W1a23)
Ms. WONG Hau Yeung (Note 4) 5B R T (Hat4) 4/4 N/A R B N/A RER il il
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy BEFUT 4/4 N/A B N/AFREBR N/A RER il
Dr. CHAN So Kuen BREBEEL 4/4 N/A R N/A R N/A R iR 11
Non-executive Directors EHTESR
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny RERERE 4/4 N/A B N/AFREBR N/A RER 11
(Deputy Chairman) (Note 5) &7 (z25)
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP FRPRTFEL 4/4 N/A R F N/A B N/A RiEF 11
Mr. LI Hon Hung, BBS, MH, JP FEIEBBS MHAT# L 4/4 N/A R B N/ATER N/A R EH il
Independent Non-executive BiE#TESR
Directors
Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP B BGBSA 41 4/4 2/2 11 2/2 11
Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin BXHRE 4/4 2/2 11 2/2 il
Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP BYERTELT 4/4 2/2 11 2/2 0N
Mr. HUI King Wai FHRELE 4/4 2/2 11 2/2 11
Notes: MIEE
1. Mr. WONG Wai Sheung was re-elected as the Chairman of the 1. EEESLEBE2021FE8H19HEEETEAXR
Company with effect from 19 August 2021. NEIEFo
2. Mr. WONG Wai Sheung ceased to be a member of the Remuneration 2, BH2021E7B 1B SE@EAERBEELR
Committee of the Company with effect from 1 July 2021. NEFNEEEME
3. Mr. TSE Moon Chuen was re-elected as the Deputy Chairman of the 3. HM AR EH2021FE8H19H B FE A XK
Company with effect from 19 August 2021. GIEES
4, Ms. WONG Hau Yeung ceased to be a member of the Remuneration 4, BHo021E7B18E FIHEL T REIEEA
Committee of the Company with effect from 1 July 2021. NEFMEEERKE -
5 Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny was re-elected as the Deputy Chairman 5. EARSAE B2021F8B19HEEFEA K
of the Company with effect from 19 August 2021. ANTEIERE o

During the Year under review, the Chairman held a meeting with REIBEEERN > TEELZEEMEZTHET
the Independent Non-executive Directors without presence of EABI7TIEHITEFTRIT T — A EH o
other directors.
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i

(iii)

(iv)

XEAWMS

Board Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board’s role is to provide entrepreneurial leadership of
the Company within a framework of prudent and effective
controls which enables risks to be assessed and managed.
The Board controls the business but delegates day-to-day
responsibilities to the executive management. The Board
sets the Company’s strategic aims, values and standards
and ensures that its obligations to its shareholders and
others stakeholders are understood and fulfilled by the
members of the Board.

The Company has a formal schedule of matters specifically
reserved to the Board for its decision. The Board gives clear
directions to management as to the matters that must be
approved by the Board before decisions are made on behalf
of the Company.

All the directors of the Company have full and timely access
to all relevant information and have access to the advice
and services of the company secretary of the Company,
with a view to ensuring that all proper Board procedures,
applicable rules and regulations are followed. All the
directors including the independent non-executive directors
may seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense in carrying out
their functions, upon making request to the Board.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance
to indemnify the directors for their liabilities arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
regularly.

Independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Company confirms that the Board has received from
each of the independent non-executive directors, namely,
Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin, Ms.
WONG Yu Pok, Marina and Mr. HUI King Wai, an annual
confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules, and, having taken into account
the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules in
assessing the independence of independent non-executive
directors, the Company considers that all independent non-
executive directors are independent.

(iii)

(iv)

EFTRERENNER

EFEZHEAULERFEH FEEE
AABZBE REBEEMZEERE
NPE R EERR EFERERXE
MEEXFHEFIRENTEERE
B-BEFEHFIARTZREER B
BRRE BRESENEEELET
HERRREMFNEZEE

FABBEARIEEBREFTTRE
ZEH - EFEENMAEFEHESF
REREARBFIFHREZEE BEEE
EHBRIET

FABEREFHA 2EKERERT
ERMEERERARTDRAMEZE
BERR% BREREKEMBEREZ
EFREFURETHRABRRAIK
ROl-2RBEE (OEBUFNTESR)
RETHRBSR SR RAEFTRHENR
B-AEBEBRTITSRBUEXEER
BRRAXAEATERE-

KNBEAEZTHBEESERE U
RENERCEIZHMEE 2SI
& 1 EHRS R 2 (RFEEEE o

BIERTESZ2HIM

FAREIEFTEERERBIUIFA
TEF MESBARE BXKHREE
BB T RAFRESERE EHRRAY
EIABMRIFHAMEBY S M 2 FER
B BE2ERELHRAUEIAMEAE
M EBILIFRTERBIUIMENEAR
B RAEEBILFATERRBILY
e
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i

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

XEAWMS

Independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors (Continued)

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin has served as an independent
non-executive director of the Company for more than
9 years. He will retire and offer for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the
Company to be held on 18 August 2022. Pursuant to CG
Code Provision B.2.3 (Code Provision A.4.3. of the former
CG Code) of the CG Code, his re-election as Director
should be subject to a separate resolution to be approved
by shareholders. The Company’s circular to be despatched
to shareholders on or about 18 July 2022 will contain the
biographical information of Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin and
the reasons why the Board believes he is still independent
and should be re-elected.

During the Year under review and up to the date of
this Annual Report, the Board had at all times met the
requirements under (i) Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive directors with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise; and (i) Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive
directors representing at least one-third of the board.

Directors’ Relationship

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, there is no
financial, business, family or other material or connected
relationship between members of the Board.

Re-election of Directors

All directors are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the Company’s AGM in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws.

Directors’ Ongoing Development

All directors have the opportunities to receive professional
training programmes arranged by the Company during
their terms of appointment covering the topics of corporate
governance, updates on the Listing Rules and other
regulatory developments at the expense of the Company.
Directors are encouraged by the Company to participate in
the relevant continuous professional training to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company has also
arranged for consultants to provide training programmes.
The average training hours that the directors received were
not less than 10 hours.

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

BIERITESZ2HILK (B)

EXRBEEEIRRABRBILIFNITES
EHBAIOF o WA N A AT 1R2022F8H
1BHBTHNEEREBFEAD ((REE
FEAg)) LRAERBEEEBEET RIE
TEEATRIZFRMEXEB.2.31% (5]
TEEATR ZTFRMEXEA 431K »
HEREEEAESRUBILRARELR
NHERBEZBEE AR B R F20225F
7TH18HAZHAIBRFEFRENBER
BEINEABFEENEREEERESS
HEEXREENMABILISHILEES
EHNRE -

REBEFEARBERFRA EF
FRAERRESETE0) LEHRAE3.10
HFEMEZEERV=ZRBUFANTEEZ
RE BRIV - AERBEEEXE
HRAAHESSHNERMBEEER, &
(il L ARBUEIA0ARR  BILIFATTESR
BERLGEFEREBAREL=ZD2Z2—2
MRRE °

EEMR%

BRAFRINEEIN  EFFHEZBA
FREEMEEMH EZB KBRHEM
ERNEAER R

EERES
ERBFARBEAAT Z AT 1
FABRRBEAG LRESEKREE
o

EFNRERE

PREESEERRANAEREERSEAAT
REZBNFXREI ABBREEXE
A IR ERREMEEERERS
o EEERAEATAE ARF
BES2RARFESEEEIINUERKR
BHMREZ BRI BEEPIRBFE
B EFRMEIEI - EF T IR
A FAOfE /N o
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TEERRS

(vii) Directors’ Ongoing Development (Continued)
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company
arranged a seminar covering the topic of anti-bribery and
corruption. The current directors’ training records during the
Year under review are summarised as follows:

Directors Bx

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung =EBLEE
(Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) (F/EFITHAEH)

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen HmeitE
(Deputy Chairman) (GESE),

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung FIEkELZ+

Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy BEFLT

Dr. CHAN So Kuen REEEL

Non-executive Directors JEMITES

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny BERRSTE
(Deputy Chairman) (GESE),

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP SRR R T4

Mr. LI Hon Hung, BBS, MH, JP

Independent Non-executive Directors JHIIIEHITESE

Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP B EIGBS A 4+
Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin ERRAE

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP EUBER Tt

Mr. HUI King Wai ST RS

The Chairman leads the Board in the determination of strategies
and in the achievement of objectives and ensures that all directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at the Board meetings and
receive adequate, complete and reliable information. The Chief
Executive Officer is delegated with the authority and responsible
for running the Company’s business, implementing the
Company’s strategies in achieving business objectives. Both the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer positions are currently
held by Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, an executive director. The Board
believes that the current governance structure, with a combined
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and a vast majority of non-
executive directors, provides an effective balance of power and
authority for the management of the Company in the best interest
of the Company at the present stage.

FEEBBS > MHA F#h L

(vi) EFEHFAER (&)
BE20226F3A31HILFE > A AT LR
TR RBRERBERES
WEE - REBEEER REERNE
Azt T

Training on regulatory development,
directors profession or duties,

or other relevant topics
FREESR ESFXAMEN

H {th 46 B =% RE AV 15 2

v

NSNS

AN

AN NN

ITRABEFERERBRENER  WHE
REREEFHESTTER LWEREBEN
B WREESEN TBRAENES-
THRARERED BERAREHEE
THRRBZREE LBRBEFER  THERT
BBEMENRBRFOHATESTERE
TEHE-BEFEMRE LIRFHHERREM
E (- AREEFERTEBE UIRABD
HRIFRITES) EUBMERRBEEREE
BBRE BEaR AR REIREN m-e
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i

XEAWMS

All the non-executive directors are appointed for a term of two
years, and the appointments are renewable from time to time,
subject to retirement by rotation at AGM.

The Board has established three Board committees, including
the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee, for overseeing the respective aspects of the Group’s
affairs.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense
in appropriate circumstances.

0

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 1 February 1999
with written terms of reference accessible on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Audit
Committee is chaired by Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin, with
three other members namely Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen,
Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina and Mr. HUI King Wai. All
Committee members are independent non-executive
directors, exceeding the requirement of a high majority of
independent non-executive directors by the Listing Rules.
In compliance with the requirements of Rules 3.10(2) and
3.21 of the Listing Rules, majority of the members possess
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

During the Year under review, the Audit Committee held two
meetings to discuss and review, inter alia, the interim and
annual financial statements, the submission and publication
of the interim and annual reports, the disclosures in the
Corporate Governance Report, the corporate governance
and compliance status of the CG Code and the internal
audit plan and functions of the Group.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for
FY2022 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee is of the view that the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for FY2022 comply with
the applicable accounting standards and the Listing Rules,
and that sufficient disclosures have been made.
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(i)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Company believes that a clear appreciation of the
separate roles of the management, the external auditor
and Audit Committee members is crucial to the effective
functioning of an audit committee. The Board is responsible
for selecting appropriate accounting policies and the
preparation of the financial statements. The external auditor
is responsible for auditing and attesting to the Group’s
financial statements and evaluating the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, to the extent
that they consider necessary to support their audit report.
The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the entire
process.

The major functions and duties of the Audit Committee
mainly include:

° reviewing the Group’s interim and annual financial
statements and the interim and annual reports before
submission to the Board for approval;

° reviewing the financial reporting obligations and
considering any matters raised by the Group’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting
function, compliance officer or external auditor;

° reviewing and monitoring the independence
and objectivity of the external auditor, and the
effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standards;

o approving the remuneration and terms of engagement
of external auditor and making recommendations
on the appointment, re-appointment or removal of
external auditor;

° reviewing the internal audit programme and ensuring
that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and effective, and considering any major findings of
risk management and internal control matters;

(i)
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Audit Committee (Continued)

o reviewing the financial control, risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and ensuring
that the management has discharged its duty to
have effective risk management and internal control
systems, in particular, the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions; and

° reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and the Company’s
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

As at 31 March 2022, the arrangements for employees and
stakeholders of the Group to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, risk management,
internal control or other matters and the whistleblowing
procedures are in place.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 1 April
2012 with written terms of reference accessible on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. MAK Wing Sum,
Alvin, being an independent non-executive director, with five
other members namely Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. TSE
Moon Chuen, Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, Ms. WONG Yu
Pok, Marina and Mr. HUI King Wai. The Chairman of this
Committee and four out of six members are independent
non-executive directors, a high majority of independent non-
executive directors which meets the requirement of the CG
Code.

During the Year under review, the Nomination Committee
held one meeting to assess the independence of the
independent non-executive directors, review and make
recommendation to the Board on the structure, size and
composition of the Board, and to review the retirement and
rotation plan of the directors.

(i)

(i1)
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Nomination Committee (Continued)

The principal role and responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee mainly include giving full consideration to
succession planning for directors and senior management,
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive directors. In order to achieve a
balanced and appropriately qualified Board, the Nomination
Committee is also responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition, including the skills, knowledge,
diversity and experience, of the Board, and advising
the Board as to any changes that may be required. The
Nomination Committee has the authority given by the
Board to seek external professional advice in the selection
and recommendation for directorship, if necessary, to fulfil
the requirements for professional knowledge and industry
experience of any proposed candidates.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Policy sets out the criteria, procedures and
process to be adopted when considering candidates to be
appointed or re-appointed as directors of the Company.
The Nomination Committee would select the candidates
based on the objective criteria, including but not limited to
qualifications, skills, experience, independence, age, culture,
ethnicity and gender. The Nomination Committee would also
take into account whether the candidate can demonstrate
his/her commitment, competence and integrity required
for the position, and in case of independent non-executive
directors, the independence requirements under the Listing
Rules and their time commitment to the Company. The
Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of the
Nomination Policy and would review and recommend any
revisions to the Board for consideration and approval, when
necessary, to enhance effectiveness.

(i)
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Nomination Committee (Continued)

Board Diversity

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board, and sees diversity at Board
level as an essential element in maintaining a competitive
advantage. As such, the Company continued to adopt
the board diversity policy during the Year under review. In
achieving a truly diverse Board, candidates with different
talents, skills, knowledge, length of service and professional
experience, cultural and educational background, age,
gender and other qualities may be selected as members of
the Board. Selection of candidates is based on a range of
diversity criteria. The ultimate decision is based on merit and
contribution which would be brought by the candidates to
the Board if he/she is selected as a director. The Nomination
Committee is of the view that the current composition of
the Board has achieved the objectives set out in the above
board diversity policy.

The Board is composed of members from a diverse
background. The Company excels in gender equality
as female directors account for one-third of the whole
Board. The chief financial officer, an executive director
and two independent non-executive directors are qualified
accountants. There is also an independent non-executive
director who is a qualified solicitor. The Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee was the Secretary for Economic
Development and Labour of the Government of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region. Six directors have experience
sitting on the boards of other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. The directors have extensive experience
in the retail jewellery business, finance and accounting,
taxation, business strategy, securities and investment,
communications and marketing, branding, and exposure
or experience in various countries including Mainland,
etc. They are members, or committee or panel members
of various industry bodies, public service or government
bodies or charities. The Directors bring a wealth of diverse
experience to the Board, which is conducive to the business
development and growth of the Company over the years.

(i)
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 7
April 2005 with written terms of reference posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. IP Shu Kwan,
Stephen, being an independent non-executive director,
with three other members namely, Mr. MAK Wing Sum,
Alvin, Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina and Mr. HUI King
Wai. The Chairman of this Committee and all members
are independent non-executive directors, meeting the
requirement of a high majority of independent non-executive
directors by the Listing Rules.

The principal role and responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee mainly include making recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policy, structure and
packages for all remuneration of directors and senior
management; reviewing and approving performance-
based remuneration and the terms of service contracts
of the directors and senior management, reviewing and
approving the compensation payable in connection with
any loss or termination of office or appointment of directors
and senior management, overseeing any major changes
in employee benefits structures throughout the Company
or the Group; and reviewing the on-going appropriateness
of the remuneration policy. No director or member of the
senior management determined his/her own remuneration
package.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during
the Year under review to review the remuneration policies
and recommend for the Board approval of the annual salary
increments for the calendar year 2022, the discretionary
year-end bonus for 2021 and the performance bonus for all
non-sales employees working at the headquarters.

Details of directors’ emoluments, five highest paid
individuals and the remuneration of the members of
the senior management by band during the Year under
review are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 264 to 267 of this Annual Report.

(iii)
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Analysis of remuneration in respect of audit and
non-audit services provided by the external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, was as follows:

B RASNBS 1% BABM 7R S Bl ok B & SR S 5P i
MBS RIFESTRB MDA

2022

HK$'000

FHEIT

Audit services EFRTS 5,945
Non-audit services JEE RS

— Review service —BRR 560

— Tax related service — MR EIERARRTS 714

Total iy 7,219

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to financial
reporting are stated in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

The directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of each financial period, which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at the end of the
financial period and of the results and cash flows of the Group for
the year. In the Company’s interim and annual reports which are
issued within the time limits stipulated by the Listing Rules, the
Board presents a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment
of the Company’s performance, position and prospects.
The published consolidated financial statements adopt, and
consistently apply, suitable accounting policies complying with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

The Board ensures that the Company maintains sound and
effective risk management and internal control to safeguard the
shareholders’ interests and the Company’s assets. The Audit
Committee, with the assistance of the Internal Audit Department,
regularly reviews the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems. The Head of the
Internal Audit Department directly reports to the Audit Committee.

The Board establishes monitoring and procedural guidelines for
considering how it will apply the financial reporting and internal
control principles and for maintaining an appropriate relationship
with the Company’s external auditor. The Audit Committee
established by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules has
clear terms of reference.
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In order to achieve enhancement of corporate governance of the
Company, the Board has undertaken and delegated to the Audit
Committee to constantly review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance, the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and the directors, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report. During the Year under review,
the Audit Committee performed the duties relating to corporate
governance matters as aforementioned.

During the Year under review, the company secretary undertook
over 15 hours of professional training to update the skills and
knowledge, which exceeded the requirements of the Listing
Rules.

The Board is responsible for the Company’s systems of risk
management and internal control and for reviewing their
effectiveness annually through the Audit Committee.

The risk management and internal control systems are aligned
with the Internal Control Integrated Framework of the Committee
of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission
(“COS0”), which comprises 17 principles under 5 components,
including Control Environment, Risk Assessment, Control Activities,
Information and Communication and Monitoring Activities.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee has received the risk management and
internal control evaluation reports submitted by the Internal Audit
Department. The reports summarised information relating to the
work carried out in the following areas:

° the results of selective testing of internal control procedures,
assets, and financial records of the Company;

° a general evaluation of risk management and internal control
systems installed by the Company; and

° an outline of major control issues, if any, noticed during the
Year under review.

RERMBARB ZEEER EFFEK
BIRTERZEERNEHBRAERATZ
TEEARRRER EFREREEEZ
BIRFEERER FARBEBTERER
EERENEZBRRER BRAREER
EFZBRTTHRGRFMURELRET
EEEATHZBERREAEEEARSE M
ZHRBE-REBEFERN BREZEEEETL
MEMEEEREEZBE

REIEFEER > ARWEHEZEZEBI15E N
RV R IEF > UEMERAERAH > B8 L
MARBIRE o

EXgEEA T AREERANBEES
B IEBREZEZE ST FIRHMM

JB B B I8 e P9 P B 1 16 2 45 & Committee
of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway
Commission (FCOSO 1) WA EBEE AR S HEZR >
Zir B ERBE S 21 7E/R A4 AL > 518
D EIEIEFIIRIE « BbRET (G EHIEE A
BEBBREGEEES -

REEERASEZEESEEEMIEHE
REEREFERNVRER MEAIERLD
BEEANKERBNBRFLESEMIFEHR
BIIREE ©

BRZEZECCRENSBHHEXZARE

52 T PO BB S R AT 3RS o B2 4R 45 i 5
THEZ 8 -

s HARIARNEERERF BERMBET
B MRHEEER

o  AREFFHRMNERREEKRNEREEER E
Zz—MRsTE 5 &

e JHEIBFENIRIZFREAREEE
BIRE (IA) °

Annual Report 2021/22 5§



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRS

The Audit Committee has reviewed the reports and discussed
with the management.

The Audit Committee recognised that an evaluation of the risk
management system and an examination of the internal control
system on an annual basis have been adequately executed by
the Internal Audit Department during the Year under review.
The Audit Committee acknowledged that the management has
been progressively implementing adequate and effective risk
management and internal control systems in order to ensure the
effective functioning of the Company’s operations.

Risk Management and Sustainability Committee

The Group’s Risk Management Committee was set up in 2016,
comprising the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, four
executive directors (including Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, Ms. WONG
Hau Yeung, Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy and Dr. CHAN So Kuen)
and a senior executive of the Group. The Risk Management
Committee changed its name to Risk Management and
Sustainability Committee as approved by the Board of Directors
in March 2022, with an aim of establishing and improving the
risk management system, ensuring timely identification and
management of risks for the achievement of corporate objectives,
and to advise and assist the Board of Directors on the strategies
and implementation of the Group’s sustainability, and the
assessment of the associated risks.

The duties of the Risk Management and Sustainability
Committee include, but are not limited to: (i) review the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code regarding risk
management requirements; (i) coordinate staff training,
including risk management principles, assessment methodology
and its implementation; (iii) assign personnel to support
departments to perform risk assessment for newly established
business or projects, if necessary; (iv) formulate sustainable
development strategy and approach; (v) monitor and evaluate
the implementation of sustainable development policies and
measures; and (vi) identify sustainability risks. This committee
reports directly to the Audit Committee.

During the Year under review, the Risk Management and
Sustainability Committee held two meetings to discuss and
review, inter alia, reports on effectiveness of risk management
processes, reports on departmental risk assessment and the
implementation progress of the Group’s corporate strategies and
KPI targets.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL [ EIRRAIPESIE @)
(Continued)
Risk Management Framework RAEEIREE

The Company’s risk management framework provides a ZAATMEGEIRRE LR EERFRMH
systematic and disciplined approach to risk management ZR#ERIBEHIENSE MBEBREEARHRT

process, which is embedded in the system of internal controls as AW ZFELIZHIE > 2 A% E 8 R iR

mwE

an integral part of corporate governance. The risk management E—I8 o 1518 B R S IR 2248 mi BE M 3 A1) ~
framework helps sustain business success, creates value for FE¥H R EIBARER AN T E AR IFTESH

stakeholders and supports the Board in discharging its corporate  Ih> AP ERIEBEAR X IBEEEERIT

governance responsibilities by proactively identifying, addressing X BASE HFPARESEREEARRE
and managing key risks within the Group. Departments & AZBBEEAEAKREESFEIAEARS
Management as risk owners take direct risk management PIiFEEELE TER-
responsibilities and reports to the Risk Management and

Sustainability Committee.

A summary of the risk management framework of the Company is ~ Z&<A T A A E RSB E NI TFIFR
shown as below:

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
RIRERRE

Policy
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Report
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Audit Committee
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Committee
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: Departments & Management BERER
IR EERE

Objective Setting Risk Risk Risk Effectiveness Monitoring
and Categorisation mp Identification mp Analysis mp Treatment mp and Reporting
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Risk Management Framework (Continued)
Board of Directors

Setting the basic tone and culture of risk management
across the Group;

Approving the criteria of risk assessment;

Approving major decisions affecting the Group’s risk profile
Or exposure;

Approving changes to key elements of the risk management
procedures;

Approving the Group’s risk management and sustainability
policy; and

Monitoring significant risks

Audit Committee

Reviewing the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group; and

Ensuring that effective systems of risk management and
internal control are established by the management
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Risk Management Framework (Continued)
Risk Management and Sustainability Committee

Recommending the Group’s risk tolerant level and criteria;
Approving standard risk management templates including
forms and tools;

Approving risk registers;

Reviewing the Group’s compliance with the CG Code
regarding risk management requirements;

Appointing risk owners;

Appointing staff to support departments to conduct risk
assessments on new ventures and activities;

Conducting review on procedures and policies of risk
management;

Reporting, if any, significant risks to Audit Committee in a
timely manner;

Coordinating staff training;

Proposing and recommending on the Group’s sustainability
objectives, strategies, policies and framework;

Overseeing and monitoring the Group’s ESG reporting and
the implementation of the Group’s ESG-related policies and
initiatives;

Reviewing and evaluating the adequacy and effectiveness of
the measures relating to the Group’s ESG;

Overseeing the setting and achievement of targets under
the Group’s sustainability strategies; and

Identifying and evaluating the Group’s ESG related risks and
opportunities
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Risk Management Framework (Continued)

Departments & Management

Departments and management are responsible for the
identification and assessment of risks within their areas of
responsibility:

Objective Setting and Categorisation
° Strategies;

° Operation;
° Financial reporting; and
° Compliance

Risk Identification
° The Group provides examples of risk factors; and

° Risks should be relevant to strategies and objectives

Risk Analysis
° Considering existing control measures;

° Using a consistent scoring criteria; and
° Assessing the residual risks

Risk Treatment
° Choosing a risk treatment strategy;

° Establishing a treatment plan; and
° Appointing risk owners

Effectiveness of Monitoring and Reporting
° Monitoring and reporting risks periodically; and

° Setting up an emergent risk reporting mechanism
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Review Processes of the Effectiveness of the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems

The management and the Risk Management and Sustainability
Committee review the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems. The Internal Audit Department also
conducts independent audit of the effectiveness of these systems.
Separate reports are submitted to the Audit Committee for its
review and appraisal. A final report will be submitted to the Board
for accessing the effectiveness of the systems.

If any material internal control defects are found, the Audit
Committee will discuss them with the management. The Internal
Audit Department will follow up and the management will
classified the defects as “severe” risk, where appropriate, in the
risk management system for further formulating measures to
resolve or prevent such defects.

Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company acknowledges its responsibilities under Part XIVA
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong and the Listing Rules and the overriding
principle that inside information should be announced promptly.
The Company has established a policy for the disclosure of
inside information (the “Inside Information Disclosure Policy”) with
close regard to the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information
issued by the Securities and Futures Commissions. The Inside
Information Disclosure Policy includes, among other things: (a)
only designated persons are authorised to communicate the
Company’s corporate matters with investors, analysts, the media
or other members of the investment community; (b) directors or
senior management shall report to the Chief Executive Officer any
potential/suspected inside information as soon as practicable for
him to consult (if appropriate) the Board thereafter for determining
the nature of developments and, if required, making appropriate
disclosure; (c) disclosure of inside information must be made
in a manner that can provide for equal, timely and effective
access by the public to the disclosed inside information; and (d)
inside information must be kept strictly confidential until a public
announcement is made and shall be disseminated in accordance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules before it is released via
other means.
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The internal audit is an independent function undertaken by
the Internal Audit Department reporting administratively to the
Company’s management and reporting functionally to the Audit
Committee. The Internal Audit Department is authorised to obtain
all information necessary to accomplish internal audit work.

The Board has conducted an annual review to ensure the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions.

A risk-based audit approach has been adopted by the Internal
Audit Department. Internal control reviews are conducted regularly
to closely monitor business or operation changes. Regular audit
tests are carried out to ensure key controls are in operation.
The Internal Audit Department also conducts other projects and
investigating work as required.

Any significant internal audit findings are discussed with respective
department heads to have actions agreed and subsequently
followed up, in order to ensure that satisfactory control is
maintained.

In each semi-annual work plan, manning levels of the Internal
Audit Department are reported to the Audit Committee. A
summary of the internal audit activities and audit results are
also submitted to the Audit Committee twice a year. The Audit
Committee will review and assure the adequacy of resources of
the internal audit team.

Procedures for shareholders to convene a Special
General Meeting (“SGM”)

Pursuant to Section 74 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall have the right to submit a written requisition requiring a
SGM to be called by the Board. The written requisition (i) must
state the purposes of the SGM; and (i) must be signed by
the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of the
Company, and may consist of several documents in like form,
each signed by one or more requisitionists.
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Procedures for shareholders to convene a Special
General Meeting (“SGM”) (Continued)

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM, the
requisitionists or any of them representing more than one-half
of the total voting rights of all of them may convene a SGM, but
any SGM so convened shall not be held after expiration of three
months from the said date of deposit of the requisition. A SGM
convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in any SGM to be convened
by the Board.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a
general meeting

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, either any number of shareholders representing not
less than one-twentieth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company,
or not less than 100 shareholders, can request the Company in
writing to () give to shareholders entitled to receive notice of the
next AGM notice of any resolution which may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (i) circulate
to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting
sent to them any statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the requisitionists must be deposited
at the registered office of the Company (contact details are
disclosed in the section headed “Corporate Information”) with
a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant
expenses and not less than six weeks before the meeting in case
of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or not less than one
week before the meeting in case of any other requisition.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose for
election as a director have been posted on the website of the
Company.
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The Board maintains an ongoing dialogue with shareholders
and in particular, endeavours to provide transparency and uses
the AGM and investors’ conferences, to communicate with
shareholders and invites their participation in certain marketing
events. Besides, the Company’s official website serves as a
handy communication channel for the shareholders. Press
releases and announcements about the Company’s business
affairs are published from time to time.

The Company informs shareholders of the procedure for voting by
poll in the circular to shareholders, and ensures compliance with
the requirements regarding voting by poll contained in the Listing
Rules and the Company’s Bye-laws.

Specific enquiries by shareholders requiring the Board’s attention
can be sent in writing to the company secretary at the Company’s
business address in Hong Kong at 25/F, Metropole Square, 2 On
Yiu Street, Shatin, New Territories. Shareholders may also make
proposals at the general meetings.

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year under review.

The Dividend Policy sets out the principles and guidelines that the
Company intends to apply in relation to the declaration, payment
or distribution of its net profits as dividends to the shareholders
of the Company. The Company intends to distribute 40% to 45%
of its annual net profits as dividends to shareholders, having
taken into consideration certain criteria set out in the Dividend
Palicy, including the Group’s financial results; cash flow situation;
business conditions and strategies; future operations and
earnings; capital requirements and expenditure plans; interests of
shareholders; any restrictions on payment of dividends; and any
other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
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The directors submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for FY2022.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the sourcing, designing,
wholesaling, trademark licensing and retailing of a variety of gold
and platinum jewellery and gem-set jewellery products.

An analysis of the performance of the Group for the year by
operating segment is set out in Note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

A fair review of the business of the Group and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year under review,
the material factors underlying its results and financial position and
material attributable factors of the development and likely future
developments of the Group’s business, are provided throughout
this Annual Report, particularly in the following separate sections:

(@) Review of the Group’s business — “Chairman’s Statement”
on pages 3 to 7 and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 8 to 29;

(b)  The principal risks and uncertainties the Group is facing —
“Report of the Directors” on pages 145 to 148;

(c)  Future development in the Group’s business — “Chairman’s
Statement” on pages 3 to 7 and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 8 to 29;

(d) Analysis using financial key performance indicators —
“Financial Highlights” on page 1 and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 8 to 29;

(e) Information about the Group’s ESG policies and
performance — “ESG Report” on pages 41 to 117 and
“Report of the Directors” on pages 144 to 172;
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f Discussion on the Group’s compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations — “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 118 to 143 and “Report of the Directors” on pages
144 to 172; and

(9 An account of the Group’s key relationships with its
employees, customers and suppliers and others — “ESG
Report” on pages 41 to 117 and “Report of the Directors”
on pages 144 to 172.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Board is ultimately responsible for ensuring that the risk
management practices of the Group are sufficient to mitigate
the risks present in our businesses and operations as efficiently
and effectively as possible. The Board delegates some of such
responsibilities to various departments.

The Group’s financial position, operations, business and
prospects may be affected by the following identified risks and
uncertainties. The Group adopts risk management policies,
measures and monitoring systems to pre-empt and contain
exposures associated with the identified risks.

Economic Risks

Global Economic Condition

Possible economic slowdown or prolonged downturn of the
global or Mainland’s economy may affect the retail market
sentiment as a whole.

Tourist Destinations
The increase in popularity of other tourist destinations weakens
the spending of Mainland tourists in Hong Kong and Macau.

Operational Risks

Rent

As a retailer, rent accounts for a considerable portion of the
Group’s expenses. Rental increment on retail shops directly
affects the profit of the Group. The Group strikes a good balance
between shop expansion and profit increment. The Group strives
to lower rent via negotiations with landlords, closes branches with
low profitability and searches for suitable locations in other areas
for new shops.

) FmSERHEERERARANESTE
N — F1SEI43EM P EEBRE
FE1AAEIT2EMNEEZHRE ), &

 MUIAEEHEEEE - FA -HERK
HEMmATHEZREHER — F41E117EW
MR -HEREERS I RFE144FE
172BEMNIEEG RS o

FERERAFABER
EXgRREEEFRTEENAREEER
FERMMARMBBEF R EEPIEE -
EXERBOBERRTSEILF -

AEENT BRI EE - EHFRAIGRLU
TE#HAREBKRIEERARZE ~EEK
FREREREBR B REERG HERIE
PR E ER AV AR FE E 8 Al B KR

4375 R B

PRI TR

W2 Bk P A TS AR SIS R Rk Bl sE R 28
BREZEHRERAS

iz =Lk
Hth kit B B9t BE > BISS M iR EF N & B
FORFIBHE SR

S m

HE

ERTER HehrsEBRAXLEES D
TERSENES LA ERERECEE R
Ho FIFEIE SRR A B MAF 2 BEIE—
BRI ¥ - AEERBEBEETE R
18 ~ BARA & A BE D BUE BV IS & 2 p E A ith ER
SREBUBRRKRMNIE -

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]



R+EPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEUHE

Operational Risks (Continued)

Prices of Raw Materials

Fluctuations in prices of raw materials may adversely affect our
profitability. We strive to improve our purchasing procedures in
order to maintain reasonable raw materials costs. On the other
hand, the Group has a gold hedging ratio of around 20% which
mitigates the impact on the profit due to the drop in gold prices.

Fierce Competition

There is strong competition from national and local competitors
in jewellery and watch industry. The Group has formulated a set
of branding strategies to enhance brand image and awareness.
Details of such strategies are set out in “Branding” on pages 30 to
40.

Inventory Turnover

Owing to the impact of volatile macro-economic environment in
Asia especially Mainland, our inventory turnover bears the risk of
slowing down.

Management of Licensed Shops

Licensed shops play an important role in raising the brand
awareness of the Group. Maintaining a good brand image and
reputation is a win-win situation for both the Group and the
licensed shops. Therefore, the Group uses best endeavours to
ensure their operations are consistent with the Group’s image and
operation standard. We maintain a close working relationship with
our licensed shops as well as providing one-stop support to them,
such as shop-opening training, the provision of operation manuals
and regular operation review meetings.

We also closely monitor the licensed shops through a stringent
control system which consists of 6 areas of control, including
Operational Control, Product Quality Control, Distribution Network
Control, Pricing Control, Brand Image Control, and Service Quality
Control. Details of such system are set out on page 147.

EEERE (8

BHHER

FEM BRI RBHHFANBRFENHIET
TR -HMABNAERBER  BRERM

B AR E S EKF - Z—HHE AEEN

BEEIPLERRL20% LUV EETRER

FpEeE-

BIZIRF
EEAEMHKERERTENRIFHTR
ZoBFEF T OB -AEEE T —ERN M
FREREE LU Tt T R R 1 E - BRIRER
FHIBER2EFEI0E408 K MR HEEREE

FERAH
RETTNLHRAMEZREERSEE I
PNEFEEEE RIS AR -

mEIEEE

mAREH R IR A EE R RS EDRE—(E
EEMNAG - MKE—ERFRBRERKREE
HAEE RmEER—EEm/E ALt &
ERURASNEFRREIENEENTEEE
B R REERED - KL RS EERRER
BERGE R ERE— A E  fIMEE
Bl EEES I MEREE RS G &

RPEXRB—EABRRNEERRBYSEER
WRIE > R AR OB T EEERN  BEEE
EE EHnnEEE TEERKEE - BRE
B mREREENRFEESEE -FHAR
HIBRI2EE147H

Annual Report 2021/22 5k



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEUHE

Control System on Licensed Shops

mhE 5 R E R R

o Whistle-blowing System and Reward Scheme

BIRAM I IZ BN 5T E

e Sales and Inventory System Access
HERTFERAEA

e DVR System

e 100% diamond products in Mainland market
offered by Lukfook
P T 35 38 5 2 fn 100 % H 7S AE T 3

e Authorised suppliers on other products

HME 5 E H g (R

e Prior approval on retail locations
AT ERAE

e Standardised retail price for products through
centralised labeling process
BB —RERE U —EnTEE

e Authorised renovation contractors
IEEREBEEHE

e Prior approval on all advertising & promotion
FEREMmAEESNER

e Mystery Shopper System on service
quality control

HEES I UEERBRE

Operational Compliance Audit Team
EEAHREEDT/AE

Annual Contract Renewal Basis
FHEBHMES

Cash On Delivery Basis
ISEIENETR

Certificates issued by NGTC/GTC for

quality assurance

Blig, BB EEREERE

Sightholder of De Beers — steady quality rough
diamond supply

De Beerst L& - R EEE AN 2 HFE

Centralised control on discount policy

oh R HT IR

Standardised operational materials
(e.g. uniform, packaging) in all shops

FREISSEGE—EEYE BIL : FIR 245

Centralised Staff Training

m—8 T3
* Regional training centres & 13 & /Il 410
e E-Learning programmes #3_E £35 5872
e On-site training & #h1= 3
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Regulatory Risks

Changes in Laws and Regulations

The changes in laws and regulations such as the Competition
Ordinance (Cap. 619 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the
adjustment to the policy of Individual Visit Scheme could
adversely affect our businesses. Our management keeps a close
eye on the change in such laws and regulations and adjusts the
Group’s operating strategies accordingly, in order to maintain the
Group’s market competitiveness.

Intellectual Property

We recognise the importance of building a good reputation and
protecting our intellectual property. Any unauthorised use of our
trademarks in counterfeit products could harm our brand image
and reputation, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

In view of this, the Group’s legal department has set up teams
in both Hong Kong and Nansha in Mainland to handle tasks in
respect of intellectual properties (such as trademarks, design
patents and fighting against infringement).

The Group has successfully registered the “Lukfook” trademark
in the regions where “Lukfook” has a presence (such as Hong
Kong, Macau, Mainland, Singapore, Malaysia, Cambodia, the
Philippines, Laos, the United States, Canada and Australia). Our
legal department has reached a consensus with our product
development department, marketing department and design
department that any new product, collection, display prop and
fitting out design should be forwarded as soon as practicable
to the legal department as appropriate for applying for design
patent/copyright in Mainland, Hong Kong and Macau so as to
ensure the maximum protection for the Group.

The Group’s legal department and business department
constantly monitor any infringement by free-riding brands across
Mainland, and cooperate with the law enforcement agencies
to fight against infringement. The Group always encourages
colleagues to monitor any infringement during their business
trips and report the infringement to the legal department, and
endeavours to fight against infringement of the Group’s intellectual
properties.

Financial Risks
Details of financial risks are set out in Note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements, and the non-compliance with such
requirements could lead to the risk of termination of operating
licences. The Group has been allocating systems and human
resources to ensure ongoing compliance with rules and
regulations, and to maintain cordial working relationships
with regulators effectively through effective communications.
During the Year under review, as far as the Group is aware, it
has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operations of the Group.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group places great importance on environmental protection
and endeavours to promote sustainable development. It
incorporates relevant environmental strategies in every aspect of
its business, and implements initiatives in areas such as energy
saving and waste management in manufacturing, administration
and daily retail operations to mitigate the impact on the
environment.

Relationships with Key Stakeholders

The Group recognises that employees, customers and suppliers
are keys to its sustainable development. The Group is committed
to establishing a close and caring relationship with its employees,
providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its business partners. The Group provides a fair
and safe work environment, promotes staff diversity, provides
competitive remuneration and benefits and career development
opportunities based on their merits and performance. The
Group also puts ongoing efforts to provide adequate training
and resources to the employees so that they can keep abreast
of the latest development of the market and the industry, and
at the same time, improve their performance and facilitate their
self-fulfillment in their positions.
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Relationships with Key Stakeholders (Continued)

The Group understands the importance of maintaining good
relationship with customers and providing products which
satisfy their needs and requirements. The Group enhances the
relationship by continuous interaction with customers to gain
insight into the changing market demand for different products
so that the Group can respond proactively. The Group has also
established procedures in handling customers’ feedbacks and
complaints to ensure that customers’ opinions are dealt with in
prompt and timely manner.

The Group maintains stable business relationships with its
suppliers and service providers. In order to have a better
and close monitoring of suppliers’ performance, the Group’s
management regularly conducts performance reviews targeting
the Group’s major suppliers and service providers, and
communicates with them for rectification and improvements.

The results of the Group for the Year under review are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 184.

The directors have declared an interim dividend of HK$0.55
per ordinary share. A total of HK$322,909,000 was paid on 24
December 2021.

The directors proposed final dividend of HK$0.55 per ordinary
share for the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: final and special
dividends HK$0.50 each per ordinary share, totaling HK$1.00
per ordinary share) to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 24 August 2022. Taking
into account of the interim dividend paid, the total dividend for
the year would amount to HK$1.1 per ordinary share, totalling
HK$645,818,000 for the year (2021: HK$1.50 per ordinary
share, totalling HK$880,662,000). Subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the forthcoming AGM of the Company to be held
on 18 August 2022, the final dividend will be paid on or around 7
September 2022.
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Donations made by the Group during the Year under review
amounted to approximately HK$5,300,000.

Details of the shares issued by the Company during the Year
under review are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into
any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares were entered into by the Company during the Year under
review or subsisted at the end of the year.

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2022,
calculated under the Companies Act of Bermuda, amounted to
HK$755,641,000 (2021: HK$1,063,754,000).

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the last
five financial years ended 31 March are as follows:
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2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET FET FET FHET
Results E 3
Revenue WA 11,737,803 8,861,335 11,233,771 15,859,990 14,578,409
Profit attributable to equity KA ERFAA
holders of the Company FEALE A 1,392,364 1,017,335 866,315 1,492,747 1,369,393
Assets and liabilities BERAR
Total assets 4R 16,220,269 14,512,039 13,925,048 14,423,672 12,214,878
Total liabilities \ed 4,141,741 3,187,815 3,512,937 3,860,656 2,135,141
Shareholders’ funds KBHRES 12,078,996 11,324,665 10,371,705 10,517,270 10,034,769

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year
under review.
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The directors who held office during the year ended 31 March
2022 and up to the date of this Annual Report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung

Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy

Dr. CHAN So Kuen

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny (Deputy Chairmarn)
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP

Mr. LI Hon Hung, BBS, MH, JP

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP

Mr. HUI King Wai

Pursuant to Bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws, one-third of the directors
shall retire from office by rotation at each AGM of the Company.
Accordingly, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny,
Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin and Mr. HUI King Wai, shall retire from
office by rotation at the AGM. All the retiring directors, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM. Details of
the proposed directors to be re-elected are set out in the circular
sent together with this Annual Report.
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Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, aged 71, is the founder, Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director of the Group. He
is also a member of the Nomination Committee. Mr. WONG
has over 55 years of experience in the jewellery industry and is
responsible for the overall strategic planning and management
of the Group. He is the Honorary Life President of The Kowloon
Gold Silver and Jewel Merchant’s Staff Association, the Honorary
Permanent Chairman of Hong Kong Jade Association, the
Chairman of Supervisory Committee of The Kowloon Pearls,
Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament Merchants
Association, the Honorary Chairman of Macau Goldsmith’s
Guild, the Honorary Chairman of Guangdong Golden Jewelry
and Jade Industry’s Association, the Consultant of the Gems &
Jewelry Trade Association of China, the Honorary Chairman of
Hong Kong Small and Medium Enterprises Association, Founding
Member and Vice President of Shenzhen Gold & Silver Jewelry
Creative Industry Association, Honorary Advisor of H.K. Gold &
Silver Ornament Workers & Merchants General Union and the
Consultant of the 7th Term General Committee of Hong Kong
Brand Development Council. Mr. WONG is the father of Mr.
WONG Ho Lung, Danny, Deputy Chairman and Non-executive
Director of the Group and Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy, Executive
Director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Group.

HITESE
RERAE 71 RAEEAIMAEE
THRERATES - NITIRRLEZEGZ
B EAENKEXEREBBRASFLER &
BEAEENERECERIKREE -KREA/N
FEEMENEGXKEXREGER BALESHRBE
GXELBER NEROEHRZIREHMHE
BEEER EMSERAEAGLEER E
RETHRHKEIRERIELEER PHE
KEILEMTEHTESIERE FET
NEGEBEGERESTR RYITEIRKE
AREXMGREEERAER - BEER
B IHESLEERREBRBERRSE
TtEEEFERB BAEAEAEEREREFR
FATESEEREERFTERRITESH
BITBMREEMF LT Z R -

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]



R+EPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEUHE

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, aged 71, is the co-founder of the Group.
Presently, he is the Deputy Chairman, Executive Director and
Deputy General Manager of the Group. He is also a member
of the Nomination Committee. Mr. TSE has over 49 years of
experience in jewellery retailing business and is responsible
for the merchandising and production functions of the Group.
Mr. TSE is an Executive Committee Member of the Diamond
Federation of Hong Kong, China Limited, a Vice President of
The Chinese Gold & Silver Exchange Society, the Vice Chairman
of The Kowloon Pearls, Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver
Ornament Merchants Association, the President of The Tsuen
Wan Festival Lightings Organizing Committee, a Member of the
Kwun Tong District Junior Police Call (JPC) Honorary President
Council, a Vice Chairman of Macau Goldsmith’s Guild, a Director
of Hong Kong, Guangzhou, Foshan and Zhaoging Friendship
Association, an Honorary President of Tsuen Wan Committee
for Celebration of Reunification of Hong Kong with China, an
Honorary President of Tsuen Wan Preparatory Community of
National Day, a Vice President of Zhaoging Overseas Friendship
Association, an Executive Committee Member and Vice Director
of Finance of Hong Kong Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Association, a
Vice Chairperson of Tsuen Wan District Fire Safety Ambassador
Honorary Presidents’ Association, an Honorary President of H.K.
Gold & Silver Ornament Workers & Merchants General Union,
the 20th Term Honorary Consultant of Hong Kong Precious
Metals Traders Association Limited, an Honorary Consultant of
Tsuen Wan Kwai Ching District Women’s Association, the 9th
Term Honorary President of Tsuen Wan District Elderly Welfare
Association, an Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong Gemstone
Manufacturers’ Association and an Honorary President of
Tsuen Wan New Town 60th Anniversary Celebration Organising
Committee. Moreover, Mr. TSE was awarded the “Chief
Executive’s Commendation for Community Service” by the
Government of the Hong Kong SAR.
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Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. WONG Hau Yeung, aged 49, is the Executive Director
and Chief Operating Officer of the Group. She is also a Director
of China Gold Silver Group Company Limited (“CGS”), an
associate of the Company which conducts jewellery retail and
franchise business under the brand name of “3D-GOLD” in
Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland. Ms. WONG initially joined
the Group in 1994 and served various departments for about 8
years until 2002. She rejoined the Group in 2004. Currently, she
is responsible for the Group’s operations and development of
the retail, wholesale and licensing businesses. In addition, she
is also responsible for the administration and human resources
functions of the Group. She holds a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from University of Southern Queensland. Ms.
WONG is a Member and Vice-Chairperson of The Jewellery
Industry Training Advisory Committee, a Member of Watch &
Jewellery Industry Consultative Networks and a Member of
Greater Bay Area Hong Kong Women Entrepreneurs Association.
She has over 28 years of experience in the jewellery industry.

Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy, aged 41, is the Executive Director
and Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Group. She joined
the Group in 2006 and assists in formulating and implementing
the Group’s overall business strategies. She is also responsible
for the Group’s corporate branding, marketing, corporate
communications, product design and development functions
and e-commerce operations. Ms. WONG holds a Bachelor’'s
Degree in Commerce from the University of Toronto, Canada and
a Master’'s Degree of Science in China Business Studies from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is also a Certified
Public Accountant of the United States of America. Prior to joining
the Group, Ms. WONG worked for an international professional
accounting firm in Hong Kong, where she performed auditing and
accounting assignments for a variety of business organisations
including listed companies. She received the GIA Diamond
Graduate title in 2007 and was awarded the “Young Entrepreneur
of the Year” at JNA Awards 2020. She is also a Member of Young
Diamantaire Group of Diamond Federation of Hong Kong and a
Member of Greater Bay Area Hong Kong Women Entrepreneurs
Association. Ms. WONG is the daughter of Mr. WONG Wai
Sheung, the Group’s Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director and the younger sister of Mr. WONG Ho Lung,
Danny, Deputy Chairman and Non-executive Director of the
Group.
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Executive Directors (Continued)

Dr. CHAN So Kuen, aged 62, the Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary of the Group, joined the Group in 2012 and
was appointed as an Executive Director of the Group in 2015.
Dr. CHAN graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and Oklahoma City University (the United States of America),
with a Doctorate Degree and a Master's Degree in Business
Administration, respectively. She is also a Fellow Member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. During the period
from the year 2003 to 2010, Dr. CHAN had been the Director of
Finance & Company Secretary of Bossini International Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 0592) for around 3 years and the Deputy
Chairman of the Board of Directors & Chief Executive Officer for
about 4 years consecutively. Dr. CHAN has substantial financial
and management experiences in vast varieties of businesses
for more than 36 years. Dr. CHAN is currently responsible for
the overall financial management, corporate finance, information
technology, investor relations and company secretarial matters of
the Group.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, aged 45, is the Deputy Chairman
and Non-executive Director of the Group. He is also the Chief
Executive Officer and Director of CGS. He joined the Group
as an Operations Manager in 2002. Mr. Danny WONG is an
active participant in the community and is currently a Permanent
President of Sze Wui and Kwong Ning Clansman’s Association
(Hong Kong) Limited, the President of Sihui Dasha Town
Clansman’s Association (Hong Kong), an Executive Committee
Member of Diamond Federation of Hong Kong, China Limited.,
a Supervisory Committee Member of Hong Kong Jewellers’ &
Goldsmiths’ Association, an Executive Committee Member of
The Kowloon Pearls, Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver
Ornament Merchants Association and a Member of Lions Club of
Sham Shui Po Hong Kong. In December 2008, Mr. Danny WONG
received the GIA Diamond Graduate title, and awarded the “CEO
of the Year” by Capital CEO in 2017. He is the son of Mr. WONG
Wai Sheung, the Group’s Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director and the elder brother of Ms. WONG Lan Sze,
Nancy, Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer of
the Group.
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Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP, aged 75, joined the Group in 1997. He
was re-designated from an Independent Non-executive Director
to a Non-executive Director of the Company on 1 October 2011,
owing to changes in factors concerning his independence. Mr.
HUI has 51 years of experience in the securities and investment
industry. Mr. HUI had for years been serving as a Council Member
and Vice Chairman of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, a member of the Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission, a Director of the Hong Kong
Securities Clearing Company Limited, a member of the Listing
Committee of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, an
appointed member of the Securities and Futures Appeal Tribunal,
a member of Standing Committee on Company Law Reform, a
member of the Committee on Real Estate Investment Trusts of
the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission and also an
appointed member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants Investigation Panel A. Mr. HUl was appointed by
the Government of the HKSAR as a Justice of the Peace in 2004
and was also a member of the Zhuhai Municipal Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference from
2006 to 2017. He had also been a member of Government
“Appointees” (independent member) of Appeal Panel of the Travel
Industry Council of Hong Kong. Mr. HUI is an Independent Non-
executive Director of HK Acquisition Corporation and also serves
as Independent Non-executive Director of Lifestyle International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1212), Gemdale Properties and
Investment Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 0535), China
South City Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1668), SINOPEC
Engineering (Group) Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 2386), Agile Group
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3383) and FSE Lifestyle Services
Limited (Stock Code: 0331) whose shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He was an Independent Non-
executive Director of Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 0711), Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
(Stock Code: 0388) and Zhuhai Holdings Investment Group
Limited (a listed public company in Hong Kong until its listing was
withdrawn on 18 June 2021) until his resignation effective from 1
February 2015, his retirement effective from 29 April 2015 and his
resignation effective from 6 September 2021 respectively.
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Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. LI Hon Hung, BBS, MH, JP, aged 65, was appointed as a
Non-executive Director of the Company in 2011. Mr. LI holds a
Diploma of Architectural Design from Humber College of Toronto,
Canada in 1981 and a Bachelor’s of Architecture from New
York Institute of Technology in 1984. Mr. LI was awarded the
Certificate of Registration Authorized Person (List of Architects)
in 1989 and the Certificate of Registered Inspector in 2012,
by the Government of the HKSAR respectively. In professional
qualification aspect, Mr. LI is a Fellow of Hong Kong Institute of
Architects and a Member of Architect Registration Board. He also
got the PRC Class 1 Registered Architect Qualification. Mr. LI has
extensive architecture experience and is a Director of Li & Siu
Associates Ltd. and A. Li & Associates Architects Ltd. In addition,
he is a Director of Keen Mind Kindergarten. Mr. LI was appointed
as a District Council Member of Sham Shui Po District from 2000
to 2007 and awarded the Chief Executive’s Commendation For
Community Service and Medal of Honor. He was also appointed
by the Government of the HKSAR a Justice of the Peace in
2008 and was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) in 2017.
Mr. LI has been appointed to various positions over the years
including: Chairman of Sham Shui Po District Office (East Liaison
Team), Chairman of Sham Shui Po District Fire Safety Committee,
Chairman of Sham Shui Po Council for the Promotion of Cultural
and Recreation Service Limited, Chairman of Sham Shui Po
District Fight Crime Committee, Honorary President of Sham Shui
Po District Junior Police Call, Honorary President of Kowloon
City District Junior Police Call, Honorary President of Yau Tsim
District Junior Police Call, Chairman of Yau Yat Chuen Residents
Association Ltd., President of Police Dragon Boat Club and
Chartered President of Lions Club of Sham Shui Po Hong Kong.
Mr. Li is a member of The Sixth Election Committee of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region. He is also an Independent
Non-executive Director of Sheung Yue Group Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1633) which is listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP, aged 70, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
2011 and is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee
of the Company. Mr. IP graduated from The University of Hong
Kong with a degree of Social Sciences in 1973. He subsequently
pursued further studies in Oxford University and Harvard
Business School. Mr. IP joined the Hong Kong Government in
November 1973 as an Administrative Officer and had served
various government departments. Mr. IP was promoted to
the rank of Director of Bureau in April 1997. He worked in the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(the “Government of the HKSAR”) as a Principal Official from
July 1997 to June 2007. Senior positions held by Mr. IP in the
past included Commissioner of Insurance, Commissioner for
Labour, Secretary for Economic Services and Secretary for
Financial Services. Mr. IP took up the position of Secretary
for Economic Development and Labour on 1 July 2002. His
portfolio in respect of economic development covered air and sea
transport, logistics development, tourism, energy, postal services,
meteorological services, competition and consumer protection.
He was also responsible for labour policies including matters
relating to employment services, labour relations and employees’
rights. In his capacity as Secretary for Economic Development
and Labour, Mr. IP was a member of the Hong Kong Airport
Authority Board, the Mandatory Provident Fund Authority
Board, the Hong Kong International Theme Parks Company
Board as well as the Chairman of the Logistics Development
Council, Port Development Board, Maritime Industry Council and
Aviation Development Advisory Committee. Mr. IP retired from
the Government of the HKSAR in July 2007. Mr. IP received the
Gold Bauhinia Star award from the Government of the HKSAR in
2001, and is an unofficial Justice of the Peace. Mr. IP is also an
Independent Non-executive Director of China Resources Cement
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1313), Lai Sun Development
Company Limited (Stock Code: 0488), Kingboard Laminates
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1888), Nameson Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1982), Million Cities Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
2892) and C-MER Eye Care Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
3309) which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. He was formerly an Independent Non-
executive Director of ISP Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Synergis Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 2340).
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Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. MAK Wing Sum, Alvin, aged 69, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in 2012
and is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and Audit
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Mr. MAK graduated from the University of Toronto with
a Bachelor of Commerce degree in 1976. He is a member of the
Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. After working in Citibank
for over 26 years, Mr. MAK retired on 1 May 2012. He last served
as the Head of Markets and Banking for Citibbank Hong Kong,
being the country business manager for corporate and investment
banking business. Mr. MAK had also held various other senior
positions in Citibank including Head of Global Banking responsible
for managing all the client relationship managers. Prior to that, he
also managed the bank’s Hong Kong corporate finance business,
regional asset management business and was the Chief Financial
Officer of North Asia. Before joining Citibank in 1985, Mr. MAK
was an audit group manager at Coopers & Lybrand (now known
as PricewaterhouseCoopers). He worked for Coopers & Lybrand
for 8 years, 5 of which was in Toronto, Canada.

Mr. MAK is an Independent Non-executive Director of Lai Fung
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1125), Hong Kong Technology
Venture Company Limited (Stock Code: 1137), Goldpac Group
Limited (Stock Code: 3315) and Crystal International Group
Limited (Stock Code: 2232) which are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He was formerly
an Independent Non-executive Director of I.T Limited (Stock
Code: 0999). Mr. MAK was admitted as a member of Hong Kong
Housing Society in May 2015 and is currently a member of its
Supervisory Board, Human Resources Committee and Task Force
on Financing.
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Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. WONG Yu Pok, Marina, JP, aged 73, was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in 2013.
Ms. WONG is also a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Ms. WONG had been working with PricewaterhouseCoopers
for over 36 years specialising in the Mainland tax and business
advisory services. Since 1978, she was responsible for the
development of the firm’s business in the Mainland. Ms. WONG
joined Tricor Services Limited as a director from 2004 to 2006
after her retirement as a partner from PricewaterhouseCoopers
in 2004. She is also a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.

In addition, Ms. WONG is also an Independent Non-executive
Director of Hong Kong Ferry (Holdings) Company Limited (Stock
Code: 0050), Kerry Properties Limited (Stock Code: 0683), Kerry
Logistics Network Limited (Stock Code: 0636) and SJM Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 0880), which are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. HUI King Wai, aged 72, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in 2015 and is a member
of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is a solicitor
practising in Hong Kong. Mr. HUI is currently a consultant of
Holman Fenwick Willan. Mr. HUI was a Non-executive Director of
the Group during the period from 1999 to 2013.

BIIENITEE @
HUEKRTEMSLT 7355 R2013FEZEAR
NEBIUFHTES HELLTNALRREE
ZEER - RLEESAFNERET ZHE .
BUTHEBRIFKEZ NS TE#36
> HAMMBREEBARBTLEANE &
7T E1978F B T EHAAN M 2 £ 5558
[Bo&ELZ T B2004FREE B KIEGEED
EHMEE A —H%  1R2004FE FE2006FE H,
E&EF%%W%EBE NBIZEE - HNAS

FHAAERFT ARG MR TE RS
o

N BELETAREBMERXZMBRA
BlERETZEB & (EE) BRAR (RH

5% 1 0050) ~RERRARAT RMHANR !
0683) “EEYVRBMMARAE (RMH 5K :
0636) K RFIBFIZRARAE (BRID A :
0880) 2 BILIFMITES

HFRRESE 725 R2015FEEZEAEAT
BIUFEHTES TALLDBEZEZEE IR
HEEBRITMNEESSBZRE - KAS
B ERM-FLERABERBXEMITZE
o BF S £ Y1999 FE E201 3 HA S HE(E A~ &
B IERTES-

Annual Report 2021/22 5k



R+EPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEUHE

Senior Management

Mr. WONG Wai Tong, aged 61, is the Senior Business
Director of the Group. He initially joined the Group in 1998
and served various departments for over 10 years until 2013.
Mr. WONG rejoined the Group in 2014. He has over 45 years
of manufacturing and purchasing experience in jewellery
and gold industry. Mr. WONG is responsible for the Group’s
merchandising and polishing of rough diamonds and assembly
and production functions of diamond products. He is a Principal
Advisor of Honorary Consul for Republic of Fiji in Hong Kong
and a Director of Guangzhou Diamond Exchange. He holds the
titles of a Diamond Grader of National Gemstone Testing Center
and a Certified Diamond Grader of HRD Antwerp Institute of
Gemmology. Mr. WONG is the younger brother of Mr. WONG
Wai Sheung, the Group’s Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director.

Ms. WONG So Kuen, aged 60, is the Financial Controller
(Financial Accounting) of the Group. Ms. WONG joined the Group
in 1997. She is mainly responsible for financial accounting and
tax planning matters of the Group. Ms. WONG often travels to
Mainland in search of information on national tax policies and
privileges in order to develop relevant tax plans for the Group. She
has over 36 years of experience in financial and accounting for
commercial firms.

Ms. CHUNG Vai Ping, aged 52, is the Deputy Corporate Gift
Director of the Group. She has over 34 years of experience
in the jewellery industry. She joined the Group in 1990 and is
responsible for the corporate gift business of the Group. In
2001, Ms. CHUNG won the Best of Show Award for her design
“Flashing” in the 2nd Hong Kong Jewellery Design Competition.
She received the GIA Diamonds Graduate title in 2004. Ms.
CHUNG is a Fellow of the Professional Validation Centre of Hong
Kong Business Sector Limited, an Executive Committee Member
and Vice Director of General Affairs of Hong Kong Jewellers’ &
Goldsmiths’ Association and an Executive Committee Member
of The Kowloon Pearls, Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver
Ornament Merchants Association.
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Details of the retirement scheme operated by the Group are set
out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
AGM have service contracts with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which are not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The fees and other emoluments of directors are determined
by reference to industry norm and market conditions, with
discretionary bonus on performance awarded to executive
directors.

Save as disclosed in Note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, its subsidiaries or its holding company was a party,
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the Year under review.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the Year under review.
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As at 31 March 2022, save as disclosed below, none of the 2022FE3831H B TXIRBEEIN  KAT
directors and chief executives of the Company had interests and EEZBEHESTHA S ER KA T S EM[IE
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of %@ (& B 55 & S £4 EXVER) 2~ 8
the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning 19~ 1R (D R E#ZE T > EH(QIRIEE S K
of Part XV of the SFO which (a) were required, pursuant to section BRI E1& B 55 3521& 4R & B0 8 1 s (G P il 25

352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; i ; B (b)AE 3 B 32 Fir £ 75 78 Bl 65 10Ff S A9 42
or (b) were required, pursuant to the Model Code set out in ZESFRIBMETAAT REZFFZED AR !
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange, to be

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the 72 FI& {7 RIARIARID ZIF & :
Company:

Number of Ordinary Shares
LERSE
Beneficial Controlled Beneficiary Other Total % of
Name of Director Owner Spouse  Corporation of a Trust Interests Interests Shares
BEY EGRAA Ef  SEHEE  GEEEA Hitviéz Bl (ROEM
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung 7,829,561 454,000 7,352,504 237,854,722 - 253,490,787() 43.18%
BRELE note (a) note (o) note (c)
Wit (@) I3 (o) M (o)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen 453,344 - - - - 453344 (1) 0.08%
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy 643,000 - - 237,854,722 - 2384977122 () 40.62%
BEHYT note (c)
I (c)
Dr. CHAN So Kuen 180,000 5,000 - - - 185,000 (L) 0.03%
BRRBEL note (d
Wiz (o)
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny 360,000 - - 237,854,722 - 2382147220) 40.57%
BERLE note (c)
M 0
Mr. LI Hon Hung 837,437 70,000 - - 8956858 9,864,290 (L) 1.68%
TERELE note (¢) note (]
Bz it ()

(L) Long position ##&
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Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company: (Continued)

Note (a)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung’s spouse, Ms. LUK Chui Yee, held 454,000 shares of the
Company.

Note (b)

The directors of Dragon King Investment Ltd. were accustomed to act in accordance
with the directions of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, hence Dragon King Investment Ltd.
was deemed to be a controlled corporation of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, and in return
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung was deemed to be interested in 7,352,504 shares of the
Company held (whether directly or indirectly) by Dragon King Investment Ltd..

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung together with other parties acting in concert in respect of
the voting matters in Dragon King Investment Ltd., collectively controlled (whether
directly or indirectly) over 30% of the voting power of Dragon King Investment Ltd..

Note (c)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung and Ms. LUK Chui Yee are the founders and settlors of The
WS WONG Family Trust (the “Trust”). Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Ms. LUK Chui Yee,
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny and Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy are the discretionary
beneficiaries under the Trust. The Trust was interested in 237,854,722 shares in the
Company, comprising () the 1,511,050 shares in the Company held by the Trust
and (i) the 236,343,672 shares in the Company attributable to Luk Fook (Control)
Limited. The Trust indirectly controls over one-third of the voting power of Luk Fook
(Control) Limited (being approximately 46.29%) and is therefore deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Luk Fook (Control) Limited in the Company.

The members of the Trust, together with other parties who act in concert with Mr.
WONG Wai Sheung in respect of the voting matters in Luk Fook (Control) Limited,
collectively controlled (whether directly or indirectly) over half of the voting power of
Luk Fook (Control) Limited.

Note (d)
Dr. CHAN So Kuen'’s spouse, Mr. LO Kwing Chi, held 5,000 shares of the Company.
Note (e)

Mr. LI Hon Hung’s spouse, Ms. Irene LI, held 70,000 shares of the Company.

Note (f)

Mr. LI Hon Hung, as the administrator of the estate of the late Mr. LEE Shu Kuan,
held () 6,370,229 shares of the Company (which beneficially held by the late Mr.
LEE Shu Kuan); and (i) 33.3% of the issued share capital of Wah Hang Kimon
Investments Limited and 51% of the issued share capital of Wah Hang Kimon
Holdings Limited, which each in turn held 630,624 shares and 1,956,000 shares of
the Company respectively.
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So far as known to the directors and chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 March 2022, save as disclosed below, no
person, other than a director or chief executive of the Company,
had an interest or short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which are required to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of

1R20223831H R T XIMBEE I IBER
RAEEMRESTHRASME  MEEMIES
AABFRUARSTHRABZALTRERTR
MRAEERD S EEREE S RBERFRD
EXVEBSE2 R BN MR RO A AT IKEZ
REmIKA -

the SFO.

Number of Total
Name of Shareholder Shares Capacity Interests % of Shares
RRER, 2B i ®E 7 iR R ES L
Ms. LUK Chui Yee 454,000 (1) Beneficial Owner 252,466,787 (L) 43.00%
BEERZL BB
15,182,065 (L) Spouse
note (a) [
fiz* (a)
236,830,722 (1) Beneficiary of a Trust
note (b) FRER@mA
BE (o)
Ms. CHEUNG Irene 236,056,722 (L) Spouse 236,056,722 (1) 40.21%
BB T L note (c) [
Wizt ()
Luk Fook (Control) Limited 234,924,672 (L) Beneficial Owner 234,924,672 (1) 40.01%
TR (2R) BRAR ERHEBA
LF Holding Services Limited 235,696,722 (L) Interest of controlled 235,696,722 (L) 40.15%
note (d) corporation
B EE (o) RERERz B
BOS Trustee Limited as Trustee 235,696,722 (L) Trustee 235,696,722 (L) 40.15%
note () ZEEA
Mit5E o)
Silchester International Investors LLP 82,162,600 (L) Investment Manager 82,162,600 (L) 13.99%
RELE
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. 41,261,000 (L) Investment Manager 41,261,000 (L) 7.02%
RELE
Silchester International Investors 35,241,600 (L) Investment Manager 35,241,600 (L) 6.00%

International Value Equity Trust

() Long position #7&

RELE
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Note (a)

By virtue of SFO, Ms. LUK Chui Yee was deemed to be interested in the shares of
the Company held by her spouse, Mr. WONG Wai Sheung.

Note (b)

Ms. LUK Chui Yee and Mr. WONG Wai Sheung are the founders and settlors of
the Trust. Ms. LUK Chui Yee, Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny
and Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy are the discretionary beneficiaries under the Trust.
The Trust was interested in 236,830,722 shares in the Company, comprising (i) the
1,611,050 shares in the Company held by the Trust and (i) the 235,319,672 shares
in the Company attributable to Luk Fook (Control) Limited. The Trust indirectly
controls over one-third of the voting power of Luk Fook (Control) Limited (being
approximately 46.29%) and is therefore deemed to be interested in the shares held
by Luk Fook (Control) Limited in the Company.

Note (c)

By virtue of SFO, Ms. CHEUNG Irene was deemed to be interested in the shares of
the Company held by her spouse, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny.

Note (d)

LF Holding Services Limited held 100% of the issued share capital of LF Enterprises
Limited and 46.29% of the issued share capital of Luk Fook (Control) Limited,
which held 1,511,050 shares and 234,185,672 shares of the Company respectively.
Hence, LF Holding Services Limited was deemed to be interested in 235,696,722
shares in the Company.

Note (e)

BOS Trustee Limited owned 100% of the issued share capital of LF Holding Services
Limited and was deemed to be interested in 235,696,722 shares in the Company in
the capacity of the trustee of the Trust.

The related party transactions entered into by the Group during
the Year under review as disclosed in Note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements do not constitute connected transactions
under the Listing Rules.

At no time during the Year under review was the Company, its
subsidiaries, its associates, its fellow subsidiaries, or its parent
company or its other associated corporations a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors and the chief executive
of the Company (including their spouse and children under 18
years of age) to hold any interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its
specified undertakings or other associated corporations.
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As at 31 March 2022, the aggregate amount of financial
assistance to an affiliated company and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries by the Group exceeded 8% of the assets ratios as
defined in Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules. Details of advances
(including guarantee given by the Group) which were non-trading
in nature, made by the Group to the affiliated company and its
wholly-owned subsidiaries were as follows:

Relationship

Name of Company with the Group

YACIEST B EE 2 RfE

China Gold Silver Group Company
Limited (“CGS”)
FEEIRERBRAR (HREEIER])

Associated company

BEAT

ul]

3D-GOLD Jewellery (HK) Limited? Associated company
EEGHRE (FA) BRABP = Y/NS|

! The shareholder loan mentioned above was unsecured, interest-free, and not
to be repaid within one year after the end of the reporting period.
2 3D-GOLD Jewellery (HK) Limited is a subsidiary of CGS.

Pursuant to Rule 13.22 of the Listing Rules, the consolidated
balance sheet of CGS with financial assistance from the Group
and the Group’s attributable interest in CGS as at 31 December
2021 (the latest practical date) are presented as follows:

Non-current asset JERENEE
Current asset MENEE
Current liabilities mEhaE
Non-current liabilities JEREAaE
Net liabilities =K

FR2022%3831H  AEEBE—KRKEB LB &
H2EWB AR VB EMBREEE L
MR E14.07()EFTRENEE LT 28%
AEBBZHBRAARAEZEWBARRM
ZIEGHRR (BEARERREZER 2
BT

Extent of

Corporate

Corporate Guarantee

Advances Guarantee Utilised
EfFERAAT

PN ATER H#IRER
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
AT FET TAT
100,000 - -

- 1,075,000 782,000

! ERRRERTLERT  RERBARBEHRR
—EREE

2 EEGHHE (BB ARABDATHEZRZMEL
o

RiIE EHHRAF13.22(5 BB AEBPHE
BizhESRZ A EEBBEREAERR
2021F12B31H (REBEEATTHE) EET
ESIRz e T ¢

Consolidated Group’s
balance attributable
sheet interest
50%

HeEE &
aER FE(L L
50%

HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ExT FAET
227,786 113,893
1,569,558 784,779
(1,678,574) (839,287)
(251,252) (125,626)
(132,482) (66,241)

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]



R+EPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEUHE

During the Year under review and up to the date of this report, the
Company has in force indemnity provisions as permitted under
the relevant statutes for the benefit of the Directors (including
former Directors) of the Company or its associated companies.
The permitted indemnity provisions are provided for in the
Company’s Bye-laws and in the directors and officers liability
insurance maintained for the Group in respect of potential liability
and costs associated with legal proceedings that may be brought
against such Directors.

During the Year under review, the percentages of sales for the
year attributable to the Group’s major customers are as follows:

The largest customer RAER
Five largest customers combined hBRAERGE

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had interest in the major customers
noted above.

The percentages of purchases for the Year under review
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

The largest supplier BRAMRER
Five largest suppliers combined ARBRAMER S

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company'’s share capital) had interest in the major suppliers noted
above.

Particulars of bank loans, overdrafts and other borrowings of the
Group as at 31 March 2022 are set out in Notes 31 and 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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ANEHHA URRAEBERER RS RITH
ANEBENEERERN BRRELESH
BEMHEPEEE AR FHFAMELBRER
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ERZADLENT

2022 2021
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/

2022 2021
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FERT TET
34.5% 42.8%
74.9% 75.1%
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R+EPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEUHE

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws although there are no restrictions against
such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

The register of members of the Company for the AGM will be
closed from 15 August 2022 to 18 August 2022, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for attendance at the AGM to
be held on 18 August 2022, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Rooms 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 12 August 2022.

The register of members of the Company for the final dividend will
also be closed on 24 August 2022 and no transfer of shares will
be registered on that day. In order to qualify for the final dividend,
all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s share registrar and transfer office
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on 23 August 2022.

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group
is based on their merit, qualifications and competence. The
emoluments of the directors are reviewed and determined by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics. No director, or any of his or her associates involved in
deciding his or her own remuneration.

The Company had 0.71% interest in HKRH as at 31 March 2022.
HKRH is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

As at 31 March 2022, Ms. WONG Hau Yeung and Mr. WONG
Ho Lung, Danny who were directors of the Company, were
also directors of CGS, a subsidiary of HKRH. Mr. WONG Wai
Sheung, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, Ms. WONG Hau Yeung, Dr.
CHAN So Kuen and Mr. HUI Chiu Chung who were directors of
the Company held certain shares in HKRH, were also considered
as having an interest in HKRH under Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.
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IiEPCH?T(DF”THEEDHRECWTNRS
EEUHE

The retail and franchising operations for selling gold and jewellery
products carried on by HKRH and its subsidiaries (“HKRH Group”)
constitute competing businesses of the Group. As the Company
and HKRH were separate listed entities and run by separate and
independent management teams, the directors of the Company
believed that the Company was capable of carrying on its
business independently of the HKRH Group.

For safeguarding the interests of the Group, the independent
non-executive directors and the Audit Committee of the Company
would on a regular basis review the business and operational
results of the Group to ensure, inter alia, that the Group’s
development of retail, wholesale and licensing operations for
selling gold and jewellery products are and continue to be run on
the basis that they are independent of, and at arm’s length from,
the business of the HKRH Group.

Save as disclosed as aforesaid and in this report, none of the
directors of the Company and their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had an interest in any business which
competed or might compete with the business in which the
Group is engaged.

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to shareholders by reason of their holdings of the
Company’s securities.

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its directors as at the date of this Annual
Report, the public float of shares in the Company has remained
above the minimum percentage required by the Stock Exchange
throughout the year.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year
under review have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.
The Company has not changed its auditor in the past 3 years.

By order of the Board,
WONG Wai Sheung
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 June 2022
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(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

The consolidated financial statements of Luk Fook Holdings
(International) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”), which are set out on pages 184 to 315, comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2022;
° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.
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In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(‘HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as

follows:
° Existence and valuation of inventories
o Impairment of retail store assets

Key Audit Matter
RSBt HH

Existence and valuation of inventories

FEZFEMERRERE

Refer to Note 3.9, 5(a) and 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The carrying value of inventories of the Group is
HK$8,769 million as at 31 March 2022. The Group's
inventories mainly comprised gold, platinum and gem-set
jewellery products in the stores, manufacturing facilities
and distribution centres. Valuation of inventories is at
lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value
of inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses. Significant portion of value at
cost includes cost of precious metals and gems which
are subject to the risk of changes in market value. The
assessment of net realisable value of inventories is based
on estimates and judgements by management in respect
of, amongst others, the economic condition, forecast
sales performance, marketability of products and the
forecast market price of precious metals and gems used
to make the jewellery products. Furthermore, there is a
higher inherent risk of theft and pilferage given the high
intrinsic value and portable nature of individual inventory
item.

BER2RFE S M BIRARME3.9 5(@) 523 °

R2022F3H31H> EEEEFEENREESRS, 7698
BArte BEERGFEFECREEH £EXRMKRDHE
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BAEH N EEMRENEE

We understood and evaluated key internal controls
over inventory existence and valuation. We tested the
Group’s internal controls over existence of inventories
by:

i) attended a selection of daily physical cycle counts
in stores throughout the year to observe the daily
count procedures performed in retail outlets;

ii) inspected the respective daily physical cycle
counts reports for reconciliation of daily ending
inventories to the record in the inventory system;

i) inspected the in-house and external gemological
appraisal or laboratory reports on the authenticity
of gold, platinum and gem-set jewellery products.

Furthermore, we attended the annual physical inventory
counts at year end date and performed sample count
procedures in selected stores, manufacturing facilities
and distribution centres of the Group. We compared our
sample count results with the counts performed by the
Group and the records in the inventory system.

T R HEHFENFEERABENEEZ A
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Key Audit Matter
RSBt HIH

Existence and valuation of inventories (Continued)

FEZFEMERREE (&

We focused on auditing the existence and valuation
of inventories because the existence of inventories is
subject to high inherent risk given the high intrinsic value
and portable nature of individual inventory item while the
estimation of net realisable value of inventories is subject
to high degree of estimation uncertainty.

RABEREFENEEEAABENES RASE
RENFEEEREEESRRAERILEE  FE7F
AMRASRERAR MESHFEAIS2RFEREE
BEMLSTTHEEE -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BME M EEMRENFE

We also selected samples of gem-set jewellery,
comprising items of different nature, ageing profiles
and price for gemmological appraisal carried out by
independent gemmologists engaged by the Group
to verify their authenticity and assess their conditions
and valuations. We have evaluated the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of the gemmologists and
obtained an understanding of the scope of work and the
terms of engagement.

In evaluating management’s assessment of net
realisable value and provision of inventories, we:

(i) compared the net realisable values of gold and
platinum inventories calculated based on the
current market price of precious metals with their
purchase or production costs;

HATFERESHKEEH D FHEBRERETRN
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Key Audit Matter
RSBt HIH

Existence and valuation of inventories (Continued)

FEZFEMLERAEE (8

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BME M EEMRENFE

(i)

obtained an understanding of management’s
processes for the identification of slow moving
gem-set jewellery products and challenged
management the basis adopted for identifying
slow moving gem-set and the related inventory
provision with reference to, amongst others, the
market price movement of the materials, cost to
re-work of gem-set, the ageing profile and the
historical sales pattern and the subsequent selling
prices of these products.

compared the results of independent
gemmological appraisal reports of selected
samples above to the cost of gem-set jewellery
in evaluating the sufficiency of inventory provision
made by management.

Based on the procedures performed, we found that
the physical existence of inventories, as well as the
estimates and judgement made by management in
respect of the net realisable value of inventories, are
supportable by the available evidence.

(i)

(i)

THREEEAMBEKEEHEDLNEER
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Key Audit Matter
RSBt HIH

Impairment of retail store assets

FEIEHEERE

Refer to Notes 3.8, 5(b), 16 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 March 2022, net book value of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
amounted to HK$893 million and HK$602 million, of
which approximately HK$32 million and HK$322 million
were attributable to its retail stores respectively. The
carrying amount of the retail store assets is written down
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is in excess of its estimated recoverable amount.

Management considers each individual retail store as a
separately identifiable cash-generating unit and monitors
their financial performance for impairment indicators.
Management has identified loss making stores and stores
that are potentially subject to the negative impact of
COVID-19 epidemic for impairment assessment.

HR2RE W HERKRMEE3.8 50) 16K 18°
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BME M EEMRENFE

We evaluated and tested the impairment assessment
of the property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets of the retail stores by performing the following
procedures:

- obtained an understanding of the management’s
internal controls and assessment process of
impairment of retail store assets and assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement;

- enquired management on their basis of identifying
stores with impairment indicators and challenged
the appropriateness of these judgements;

- compared the projected sales performance,
gross profit margin and estimated running costs
applied in the value-in-use calculations to the
historical records and challenged management’s
key assumptions behind and evaluated the key
assumptions applied by comparing them to
historical trends and our understanding of latest
market information and conditions;

HMBEEATUTEFUTERAATEEFHZY
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Key Audit Matter
RSBt HIH

Impairment of retail store assets (Continued)

FELHEERE (B

An impairment loss of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets of HK$2 million and HK$8
million, respectively, was recognised in the consolidated
income statement in accordance with the impairment
assessment. The recoverable amount of the assets of the
retail stores is determined by value-in-use calculations
using discounted cash flow projections based on the
management’s forecast covering the remaining tenure
of the lease, with major assumptions such as change in
revenue, change in operating cost and change in gross
profit margin. The change of revenue is dependent on
management assumption in respect of the timing of
easing of travel restriction and quarantine measures and
the speed of recovery of tourist traffic and the customer
spending.

We focused on this area because the estimation of
recoverable amount of the property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets of the retail stores is subject to
high degree of estimation uncertainty.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BME M EEMRENFE

- understood, evaluated and challenged
management’s basis on projected change in
revenue, particularly the basis of the estimated
timing of easing of travel restrictions and
quarantine measures, the estimated speed of
recovery of tourist traffic and their spending;

- recomputed the impairment loss calculation and
checked the tenure of the leases of the retail
stores to the lease agreements; and

- evaluated the sensitivity analysis to consider the
impact on the impairment loss with reasonably
possible changes of key assumptions and
considered whether the judgements made in
determining the key assumptions are subject to
possible management bias.

Based on our work performed, we found the impairment
loss of retail store assets made by management to be
supported by available evidence.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group'’s
financial reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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SHER MR F E R ABRE S IR - SR SRR BT LAF
MEFERIIE MRGERPEMEEH
EREREXZEZSRAMBREERE
REZSEE M BRI EHEERTE
HIE RAEERMRIL AT AR EEE K ©

ERB(EAESHER)ETEFNBRED &K
PIER T EXFE RIFTEXREEE -
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o RIS B EREE B0 EE AR T B AR
BMBRRFEERHERRMAER
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MR ERTE BB EREHRE  1FR
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

s HEERARKEBECESHERNGE
MEFH G R o IRIRPT R ENAY 2B 51 /&R
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HEREPRABERELIRGEEMHR
RAMEERE - REEBARETE
AIRMEEERIFEREER - RMAN
iR N RIS B IEFTESE
SRS A RRFEN B R A AEE
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e T BEEERERIEHLIHNYFHE
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Miss Lai Pui Ling, Sandra.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 June 2022

RRBREZEGEBENEERD  HFIHEEN
EEERTPEEYBRENETIRAE
2 KB R R 2 51 5 18 - RFIE L BT IR
SERENEEEE RIFEREH SRR
MAREARFEE HEBEERENERLT W
REERPERMRETBEEESFHEEMDN
BHEBERBBEENLRF @ RFIRES
BERSTBEBEZEE

HEABUIZBMRENEABEGBAR
ML te

BERKESENERR
BED D

&7 2022F6428H

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]



For the year ended 31 March 2022
B E2022F3831HILEFE

2022 2021
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
iz FET TFET
Revenue A 6 11,737,803 8,861,335
Cost of sales tHE A 8 (8,503,976) (6,229,020)
Gross profit EF 3,233,827 2,632,315
Other income HugA 7 279,344 294,773
Other (losses)/gains, net Hith (598) Wz 358 9 (43,041) 30,572
Selling and distribution costs HERDIHER (1,626,333) (1,543,358)
Administrative expenses THER (188,778) (151,122)
Net impairment loss on financial assets &RIE 2 & M #HE R BE
and financial guarantee 518358 (11,795) (19,067)
Operating profit mEHEN 8 1,643,224 1,244,113
Finance income RPN 87,344 63,398
Finance costs M5 E B (23,097) (28,849)
Finance income, net MU A > FEE 10 64,247 34,549
Share of results of associates FE{L B QB HEE 19 (23,838) (23,225)
Profit before income tax PRERTS IR AT 1,683,633 1,255,437
Income tax expenses FriSiiB =< 11 (291,296) (236,303)
Profit for the year FREF 1,392,337 1,019,134
Profit attributable to: FEqLER -
Equity holders of the Company KABERFBEA 1,392,364 1,017,335
Non-controlling interests JERER S (27) 1,799
1,392,337 1,019,134
Earnings per share for profit FATAREZFEA
attributable to equity holders of EiEEfzEsRERN
the Company during the year
Basic and diluted BEXRKEE 12 HK$2.37875  HK$1.7387T
The above consolidated income statement should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes. it EEE R E AN M —HEE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2022
B E2022F3831HILEFE

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Items that may be or have been
subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss

Currency translation differences:
— Group
— Associates

Release of exchange reserve to
profit or loss upon disposal of
a subsidiary

Items that will not be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss
Revaluation of financial assets at
fair value through other
comprehensive income
Remeasurements of employee benefit
obligations

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Attributable to:
— Equity holders of the Company
— Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income
for the year

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

Note
Bo5E
FERiEf
HthZEEA :

HEnJ it EEF HHEE
BmzHA

FERERE
—KEH
— KR E] 19
RHEE—RKB AR
RIRERMEEEER
39

HERTEENTEE
HBmzHH
BRARESAREMER
WAZEREEBEED
21
EERMEENENTE
30
FREMEEWA
PR IA

FRAZEAEKA

THIALHEL:
 WNSIbESSESZ PN
— IR ERR

FAZEAEKA

&

2022
HK$’000
FERT
1,392,337

272,924
4,059

(808)

(4,191)

271,984

1,664,321

1,664,348
(27)

1,664,321

2021
HK$'000
T
1,019,134

509,860
8,095

(1,489)

(1,192)

9,359

524,633

1,643,767

1,540,068
3,699

1,543,767
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As at 31 March 2022
#2022F3831H

As at 31 March

"3831H
2022 2021
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 F#Ex FAT
ASSETS =13
Non-current assets ERHEE
Property, plant and equipment ME- -BEREE 16 892,590 906,816
Investment properties KB 17 1,007,606 909,084
Right-of-use assets FREEE 18 601,635 595,194
Interests in an associate =N ot 19 23,146 42,925
Financial assets at fair value through AR EFAHMEE
other comprehensive income WAZ EREE 21 365 1,173
Trading licence RZHR 1,080 1,080
Gold loan receivables ElWEEEE 32 41,798 50,855
Deposits, prepayments and e FANERER
other receivables HhFEUARTE 22 492,020 149,110
Deferred income tax assets IRIEFTISINE E 29 158,023 123,076
3,218,263 2,779,313
Current assets RENEE
Inventories 78 23 8,769,304 7,321,614
Right of return assets BEIEENERN 109,627 75,749
Trade receivables B EWNIRIE 24 187,711 277,338
Deposits, prepayments and BEFANMKRER
other receivables HAth AU IR IE 22 403,551 489,828
Amount due from an associate FEW — KBt A B]BRIE 19 - 769
Gold loan receivables ElEEEE 32 16,719 1,554
Income tax recoverable AR EIFT 1§ 23,057 19,525
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 25 3,492,037 3,546,349
13,002,006 11,732,726
Total assets HEE 16,220,269 14,512,039
EQUITY Rz
Capital and reserves attributable to Z8AF)#EZEFHE A
the equity holders of BB REE
the Company
Share capital [N 27(a) 58,710 58,710
Share premium & 17 5 1B 27(o) 2,494,040 2,494,040
Reserves i 28 9,526,246 8,771,915
12,078,996 11,324,665
Non-controlling interests IR (468) (441)
Total equity RER4REE 12,078,528 11,324,224

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in  EiissEaEEEBEREAFEM M T —HEIEE -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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As at 31 March 2022
#2022F3831H

As at 31 March

3H318
2022 2021
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
b= FAET FET
LIABILITIES af&
Non-current liabilities EFRHEE
Deferred income tax liabilities FIEFTIEM AR 29 74,692 157,898
Lease liabilities HEas 18 153,013 81,854
Employee benefit obligations BERMNEME 30 5,450 1,291
233,155 241,043
Current liabilities mENEfE
Trade payables, other payables B SR HAth
and accruals FE(TERIE K & 51708 26 1,156,446 1,022,238
Financial guarantee contract HHBIEREN 35 36,831 20,000
Contract liabilities HHEE 165,173 150,802
Derivative financial instrument TEERMIEA 20 280 -
Lease liabilities HEa®E 18 204,598 338,574
Sales refund liabilities HERMEE 201,727 155,906
Amount due to an associate FE—ZR Bt A B IRIE 19 411 -
Bank borrowings RITER 31 1,383,391 711,508
Gold loans =EEE 32 571,445 377,520
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFT IS aE 188,284 170,224
3,908,586 2,946,772
Total liabilities HaE 4,141,741 3,187,815
Total equity and liabilities EmkaRiEzE 16,220,269 14,512,039

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in titiirEEEBBREEEHRMF—HEE-
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the #(F&BFEMERILBEEGH2022F6528H
Board of Directors on 28 June 2022 and were signed on its behalf  JEIAEH FHEERREE .
by the following directors:

Wong Wai Sheung Chan So Kuen
HER BR&RIB
Director Director

EE g
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For the year ended 31 March 2022
B E2022F3831HILEFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RABERFEANEL

Share Share
capital premium Reserves
B RHEE HE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THRT THT

(Note 28)
(P95E28)
For the year ended #ZE2021F3831H0
31 March 2021 IHEE
As at 1 April 2020 2020545 1H 58,710 2,494,040 7,818,955
Comprehensive income 2EBA
Profit for the year FENEA - - 1,017,335
Other comprehensive income EfthZ2EUTA
Remeasurements of employee  {EE@H SER
benefit obligations (Note 30) Bt 2 (fi5E30) - - 9,359
Currency translation differences [E R Z=%8 - - 516,055
Release of exchange resenve  RHE—RWB A TR
to profit or loss upon disposal  fRBRER HEEE
of a subsidiary (Note 39) Bz (f1EE39) - - (1,489)
Revaluation of financial assets @A B AHMEME
at fair value through other WAZ CRIEE
comprehensive income (Note  {B{EZE) (Hiz21)
21) - - (1,192)
Total other comprehensive ~ H{th2E4EUTA
income - - 522,733
Total comprehensive income ZEEUTA - - 1,540,068
Transactions with owners ~ BEEFAZRS
Dividends paid (Note 13) BAKRE (HE13) - - (587,108)
Dividend paid to a B—%IEERKRS
non-controlling shareholder PIRNESS) = = =
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—XKWEBEAT
(Note 39) (FF5£39) - - -
- - (587,108)
At 31 March 2021 2021FE3831H 58,710 2,494,040 8,771,915

Non-

controlling

Subtotal interests
e IR R R
HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET
10,371,705 40,406
1,017,335 1,799
9,359 =
516,055 1,900
(1,489) =
(1,192) =
500,733 1,900
1,540,068 3,699
(587,108) -
= (10,092)

= (33,554)

(587,108)  (44,546)

11,324,665 (441)

Total
equity
-
HK$'000
TR

10,412,111

1,019,134

9,359
517,955

(1,489)

(1,192)

524,633
1,543,767

(587,108)
(10,092)

(33,554)
(631,654)
11,324,224

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be 7t 4 7 178 2 14 Bh 2% /78 B BE B B 5= — RS 8 o

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022

B E2022F3831HILEFE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
TATEETE ANEM
Non-
Share Share controlling Total
capital premium  Reserves Subtotal interests equity
Bd  RRREE fE NEt O JEEERG I HERARE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEx FEx FET F#wx FEx
(Note 28)
(pizE2s)
For the year ended #F20223831H
31 March 2022 LLEE
As at 1 April 2021 202154818 58,710 2,494,040 8,771,915 11,324,665 (441) 11,324,224
Comprehensive income 2EBA
Profit for the year FENEA - - 1,392,364 1,392,364 (27) 1,392,337
Other comprehensive income EfthZ2EIKA
Remeasurements of employee {2 @] E I
benefit obligations (Note 30) St 2 (f5E30) - = (4,191) (4,191) = (4,191)
Currency translation differences [E R Z=%8 - - 276,983 276,983 - 276,983
Revaluation of financial assets A AEFAHMEE
at fair value through other WAZERMEEZ
comprehensive income BEZE ([:21)
(Note 21) - - (808) (808) - (808)
Total other comprehensive ~ Efti2EAEUTA
income - - 271984 271,984 - 271,984
Total comprehensive income ZEAUTA - - 1,664,348 1,664,348 (27) 1,664,321
Transactions with owners BHFEEAZRB
Dividends paid (Note 13) BIRE (f:13) S - (910,017)  (910,017) - (910,017)
- - (910,017) (910,017) - (910,017)
At 31 March 2022 1202243831 H 58,710 2,494,040 9,526,246 12,078,996 (468) 12,078,528

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be 7t 4 7 178 2 14 Bh 2% /I8 B BE B B 5= — RS 8 o
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022
B E2022F3831HILEFE

Cash flows from operating activities &iE;ZE 2 IRE&FHE

Net cash generated from operations

Hong Kong profits tax (paid)/refund
Overseas income taxes paid

Net cash generated from
operating activities

EHEEEZHE PR
(B REIEBFIER
BBINTER

EELYELEZRE PR

Cash flows from investing activities I &;ZEZ2IREFHE

Purchases of property,
plant and equipment
Prepayment for purchase of
properties and equipment
Purchases of investment properties
Net of cash acquired, in relation to
step-acquisition of a subsidiary

Net of cash disposed of, in

relation to disposal of a subsidiary

Proceeds from other receivables
arose from prior disposal of a
subsidiary

Proceeds from amount due from
Hong Kong Resources Holding
Company Limited (‘HKRH”)

Interest received

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

BEME -BERRE

BEYMERREZ
FAfTERIA
BEREMZE
ERZS WE—RNE
ABFTWEZ
RE PR
BRALE—XMEBLR
PRHE Z RS 32
SRIHE —RWEAF]
EE 2 HiEIERIA
PRSI
REBWREBERER
BRAE (EBER
TR RIBZ PRSI
BWFHE
HEYE - BEKR
REFTS TR

BRI IR P ER

Cash flows from financing activities B & ;EEI ZIR&HE

Proceeds from bank borrowings

Repayment of bank borrowings

Proceeds from gold loans with
cash settlement

Repayment of gold loans with
cash settlement

Repayment of lease liabilities
(including interest)

Interest on bank borrowings and
gold loans

Dividends paid

Dividend paid to a non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary

Net cash used in financing activities

IRTTEMPRISTRIA
EERRTEM
DEREHEER
=HEBEMENIER
BELEREERER
=EEHEE

EEREaE (BEFNR)

s

&

RTERMREZBENE

1l

BENRE
A B A S
R IR AR R

RMEESFT AR P8R

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and IRERINELE W2

cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April

Exchange differences

Cash and cash equivalents
at 31 March

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read

(RD) /18 hnFER

RAB1EZRER

REFED

ERE=%E
M3A3IHZHRERREE

&4

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Note
b 5

33

16
22
17
38

39

33
33

33
33

33

25

LR EE

2022
HK$’000
FET
1,133,859

(7,939)
(386,982)

738,938

(79,483)

(376,000)
(102,729)

41,575
27,080
87,344

2,426
(399,787)

1,015,000
(343,117)

2,509,970
(2,323,628)
(395,582)

(12,760)
(910,017)

(460,134)

(120,983)

3,546,349
66,671

3,492,037

2021
HK$'000
TAT
2,623,908

30,722
(208,724)

2,445,906

(138,937)

(98,781)

(132)

(32,148)

63,398

750
(205,850)

526,000
(940,564)

1,083,437
(2,095,966)
(401,848)

(11,533)
(687,108)

(10,992)
(1,5638,574)

701,482

2,714,233
130,634

3,546,349

BB REEMEM T —HBIE -
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Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 3 September 1996 as
a company with limited liability under the Companies Act
of Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Victoria
Place, 5th Floor 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10,
Bermuda.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the sourcing, designing,
wholesaling, trademark licensing and retailing of a variety of
gold and platinum jewellery, and gem-set jewellery.

The Company’s shares were listed on the main board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 6 May 1997.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated, and
have been approved for issue by the board of directors on
28 June 2022.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap.622. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention except for
certain financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(including derivative financial instruments), financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income, gold loan
receivables and gold loans which are measured at fair value,
as explained in Note 4.

NEREE (ER) BRAB (TRAF)
R1996F9RHE B REREARIE
REVEFMRIIABRAS > HFEM
R BRIt A Victoria Place, 5th Floor
31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10,
Bermuda e

ARBREMB AR Wi IAEE) £
ENFRERHNSEMRAEEHZR
BRI BRERERTEES-

KABRMMNI1997ESH6REEAH S
RGFABERAR (TR EthEme

fREARBAEIN WEEEMHFRERT
T (M) 2% B 12022468
2BHEEEGHIETIE -

R EGREMBRERFFAEAZEE
FE RN T X BB ARBPEIN
EEBROCRFTEZ2RFEERER -

RABZEMBRERDRETEME
REER (BEBUBREER ) hES
NERBISE622F 2 1K B KR TE AR B © B
GNP EAPT R RE B TR ANEF AR
mZEMEE (BEMTEEMIAR) %
ARESFARMEERAZEREE
BUREEEERESEERRANES
B RS M BRI E L B AR
5o
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The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 5.

(@ Amendments to existing standards that are effective
for the first time for the financial year beginning 1 April
2021 and are relevant to the Group’s operations:

The Group has applied the following amendments to
existing standards for the first time for the financial
year beginning 1 April 2021:

Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, Benchmark Reform
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16 — Phase 2

The adoption of amended standards did not have
any significant impact on the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

RRABBYBRSENEH N2
EMBERRABECRETHRS G
B RARTREEEEERALAERS
STECRBFEH FI B o 5 e B EFIEN SN =
ERMEMNEE Y GRS HR
KBEXRRRMEEAVER T

WEE -

(a) M2021F4B1BRBZHMREE
B R AE R R R B K A R
ZIRBER BT

AEFBEMR2021FE481HBAZ
VHRFEERNEXERTYREE
8 Z 15T 7

ERGER FEEENE—
FIFTEBUH  FE
HREERFE45
EEUBRE
ERETHEFB
IR EZER
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HREERFE165%
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Certain new standard, amendments to existing
standards, interpretation and accounting guideline
have been published that are mandatory for the
Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1
April 2022, which the Group has not early adopted,

are as follows:

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to Annual
Improvement Project

Accounting Guideline 5
(Revised)
Amendments to HKAS 1

HK-Interpretation 5 (2020)

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 8

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework ()

Onerous Contracts-Cost of Fulfiling
a Contract "

Annual Improvements 2018-2020
Cycle (HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
HKFRS 16 and HKAS 41)

Merger Accounting for Common
Control Combinations "

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current @

Presentation of Financial
Statements—Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause @

Insurance Contracts @

Accounting Policies, Change in
Accounting Estimates and
Errors @

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]
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Certain new standard, amendments to existing

standards, interpretation and accounting guideline

have been published that are mandatory for the

Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1

April 2022, which the Group has not early adopted,

are as follows: (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction @

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies @

and HKFRS Practice

Statement 2

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture ©

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

m Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2022

@ Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2023

© To be announced by HKICPA

The directors of the Group will adopt the new
standard, amendments to existing standards,
interpretation and accounting guideline when they
become effective. The directors of the Group are in
the process of assessing the financial impact of the
adoption of the above new standard, amendments
to existing standards, interpretation and accounting
guideline, none of which is expected to have a
significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.
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(a)

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used
to account for all business combinations,
regardless of whether equity instruments or
other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the:

(i) fair values of the assets transferred

(i)  liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquired business

(i) equity interests issued by the Group

(iv)  fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration
arrangement, and

(v)  fair value of any pre-existing equity interest
in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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(a)

Business combinations (Continued)
The excess of the:

(i) consideration transferred,

(i)  amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity, and

(i) acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those
amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in consolidated
income statement as a bargain purchase.

Contingent consideration is classified either
as equity or a financial liability. Amounts
classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in consolidated income
statement.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in
consolidated income statement.
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(b)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately
in the consolidated income statement,
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated balance sheet
respectively.
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(c)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or
joint control. This is generally the case where
the Group holds between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting after initially being recognised at
cost.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds
its interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
equity accounted investees have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in Note
3.8.
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(d)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a loss of
control as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. A change in ownership interest results
in an adjustment between the carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests
to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and any
consideration paid or received is recognised in
a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss
of control, joint control or significant influence,
any retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair
value becomes the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture
or an associate is reduced but joint control
or significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision-makers. The executive
directors and senior management, who make
strategic decisions, have been identified collectively
as the chief operating decision-makers, who are
responsible for allocating resources and assessing the
financial performance and positions of the operating
segments.

(@) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK$, which is the
Company’s functional and Group’s presentation
currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised within ‘other
(losses)/gains, net’ in the consolidated income
statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated
income statement within ‘finance income, net’.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in consolidated income statement on
a net basis within ‘other (losses)/gains, net’.
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(c) Group companies
The results and financial position of all
the group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.
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(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial

disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to
consolidated income statement.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in
consolidated income statement. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group’s ownership interests in associates that
do not result in the Group losing significant
influence) the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified
to consolidated income statement.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

(d) HEBIMEBRIBSELE

REEBEIINER BIHERE
BB EBNE D
HFRKEHOD S BINETR
BUM B A B BYIERIER L&
WS RREHB S EINET
NEBEATNEATENN
HE) K AR ER AR
hZEBRER RSB
BEREREEMNDEELR

GiEmRe

ME D HE B BINEFH
@A B AREHRAERK
EH M B QBRI ER
RIRLEPIRE Rt B £TRE
MERBAIFERER > M
ARG EHEERANEST - H
IRFr A HAthER 3 & (BUIRHs
FEERBEATNERE
BolBENEEERREE
TEN)  SFRILLHIRRS
EREREMOEERGHE
maRe

)2~ RS Ko 3R 18 TH ¥8 FE SE B AR
e IR -BEABEREZSE
BEHBEEEG A

EREABEEMZAREEN D
FIERATER BZBEB Z A
FESOP] SEEt B HEE A S G5t
AZEEEZREENED S —
BBYEE RBRABRME &
EFDZRAEREERK LR
oA HEMEERFREGREE
FMBHBANEGEEEERX
iH o

Annual Report 2021/22 5k



Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost, net of their residual
values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 50 years or over the unexpired
lease period of leasehold land,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements 5 years or over the unexpired lease
period, whichever is shorter
Furniture and fixtures and 5 years
computer equipment
Plant and machinery 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.

Construction in progress represents property, plant
and equipment under construction or pending
installation and is stated at cost less impairment
losses, if any. No provision for depreciation is made on
assets under construction in progress until such time
as the relevant assets are completed and available for
their intended use. On completion, the relevant assets
are transferred to property, plant and equipment at fair
value or cost less accumulated impairment losses.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 3.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing net proceeds with carrying amount of the
relevant assets and are included in the consolidated
income statement.
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Investment property, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and is not occupied
by the Group.

Investment property is measured at cost, including
related transaction costs, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line
method to write off the cost of the investment
properties over their estimated useful lives of 30 to 50
years. Where the carrying amount of an investment
property is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount, it is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probably that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied,
it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment. At
the date of reclassification, its cost and accumulated
depreciation are transferred to property, plant and
equipment and become its cost and accumulated
depreciation for accounting purposes. If an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property
because its use has changed, it is reclassified as
investment property.

Trading licence with indefinite useful life represents
a membership in Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange
Society and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
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Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows
which are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting
period.

Inventories, comprise raw materials and finished
goods, are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis. The cost of finished goods comprises
raw materials, direct labour and other direct costs.
It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.
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(a)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income. For investments in
equity instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

The Group reclassifies debt instruments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.
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(b)

()

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in consolidated income statement.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. The Group classified
its debt instruments as financial assets at
amortised cost.
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(c)

(d)

Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in ‘other (losses)/gains, net’, together
with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented in separate line
item in the consolidated income statement.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised
in ‘other (losses)/gains, net’ in the consolidated
income statement as applicable. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses)
on equity investments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are not
reported separately from other changes in fair
value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.
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Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy
of the Group or the counterparty. The Group has
also entered into arrangements that do not meet
the criteria for offsetting but still allow for the related
amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such
as bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair values. The
method of recognising the resulting gains or losses
depends on whether the derivative is designated
and qualified as a hedging instrument, and if so, the
nature of the item being hedged. Since the derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group do
not qualify for hedge accounting, changes in fair value
of any derivative financial instruments are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement.
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Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at the amount of consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing components,
when they are recognised at fair value. The Group
holds the trade and other receivables with the
objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment.

See Note 22 and Note 24 for further information
about the Group’s accounting for other receivables
and trade receivables, respectively and see Note 3.10
for a description of the Group’s impairment policies for
trade and other receivables.
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In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with financial institutions and other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and other
payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is
due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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Borrowings are carried initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
income statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is
no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
balance sheet when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including
any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed,
is recognised in consolidated income statement.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.
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The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the
Company, its subsidiaries and an associate
operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation and considers whether it is
probable that a taxation authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures
its tax balances either based on the most likely
amount or the expected value, depending on
which method provides a better prediction of
the resolution of the uncertainty.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred
income tax is also not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in foreign operations where the
company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and when
the deferred tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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(a)

(b)

()

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

Provisions for profit sharing and bonus plans are
recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate
of the obligation can be made.

Pension obligations

Hong Kong

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) which is registered under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held in a separately administered fund. The
MPF Scheme is generally funded by payments
from employees and by the Group.

The Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme
are expensed as incurred and are reduced by
the employer’s voluntary contribution forfeited
from the MPF Scheme by those employees who
leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions.
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()

(d)

Pension obligations (Continued)

Mainland

As stipulated by rules and regulations in
Mainland, the Group contributes to state-
sponsored retirement schemes for its relevant
employees in Mainland. The state-sponsored
retirement schemes are responsible for the
entire post-retirement benefit obligations
payable to the retired employees.

The Group’s contributions to the state-
sponsored retirement schemes are expensed as
incurred and are fully and immediately vested in
the employees.

Defined benefit obligation - long service
payment

The Group’s net obligation in respect of lump
sum long service amounts payable on cessation
of employment in certain circumstances under
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is the
amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods. The obligation is calculated
using the projected unit credit method by a
qualified actuary, discounted to its present
value, and the fair value of any related plan
assets is deducted. The discount rate is the
yield at balance sheet date on Exchange Fund
Notes that have maturity dates approximating
the terms of the Group’s obligations. All
remeasurement gains/losses of defined benefit
plans are recognised immediately in other
comprehensive income in the period in which
they occur. Past service costs are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the average period until the benefits become
vested.
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Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sales of goods and
services in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax,
sales returns and discounts, after eliminated sales
within the Group.

(@) Sales of goods — wholesale

The Group manufactures and sells a range
of gold jewellery and gem-set of jewellery
products in the wholesale market. Sales are
recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are
delivered to the licensees/wholesalers, the
licensees/wholesalers have full discretion over
the channel and price to sell the products
and there is no unfulfiled obligation that could
affect the acceptance of the products. Delivery
does not occur until the products have been
delivered to the specified location, the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred
to the licensees/wholesalers, and either the
licensees/wholesalers have accepted the
products in accordance with sales contract,
the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the
Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

A sales refund liability and an asset for the
right of return goods are recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet. The Group uses
the expected value method to estimate the
credit refund or return which best predicts the
amount of reliable consideration to which the
Group entitled.

A contract liability is also recognised when the
licensees/wholesalers pay deposits before the
Group transfers control of the products to the
licensees/wholesalers.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

Sales of goods - retail

The Group operates a chain of retail stores
selling a variety of gold and platinum jewellery
and gem-set jewellery products. Revenue from
the sales of goods is recognised when the
product is transferred to the customer who
takes delivery in store.

Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately when the customer purchases
the gold and platinum jewellery and gem-set
jewellery products. It is the Group’s policy to sell
its products to the end customer with a right of
return within one year at an agreed discount on
the original selling price. A sales refund liability
and an asset for the right of return goods are
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet.
The Group uses the expected value method to
estimate the sales refund or return which best
predicts the amount of reliable consideration to
which the Group entitled.

Royalty and service income

Royalty and service income in respect of the use
of the Group’s trademarks is recognised over
time on an accrual basis in accordance with
the substance of the relevant agreements. The
refund of credit to licensees when certain credit
refund criteria is met are considered as variable
consideration. The Group uses expected value
method to estimate the credit refund which best
predicts the amount of variable consideration to
which the Group entitled.

Consultancy fee income

Consultancy fee income in respect of technical
support and consultancy services are
recognised over the period in which the services
are rendered.
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(e) Interest income from bank deposits, gold (e)
loan receivables and other receivables
Interest income from bank deposits, gold loan
receivables and other receivables is recognised
on a time proportion basis using the effective
interest method.

()  Rental income (f)
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease period.

(g) Financing components (9)

The Group does not expect to have any
contracts where the period between the
transfer of the promised goods or services to
the customer and payment by the customer
exceeds one year. As a consequence, the
Group does not adjust any of the transaction
prices for the time value of money.
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Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a METHEEEHAEEER
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased ZBBAEREEE  WEAE
asset is available for use by the Group. fEEE.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially MEEEZEEREBREMNT LR
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities BETSHE-HESEEFEUTHE
include the net present value of the following lease BUM#RE

payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed e [RBEMA(BEEEEEN

payments), less any lease incentives receivable;
° variable lease payment that are based on an °

index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at the commencement date;
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Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments: (Continued)

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be
determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value in a similar economic environment with
similar terms and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs; and

O restoration costs.
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Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
1o exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in consolidated
income statement. Short-term leases are leases with
a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets
comprise small items of office equipment.

(@) Variable lease payments

Estimation uncertainty arising from variable lease
payments

Some property leases contain variable payment
terms that are linked to sales generated from a
store. For individual stores, up to 100 percent
of lease payments are on the basis of variable
payment terms and there is a wide range of
sales percentages applied. Variable payment
terms are used for a variety of reasons, including
minimising the fixed costs base for newly
established stores. Variable lease payments that
depend on sales are recognised in consolidated
income statement in the period in which the
condition that triggers those payments occurs.

(b) Extension and termination options
Extension and termination options are included
in certain property and equipment leases across
the Group. These terms are used to maximise
operational flexibility in terms of managing
contracts. The majority of extension and
termination options held are exercisable only by
the Group and not by the respective lessor.
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Lease income from operating leases where the Group
is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term (Note 17). Initial direct costs
incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and
recognised as expenses over the lease term on the
same basis as lease income. The respective leased
assets are included in the consolidated balance sheet
based on their nature.

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a
financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued.
The liability is initially measured at fair value and
subsequently at the higher of the amount determined
in accordance with the expected credit loss model
under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the
amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined
based on the present value of the difference in cash
flows between the contractual payments required
under the debt instrument and the payments that
would be required without the guarantee, or the
estimated amount that would be payable to a third
party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other
payables of associates are provided for no
compensation, the fair values are accounted for as
contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the
investment.
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Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors, where appropriate.

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no
longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before the
end of the reporting period but not distributed at the
end of the reporting period.

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions.

Note 7 provides further information on how the Group
accounts for government grants.

Gold loan receivables to be received by physical gold
are classified as assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

Gold loans to be repaid by cash are designated as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
as the gold loans form part of a contract containing
one or more embedded derivatives. Gold loans to be
repaid by physical gold are classified as liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss.
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General and specific borrowing costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to complete
and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks, including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and
fair value interest rate risks, commodity price risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance. The Group uses
derivative financial instruments to manage certain risk
exposures. The use of financial derivatives to hedge
certain risk exposures is governed by the Board of
Directors of the Company.
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Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with
most of the transactions settled in HK$. The
Group also has retail and wholesale operations
in Mainland, Macau, Canada, the United States,
Australia, Malaysia and Singapore. Foreign
exchange risk arises when future commercial
transactions or recognised assets or liabilities
are denominated in a currency that is not
the entity’s functional currency. The Group is
exposed to foreign exchange risk from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to
Renminbi (“RMB”). The majority of the Group’s
foreign currency denominated monetary items
are cash and cash equivalents denominated
in RMB, which are held by Group companies
whose functional currency is not RMB. In
addition, certain Group companies whose
functional currency are HK$, have intra-group
advances from their subsidiaries denominated in
RMB.

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk
by performing regular reviews of the Group’s net
foreign exchange exposures. The Group also
uses foreign exchange derivative contracts to
manage their foreign exchange risk arising from
future commercial transactions and recognised
asset or liabilities denominated in a currency that
is not the Group companies’ functional currency,
primarily with respect to RMB, if necessary.

The Group’s assets and liabilities, and
transactions arising from its operations primarily
do not expose the Group to material foreign
exchange risk. The Group’s assets and liabilities
are primarily denominated in the respective
Group companies’ functional currency.

At 31 March 2022, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against HK$, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit would
have been approximately HK$19,873,000
(2021: HK$13,035,000) higher/lower
respectively, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of RMB
denominated monetary items in entities whose
functional currency is not RMB.
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(i)

(iii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
The Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates as the Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets except for
the gold loans receivables, other receivables
arose from prior disposal of a subsidiary and
other receivables from licensees, which were
issued at fixed rates, and expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk. The Group’s interest
rate risk also arises from gold loans and bank
borrowings. Gold loans at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest-rate risk. Bank
borrowings at variables interest rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest-rate risk. The Group
does not enter into derivatives to address these
risks.

At 31 March 2022, if interest rates on bank
borrowings had increased/decreased by
50 basis points with all other variables held
constant, the impact on post-tax profit would
have been approximately HK$5,776,000 (2021:
HK$2,971,000) lower/higher respectively.

Commodity price risk

The Group mainly engaged in the sales of gold
jewellery. The gold markets are influenced by
global as well as regional supply and demand
conditions. A significant change in the prices of
gold could adversely affect the Group’s financial
performance. The Group manages commodity
price risks mainly by hedging gold price
fluctuations through certain derivative financial
instrument-trading of gold contracts and gold
loans. Should the gold price go up, the Group
would charge a loss representing the increase in
gold price compared to the contract price, and
largely net against the increase in turnover of
gold products as a result of gold price increase.

(ii)

(iii)
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(iii)

Commodity price risk (Continued)

The gold contracts are settled on daily basis and
the differences between the contract price and
market price are immediately recognised in the
consolidated income statement. During the year
ended 31 March 2022, the notional amount of
contracts under daily trade was 547 kilograms
(2021: Same). As at 31 March 2022, if the
market price of gold had increased/decreased
by 5%, post-tax profit for the year ended 31
March 2022, due to changes in fair values of
gold contracts, would have been approximately
HK$10,954,000 (2021: HK$9,533,000) lower/
higher respectively.

The gold loans (Note 32) are settled at maturity
which usually mature in 1 to 6 months (2021:
1 to 6 months) from date of inception and the
fair value changes are immediately recognised
in the consolidated income statement. As at 31
March 2022, gold loans of HK$497,513,000
(2021: HK$268,755,000) represents gold loans
involved cash settlement. As at 31 March 2022,
gold loan contracts of 153 kilograms (2021: 259
kilograms) amounted to HK$73,932,000 (2021:
HK$108,765,000) are outstanding and involved
physical settlement.

As at 31 March 2022, if the market price of
gold had increased/decreased by 5%, post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 March 2022, due to
changes in fair values of gold loans, would have
been approximately HK$23,913,000 (2021:
HK$15,844,000), lower/higher respectively.

As at 31 March 2022, if the market price of
gold had increased/decreased by 5%, post-
tax profit for the year ended 31 March 2022,
due to changes in fair values of gold loan
receivables, would have been approximately
HK$2,487,000 (2021: HK$2,275,000), higher/
lower respectively.
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(iv)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in a financial loss to the Group.

The Group’s crediit risk is primarily attributable to
cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks
and financial institutions, derivative financial
instruments, trade receivables, gold loan
receivables, rental and other deposits, and other
receivables, mainly including other receivables
arose from prior disposal of a subsidiary and
other receivables from licensees. Credit risk is
managed on a group basis. Management has
policies in place to monitor the exposures to
these credit risks on an on-going basis.

Risk management

Cash is deposited with financial institutions
with sound credit ratings and the Group
has exposure limit to any single financial
institution. Transactions involving derivative
financial instruments are also executed with
counterparties of sound credit standing. Given
their high credit ratings, management does not
expect any of these financial institutions will fail
to meet their obligations.
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(iv)

Credit risk (Continued)

Risk management (Continueq)

Management has performed recoverability
reviews on trade and other receivables regularly
and actively followed up the overdue balance
of trade and other receivables in order to
minimise the exposure to credit risk. In relation
to trade receivables related to retail sales,
retail customers normally settle in cash or
credit cards issued by major banks with low
credit risk, mitigating credit risk. The Group’s
concessionaire sales through department
stores and online sales platforms are generally
collectible within 30 days from the invoice date
while credit sales are generally on credit terms
within 90 days. Normally the Group does not
require collaterals from trade debtors. The
Group performs periodic credit evaluations of
its customers, taking into account their financial
position, history of default and other factors. The
utilisation of credit limits is regularly reviewed.
No material credit limits were exceeded during
the reporting year, and management does
not expect any material losses from non-
performance by these counterparties. For gold
loan receivables and other receivables, mainly
including other receivables arose from prior
disposal of a subsidiary and the receivables
from licensees, to manage credit risk, the Group
has considered the long-established business
relationship with the counterparty and obtained
security in the form of guarantees and collaterals
which can be called upon if the counterparty is
in default under the terms of the agreement. As
at 31 March 2022, these receivables were fully
performing, and the credit risk is assessed to be
insignificant. Refer to Note 22 and Note 32 for
details respectively.
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(iv)

Credit risk (Continued)

Risk management (Continued)

The Group has no concentrations of credit risk
in view of its large number of customers. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the consolidated balance sheet. Except for the
financial guarantee given by the Group as set
out in Note 35, the Group does not provide any
other guarantee which would expose the Group
to credit risk.

Impairment of financial assets and other item
Expected credit losses are unbiased probability-
weighted estimates of credit losses which are
determined by evaluating a range of possible
outcomes and taking into account past events,
current and future conditions, including but not
limited to the impact of COVID-19 pandemic
on the ability of the Group’s customers and
creditors to repay the debts.

The Group has derived the expected loss rate
by referencing to historical payment profiles,
credit rating analysis and external default data
to determine the probability of default of its
financial assets and other item and incorporated
forward looking information, including significant
changes in external market indicators which
involved significant estimates and judgements.

The Group has the following types of financial
assets and other item that are subject to the
expected credit loss model:

o Trade receivables;

° Deposits and other receivables, including
gold loan receivables; and

° Financial guarantee contract

All bank balances and bank deposits are held at
reputable financial institutions with sound credit
ratings and there is no significant concentration
risk to a single counterparty and there is no
history of defaults from these counterparties.
The expected credit losses is close to zero as at
31 March 2022 and 2021.
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(iv)

Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other item
(Continued)

U)

Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach
to provide for expected credit losses
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime expected credit
loss provision for trade receivables. The
expected credit loss provision rates for
trade receivables are based on historical
payment profiles and historical credit
loss experience, adjusted to reflect,
where relevant and appropriate, current
and information specific to the debtors,
future economic and market conditions
and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the debtors to settle the
receivables that the Group considers are
reasonable and appropriate.

Measurement of expected credit loss on
individual basis

Trade receivables relating to customers
with significant doubt on collection of
receivables are assessed individually.
These include receivables from
department stores in Mainland. As at
31 March 2022, the balance of loss
allowance in respect of these individually
assessed receivables was HK$1,964,000
(2021: Nil).

Measurement of expected credit loss on
collective basis

Expected credit losses are also estimated
by categorising the remaining trade
receivables based on the nature of
customer accounts sharing the similar
credit risk characteristics. These include
receivables from electronic payment
service providers, department stores
in Mainland, online sales platforms in
Mainland and individual wholesalers/
licensees. Trade receivables have been
further grouped based on the days past
due.
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(iv)

Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other item
(Continued)

U)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The following table presents gross
carrying amount of the trade receivables
and the loss allowance provision analysed
by aging band as at 31 March 2022 and
31 March 2021:

Current
As at 31 March 2022 420224 3F31H B
Gross carrying amount  SRETAA(E (T387T)
(HK$'000) 137,566
Lifetime expected SHBHREEHREE
credit loss allowance  (F#7t)
(HK$'000) =
Current
Asat 31 March 2021 142021438310 ]
Gross carrying amount  SRETAE(E (T#87T)
(HK$'000) 245,451
Lifetime expected 2RBEERERE
credit loss allowance  (F#7t)

(HK$'000) =

As at 31 March 2022, the expected
credit loss rate is 0% (2021: 0%) for trade
receivables aged current to 180 days past
due, and 50% (2021: 50%) for those aged
over 180 days past due, respectively.
Expected credit loss is close to zero for
the trade receivables aged current to 180
days past as there is limited recent history
of default.

1-30
days
past due
bkt
1-30K%

19,890

1-30
days
past due
1-30%

25,782

31-60
days
past due
B
31-60%

19,025

31-60
days
past due
bkt
31-60K

4,108
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61-90 91-180  Over 180
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R bk bk
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(iv)

Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other item
(Continued)

U)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables are written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery
includes, amongst other, the failure of a
debtor to engage in a repayment plan
within the Group.

Impairment losses on trade receivables
are presented as net impairment losses
within operating profit. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against the same line item.

The movement of loss allowance for trade
receivables as at 31 March 2022 and
2021 is as follows:

Opening loss allowance
at 1 April

(Provision)/reversal of
loss allowance

Closing loss allowance
at 31 March

Provision of impairment losses on trade
receivables amounted to approximately
HK$1,964,000 (2021: Reversal of
impairment losses of HK$933,000) is
included in the consolidated income
statement.
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(iv)

Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other item
(Continued)

(i)

Other financial assets

Other financial assets include deposits
and other receivables, including gold
loan receivables, mainly including other
receivables arose from prior disposal of
a subsidiary and other receivables from
licensees to measure the expected credit
loss on these other financial assets.

Deposits and other receivables were
mainly rental deposits and utilities and
management fee deposits. These deposits
are mainly placed with various landlords
and property management companies
in Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland and
other regions and are due to refund upon
the expiry of the tenancy agreements
and handover of the leased premises.
Management considered that the risk of
default is insignificant for such deposits,
therefore, expected credit loss is assessed
to be close to zero.

(iv)
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(iv)

Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other item
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

Other financial assets (Continued)
Management has closely monitored
the credit risk in relation to gold loan
receivables, other receivables arose
from prior disposal of a subsidiary and
other receivables from licensees. As at
31 March 2022, certain guarantees and
collaterals from counterparty are held
to cover potential exposure to credit
risk. Furthermore, the risk of default of
the counterparty is assessed taking into
account its repayment history, financial
position, and other factors, including
the economic environment in which
the counterparty operates. As at 31
March 2022, these receivables were fully
performing and the expected credit loss is
assessed to be insignificant.

Financial guarantee contract

For financial guarantee contract, the
maximum amount that the Group
guaranteed under the respective
contract was HK$1,075,000,000 (2021:
HK$1,075,000,000) as at 31 March 2022,
which represents 50% of the aggregated
amount of bank facilities granted to an
associate. As at 31 March 2022, the
bank facilities utilised by the associate
was approximately HK$1,564,495,000
(2021: HK$1,486,000,000) which is
secured by pledged bank deposits of
the associate of HK$803,179,000 (2021:
HK$764,725,000).
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(iv)

(v)

Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item

(Continued)

(i) Financial guarantee contract (Continued)
The credit risk on financial guarantee
contract represents the risk of default of
the associate. The Group assessed the
default risk and measured the expected
credit loss arising from such financial
guarantee contract. Details of the financial
guarantee contract are set out in Note 35.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances
and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities.

The Group’s primary cash requirements
have been for additions of and upgrades on
property, plant and equipment, payment on
debts, purchases and operating expenses. The
Group finances its working capital requirements
through a combination of internal resources and
bank borrowings, as necessary.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure it maintains sufficient cash and bank
balances and has available funding through
adequate amount of committed credit facilities
to meet its working capital requirements.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance date
to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows, including interest
payments computed using contractual rates,
based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay.

(iv)

v)
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(v) Liquidity risk (Continued) (v) REEZRARE

Maturity Analysis — Undiscounted cash outflows FEH 2T — KR T
e
More than More than
1 year 2 years but Total
Repayable Within but less less than  undiscounted
on demand 1year  than2years 5years cash outflows
B BREME  KEWEE
BREKRE —-Fh  EVREE  EOREE  RHESH

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TEn TEn TEn

As at 31 March 2022 14202238310
Trade payables and other payables &5 FE{TERIERE
FEf1ERIE - 982,202 - - 982,202
Lease liabilities HEER - 208,188 118,844 40,575 367,607
Amount due to an associate EA-—RHEATRE - 411 - - 411
Gold loans with cash settement  REREIZEEE 497,513 - - - 497,513
Bank borrowings BTE 1,383,301 - - - 1,383,301
1,880,904 1,190,801 118,844 40,575 3,231,124
More than More than
1 year 2 years but Total
Repayable Within but less less than  undiscounted
on demand 1 year than 2 years 5years  cash outflows
Bih—f BEmE  AMRRE
BREREE —£/ BOREE  BIRRE  REESH
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#En T#En T#En T#En T#En
As at 31 March 2021 R202143A31H
Trade payables and other payables &7 fE{1 BRI R E A
FEf1ERIE - 874,248 - - 874,248
Lease liabilities HEER - 338,988 78,244 12,344 429,576
Gold loans with cash settlement ~ HEREZLEE 268,755 - - - 268,755
Bank borrowings RITER 711,508 - - - 711,508
980,263 1,213,236 78,244 12,344 2,284,087
As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group 2022 K%20214E3831H »
issued corporate financial guarantee to banks FEERET—RBEEQT
in respect of bank facilities granted to an HIRITTRERRITEHRE
associate (Note 35). As at 31 March 2022, BT FSHE1R (M35E35) o 122022
the maximum amount the Group could be FIA3E HWERZHFAS
required to settle under the arrangement for the RERZTHE AEEREE
guaranteed amount if the amount is claimed REBLHARBETFEEZ
by the counterparty to the guarantee was BEE%A41,075,000,00054
HK$1,075,000,000 (2021: HK$1,075,000,000). 7T (20214 : 1,075,000,0007&

7T) ©
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(v) Liquidity risk (Continued) (v) REEZRARE

Maturity Analysis-Bank borrowings and gold HHEH AT —REBEZEEKX
loans with cash settlement subject to repayment EEBRARRRBRZRITER K
on demand clauses based on scheduled RERIFZEEEZETE
repayments including interest payables. M(BEEMFE) o
More than More than
1 year 2 years Total
Within but less butless undiscounted

1year than2years than5years cash outflows
B BERE KRR E
—£R BLRmE BLRAEE A

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ER TET TER TET

As at 31 March 2022 #202283A31H
Bank borrowings RITEM 1,382,830 1,021 - 1,383,851
Gold loans with cash settlement  BETIESEE 498,009 - - 498,009
1,880,839 1,021 - 1,881,860

More than More than

1 year 2 years Total
Within but less butless  undiscounted
1 year than 2 years than 5 years  cash outflows
Ba—F BRmE KERRE
—FR BORmE BORAE LS
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TERT

As at 31 March 2021 1202143631H
Bank borrowings RITER 698,604 12,274 1,021 711,899
Gold loans with cash settlement &N EELEE 269,120 - - 269,120
967,724 12,274 1,021 981,019
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(v) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s derivative
financial instruments that will be settled on a
gross basis into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at 31 March
2022 to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances
due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances as the impact of discounting is not
significant (2021: None).

As at 31 March 2022 1R20224F3A31H
Foreign exchange forward contracts JMNE&REI G4

- Inflow —RA

- Outflow —i

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets, including cash and bank balances, trade
and other receivables, deposits and the Group’s
financial liabilities, including trade and other payables,
amount due to an associate and bank borrowings
approximate their fair values due to their maturities.

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active
markets are based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price.

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities not
traded in active markets are estimated by discounting
the future contractual cash flows at the current market
interest rate that is available to the Group for similar
financial instruments.

Within
1 year
—FR

HK$000
FER

54,267
54,547
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(v) REEZRARE
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More than More than
1 year 2 years Total
but less butless undiscounted
than 2years  than 5years cash outflows
Bia—F BAmE  KMREE
BLRmE  EOREE RN
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
TET TER TET
- - 54,267
- - 54,547
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NS R e

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4 H#EEMEIE (&)

(b) Fair value estimation (Continued) (b) 2AREH @)

The table below analyses financial instruments carried TRARBEEELZHEAAET]

at fair values, by valuation method. The different levels ROEMTAN DT -BERENF

have been defined as follows: BRI T -

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for e FHEEBEENEEITEZEMS
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). ERIERE REHEE) (F—

i) o

e Inputs other than quoted prices included o RE—MRFTEENREN
within level 1 that are observable for the asset EEREENTEE B8
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or %) Sz ENIEERS ) B
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2). REFFWMAE EZR)

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not o  WIFRBENERMHHEIEE
based on observable market data (that is, ENEEREBEHAEGA
unobservable inputs) (level 3). ARRMAE E=4H °
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The following table presents the Group’s financial TREF|ARERP20225F 2021

assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair FEIASIHRAABHENTRE
values at 31 March 2022 and 2021. EnEmMER-
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—R B4 B @t

HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TR FERT FEr TR

As at 31 March 2022 142022538310
Assets BE
Financial assets at BARERA
fair value through other Htz2mlAz
comprehensive income TREE 365 - - 365
Liabilities =5
Gold loans with cash settlement  RE&XEELEES - 497,513 - 497,513
Derivative financial instrument TEERMTIA - 280 - 280
- 497,793 - 497,793
As at 31 March 2021 12021638318
Assets BE
Financial assets at BRAREFA
fair value through other Htt2mlAz
comprehensive income TREE 1,173 - - 1,173
Liabilities =XE
Gold loans with cash settlement  HE&XE =L EES - 268,755 - 268,755
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The following table presents the Group’s assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair values at 31 March
2022.

As at 31 March 2022 142022538310
Assets BE
Gold loan receivables EWEEEE
Liabilities =L
Gold loans with physical BYHEESEE
settlement

The following table presents the Group’s assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair values at 31 March
2021,

As at 31 March 2021 12021438318
Assets BE
Gold loan receivables El=EREE
Liabilities af
Gold loans with physical ENEEE2EE
settlement

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfer into and
transfer out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused
the transfer.

There were no transfer between levels 1, 2 and 3

during the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.

There were no significant changes in valuation
techniques during the year.

Level 1
F—1
HK$000
FERT

Level 1
£
HK$000
TET

TREYAERFP20225E3831H
BAREFENEERAES-

Level 2 Level 3 Total
B BB @t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000
TR FHET TERT

58,517 - 58,517

73,932 - 73,932

TREIKREREKR2021FE3H31H
BAREFENEEREE-

Level 2 Level 3 Total
i B st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
TET TET TER

52,409 = 52,409

108,765 = 108,765

FEENBRRENENEE S
HBERERBERAE BRIBEH
ARBERBREAMEL

B E 2022 F20214E3831HIEE
ER F— R - FE_REE=H>
ERIEIER A=

6 PO R O SE B A o

Annual Report 2021/22 5k



@

(ii)

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded
in active markets is based on quoted market
prices at the balance sheet date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Group is the market share price.
These instruments are included in level 1.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates.
If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value
financial instruments include:

o Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for
similar instruments.

° The fair value of foreign exchange forward
contracts is determined using forward
exchange rates at the balance sheet date,
with the resulting value discounted back
to present value.

° Other techniques, such as discounted
cash flow analysis, are used to determine
fair value for the remaining financial
instruments.
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(i) Financial instruments in level 2 (Continued)
The fair value of gold loan receivables is
determined using discounted cash flow
valuation technique reference to quoted market
bid price of gold traded in active liquid markets
as a key input, adjusting for the counterparty
credit risk inputs. For gold loans, the fair value
is determined using discounted cash flow
valuation technique reference to quoted market
bid price of gold traded in active liquid markets
as a key input.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payments to shareholders, issue of new shares or
obtain new bank borrowings.

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of
gearing ratio. The gearing ratio is calculated as net
debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
total borrowings (including bank borrowings and gold
loans) less cash and bank balances. Total capital is
calculated as “equity”, as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet, plus net debt.
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The table below analyses the Group'’s capital structure
as at 31 March 2022 and 2021:

Bank borrowings (Note 31) IRITER (F5E31)

Gold loans (Note 32) ;a%fﬁ‘% (MF3E32)

Less: Cash and bank balances A IRESRIRITARRR
(Note 25) (MFE25)

Net cash FIRE

Total equity HEm4BEE

Total capital HER

Gearing ratio BEEELE

The Group’s strategy is to maintain a solid capital
base to support the operations and development of its
business in the long term.

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the
consolidated financial statements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are set out below.

AEBEF 20225 %2021F3531H

ZERBEINOT
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET
1,383,391 711,508
571,445 377,520
(3,492,037) (3,546,349)
(1,537,201) (2,457,321)
12,078,528 11,324,224
10,541,327 8,866,903

N/AFRER N/AR 48 F

KREBNREAEFEENELKR
HEE  UAHSEREREREEMH
RH S

MG E M BRREM A 2G5 R
HE DB TEERRAMER (B
REFRBERERREF L GER
5t) NEREHETE - FISEstAEIRERE
F EVGHEBMBERERES - TX
SmBENAREN T -VHREFEEE
REaEZREERFHERBEZME5
R AR ©
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Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of
manufacturing and selling products of similar nature.
It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer taste and competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycle. Management reassesses these
estimates at each balance sheet date.

Interests in an associate and non-financial assets
including property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and right-of-use assets, are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations
or fair value less costs to sell. These calculations
require the use of judgements and estimates.

FEUERFEABEEBDRH
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EmBBEAARRMEH > 1 I AR
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Management judgement is required in the area of
asset impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether
an event has occurred that may indicate that the
related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii)
whether the carrying value of asset can be supported
by its recoverable amount, being the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and the net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset in the business; and
(iiiy the appropriate key assumptions to be applied
in preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in
the cash flow projections, could materially affect the
net present value used in the impairment test and as
a result affect the Group’s reported financial condition
and results of operations. If there is a significant
adverse change in the projected performance and
resulting future cash flow projections, it may be
necessary to take an impairment charge to the
consolidated income statement.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, after
reviewing the business environment as well as the
Group’s strategies and past performance of its
cash-generating units, management concluded
that there was impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets of HK$1,610,000
(2021: HK$9,115,000) and HK$7,854,000 (2021:
HK$71,180,000) respectively. Management believe
that any reasonably possible changes in the
assumptions used in the impairment reviews would
not affect management’s view on impairment at 31
March 2022.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

BEEEEREREREEREHE
LEHBHE (\RESBHRETAE
R E E B R sEEAW R B F 4 5 (i)
HoJus el 8EE (B2 5o (88 & Al
FEOBMB KRG EEEERST
EREEMGRNARRERE
REFEMENRSE) IEXF
BEKREE; (VRS REEA
FIAMNEE T 2RRK BREILER
EREFRARTUBEEN AR -
EIEE PP B FET L RE R R R
(BEERXNIRERERAFR
AN ERRRR S8 5
G RE BRI P B 3R (B P BR TS 2R
ERFE NMETEAEEPTZR
B BRI RS E R G - TR R
RBRAEBARBETRERALIER
BERTHMES) B AEHRGIR
mARPHRBERS -

B E2022F3H31HIEFE K%
HEMEFRIERAER 2R
MRERSEFBAZBERER
EEBSHER VWE - BEK
RERFEAREEZREDNAS
1,610,0003& 75 (20214F : 9,115,000
HIT) K7,854,0008 7T (20214F :
71,180,000/ 7t) - EEEHMEE |
BERERZREZEMNGE
BRI ETEBHMN
2022F3H31ARMEZER



The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong,
Mainland and other jurisdictions. Judgement is
required in determining the provision for income taxes
in each of these jurisdictions. There are transactions
and calculations during the ordinary course of
business for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such as differences will impact the income
tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made. Deferred income
tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management
considers it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the temporary differences
or tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax liabilities relating to undistributed
profit of those subsidiaries in Mainland are recognised
based on the undistributed profit of those subsidiaries
in Mainland generated since 1 January 2008 which is
expected to be distributed in the foreseeable future.
When the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the recognition
of deferred income tax assets and liabilities and
taxation charges in the period in which such estimate
is changed.
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The executive directors and senior management
collectively are identified as the chief operating decision-
makers (“CODM”). The CODM reviews the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources. The operating segments are reported
in accordance with the internal reporting reviewed by the
CODM.

The CODM considers the business by nature of business
activities and assesses the performance of the following
operating segments:

Retailing — Hong Kong, Macau and overseas
i Retailing — Mainland
ii. ~ Wholesaling — Hong Kong
iv. ~ Wholesaling — Mainland
V. Licensing

CODM assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on segment results. Finance income and
costs, share of results of associates and corporate income
and expenses are not included in the results for each
operating segment that is reviewed by the CODM. Other
information provided to the CODM is measured in a manner
consistent with that in the consolidated financial statements.

Assets of reportable segments exclude interests in an
associate, certain leasehold land and buildings, investment
properties, deferred income tax assets, income tax
recoverable and corporate assets, all of which are managed
on a central basis. Liabilities of reportable segments exclude
deferred income tax liabilities, current income tax liabilities,
bank borrowings, gold loans, financial guarantee contract
and corporate liabilities, all of which are managed on a
central basis. These form part of the reconciliation to total
assets and liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.

Sales to external customers are stated after elimination
of inter-segment sales. Sales between segments are
carried out at mutually agreed terms. The revenue from
external parties, assets and liabilities, reported to the
CODM is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated income statement and balance sheet.

HITESEREREEEEETALRR
SEEARE (RSEEREKE)) &
SEERRERBERAER AR
SHEEERREDEE R AEER
BREEERREZR ZNIREER

KEDE

REEERAREREBLHUHEMEE
BERRE TIEED B 2 RIR

TE 5B B EIEIN
i  TE-RH
i. BB
v, HE—R
V.  miRER

REEERRERED MBERTGEE
DEHERF - RSEBRREBFRNZRE
ENMWEBUARBEMBRARER
BEBHEATNEEURRB WA K
ZoMRBEERRERMZAEMER
TRt B ARG S B MREE

—5o

2
it

N~

BERNBEETBENRBMEAT 2R
m ATHEIMRET REVEVE
JEPRISME E ~ P IREIFF 1S IR AR A B
EE E2NOAEREER - AIZ2KRD M
BETOFRELERMSRER RS
MEE RITER BEEE MHERE
GHRABEE 2HAREPEE-
EEERERENGEEERRRN
MEEKRBENERED

HONZRHEERHH D MEAHERT
o) BRI IE E AR B E IR AR AETT
MxmEERREZRZIREZER WA
UhEBEEREGPIRMt B ERERS
BmAREEERRAEHE R
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Revenue- at a point of time
Sales to external customers
Sales of scrap

Inter-segment sales

Sales of merchandises
Revenue- over time
Royalty and service income
Consultancy fee income

Total

Results of reportable segments

A reconciliation of results of reportable
segments to profit for the year is as
follows:

Results of reportable segments
Unallocated income
Unallocated expenses

Operating profit

Finance income

Finance costs

Share of results of an associate

Profit before income tax
Income tax expenses
Profit for the year

Add: Loss attributable to non-
controlling interests

Profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company

WA- R
HHERBE
e

NEEHE
HEBR
WA~ —RER
miERRBERA
BHENA

A2HNHER

ERNBEERERN
ERERNT

AERABES
ESION
FNEHER

gl

BB

BBER
ElE—FHERTRE
FRFRfRHRATER
FifFiE

i
m:FERERELER

BRFREREAEGER

Retailing -
Hong Kong,
Macau and
overseas
TE-ER
AR5
HK$'000
T#En

4,880,879

4,880,879
143,554

5,024,433

5,024,433
146,209

Year ended 31 March 2022
HE02F3RNALEFE

Retailing - Wholesaling - Wholesaling -

Mainland
TE-
pysth
HK$'000
TR

2,527,026

2,527,026
2,343

2,529,369

2,529,369
215,469

Hong Kong Mainland Licensing
f&-
-5 Pl IR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti#n TER TEn
126,336 2,949,765 -
619 - -
126,955 2,949,765 -
1,183,933 117,832 -
1,310,888 3,067,597 -
- - 1,122,526
- - 130,652
1,310,888 3,067,597 1,253,178
15,204 408,472 964,435
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Inter-
segment
elimination

R
HK$'000
T

(1,447,662)
(1,447,662)

(1,447,662)

Reportable
segments
total

P o
st
HK$'000
TEr

10,484,006
619

10,484,625

10,484,625

1,122,526
130,652

11,737,803
1,749,879

1,749,879
143,540
(250,195)
1,643,224
87,344
(23,097)
(23,838)
1,683,633
(291,296)

1,392,337

27
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Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Depreciation of investment properties

Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment

Impairment loss on right-of-use assets
Net impairment loss on financial assets

and financial guarantee
Additions of non-current assets

(excluding right of use assets)
Additions of right of use assets

Segment assets

Interests in an associate
Leasehold land and buidings
Investment properties
Deferred income tax assets
Income tax recoverable
Other unallocated assets

Total assets
Segment liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities
Current income tax liabilties

Bank borrowings

Gold loans

Financial guarantee contract

Other unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

NE BERRENE

REREENE
RENERE
N BERREAESR

REREEAESA

TREERMBERAERR
e

SEREEERE
(FEERRRER)

RRREERE

NHEE

REEATZRE
BELHRIET
RENR
ERFEREE
PRERER
AftRNEEE

BEE
BEI=IE

ERFERERE
BBFERaR
FITER
BRfE
MBERAN
At RDEAE

28R

Year ended 31 March 2022

HEN2FANALEE
Retailing -
Hong Kong,
Macauand  Retailing- Wholesaling- Wholesaling -
overseas Mainland  Hong Kong Mainland Licensing
2E-
LAl $£- 18-
Rigs mih HE-FR R RRER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
tiEn iR FiEn FEn FiEn
(31,167) (12,565) (743) (11,152 (9,294)
(304,021) (23,822 - (162) (4,2379)
(1,610) - - - -
(6,360) (1,494) - - -
- (1,964) - - -
13,160 13,573 283 38,838 10,001
315,629 26,655 - - -
As at 31 March 2022
1R202263A318
Retailing -
Hong Kong,
Macau and Retailing - Wholesaling - Wholesaling -
overseas Mainland ~ Hong Kong Mainland
BE-
-y 8E- -
R mit  HE-FE pst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#n Ti#n T#n TiEn
5,252,068 2,249,027 884,276 3,057,666
(557,331) (36,964) (105,020) (210,257)

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

Inter-
segment
elimination

bl sk
HK$'000
Fin

Licensing

G
HK$'000
FiEn

1,506,796

(818,410)

Unallocated

£
HK$'000
T

(34,329)
(4,038)
(29,200)

(9,831)

482,357

Unallocated

28
HK$'000
TR

23,146
931,627
1,007,606
158,023
23,057
1,126,977

(74,692)
(188,284)
(1,383,391)
(571,445)
(36,831)
(159,116)

Total

it
HK$'000
FiEn

(99,250)
(336,422)
(29,200)

(1,610)
(7,854

(11,795)

558,212
342,284

Total

it
HK$'000
TiEn

12,949,833

23,146
931,627
1,007,606
158,023
23,057
1,126,977

16,220,269
(1,727,982)

(74,692)
(188,284)
(1,383,391)
(571,445)
(36,831)
(159,116)

(4,141,741)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NS R e

6

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

6 SEPEE (B)

Year ended 31 March 2021

HE01FIASIHLERE
Retalling -
Hong Kong, Inter- Reportable
Macau and Retaling-  Wholesaling - Wholesaling - segment segments
overseas Mainland ~ Hong Kong Mainland Licensing elimination total
TE-
B TE- #E- BESE
Rigsh o HE-FE At RIEER  HPEHH st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TERT TR TET
Revenue- at a point of time BA-RREY
Sales to external customers HORRHE 3,245,173 1,708,144 243,136 2,701,692 - - 7,808,145
Sales of scrap HEEY - - 16,999 - - - 16,999
3,245,173 1,708,144 260,135 2,701,692 - - 7,915,144
Inter-segment sales NEEHEE 370,619 60,170 693,747 376,935 - (1,501471) -
Sales of merchandises HEBR 3,615,792 1,768,314 953,882 3,078,627 - (1,501,471) 7,915,144
Revenue- over time WA -1 —ER RS
Royalty and service income RERRBERA - - - - 851,429 = 851,429
Consultancy fee income ERERA - - - - 94,762 - 94,762
Tota st 3615792 1,768,314 053882 3078627 046191 (1501471) 8861335
Results of reportable segments D GRS (19,547) 215,239 48,489 360,405 718,683 = 1,323.269
A reconclliation of results of JERNNERAER
reportable segments to proft par a3
for the year is as follows:
Results of reportable segments DR GRS | 1,323,269
Unallocated income FAEMA 150,138
Unallocated expenses FokmY (229,204)
Operating profit BEHT 1,244,113
Finance income HHBA 63,398
Finance costs HEER (28,849)
Share of results of associates EEBEAREE (23,225)
Profit before income tax BRFR{SHRAT R 1,255,437
Income tax expenses FiisimES (236,309)
Profit for the year ERiE 1,019,134
Less: Profit attributable to non-controling 73 © JEIER R FEIEERI
interests (1,799
Profit attributable to equity ARG AESRR
holders of the Company 1,017,335
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NS R e

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 SEFEN (@)
Year ended 31 March 2021
BEEASIELEE
Retailing -
Hong Kong, Inter-
Macau and Retaiing - Wholesaling - Wholesaling - segment
overseas Mainland ~ Hong Kong Mainland Licensing glimination  Unallocated Total
BE-
BE BN - HE-

R ma HE-EE mi ERER HUEEE AR st
HK000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000
TEn TARL TR TEn TEn ThRL TEn TEn

Depreciation of property, NE BERAENE
plent and equipment @289 (12249 691) 9994) (5060 - @79 (106425
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EEREENE (388,612) (17,986) - (153) (3,876) - (3,836) (414,463)
Depreciation of investment properties ~ REMEITE - - - - - - (25,552) (25,559)
(Impaiment loss)/reversal of impaiment ~ #7% \ B Rk &
loss on property, plant and equipment  (BEEE) /HEFEEL (9,534) 419 - - - - - (9,115)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets ~ EREEERERE (70,896) (284) - - - - - (71,180)
Net reversal/[net provision) of impaimment - B3 EE R e ERA(EHSE
loss on financial assets and fnancial ~~ BEBE/ (BHFH
querantee - 93 - - - - 0000 (19,067)
Addtions of non-current assets FRBEERE
(excluding right of use assets) (FeiEERRER) 26,591 7,99 1,778 22,444 4,272 - 158,466 221,544
Additions of right of use assets FRESERE 110,650 26,733 - - - - - 187,383
As at 31 March 2021
2021538318
Retailing -
Hong Kong,
Macau and Retaling-  Wholesaling - Wholesaling -
overseas Mainland ~ Hong Kong Mainland Licensing  Unallocated Total
ZE-
EE VB TE- -
Koo i HE-FE it RIEER FAR fast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAT TER FAT TET TR TER
Segment assets NHEE 4,744,260 2,107,179 641,282 2,730,355 1,497,803 11,720,879
Interests in associates RERAFz#E 42,925 42,925
Leasehold land and buildings HETHRET 849,937 849,937
Investment properties BEm= 909,084 909,084
Deferred income tax assets REMEREE 123,076 123,076
Income tax recoverable BIEREHR 19,525 19,525
Other unallocated assets HitkHEEE 846,613 846,613
Total assets mgE 14,512,089
Segment liabilities NHaE (6566,081) (42,619 (165,034) (244,280) (648,577) (1,666,591)
Deferred income tax liabilties BIEFERAR (157,898) (157,898)
Current income tax liabilties BEFTERAR (170,224) (170,224)
Bank borrowings BITER (711,508) (711,508)
Gold loans HEfRE (377,520) (377,520)
Financial guarantee contract HBEREY (20,000) (20,000)
Other unallocated liabilties HitkDREaR (84,074) (84,074)
Total liabilities Bafm (3,187,815)
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An analysis of the Group’s revenue by location in which the
transaction took place is as follows:

Revenue WA
Hong Kong 58
Mainland 2Bl
Macau and overseas EPI R gk

During the year ended 31 March 2022, revenue recognised
of HK$150,802,000 was included in the contract liabilities
balance as at beginning of the year (2021: HK$97,692,000).

An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets (other than
deferred income tax assets, financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income, certain deposits,
prepayments (except for prepayments for purchase of
properties and equipment) and other receivables and
interests in an associate) by location of assets is as follows:

2022

Macau and

Hong Kong Mainland

overseas

& mi EFIRIES

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TER

Property, plant and equipment NE BERR 495,136 324,199

Right-of-use assets EEREE 124,425 204,404

Investment properties RENE 290,961 716,645
Prepayments for purchase of BENERRBEZBORE

properties and equipment - 376,000

Gold loan receivables ElELEE - 41,798

Trading licence REHR 1,080 -

911,602 1,753,046

HKS$'000
FEr

73,255
182,806

256,061

B SETZ MBS D
o -

2022
HK$’000
FHET

2,835,890
6,705,611
2,196,302

11,737,803

P ZAEEBAD

2021
HK$'000
TAET

2,409,518
5,310,301
1,141,516

8,861,335

B FE2022FE3831HIEFEE BB Z I
A150,802,0008 Tt Bt AFEF S EE
4585 (20214F @ 97,692,0005 7T) ©

REEFMEME D ZAERIIFRBE
EERELEM/REE - BANE
SAARMEERAZERMEE ST
T FEMRE BEYERRBZAMER
RSN RHEMBWRIRIBER N BE QT

2 R AT -

Total  Hong Kong Mainland
3t EE Ayt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
FiEn TEn TR
892,590 560,236 260,527
601,635 158,695 292,696
1,007,606 300,569 608,515

376,000 = =
41,798 = 50,855
1,080 1,080 -

2,920,709 1,020,580 1,212,593

2021

Macau and
overseas Total
AP REsH &t
HK$'000 HKS$'000
TEn Tin

86,003 906,816
143,803 595,194
= 900,084

= 50,85
= 1,080

229,856 2,463,029
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2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FAT
Government subsidies BT A

— Value-added tax (“VAT”) refund (Note ()  —IZ{&E%R (MEER)
R (MEEG) 107,613 63,905
— Other government subsidies (Note (ii)) —HE B ARG (B &) 91,453 85,052
— Employment Support Scheme (Note (i) — — MRt 21521 (B 55(iii)) - 80,997
Rental income RV ON 55,491 45,485
Others HAth 24,787 19,334
279,344 294,773

Notes: BdsE -

0] This represents refund from the tax authority in Mainland. The amount (i) ItE 73 2k B AUt AR F5 H Bfl 2 IR TR o iR B RRIZ
of refund is based on the VAT payment made in excess of 4% of B REBIRERI% L 2 B ER ARG
the original input VAT. The Group is entitlied to the refund as it is a B RRAERAS LBEARZFAZRE
member of the Shanghai Diamond Exchange and the diamonds are MmEaNEE LEEARZMED A E
imported through the Shanghai Diamond Exchange. EBERERN-

(ii) This mainly represents subsidies from a municipal government in (ii) IHE 3= Z2 25 PO 3t T BT 22 T 2 A ©
Mainland.

(ii) The amount represents salaries and wage subsidies granted under (il ZEBAEBRITHE BN RESZENE
Anti-Epidemic Fund by the Government of the Hong Kong Special HeRbrHes R ITERY ARSZTRE
Administrative Region for the use of paying wages of employees from 20206 E11RZTE

June to November 2020.
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The operating profit is stated after charging the following:

Cost of sales (Note (i)
— cost of inventories sold
— cost of licensing business

Staff costs (including the directors’
emoluments) (Note (i)
Expenses relating to short-term leases
and variable lease payments
Rent concession related
to COVID-19 (Note {iii))
Commission expenses to
payment service providers
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment (Note 16)
Depreciation of investment properties
(Note 17)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(Note 18)
Impairment losses on property,
plant and equipment (Note 16)
Impairment losses on
right-of-use assets (Note 18)
Advertising and promotion expenses
Other taxes
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on lease modification
Legal and professional fees
Auditor’s remuneration
— Audit services
— Non-audit services

SHE R (5E()

—BEFEME
— R EF A A

BTMA (BEEEHD)

(B =)

RS R EEE R

MERAR

MRS RIEREES

B (B 5% i)

SN TR HER

ZAEEx
YRR R BT
(M¥zE16)

rREMEE HEE17)
EREEETE (fisE18)

M BB R B R E R R

(f$5E16)

ERREERERRE

(f$5E18)
BEEREERS
HhiR1a

HEME BERREZ

518
MEET W
ERKREEER
22 S Gl

— BRI

—IEBIZRT

2022
HK$’000
FERT

8,245,503
258,473

8,503,976

730,053
135,040
(14,421)
58,662
99,250
29,200
336,422
1,610
7,854
80,146
88,886
385
1,143

16,093

5,945
1,274

REEHENBFETHERRYIR

2021
HK$'000
TAT

6,016,091
212,929

6,229,020

604,811
120,441
(69,872)
41,365
106,425
25,552
414,463
9,115
71,180
74,220
69,795
1,438

10,976

5,640
1,909

Annual Report 2021/22 5k



Notes:

(i)

(i)

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

Saved as disclosed above, staff costs (including directors’
emoluments) of HK$385,739,000 (2021: HK$306,378,000) are
included in cost of sales.

Breakdown of total staff costs are as follows:

Basic salaries, wages, bonus and allowance

Pension costs — defined contribution plans
(Note 14)

Long service payment (Note 30)

(Hi5%14)

For the year ended 31 March 2022, rent concession related to
COVID-19 of HK$14,421,000 (2021: HK$69,872,000) has been
credited to the consolidated income statement and included in
“selling and distribution costs” in accordance to the amendment that
provides lessees with exemption from assessing whether COVID-
19-related rent concession is a lease modification and requires
lessees to apply the exemption to account for COVID-19-related rent
concession as if they were not lease modifications.

The amendment requires the lessees to apply such exemption only to
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and only if all of the following conditions were met and
applied consistently to all lease contracts with similar characteristics
and in similar circumstances:

() the change in lease payments results in revised consideration
for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than, the
consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change;

(b) any reduction in lease payments affects only payments

originally due on or before 30 June 2022; and

(c) there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions
of the lease.

HARHE # & TEA RORR/
BRE A —E BT B

REARFB® (M5E30)

MI5E :

(i)

FR Bt o SHERAGEE I A (8
EEEH$) 385,739,000 7T (20214 :
306,378,00058 7T) °

BTHMAMBEMADWT :
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT THT
1,046,075 865,520
69,619 44,637
98 1,082
1,115,792 911,189

B E2022F3A3HIEFE BHiEmER
15 HEREAYTE S5 214,421,000 7T (20214 :
69,872,0005870) BRIFET AR EEER
RARIM A THERDHER] > MIETE
HBeRAATETBRER EEEAESHE
EEBAEEN WERAHEAEBERRU
SRS L BEEEASRRAR HINE
WIEREET

BT ARER  EIEM B U IR A R R
T ABABARAERRRERBRENTE
FERBEREENES AR TERKHE
BERRTA BB ERBMUERAE

B854

@ HEYREFEREETEHERE
HEREPRNEEREARER
HEM;

() HAEMRNEFABDEZERTN
20226 830H 2 AT MBI
b4

© THENEMERRETEEEEE
o



2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Net realised losses on derivative financial ~ #T4 &Rt T B~ B&I8
instruments (Note) 518558 (5D (34,018) (13,527)
Net realised (losses)/gains on gold loans B2EBEZBEHIR
(B518) /s 358 (53,101) 1,822
Net unrealised gains on gold loans HeBEZ ARG
(Note 32) 58 (M1EE32) 2,712 9,988
Net realised gains on gold loan receivables EWESEE 2 B8R
a3 97 8,600
Net unrealised gains on gold loan receivables fE I = £ E & 2 K817
(Note 32) Wz B e (15E32) 5,545 18,538
Net realised gains on forward exchange RENEGH 2 BEIR
contracts Wz E &8 1,039 929
Net unrealised losses on forward exchange 2HBINE S Z R
contracts 5187958 (280) —
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 39) HE—KMBAEIEE
(MT%ISS?) - (199)
Net exchange gains U EE 34,965 4,421
(43,041) 30,572
Note: ik -
Derivative financial instruments mainly represent gold contracts. These NEEMTETFEAESAN - NEBMEBRSE
derivative financial instruments are not qualified for hedge accounting within BISEORED ZEMESHM T AT PEHE
the context of HKFRS 9. o
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Finance income:
— Bank interest income

— Interest income on amount due

from HKRH

— Interest income on other receivables

— Interest income on gold loan receivables

Finance costs:

— Interest expenses on bank borrowings
— Interest expenses on gold loans
— Interest expenses on gold loans

from a director

— Interest expenses on lease liabilities

Finance income, net

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

FAFSUN
—IRITHBUHA
—EREBER

ERRBEZFEWA
—HMEWIREZ
FE WA
—RRESEEZ
B UA

MHER
—IRITEMZMERMX
—BEBEZMEMX
—B—%EFEA

BEEEEZMERMX
—HEEBEZHNEMX

MBWA > B8

2022
HK$’000
FERT

76,784

2,500

5,144

2,916
87,344

(9,313)
(3,201)

(246)
(10,337)

(23,097)
64,247

2021
HK$'000
SRCT

51,456

3,985

5,048

2,909
63,398

(8,983)
(1,947)

(603)
(17,316)

(28,849)
34,549



Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong for the year, except for one subsidiary of the
Group which is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime. The first HK$2 million of estimated
assessable profits of this subsidiary is taxed at 8.25% and
the remaining estimated assessable profits are taxed at
16.5% (2021: Same). Taxation on overseas profits has been
calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year
at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which
the Group operates.

Current taxation: BIHATRIA :

— Hong Kong profits tax —&5BMER

— Overseas taxation —BINMRIE

- Withholding tax on dividend declared in ~ —FX A B KL E

Mainland ZFEIR
— (Over)/under provision in prior years —BEFEE (BE
Bl BeErE

Deferred income tax (Note 29) IRIEPTSHR (FY5E29)

BB RREFEEBEEZME
SHERRIEF IR T 16.5%5H TR B 5
EEER—-RMBABFRN ZRFNT
MBI ERNEFIE B - %M B
NEIZ LRGN 5288 BT
128.25% 2 1 AR > T F 5 ik 51 FE ER
M H)3%16.6% 2 MR (20214 : 48
) o @NER 2RI A FE L EHE
R R AEREBIERKERKR
KEtH o

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT T
5,912 4,302
306,766 231,037
102,673 37,604
(5,902) 2,636
(118,153) (40,176)
291,296 236,303
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The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax

AEERFTSMANEH Z RIALERE
BRaHBERENINETEINKRESE

weighted average tax rate applicable to the profits of the ZERTEERZNT
consolidated entities as follows:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FET
Profit before income tax FRPF1SAE A& A 1,683,633 1,255,437
Add: Share of results of associates e EREE AT EE 23,838 23,225
1,707,471 1,278,662
Tax calculated at domestic tax HEBRE ARG
rates applicable to profits in the HNEMREFTE ZRIB
respective jurisdictions 277,663 187,519
Income not subject to taxation BIESRMR Z WA (11,643) (19,990)
Expenses not deductible ARz ZH
for taxation purposes 7,679 10,595
(Over)/under provision in prior years BEFEERA
CBE) /T (5,902) 2,636
Tax losses of which no deferred KEDIEIERIBEE Y
tax asset is recognised MIEE1E 8,732 10,157
Utilisation of previously unrecognised B AU RERIRIEEIE
tax losses (4,699) (2,940)
Withholding tax on undistributed profit of ~ PIthfift /8 A &) 2k 27k
those subsidiaries in Mainland w2 FAR 19,466 48,326
291,296 236,303
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The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company of HK$1,392,364,000 (2021: HK$1,017,335,000)
and the weighted average number of 587,107,850 (2021:
587,107,850) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 March
2022 and 2021 are the same as the basic earnings per
share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares
outstanding during the years.

EREABATREBEAADERF
BANEMAKEBREF1,392,364,000
#IT (20214 : 1,017,335,0003 1)
RERBETZTERZMEFHH
587,107,8508% (20214F : 587,107,8508%)
FHEo

HREARNLEBETREBEEENEN
T AG 0 WAL E 20224 & 202143531
HEFEZSEREERINASRELR
FABE o

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FET
2021/22 interim dividend, paid, of HK$0.55 B 3k2021/224F R ARG
(2020/21 interim dividend: HK$0.225) EEREBR0.558TT
per ordinary share (2020/215% E
FEARG B 0.225587T) 322,909 132,099

2021/22 special dividend, Nil
(2020/21 special dividend: HK$0.275
per ordinary share)

2021/22 final dividend, proposed, of

2021/22FE BRI E | &
(2020/21EEF RIS ¢
G 5B RR0.27578 7T) - 161,455

Bk2021/22F FE R HA G

HK$0.55 (2020/21 final dividend: HK$0.50) B &% & @B%0.5578 7T

per ordinary share (Note)

(2020/21FE E R AR

BB R 1 0508 7T) (k) 322,909 293,554

2021/22 special dividend, proposed, Nil
(2020/21 special dividend: HK$0.50
per ordinary share) (Note)

Note:

At a meeting held on 28 June 2022, the directors recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK$0.55 each per ordinary share. Such
dividend is to be approved by the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company on 18 August 2022. The aggregate amount of the
proposed dividend is expected to be paid out of retained earnings at 31
March 2022, but not recognised as a liability at year end.

ER2021/22FE E4E R R
i (2020/21FE E 453
GB  SREER

0.507%7T) (&)

- 293,554

MI5E :

220226 H28 B BT EE L EEEFIRMG R
HRESRZEERS0SSEBT - AHREBHRE
EAATR20226E8F18A LT 2 REBEAG
HE o FERARRKAR BARZEHE B H0202243H31H 2
REBMNFIRT  ERERERERBEE
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2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FET
Net contributions to pension plans charged iR &Rz PR
to the consolidated income statement BRI EMERUEER 69,619 44,637
The expense is recognised in the following line items in the BRI GEelEmk o A TERR
consolidated income statement: o
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAERT FET
Cost of sales HHE R AR 30,889 22,213
Selling and distribution costs HERDHER 34,075 19,224
Administrative expenses THER 4,655 3,200
69,619 44,637
Notes: 5T
[0) The Group contributes to a MPF Scheme for its employees in Hong (i) rEEAEEERERIIBFIEABEES
Kong, under which both the Group and each employee make monthly B BItAERASRBRELHEREEZSE
contribution to the scheme at 5% of the qualifying earnings of the HEUIAS%IEG AR 1S AR EIRA
employee, subject to a maximum of HK$1,500 (2021: HK$1,500) per 1,500% 77 (20214 : 1,50078 7T) °
month.
(ii) The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland also contribute to retirement (ii) NEBP A KB A B INE TR R T
plans for their employees in Mainland at a percentage of their salaries BRZzREAERAMNEEFHAES &
in compliance with the requirements of the respective municipal —E B D Z B ARG B o BT RS K
governments in Mainland. The municipal governments undertake EREBRRAMBPABIRE RARIBIKES
to assume the retirement benefit obligation of all existing and future ZIRARENEE-

retired employees of the Group in Mainland.
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The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to the
directors and chief executive of the Company during
the year were as follows:

FARNERBAEZERRHTH
ANBZEM@ERNT ¢

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Fees B 1,705 1,861
Salaries e 27,346 41,535
Performance and discretionary BRIFMIEE W2 IE4L
bonuses 47,528 23,750
Contributions to pension plan BIRE TR 505 487
Total directors’ emoluments, payable Bt KRB iEET ﬁ“%ﬁ%‘%
and expensed in the consolidated T EENEAEE
financial statements 77,084 67,633

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a
person’s services as a director, whether of the
Company or its subsidiary undertaking:

For the year ended 31 March 2022

Fees Salary

Name of director and
chief executive EEZRBRTHARRS g g
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FiE#n
WONG Wai Sheung (Note (j) BfRE () 55 19,091
TSE Moon Chuen EIES 55 1,383
WONG Hau Yeung 1105 55 996
WONG Lan Sze, Nancy = 55 853
CHAN So Kuen RER 55 3,828
WONG Ho Lung, Danny B 10 180
HUI Chiu Chung SBR 110 60
1 Hon Hung TERE 10 60
WONG Yu Pok, Maring® BilE 250 -
IP Shu Kwan, Stephen® =3 300 -
MAK Wing Sum, Alvin* E-gS 300 -
HUI King Wai* SFRE 250 -
1,705 27,346

Performance
and
discretionary
bonuses
BRENE
BR2Ea
HK$'000
TR

21,118
1,957
7,092
8,071
2,690

AR A T HEER QB HEM B
ISRl

HE202283831HILFEE

Estimated Employer's
money  contribution to
Housing  values of other a retirement Total
allowance benefits  benefit scheme emoluments
RfhiEdlz  EEXmRGKER
EEE  EHEREE BElE Hess

HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000
FiE#R YR FE#R TR
- - 19 41957

- - 61 3,456

- - m 8,187

- - » 9017

- - 169 6,737

- - - 20

- - - 170

- - - 170

- - - 250

- - - 30

- - - 30

- - - 250

- - 505 77,084
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

(a)

15 %?;&%%&%IEAE?E*‘J&#E%‘E
II‘E

ESERESTHASME (B)

For the year ended 31 March 2021 B E2021%E3831HEFE
Performance Estimated Employer's
and money contribution to
discretionary Housing ~ values of other arefirement Total
Fees Salary bonuses allowance benefits  beneft scheme emoluments
Name of director and BRERENE Hftgrlz EImEHER
chief exeoutive EZRERTHARHS ik e Bita tREY  AHEREE s Henn
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TFiEn TER TER TEn TER TEn TR
WONG Wai Sheung (Note (i) EE&E (1) 55 34,642 10436 - - 184 45317
TSE Moon Chuen EIF kS 55 1,284 1,799 - - 59 3197
WONG Hau Yeung 55 5 946 5,038 - - 44 6,083
WONG Lan Sze, Nancy BEE 55 7% 4,678 - - 37 5,565
CHAN So Kuen BEE 55 3,546 1,799 - - 163 5563
WONG Ho Lung, Danny BiER 110 180 - - - - 200
YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline (Note (i) BER () Q0 2 - - - - 62
HUI Chiu Chung Fidizls 110 60 - - - - 170
LI Hon Hung TEE 110 60 - - - - 170
WONG Yu Pok, Marina ey 250 - - - - - 250
TAl Kok Leung, Alexander® (Note (i) BEIR? (F5(i) 116 - - - - - 116
P Shu Kwan, Stephen* gy 300 - - - - - 300
MAK Wing Sum, Alin® & 300 - - - - - 300
HUI King Wai* SRE 250 - - - - - 250
1,861 41,535 23,750 - - 487 67,633
# Independent non-executive directors # BIFHITES
Notes: Mg :
(i) Mr. WONG Wai Sheung is also the chief executive officer of 0 EEREEENARANT ZITEHAES

the Company.

(ii) During the year ended 31 March 2021, Ms. YEUNG Po Ling,
Pauline retired and ceased to be a non-executive director of
the Company effective from August 2020.

(iii) During the year ended 31 March 2021, Mr. TAl Kwok Leung,
Alexander retired and ceased to be an independent non-
executive director of the Company effective from August
2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VPN

Wi\

RATS R M 5L

15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

(a)

15 %ﬂ%&%?&‘éﬁ)\é?ﬁﬂ&*ﬁﬁ
ll‘g

ESERESTHASME (B)

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Aggregate emoluments paid to or MIEBR AT
receivable by directors in respect of EHWBATESR>
their services as directors, whether ~ RSB ERHNEE
of the Company or its subsidiary FEUS BN S 42 %8
undertaking 1,705 1,861
Aggregate emoluments paid to or MEBESEARER
receivable by directors in respect of EMIB AT EH
their other services in connection ERHEMRBENH
with the management of the affairs ~ FEUR Z Bl 24228
of the Company or its subsidiary
undertaking 75,379 65,772
77,084 67,633
Directors’ retirement benefits (b) EFZIEBRAKEF

Except for the employer’s contribution to a retirement
benefit scheme as disclosed in (a), no other retirement
benefits were paid to the directors of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2022 in respect of
their services as directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries (2021: Same).

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year ended 31 March
2022 (2021: Same).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company
did not pay any consideration to any third parties
for making available the services of themselves as
directors of the Company (2021: Same).

(c)

(d)

Fr()BFTINE 2 B E M BRKEF]
sHEME RSN B E20225F3831H
LEEE  TEQARARNTDZEER
HEAARAKREWBATES
Frie it 2 IR 2 (4 E R K EF)
(20214 : 48R °

ERZEEEERN
REE2022F3831HIEFE >
= O A O B U B AT ] B B
fBF (20214F : 48[E) °

MIRMEERBRAE =A%
RE
REE2022F3831HIEFE » &
REINMEEEME=ZAMIBEE
ABRNBEEREBEZRBLZGE
AIB (20214 : /B[R ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4o A
wih (3 A~

F 5 MY EE

15 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(e)

Information about loans, quasi-loans

and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements
were entered into by the Company or its subsidiary
undertaking in favour of the directors of the Company,
a controlled body corporate or a connected entity
of such directors at any time during the year (2021:
Same).

15 BEBERSREEASEIRED

(&)

(e)

BRUES -ZSFEFZ2RE
ZERAERRAREAZE
PEUERREMEEZE
#4

PRAFEEMFRE AATREN
BABLEMTIIUARBES Z
FEFZRELAEVNBREERER
RmAZER BLUERKEME
B2 (20214 48R ©

() Directors’ material interests in transactions, N EBEENXRZ THHEHZE
arrangements or contracts KK
Save for transactions disclosed elsewhere in the notes MFRZEREMBRRWEEMER
to these consolidated financial statements, no other DI EE 2 50 A A B R
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts AEBEFIIILIARBDESNAE
in relation to the Group’s business to which the RFEEARERZNEEERBRE
Company was a party and in which a director of the F2022F3831HIE FEAREDL
Company has a material interest, whether directly or EREAFBEMZEMEARR
indirectly, subsisted at the end of or at any time during FRHEREH (20214 1 #8RF) ©
the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: Same).
(g) Five highest paid individuals () HEEEHFMAL
Among the five highest paid individuals, all (2021: All) TEEeTFMATESR 28
of them are directors of the Company and the details (202145 : 28F) BARBIESE
of their remuneration are disclosed in the preceding WEZMEHBEERN EERIREE-
paragraph.
(h) Senior management’s emoluments (h SREEASHE
The emoluments fall within the following bands: BEZMENF T4 -
2022 2021
HK$1 - HK$500,000 17875 2500,00078 7T = -
HK$500,001 - HK$1,000,000 500,0017875 2 1,000,000% 75 1 1
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 75 21,500,000 7T = -
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 75 £2,000,00078 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 75 22,500,000 75 1 -
HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 75 23,000,000 75 - 1
HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 3,000,0017875%3,500,0007 75 1 -
3 3

Senior management represents senior management

staff who are non-directors.
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Furniture

and fixtures
Land and Leasehold and computer Plant and Motor  Construction-
buildings  improvements equipment machinery vehicles  in-progress Total
HENE KR RER
THREF & Bz  BERHE HE EEIR ag
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn FEn Thn TERT Thr TERT TEr
A1 April 2020 20204818
Cost 72N 743,080 552,494 213,393 50575 23,734 - 1,583,276
Accumulated depreciation and impaiment 23t ERE (64,483) (451,150) (168,615) (46,515) (21,509) - (742,272)
Net book value REFE 678,697 101,344 54,778 4,060 2,225 - 841,004
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE0AFIRANALEE
Opening net book value FREEE 678,597 101,344 54,778 4,060 2,225 - 841,004
Additions HE 99,093 33,519 14,870 2,485 1472 14,927 166,366
Step acquisition of a subsiciary (Note 38) &5 W —K K B3 (zH38) - 557 2 2519 23 - 3,127
Disposals hE = (241) (1,518 (429) = = (2,189)
Disposal of a subsidlary (Note 39) HE-RIBAR (H30) - ) (3,760) - - - (3.809)
Depreciation charge ESH (25,032 (55,331) (21,843) (3,181) (1,039) = (106,425)
Impairment losses HERE - ©,115) - - - - @115
Exchange differences ERER 12,669 2,203 2,528 374 76 - 17,850
Closing net book value EREAEFE 765,327 72,883 45,083 5,828 2,758 14,927 906,316
At 31 March 2021 12021538310
Cost [N 857,923 524,198 206,355 49,138 25,934 14,927 1,678,475
Accumulated depreciation and impaiment  Z3HERHE (92,59) (451,305) (161,272) (43,310) (23,176) - (771,659)
Net book value REFE 765,327 72,893 45,083 5,828 2,758 14,927 906,816
Year ended 31 March 2022 HE022F3ANALERE
Opening net book value ERESE 765,327 72,893 45,083 5828 2,758 14,927 906,816
Additions HE 194 22,123 19,666 5,558 1,101 30,241 79,483
Disposals HE - (39) (2,768) ) - - 2811)
Depreciation charge EZH (27,570) (45,33) (21,261) (3,834 (1,259) o (99,250)
Impairment losses AESR - (1,610) - - - - (1,610)
Exchange differences EREE 7,644 515 987 174 21 621 9,962
Closing net book value FREESE 745,595 49,151 4,707 7,721 2,621 45,789 892,590
At 31 March 2022 12022%3A318
Cost S 867,590 541,914 219,463 56,636 21,732 45,789 1,753,124
Accumulated depreciation and impaiment  E3tHERE (121,995) (492,763) (177,756) (48,915) (19,105) - (860,534)
Net book value REFE 745,595 49,151 41,707 7,721 2,621 45,789 892,590

Depreciation expense of HK$4,132,000 (2021:
HK$3,041,000) has been included in cost of sales,
HK$87,226,000 (2021: HK$95,434,000) in selling and
distribution costs and HK$7,892,000 (2021: HK$7,950,000)
in administrative expenses.

As at 31 March 2022, land and buildings of
HK$454,669,000 (2021: HK$472,675,000) were pledged to
the Group’s bank borrowings. Refer to Note 31 for details.

The market value of the Group’s land and buildings was
approximately HK$928,334,000 as at 31 March 2022,
which is recognised at cost less accumulated depreciation
of approximately HK$745,595,000. It is determined by
an independent valuer, AVF Corporate Valuation Advisory
Limited, who holds a recognised and relevant professional
qualification and has recent experience in the location
and category of the land and buildings being valued, with
comparison approach.

HEM®4,132,0008 7T (20214 .
3,041,0008 7t) Est ASHE B A&~
87,226,000 7T (20214F © 95,434,000
7o) Bt ASHE K8 & B K 7,892,000
H T (20214 @ 7,950,00058 7T) Bt AT
Ig=g==l0

B2022%F3A31H > M KkiEF
454,669,000% 7T (20214F : 472,675,000
B7T) CRERERIRITER ZIEIH5F
1555 2R 5131 ©

R2022%3831H » KEEZ T M IEF
Z 1B A4%9928,334,0008 73 » JH IR A A
B ST EE49745,595,00078 TTHESE « H
BB GEMHME S EEEZAERA
3 FER A REMEEER > WHIFTh
BEIMREF 2 UERER S EEE T
HAARES) IRLEBOEREE o
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As at 31 March 2022, net book amount of retail store
assets represented property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets amounting to HK$32,495,000
(2021: HK$53,461,000) and HK$321,930,000 (2021:
HK$$318,406,000) respectively. The Group considers
each individual retail store as a separately identifiable cash-
generating unit. As a result of the potential adverse effect
brought by COVID-19 to the retail stores, management
performed impairment assessments for all the retail stores.

The carrying amount of the retail store assets is written
down to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is in excess of its estimated recoverable amount.
The estimates of the recoverable amounts were based
on value-in-use calculations using discounted cash flow
projections based on the management’s forecasts covering
the remaining tenure of the lease, with major assumptions
such as change in revenue, change in operating cost,
change in gross profit margin and product mix. The
change in revenue is dependent on the timing of easing
of the various travel restriction and quarantine measures
for COVID 19. With the assumption that tourist traffic and
customer spending would start to gradually recover by the
end of December 2022, mainly in Hong Kong market, an
impairment loss of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets of HK$1,610,000 (2021: HK$9,115,000) and
HK$7,854,000 (2021: HK$71,180,000), respectively was
recognised in selling and distribution costs. The discount
rate adopted in the impairment assessments is determined
based on the market’'s weighted average cost of capital of
the Group (2021: Same).

Key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations for
the recoverable amount of retail store assets are as follow:

Change in Based on projected sales estimated by
revenue: management which is dependent on the
estimated negative effect of the possible
timing of continuance of travel and
quarantine restrictions in Hong Kong,
and the speed of recovery of tourist

arrivals and their spending.

Change in running Based on historical information and
cost: estimated changes related to the
Group’s various cost saving measures
and central administration cost

absorption.

Change in gross Based on the historical data and
profit margin assumed no significant changes in
and product gross profit margin and product mix.
mix:

R2022FE3H31H TEEHEEZR

HFEE D B 432,495,0007 75 ( 2021
£F 1 53,461,00078 7t) 5&321,930,0007% 7T
(20214F : 318,406,000 7T) B9 2
MERERERERREE AERIDZ
%F'Eﬁ@;%u%‘%f%ﬁ%zﬁimmuiﬁﬁé
BN -HNMERERIBOEHTE
[EHERANTE BEBYHAASE
[E S TR E S ©

HEEEREEZREEBHHEMGS
BJElE8R > BI AR E E 2 IRE B HUR
EHTWEIEEE - ARG P W& 58
ThREEIERE REG TEMTEA &
BMRREERERAMMENERE
Eﬁ'ﬁ?’gi » qu)S’zHﬁU\*“‘EjJ ﬁ“%ﬁkK

-“ouézixﬁéﬂﬁly}#ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂz%%léﬁ%ﬁ
MBRBRBZHITRIREIE 2R
BoRBIENEATHENRERER
BRIHER2022FE 128 ERIFBRE S
[BFF > 23 8 %1,610,0005 75 ( 20214 -
9,115,000 70) 527,854,000/ 77 (2021
£ 171,180,000 7T) BIM 2 ~ R K 5%
BREBAREEZ REGENREERD
5 & PRS0 BB ST RN 2 AR IR
EILIRIEAEBET S LNERMEF
B AEE (20214 © 48[E) ©

TEEHEE WO ENERBES
BFfERZEEZ/RNT

WA ) RIBEEEEMGZTE
RASHE » HEURINE B
FREBHTRIERE
PRI 2 I BE HA ) 2 1
STEEXE URIRE
ANBREHENWE
RE-

MERAEE . REAXERSER
A ERAIIE B R TR R AT
B A%, s R WS AE A B9 R
SEER (st 8o

ENERER REELHERBRD
HeR: EAERERMAST
EEAED) -
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At 1 April
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Year ended 31 March
Opening net book value

Additions
Depreciation
Exchange differences

Closing net book value

At 31 March
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Rental income from operating leases

(Note 7)

Direct operating expenses arising from
investment properties that generate rental

income

At valuation (Note (i)

2022

HK$’000
FEx
4818
B AR 1,001,342
RETITE (92,258)
909,084
HESASIHLEE
FYREFE 909,084
wNE 102,729
e (29,200)
bE 2 =% 24,993
FERIREFE 1,007,606
38HA31H
DN 1,132,360
KRt & (124,754)
1,007,606
2022
HK$’000
FEx
EREZESWA
(M5£7) 55,491
EFESWAZKEYE
FrEs r B &
(31,247)
2022
HK$’000
FEx
e (hE (MEEG)) 1,658,502

2021
HK$’000
TET

853,369
(61,752)

791,617

791,617
101,810
(25,552)
41,209

909,084

1,001,342
(92,258)

909,084

2021
HK$'000
TAET

45,485

(26,9495)

2021
HK$'000
FTET
1,547,945
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Notes:

(i

(i)

(iv)

The valuation of the investment properties was determined by an
independent valuer, AVF Corporate Valuation Advisory Limited
(2021: BMI Appraisals Limited) who holds a recognised and relevant
professional qualification and has recent experience in the location
and category of the investment properties being valued, with
comparison approach.

Depreciation expense of HK$29,200,000 (2021: HK$25,552,000) has
been recorded in administrative expenses.

Future aggregate minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable
leases are as follows:

—%R

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years

As at 31 March 2022, investment properties of HK$79,630,000
(2021: HK$82,783,000) were pledged to the Group’s bank
borrowings. Refer to Note 31 for details.

As at 31 March 2022

Location Use

it B

Office A on 10th Floor, Bank Tower, Commercial building
Nos. 351 and 353 King’s Road, for rental

North Point, Hong Kong. BEAEHE

EEIEAEEEIH1KX3535
EBHRO0BAZE

Flat 3 on 10th Floor, Hong Kiu Mansion,
No. 313 Nathan Road, Yaumatei, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

Commercial building
for rental

BEAEHE

EANEAR A AIEISEEBAE
101%3E

—FREFBBLF

MI5E :

(i

(i)

(iv)

REVEZHEH BB G EMHE S
BEEHBRAR HEARAIREHEXE
o WRFEEZREYEZMERENS
EHATHRASE) (20214 : AR EE
IRAE]) REEBUEREE

FERIZ29,200,0008 7T (20214

25,552,0007% 70) BRTTEREAF AR

RBEA RIS 2 R EHEMN R R &
RAASABERWT :

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THAT
72,525 54,081
254,337 198,782
326,862 252,863

R202253831H » & ¥)279,630,00078 7T
(20214 : 82,783,00058 70) EBEAER
SRATE ML IF o 1 1BA 2 RIMIEEST ©

202283531 H

Tenure

faR

Medium-term leases

FHIRL

Short-term leases

AR

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

Attributable
interest of
the Group

FEME
EEZ AR

100%

100%



As at 31 March 2022 (Continued)

Location

ik
Luk Fook Jewellery Centre,
Jordan, No. 239 Temple Street, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
FENREEHEH2R9R S REERD

Units 1506-1516 on 15th Floor,

and 22 car parking spaces, Metropole Square,
No. 2 On Yiu Street, Shatin,

New Territories, Hong Kong
BENRDHZBEHR N ES 1512
1506-1516% 2282 B (i

Unit 15 on 3rd Floor,

Guanghua Changan Building,

No.7 Jianguo Men Nei Avenue,
Dongcheng District, Beijing, the PRC
BN R R & BRI P R ET5R
HERZAENREE

Units 1907-1910 on Level 19,

Tower 1, Kerry Everbright City,

No. 218 West Tianmu Road,

Zhabei District, Shanghai, the PRC
TR EmAILRX B AEK2185%
2B RIS —E19121907-1910%

Units A1802 on Level 16, Fulllink, No. 18
Chaoyang Men Wai Avenue, Chaoyang District,
Beijing, the PRC
FEIEREHRE ARG KE

185 S M EI51612A1802%E

Use

R&
Commercial building

for rental

EEFNEi

Commercial building
and car parking
spaces for rental

BEAERFEALA

Commercial building
for rental

EEFN-Ei

Commercial building
for rental

BEAEHE

Commercial building
for rental

BEARHH

202238318 ()

Tenure

faR

Long-term leases
REAEA

Medium-term leases

IR

Medium-term leases

IR

Medium-term leases

FEITRA

Medium-term leases

FHAREAY

Attributable
interest of
the Group

TEEE
R

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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As at 31 March 2022 (Continued) 202238318 ()

Attributable

interest of

Location Use Tenure the Group
TEEE

i Bi& ik CEER

Level 32-34, Reith International Building, Commercial building Medium-term leases 100%
Xinxiu Vilage, Xinxiu Road, Luohu District, for rental HHIEA

Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province, BEAEHA

the PRC

FEERARImBNERSE

WA BERAES2-3412

Part of Units 04-05 on Level 14, part of Commercial building Medium-term leases 100%
Unit 11 on Level 15, Units 01-12 for rental AL
on Level 17, Units 01-12 on Level 31, HERELAE

Units 01-12 on Level 32, Units 01-12

on Level 33, Units 01-12 on Level 34,

Units 01-12 on Level 35 of,

Block B, IBC, No. 3008 Buxin Road,

Luohu District, Shenzhen City,

Guangdong Province, the PRC

FEIE RS R RN E R0 E30085%

K EREREAE(BCBEE14EE

04-058B15 ~ 151 B 118645

17IEE01-12~ 31 EI01-12+

321 B {i101-12~ 33IEE(L01-12~

3412 E{1101-12 351 B i101-12

Units 2807, 28th Floor, Block 1, Commercial building Medium-term leases 100%
Yongwei Times Centre, Zhangba Second Road and for rental FETRA

Jinye First Road, High Technology Zone, Xian City, HMEAEHR

Shaanxi Province, the PRC

FERBEEAZNENEL N\ ZBREE—R

BRI E1EE28152807E
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Right-of-use assets ERAEEE
Opening net book amount FHREFE
Additions RE
Depreciation (Note 8) iEs (f15E8)
Impairment losses (Note) BERE ()
Lease modification MEEsT
Exchange differences PEERE

At 31 March 3H31H

Note:

The Group leases various retail spaces and premises and
warehouses. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods
of 1 to 5 years but may have extension options as described in
Note 3.20(b). Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The Group
also leases certain land use rights in Mainland. These land use rights
are leased for a period of between 16 and 51 years on which plants
and buildings of the Group are situated on.

Extension and termination options are included in a number of leases
across the Group. Most extension options in property leases have not
been included in the lease liabilities, because the Group considers
these terms are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of
managing contracts and assesses the exercise of extension options
on a periodic basis. During the year ended 31 March 2022, there
were no revisions of lease term due to the exercise of extension
option (2021: Nil).

The lease agreements do not impose any covenants and no leased
assets are used as security for borrowing purposes.

For details of impairment losses on right-of-use assets, refer to Note
16.

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000
F#Ex FET
595,194 919,706
342,284 137,383
(336,422) (414,463)
(7,854) (71,180)
(3,195) -
11,628 23,748
601,635 595,194

F5E -

$%@ﬂ%%“§%%ﬁ&%%u&éfo

HEANEEA1EFE 2 ET R EA#
UNFF 5E3.20(0) Fr it 2 7R o TR & R 3R TL 32 (@ Bl
EE GESEARNER R AER
TRAMBAES T L MERE - ZE T
BREZAPNF16E51E NAEEARER
TEFFRTIEM o

NEENSERESOEERRK EEE
o k%n%%ﬁaﬂ%ﬁ%%%%i%%
AMES® FRAEEERBAESHERD
ﬁﬁﬁAﬁAﬁﬁﬁﬁk&F%F*Méﬁ
VEM S I E AT IR ERE RN EE
202253831 HIEFE > WEEA TR
TSR E IR (20214 © ) ©

TE eI I IE 2 WHEEET

TREEEZERR-

AMEAREEREREZ N B20H
i16°
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The consolidated balance sheet shows the following REBEEBBREVUTERA
amount relating to the leases: &8
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’'000
T#ET FET
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Land use rights in Mainland (Note) i > i A (MY EE) 279,705 276,788
Properties leases YIERE 321,930 318,406
Total right-of-use assets FREEEERE 601,635 595,194
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FAT
Lease liabilities HERE
Current Vit 204,598 338,574
Non-current JERE 153,013 81,854
357,611 420,428
Note: BT
The market value of the Group’s land use rights in Mainland were R2022F3831H » ZEEMR R 2 +
approximately HK$360,294,000 as at 31 March 2022, which is A~ T {E49360,294,0007 75 5 3% A A< 49
measured at cost of approximately HK$279,705,000. It is determined 279,705,000/ 5T £ - HE B G EMEE
by an independent valuer, AVF Corporate Valuation Advisory Limited, TEGEDZHNERAD (EFER KRR
who holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification and FEER WHRRHATGEZ T HERAEN
has recent experience in the location and category of land use rights (B RFER S EEA AR BLEEIAE
in Mainland being valued, with comparison approach. TEe
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The consolidated income statement shows the FeBEaREVWUATEMEEEZ
45 -

following amounts relating to the leases: &%
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’'000
T#ET FHET
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {EIEEEITE
Land use rights in Mainland B Padth 22 4 ek AR 4 8,579 7,833
Properties leases YIERE 327,843 406,630
336,422 414,463
Interest expense FMERZ GIAMKEER)
(included in finance cost) 10,337 17,316
Expense relating to short-term leases 52 #AfH &R
(included in selling and distribution GTAHERPHER)
costs) 18,372 21,647
Expense relating to variable lease Tt AEEEaE s
payments not included in lease RSN AR X
liabilities (included in selling and Gt AEERPHER)
distribution costs) (Note) (M3 E) 116,668 98,794
Note: P 5T
For the year ended 31 March 2022, depreciation of right-of-use HZE2022F3831HILEE  FEREEEN
assets of HK$336,422,000 (2021: HK$414,463,000) was included in £5336,422,00078 7T (20214F : 414,463,000
selling and distribution costs. 70) st AHE R D HER -
For the year ended 31 March 2022, the total cash outflow for lease HE2022F3831HIEFE - HEGBEZIR
liabilities was HK$530,622,000 (2021: HK$522,289,000). & 4858 530,622,000 7T ( 20214

522,289,000/ 7T) °

Annual Report 2021/22 5k



2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
As at 1 April »481H8 42,925 60,689
Share of results of associates for the year SR ELHI=E AT 248 (23,838) (23,225)
Share of reserve movement of associates N FE{L B A T
for the year REEEE) 4,059 8,095
Derecognition upon step acquisition BN BB AR LT
of a subsidiary (Note 38) —xXBRE (5E38) - (2,634)
As at 31 March 3B 31H 23,146 42,925
Amount due from an associate (Note (i) FE U — R B A B AR 18
(B 2E()) - 769
Amount due to an associate (Note (i) FE—ZR B A B RIS
(B %)) 411 -
Particulars of the associates of the Group as at 31 March FR20229F3831H  AEEEE A
2022 are as follows: BIZEEBUWT
Particulars
Place of of issued % of attributable interests
Name incorporation share capital held indirectly Principal activities
218 SEM AR L2 BR{TREFHE MEFEREESENE FBER
2022 2021
China Gold Silver Group The British Virgin USD3,334 50% 50%  Retailing and franchising operations
Company Limited (‘CGS”) * Islands (‘BVI") 3,334% 7T of gold and jewellery products in
PEEREEERAR HEERRHEE Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland
(TR %R )" (HBERR REE BERAMRERS Mk
) EEMERITERGTAEE
%
* Pursuant to the shareholders’ agreement, the company is controlled * REREHE ZABDHE=ZHIE

by the third party, which holds the casting vote in the directors’
meetings. The financial year of this associate is not conterminous
with that of the Group and the financial statements used for equity
accounting are for the 12 months period ended 31 December 2021.
This associate uses 30 June as its financial year, which is conformed
with its holding company’s reporting date.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

B ZE=ZFANRESEERITLATE
EoZME Rz N FERAER
B BEZE2021E12831H1E12@
BBz HBRRDEAER ST
HoZE ATRAGHA0REAE
MHEE BEZERATNREBH
—15Z°



Notes:

(i)

(i)

Current liabilities
Foreign exchange forward contracts (Note)

Note:

Amount due from/(to) an associate were trade in nature. Amount
due from/(to) an associate were denominated in HK$ and were
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. As at 31 March
2022 and 2021, the amount due from/(to) an associate were aged
within 30 days.

The Group’s associates did not have any significant capital
commitments as at 31 March 2022 and 2021.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group issued corporate financial guarantee
amounting to HK$1,075,000,000 (2021: HK$1,075,000,000) to
banks in respect of 50% of the aggregated amount of bank facilities
granted to an associate. As at 31 March 2022, the bank facilities
utilised by the associate is approximately HK$1,564,000,000 (2021:
HK$1,486,000,000). Refer to Note 35 for details.

mEGE

SNEEAGA (5D

As at 31 March 2022, the notional amount of the outstanding foreign
exchange forward contracts represented Renminbi (“RMB”) denominated
foreign exchange forward contracts of HK$54,547,000 (2021: Nil).

Financial assets at fair value through EAREAHMDE
other comprehensive income IMAZ ERLEE

At 1 April R481H

Net fair value loss recorded in equity REZARZQARE
(Note 28) B518,2%8 (f15528)

At 31 March M3831H

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income represent common shares issued by a company
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income are denominated in HK$ and stated at fair values.

BER

(i)

(i)

MIEE

FEW (FE1T) — R ARREBEAESZ M
BofEUR, (FEfY) —RBE QT RBELUET
SHE WAEIKIF R ERBREREER P
20224 K 2021438310 » FEUR, (FEH) —
KEHE AN BBRIEZ BREZ A30H A ©

A5 & B AV B A B 120224 2021638 31
Bl R R EREAREIE

R2022F3831H ) ZEBEMA—KRBE A
BT ZIRTHERTE Z50%AABIRT
H B AT B #HE1%1,075,000,0005 75 (2021
£ :1,075,000,0008 7t) © 2022434
1E ZHMEATNCHAZRTRENS
1,564,000,0003 75 (20214 : 1,486,000,000
BIT) o sH BB SR S5

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fi#n FHT
280 =

R2022FE3831H R FBEINERBENZEE
SHEEUARE AR stEBZHERAEH
54,547,000787T (20214F © ) ©

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
1,173 2,365
(808) (1,192)

365 1,173

BAnEst A Eth2ERAZE
MEEETEBHAZXZFMAR
AR EMZABRETZEBEBR
BAnEst AEthE2ERAZE
B ELBITEHE LUARRET
Ao
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Non-current

Rental deposits

Prepayments (Note (i)

Other receivables arose from prior
disposal of a subsidiary (Note (iii))

Current

Rental deposits

Value-added tax recoverable

Prepayments

Subsidy receivables from a municipal
government in Mainland

Amount due from HKRH (Note (ii)

Other receivables
Other receivables arose from prior
disposal of a subsidiary (Note (iii))

Other receivables from licensees (Note (iv))

Other deposits

Notes:

(i)

JEEPHA
e
FE{TERIE (X))
THIEE—KRMBAR
EEZ HtEWRE
(Bf 5 Gii))

BNHA
ks
EIGYEEEEE
FTRTERIE
RERMBFTFZ
[ W A5 B
fEWE B L RIEIZERIE
(B 5% (i)
HhpE R B
TEIHE—RIBAR
EEZ HAmFEUERIE
(Bf 2 Giiy)
KE Rz EMEUR
BRIE (i EE(v)
Hithigs

B st -
As at 31 March 2022, included in non-current prepayment is an (i)
amount of RMB302,798,000 (equivalent to HK$371,230,000), which
represents prepayments for the acquisition of several commercial
properties located in Mainland (2021: Nil).
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the entire outstanding (ii)

amount of HKRH was settled and a reversal of the impairment loss of
HK$7,000,000 provided was recognised in the consolidated income

statement.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

2022
HK$’000
FERT

42,625
378,943

70,452
492,020

63,198
153,566
58,668

32,623

14,090

28,181

27,748
25,477

403,551
895,571

2021
HK$'000
TAT

51,5694
2,825

94,691
149,110

82,359
192,878
68,670

17,663

20,000

10,323

40,582

24,830
32,523

489,828
638,938

2022438318 » FETUEMI R At 2 %
B EYEZ 58 AR 302,798,0007t (17
E74371,230,00078 7T) 5T AIETRENTE(TERIE

(20214 : #8) ©

REE2022F3831B LFE > BEBERE
Rz 2BREBRBEBERHEZRER
#R$/8]7,000,000B TR AR SR R



Notes:

(i)

(v)

(Continued)

The other receivables arose from prior disposal of a subsidiary
represent the balances due from a licensee upon the completion
of disposal of a subsidiary (Note 39). The receivables bear interest
rate at 5.50% per annum and repayable in 5 years by semi-annual
instalments. Such receivables are secured by collaterals including
certain properties located in Mainland, inventories of the licensee’s
retail shops and equity interests of certain private entities (2021:
Same).

As at 31 March 2022, trading facilities in aggregate of
RMB28,920,000 (equivalent to HK$35,456,000) were made available
to the licensees in purchases of inventories from the Group or other
destinated external suppliers (2021: RMB80,600,000 (equivalent to
HK$94,866,000)). The facilities bear interest rates ranged 5.50% to
9.26% (2021: from 5.50% to 9.26%) and are secured by collaterals
including certain properties located in Mainland, inventories of the
licensee’s retail shops, equity interests of certain private entities
and cash deposits received from the relevant licensee, which were
classified under ‘trade and other payables’ (2021: Same).

As at 31 March 2022, the trading facilities utilised by the licensees
were approximately HK$27,748,000 (2021: HK$24,830,000). These
receivables bear interest rate at 6.00% (2021: 6.00%) per annum with
a maturity of 6 months (2021: 6 months) from the date of inception.
Such balances were pledged with cash deposits received from the
relevant licensee totalling HK$36,331,000, which were classified
under ‘trade and other payables’ (2021: HK$31,859,000).

MiEE (D)

(iii RATHE—RWB R EEZ HMMEUE
EEHE—RMNBASERRHER RS
e r 2 4R (M15E39) o X FEURARIBIZ FE FII %
5.50%5t B W ARSFERNEFFNHAEER-
BREUGRIBLURIR S (BFE RNt E
FHE RRETESHZEERETHA
B ZRAE) (EIEIR (20214 1 AHR) ©

(v)  FR20224F3B31H > miEmAAEERNE
HIEENBEHEERBEEER > BIRME
B mEEE ARK28,920,0007T (48
E1235,456,000/87T) (20214F | AR
80,600,0007T (18 & 5°94,866,000% 7T)) °
ZEBMEBERNF5.50%%F9.26% (20214 :
5.50%%9.26%) Z FZEs B W MIKH G (8
BARAMZETYE RBESERHZ
FE - ETRAEEZRERSHRER
WERZ &S (FRR Hh D EATE5
B B AETERIE) (20214 © 4H[A) ©

R2022F3831H  EEmEBAzEZME
#%27,748,0005 7T (20214F : 24,830,000
HBIT) o ZEREUWBRIBIZEHIZ6.00% (2021
£ :6.00%) 5t B> BRI B AR 6E A
(20214 : 618 A) ZIHA - BRI R LU B8R
B A8 P UKER 2 3R & $2 & 5 $£36,331,00078 7T
IR T 0485 T8 5 R E BT RIE)
(20214 : 31,859,000/ 7T) °

The carrying amounts of the deposits, prepayments and B BANRBEREMEBWIRIEZRE
other receivables approximate their fair values and are BHEEANERE LU TEEHE:
denominated in the following currencies:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#ET FAET
HK$S AT 113,115 232,994
RVB UNESE: 722,872 324,331
MOP RPFITT 49,190 72,888
Other currencies Hihgi& 10,394 8,725
895,571 638,938

Details of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arisen from
other receivables, risk management and the expected credit
loss assessment are disclosed in Note 4.

AEEMARZZ EMEBWIRBEE ZE
ERE EREERBHESEREN G
ZEF B M4 EE
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The inventories net of provision are as follow:

Finished goods & p
Raw materials Bkl

At 31 March 2022, inventories carried at net realisable
value amounted to approximately HK$792,209,000 (2021:
HK$594,120,000). As at 31 March 2022, the Group
recognised inventory provision of HK$79,221,000 (2021:
HK$59,412,000), resulted in inventory provision charged
amounting to HK$19,809,000 (2021: HK$21,467,000)
and included in ‘cost of sales’ in the consolidated income
statement.

Trade receivables
Less: Allowance for impairment
of trade receivables

85 EIARTE

The Group’s sales to retail customers comprised mainly
cash sales and credit card sales. Concessionaire sales
through department stores and sales to wholesale
customers are generally on credit terms ranging from O to
90 days.

MREBHZFENT
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TAT
8,678,773 7,262,220
90,531 59,394
8,769,304 7,321,614

R2022FE3831H » & A &7 FES
BR 2 1FE#%A792,209,0007 75 (2021
£ 1 594,120,00078 75) © 712202243531
B> AEBERREFER#T79,221,0008
76 (20214 : 59,412,000 70) > B 1Z
EHE#ERI 19,809,000 7T (20214 :
21,467,000 7T) > Wt AR 4R &85
2 ISEE A o

W BREWERER E R A

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TAET
189,742 277,405
(2,031) (67)
187,711 277,338

AEERNTEEFIHETZOREEH
ERERAFHE - BEEBRHFHER
mitEZERHEZEER—RNFOE
90H °
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The ageing of trade receivables is as follows:

0 - 30 days 0ZE30H
31 - 60 days 31E60H
61 — 90 days 61E90H
91 - 120 days 91Z120H

Over 120 days #Bi8120H

Less: Allowance for impairment
of trade receivables

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their
fair values and are denominated in the following currencies:

HK$ BT
RMB AR
MOP BP9

Other currencies Hihg

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure expected credit losses which use a lifetime
expected loss model for all trade receivables. The Group
does not hold any collateral for its trade receivables. Details
of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arisen from trade
receivables, risk management and the expected credit loss
assessment are disclosed in Note 4.

The provision and reversal of provision for impaired
receivables was charged to the consolidated income
statement. Amounts charged to the allowance account
are generally written off when there is no expectation of
recovering the amount.

B RWIRTAZ BRECIIT ¢

B REWERIER E R A

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TET
137,566 242,039
25,325 26,652
14,370 4,225
2,648 4,075
9,833 414
189,742 277,405
(2,031) (©67)
187,711 277,338

BZRWREZ REELZE R REE
B WA TEEEE !

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT THET
12,465 9,298
165,756 245,747
6,597 19,392
2,893 2,901
187,711 277,338

FEERAEBMBREERERMG
LAt ERPEERE HMEES
EUSRIER A S ARG IRRI - A&
0 i 2 & R W AR TE I A (A4
moAEBRMARZESBWREELE
ZzEERE RREERAREERE
b Z SF B M AP I BR

sHERBOERERURBEZ BHT R
e Bm R SR U O 5
BIRNGZ SEEE > Z2 B R T UM
8o
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Short-term bank deposits, with maturites ~ ZIEFH/LHR3EL =2

less than 3 months FHARITTERR
Cash at bank and on hand IRTTIRERFRRES
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY
Maximum exposure to credit risk EeEERKR

As at 31 March 2022, the cash and cash equivalents
denominated in RMB, amounting to approximately
HK$$2,528,782,000 (2021: HK$2,776,212,000), are held
by the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland. The conversion
of the RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies
is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.

As at 31 March 2022, short-term bank deposits
with maturities less than 3 months, amounting to
HK$113,538,000 (2021: HK$1,069,089,000) bear an
average interest rate of 1.12% (2021: 3.00%) per annum
with maturity in April 2022 (2021: in April 2021).

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TET
113,538 1,069,089
3,378,499 2,477,260
3,492,037 3,546,349
3,454,069 3,506,570

R2022FE3H31H  UARBEFHEZR
ERIBEEBYE2,528,782,0008 70
(20214 : 2,776,212,0005 7T) J5 A
EERAM B ATFE - BFZE L
AR EZ EHIREAINEABTH
B B e B 6 =2 1 B 8 161 AR B R 3R 451) o

2022438310 ZBIEAR /D RSER =~
FEEASR1T7F RN 113,538,0007 75 (2021
F 1 1,069,089,000%8 7T) U FIHEFIZE
1.12% (20214 : 3.00%) st 2> W
20224F4 8 (20214F : 202144 8) FIff o

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FET

Trade payables B ENIRIE 242,879 284,767
Deposits from customers and licensees KERPRRMEEZZE 635,664 500,388
Salaries and welfare payables FET 37 & Ko @ 163,218 136,061
Other payables HAETIRIE 103,659 89,093
Accrued expenses FEstE&ER 11,026 11,929
1,156,446 1,022,238
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NS R e

26 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 26 5 ME{1iRIE HithFE(FIRIARK
ACCRUALS (Continued) FEETFRIE (48)

The ageing of trade payables is as follows: B2EMRBEZIRRNOT !

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

FAET FET

0 - 30 days 0E30H 204,743 184,399

31 - 60 days 31Z60H 28,734 87,673

61 — 90 days 61ZE90H 5,652 11,188

91 — 120 days 91ZE120H 1,917 1,348

Over 120 days Bid120H 1,833 159

242,879 284,767

BZEMNIRE HMEERERE SR
RZEREEREEAAEBEES

The carrying amounts of the trade payables, other payables
and accruals approximate their fair values.

27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 27 AR iEE
(a) Share capital (@) Be#
2022 2021
No. of shares HK$'000  No. of shares HK$'000
LARE G FER K& E FET
Authorised: AR
Ordinary shares of ER@EIBTZ
HK$0.1 each B 800,000,000 80,000 800,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRERE
Ordinary shares of EREEIBTZ
HK$0.1 each ZER 587,107,850 58,710 587,107,850 58,710
(b) Share premium (b) BRRiEE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
At 31 March *3H31H 2,494,040 2,494,040
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

28 RESERVES 28 (#fE

285

Financial
assets
at fair value
through
other
comprehensive
Capital income
Capital redemption revaluation Exchange Statutory Other Retained
reserve resenve resenve resenve reserves reserves earnings Total
BAREA
Hfn2ERA
ZEREE
EXiE  EABORE Bt ERHE EERE At REERF 4B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TER Thn TEn TER TEn TEn TEn
Noe)  (Note(v) (Note i) Note i)
(HizEq) (W3Ew) (H3()) BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE01FI/NALEE
As at 1 April 2020 1202054818 135,713 200 (9,659 (460,599) 92,620 17,569 8,043,111 7,818,955
Comprehensive income 2ERA
Proft attributable to equity holders KARERREAEEER
of the Company - - - - - - 1,017,335 1,017,335
Other comprehensive income Ht2EHA
Currency translation differences ERER - - - 516,055 - - - 516,055
Remeasurement of employee EEEHEANENHE
benefit obligations (Note 30(b)) (H3£30(0)) - - - - - - 9,359 9,359
Release of exchange resenve to profitor loss 12 HE—FHBATBRKESR
upon disposal of a subsidiary (Note 39) GEEER (1:30) - - - (1,489 - - - (1,489)
Revaluation of financial assets at fair value A2 EF AEMZEKA
through other comprehensive income ZEHBERELEY
(Note 21) (H321) - - (1,192 - - - - (1,192
Total other comprehensive income B 2EAKA - - (1,192 514,56 - - 9,359 522,733
Transactions with owners BREAZRS
2019/20 final dividend paid Bff2019205ERERE - - - - - - 203,554) (293 554)
2020/21 interim dividend paid Eff200021 FEFHRE - - - - - - (132,099 (132,099
2020/21 special dividend paid B0 EERRIRE - - - - - - (161,455) (161,455)
Proft appropriations BRI - - - - 5,855 - (5,855) -
- - - - 5,856 - (592,963) (587,108)
At 31 March 2021 12021538318 135,713 200 (10,851) 53,967 98,475 17,569 8,476,842 8,771,915
Representing: bR
Reserves (excluded proposed dividend)  BEfE (FEIEERRE) 135,713 200 (10851) 53,967 98475 175569 7,889,734 8,184,807
Proposed final dividend BRRERS - - - - - - 293,554 203,554
Proposed special dividend BRENRE - - - - - - 293,554 293,554
At31 March 2021 H1£38318 135713 0 {0g) 5% %475 17569 84Be2 8771915
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For the year ended 31 March 2022
Asat 1 Apri 2021

Comprehensive income
Profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company
Other comprehensive income
Currency translation differences
Remeasurement of employee
beneftt obligations (Note 30(o))
Revaluation of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income
(Note 21)

Total other comprehensive income

Transactions with owners
2020/21 final dividend
2020721 special dividend
2021/22 interim dlvicend paid
Profit appropriations

At 31 March 2022

Representing:
Reserves (excluded proposed dividend)
Proposed final dividend

At 31 March 2022

HENRFIRNALEE
02154518

2EHA
RARERIE AEEER

Rt 2EHA
EREE
[EEBHETNENE (H5300)

BAREARMEERA
JEREEEESS
(1)

Rt 2EAMA

HEEAZRR
N0EERERE
0N FERFIRE
BfI2012FERERE
BRI

12022438318

B

i (FEERIRS)
RIRERE
12022435318

Capital
reserve

Enfife
HK$'000

Tin
(Note (i)
(GE)

135,713

135,713

135,713

135,713

Capital
redemption
reserve

ESREGE
HK$'000
TiEn

(Note (iv)
(M3k(v)

200

200

200

200

Financial
assets

at fair value
through
other
comprehensive
income
revaluation
reserve
BAREHA
UES TN
A 1113
EfifR
HK$'000
TiEn

(10,851)

(808)
(808)

(11,659)

(11,659)

(11,659)

Exchange
reserve

ER G
HK$'000
Fin

53,967

276,983

276,983

330,950

330,950

330,950
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Statutory
reserves

ek
HK$'000

Tin
(Note (i)
(H3E(in)

98,475

9918
9918

108,393

108,393

108,393

Other
reserves

R
HK$'000
Ti#n
(Note (i)
(M3kii)

17,569

17,569

17,569

17,569

Retained
earnings

REER
HK$'000
Fin

8,476,842

1,392,364

(4,191)

(4,191)

(298,554)
(298,554)
(322,909)

0918)

(919,935)

8,945,080

8,622,171
322,009

8,945,080

Total

)
HK$'000
FER

8,771,915

1,302,364

276,983

(4,191)

(808)
271,984

(293,554)
(293,554)
(322,909)

010017)

9,526,246

9,203,337
322,909

9,526,246



Notes:

(i)

(i)

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at
the time of the Group’s reorganisation in 1997.

Statutory reserves are non-distributable and the transfers of these
funds are determined by the Board of Directors of the relevant
Mainland subsidiaries in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations in Mainland.

Other reserve represents the differences between the fair value of the
consideration paid and carrying amount of additional equity interests
acquired in non-wholly owned subsidiaries.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group purchased
2,000,000 of its shares on Hong Kong Stock Exchange at a total
consideration of HK$29,143,000. All the repurchased shares were
cancelled and the issued share capital of the Group was reduced by
the nominal value of these shares accordingly. The premium paid on
repurchase was charged against the share premium of the Company.
An amount equivalent to the nominal value of the shares cancelled
was transferred from retained earnings to the capital redemption
reserve.

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities is as follows:

MI5E :

) FERZ EAFBHEIRAER 097 F RARF
PRSI B AR 2 IR MER MU ITA
ABRMZEEMEBZEH-

(i EERBEDAA DK BEBERMATHA
RAPOt I B A B E S B IR RS ARR A R K
RBIRTE

(iy — HEHEENREZARERBIFEREN
BABWBERINCA G REE E8R

vy HREZE2016FE3831HIEFE » RERLI4LE
1829,143,000B TN EBHMIFEEH
2,000,0008% 8% 15 © Fi A BB RD 1 B £ 84
MALEEN B ETRACEER LD ZERN
ZEREE BOfXIHNEEBRATN
R EENG  AEFHERMEBESEZE
BEERERM SR EABEDOIHE

BEMIRE ERELERBREEZ DN
T

Deferred income tax assets:

— Deferred income tax assets to be
recovered after more than 12 months

— Deferred income tax assets to be
recovered within 12 months

Deferred income tax liabilities:

— Deferred income tax liabilities to be
recovered after more than 12 months

— Deferred income tax liabilities to be
recovered within 12 months

Deferred income tax assets/(liabilities)
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EIEFTSMEE !
—RBB+ER%EHF
W BBV ESEFT ISR & B
—I+ZER AR URER
BEFFISINE E

EIEFFSHERE
—RBB+ER%EHF
W EIRYESEFF IS IR B &
—I+ZER AR URER
FEIEFRSIRARE

BEFRSMEE (BB

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FA5T FET
119,808 92,283
38,215 30,793
158,023 123,076
(74,692) (157,775)
- (123)
(74,692) (157,898)
83,331 (34,822)



The gross movements on the deferred income tax account

are as follows:

At 1 April

Credited to the consolidated income

statement (Note 11)
At 31 March

R481H

FR3B31H

The gross movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration the
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as

follows:

At 1 April 2020
Credited to the consolidated

income statement in respect
to withholding tax on dividend

declared in Mainland
Charged to the consolidated
income statement

At 31 March 2021/1 April 2021

Credited to the consolidated

income statement in respect
to withholding tax on dividend

declared in Mainland
Charged to the consolidated
income statement

At 31 March 2022

1202054810
HRAMEREE
%E?Dﬁ%w\,ﬁ?é.\%a 1%

GERm&NR

2021538310 /20216
481H

FRAHE KRS
%E?Dﬁ%w\%?éi‘aﬁ

REERm &N

12022538310

IEIEPRISIRAR 2 S ENAREALN T ¢

ireiEmRst A (HEE11)

2022
HK$’000
FERT
(34,822)

118,153
83,331

2021

HK$’000

TAET
(74,998)

40,176
(34,822)

EIEMIBAEERBRENFERNZEEBER
(+ quEz?EEfMEIT%Ei‘“T/E&EWZm

BRI

Withholding
taxes on
undistributed
profit of
subsidiaries
EAR

R RER
ZFEMR
HK$'000
TR
(142,157)

37,604

(48,326)

(152,879)

102,673

(19,466)
(69,672)
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Accelerated
tax
depreciation

MR EHR &
HK$'000
TR

(4,680)

(339)

(5,019)

Total

@it
HK$'000
F#7

(146,837)

37,604

(48,665)

(157,899)

102,673

(19,467)
(74,692)



Decelerated

tax

depreciation

B IERE

HK$'000

TERT

At 1 April 2020 120204810 36,721
Credited to the consolidated % &A1& K5t A

income statement 21

At 31 March 2021/ 12021538318,/

1 April 2021 202154818

(Charged)/credited to the & 1BHRE (1K) /3t A
consolidated income
statement

At 31 March 2022 12022538310

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carried forward to the extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefit through future taxable profit
is probable. As at 31 March 2022, the Group had
potential unrecognised deferred tax assets amounting
to HK$40,510,000 (2021: HK$38,839,000) in
respect of tax losses to be carried forward against
future taxable income. Cumulative tax losses of
HK$93,084,000 (2021: HK$110,816,000) can be
carried forward indefinitely; cumulative tax losses of
HK$95,077,000 (2021: HK$78,438,000) will expire (if
not utilised) within the next five years.

Unrealised

profit on

Tax closing
losses inventories Total

BRES
REkE 2R EREN a
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TERT TERT
11,707 23,411 71,839
47,486 3,730 51,237
59,193 27,141 123,076
26,168 10,112 34,947
85,361 37,253 158,023

RICFTSMEE N MAE 2 RIERER
o MBEUESBHEBRERER G
TERIMRIEH] m B3R o FR2022E3831H »
AREBEEBEEARABDREERBEEHR
40,510,000 7T (20214 : 38,839,000
Br)  HAERBFEELURHEHERE
FRBMAZHREBEE - RTRIEESIR
93,084,000 75 (20214 : 110,816,000
Bro) JERIPESE  RFREESIE
95,077,000 7 (20214F : 78,438,00078
70) M AEN A Bl R R AR B ENE R o
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Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group
is obligated to make lump sum payments on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances to certain employees
who have completed at least five years of service with
the Group. The amount payable is dependent on the
employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced
by entitiements accrued under the Group’s retirement plan
that are attributable to contributions made by the Group.
The Group does not set aside any assets to fund any
remaining obligations. The long service payments are paid
out from the Group’s cash in hand when such payments are
required.

The latest actuarial valuation as at 31 March 2022 and
31 March 2021 specifically designated for the Group’s
employees was completed by a qualified actuary, Palace
Consulting Limited (2021: Same), using projected unit credit
method. (2021: Same)

(@ The amount recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet is as follows:

Present value of defined benefit
obligations

RERMEEZRE

BEEEB(RREED)  sEBEEER
ETBERT RERBEAEERLVLE
ZETRERLEZERAEST—RE
ME-EBNREBENRFERESEZRE
HERRGEHME LAEAERR
B BT RAERZHEREEZRE
Bam-ArEBTEZLEAEEFRE
AR FTEEZEZ - NBEXNARNR
B @A EEZFRFSEMEN
REIRS = -

SERIEEMEHERBR AR (2021
F MR UFEFEAEEE (20214 ¢
R TREALAEEREEMRREZ
20228 3H31H &20214F3831 HEHE
=R

(@) REGEEBRRERZHEA
T

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEr TAT

5,450 1,291
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() Movements in the long service payments recognised b)) REEcEEEBRERBERZEHAR

in the consolidated balance sheet are as follows: BT
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET
At 1 April R4B1H 1,291 9,618
Expenses recognised in the AR EEmRER Az
consolidated income statement 98 1,032
Remeasurements recognised in other R EMMZEUN AR Z
comprehensive income (Note 28) Bst 2 ([5E28) 4,191 (9,359)
Benefits paid directly by employer BEEEZ T 2B (130) -
At 31 March M3831H 5,450 1,291

Current service cost

Interest cost

Income/(expenses) recognised in the consolidated

Expenses recognised in the consolidated income
statement is as follows:

BERRRFS &
IS

statement of comprehensive income is as follows:

Remeasurements of employees benefit {8 S @ F] SEREH T2

obligations

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

2022
HK$’000
FERT
79

19

98

2021
HK$'000
THET
936

96

1,032

RiFE 2 EBRARKERD ZIWA

(FAs2) WF -
2022
HK$’000
FET

4,191

2021
HK$'000
THET

(9,359)



The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 31 () H2022F K2021E3831HFERZ

March 2022 and 2021 (expressed as weighted FEBERSE UMEFEHEY)
average) are as follows: mr:

2022 2021
Discount rate ARIR = 2.1% 1.5%
Future salary increment KR 1L 1R 3% 3%
Return of MPF balances BIR T AEEROIIRE 3% 3%

Impact on employee benefit

obligations
HESENEENTE

Change in Increase in Decrease in

assumption assumption assumption

EE =1 fREztgm EE4

Discount rate 0.25% Decrease by 2.6%  Increase by 2.7%
AhIR® H2.6% 12102.7%
Salary growth rate 0.25% Increase by 23.3% Decrease by 20.1%
HEHRE 121123.3% H20.1%
The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change U EBRED T IRRRREE)
in an assumption while holding all other assumptions MAEEMEBRERFTEER-B
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and MR B R ARAIRESE  —L&

changes in some of the assumptions may be R Bl AEAERE ©

correlated.

Annual Report 2021/22 5k



Bank borrowings, secured
Bank borrowings, unsecured

As at 31 March 2022, bank borrowings of HK$769,391,000
(2021: HK$431,508,000) were secured by land and building
of HK$454,669,000 (2021: HK$472,675,000), investment
properties of HK$79,630,000 (2021: HK$82,783,000) and
corporate guarantees given by the subsidiaries, due for
repayment from within 1 month to 13 months (2021: within
1 month to 25 months) and denominated in HK$. The
interest rates of bank borrowings ranged from 0.74% to
0.91% (2021: 0.63% to 0.73%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2022, the bank borrowings of
HK$614,000,000 (2021: HK$280,000,000) bore interest
at floating rates, due for repayment within 1 month (2021:
within 1 month) and denominated in HK$. The interest rates
of the bank borrowings ranged from 0.83% to 1.07% (2021:
0.73% to 0.75%) per annum.

The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate
their fair values, as the impact of discounting is not
significant due to their short-term maturities.

IRTTE AR
IRTTERU EIK A

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TAT
769,391 431,508
614,000 280,000
1,383,391 711,508

N2022F3831HRITEX
769,391,0003 7T (20214 : 431,508,000
B7T) Th i K i 5 454,669,00078 7T
(20214F : 472,675,000 7T) & EY
$£79,630,00078 7T (20214 : 82,783,000
BT R BATRMENABERE
B AR —ERE+=EAREE
(2021 —ERE-_+HMEAN) ' B
BTt E - RITEREANEA0.74%
Z0.91% (20214F : 0.63%ZE0.73%) ©

BR2022F3H31H BT EX
614,000,000 71 (20214 : 280,000,000
Bor) R EBR X R AR —EARE
2 (2021F —@EAR) » BBt A
IRITERENEXA0.83%ZFE1.07% (2021
F 1 0.73%ZE0.75%) °

HIRTTEMNARERE BREZES
R HIE RITERZERAEZEZEAR
BEE-
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Non-current assets
Gold loan receivables, with
physical settlement (Note (i)

Current assets
Gold loan receivables, with
physical settlement (Note (i)

Total gold loan receivables
Current liabilities
Gold loan liabilities, with
cash settlement (Note (ii))
Gold loan liabilities, with
physical settlement (Note (i)

Total gold loan liabilities

Notes:

ERHEE
BYEERENESES
(B 5E())

mBEE

BYEEREREER
(B E())

B ETEE

REBaE
HeifEasEEas
(B (i)

4 5

e as

I

/

BxEEARRRER

MIEE -

(i) As at 31 March 2022, gold loan receivables represent a loan of (i)
physical gold of 121 kilograms (2021: 125 kilograms) borrowed by a
licensee, a prior non-controlling shareholder of a disposed subsidiary.

The balances are interest bearing at 5.50% (2021: same) per annum

and repayable by semi-annual instalments over 5 years from June
2020 with physical settlement, which are secured by collaterals

including certain properties located in Mainland, inventories of the

licensee’s retail shops and equity interests in certain private entities

related to the licensee (2021: Same).

(i) As at 31 March 2022, gold loan liabilities are interest bearing (ii)
ranging from 0.65% to 1.00% per annum (2021: 0.70% to 1.40%),
with maturity of 1 to 6 months (2021: 1 to 6 months) from date of

inception.

(iii) For the year ended 31 March 2022, gold loan receivables and (iii)

gold loan liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each

reporting period, net unrealised gains on gold loan receivables of
HK$5,545,000 (2021: HK$18,538,000) and gold loan liabilities of
HK$2,712,000 (2021: HK$9,988,000) have been recognised in
‘other (losses)/gains, net’, respectively in the consolidated income

statement.

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TET
41,798 50,855
16,719 1,554
58,517 52,409

497,513 268,755
73,932 108,765
571,445 377,520

2022438310 B ES B EE—RiE
B (—REHERBAR ZATIFZERKR)
FrfE > BYMEE121 A (20214 : 1254
Fr) > AEEBRIEFEFIZES.50%5T 2 (20214
18E) > B E2020F6 8 EESFERNETF FMU
EVEEDIEE HLURHR S (B AR
Rz ETYE RERZTEEFERA
RASEABRAZETHATE Z ) (FIRF
(2021 : 48A) ©

R202253831H > & EEBER0.65%
Z1.00% (20214 : 0.70%E1.40%) Z FEF|
X2 IR ABHEMBBRE E6EA
(20214 1 1Z6fEA) ©

HZE2022F3A31HIEFE BKERE
BERESBEEBENUSHREHERNLAA
BitE EURESEEZAERNEFEE
5,545,000 77 (20214F : 18,538,000 7T) &
=meEEa/EZ REFWHEIFEE2,712,000
BT (20214 1 9,988,00058 7T) BN BINES
BmRAN THA (5518) /Wa /58 AR

=
B ©
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Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated ()

from operations:

Profit before income tax
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (Note 8)
Rent concessions related to
COVID-19 (Note 8)
Net realised gains on
gold loan receivables (Note 9)
Net unrealised gains on
gold loan receivables (Note 9)
Net realised losses/(gains) on
gold loans (Note 9)
Net unrealised gains on
gold loans (Note 9)
Net unrealised losses on forward
exchange contract (Note 9)
Finance income (Note 10)
Finance costs (Note 10)
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment (Note 16)
Impairment losses on property,
plant and equipment (Note 16)
Depreciation of investment
properties (Note 17)
Depreciation of right-of-use
assets (Note 18)
Impairment losses on right-of-use
assets (Note 18)
Share of results of
associates (Note 19)
Provision for slow moving
inventories (Note 23)
Provision for long service
payment (Note 30)
Net impairment loss on financial
assets and financial guarantee
Loss on disposal of
a subsidiary (Note 39)
Gain on lease modification (Note 8)

BRETIS TR )
HEDE BERKREHZ
518 (fy5E8)
MRS R IBEREER
% (5E8)
BEREEEEZCER
e P e (5E9)
R ESEBEZ RER
Wz #ER (FE9)
BE2EEZEB#REE
(fz) %28 (EE9)
BEEEZRERNE
P (5E9)
BHSMEG A Z KRB
BiRFE (M539)

B A (fisE10)

HMsER (MizE10)

L IEN Y Rk
(Mtzx16)

I~ BB R s B R B RS 18
(MfzE16)

rREYFEITE (W5E17)
fERREENE (F5E18)

FREEERERE
(MFzE18)

R =N
(BfF5E19)

I EERE (F:E23)

RERBEERF (HFE30)

SREE KR FER
BB RS 1E P EE

HE—RIBARZ
518 (fI5E39)

AEETRE (Mf5E8)
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R ar BEEEEZIREHIR

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#ET FHEx
1,683,633 1,255,437
385 1,438
(14,421) (69,872)
(97) (8,600)
(5,545) (18,538)
53,101 (1,822)
(2,712) (9,988)
280 -
(87,344) (63,398)
23,097 28,849
99,250 106,425
1,610 9,115
29,200 25,552
336,422 414,463
7,854 71,180
23,838 23,225
19,809 21,467
98 1,032
11,795 19,067

- 199

(1,143) -



Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated @ RERNHELCEELEZIREHER:

from operations: (Continued) €=)
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FHEx
Operating profit before working SEETEIHFIKE R
capital changes 2,179,110 1,805,231
Decrease in rental deposits i ol el 2 A 28,130 25,193
(Increase)/decrease in inventories EF& gm R (1,288,092) 518,227
Decrease/(increase) in trade B EWERIE N EE
receivables, deposits, FE{TRRIB R MU
prepayments and other receivables  BRIER/L (EN) 115,843 (67,635)
Decrease in amount due FEUR FE(S B AT RUIB
from/to associates, net WL s TP EE 1,180 583
Increase in trade payables, B EMIRE HMEN
other payables, accruals and IRIEFESTRVIE M
contract liabilities SHBaEEN 97,818 342,309
Decrease in employee benefit BERMNEERELD
obligations (Note 30) (MFE30) (130) —
Net cash generated from operation  =iEBES 2 IRE& 548 1,133,859 2,623,908
Significant non-cash transactions ) BRIFRERS

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group
had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities of HK$341,258,000, in respect of lease
arrangements for properties (2021: HK$116,197,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group
settled a gold loan contract with physical settlement
amounting to HK$73,932,000. The repayment, which
is settled with the inventories, is included in the
consolidated statement of cash flows as non-cash
transactions.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group
entered into gold loan contracts with physical
settlement amounting to HK$108,765,000. The
borrowing of gold loans with physical settlement
are included in the inventories in the consolidated
statement of cash flows as non-cash transactions.

B E2022F3831HIEFE
AREBMYERELZHBIFIR
CHhETHESERTHEAER
#341,258,00058 75 (20214 :
116,197,0003 7T) ©

B E2022F3831HIEFE
REBUEYEE—MNEES
73,932,000 T EEEESL
FEZ#ENERNEAERER
Gt AGERERERA

HE2021FE3H31AIEFEE » K&
BT £ %8 %4108,765,000/& T HY
EYEEESEESN BYEE
BB ENEENEAERER
Gt AR EREREBRANES -
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Significant non-cash transactions (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group
received repayments of gold loan receivables with
physical settlement amounting to HK$1,689,000
(2021: HK$19,019,000). The repayments included in
the inventories in the consolidated statement of cash
flows as non-cash transactions.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group
entered into a sale and purchase agreement and
completed the disposal of its interests in a non-
wholly owned subsidiary. The other receivables
arose from the disposal of a subsidiary, including
the consideration receivables, other receivables
and dividend receivable are included in deposits,
prepayments and other receivables in the
consolidated statement of cash flows as non-cash
transactions. Refer to Note 39 for details.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

BERFRERZ (@)

B E2022FE3H31HIEEE K
ERWEREREMEEESME
B#E 1,689,000/ 7T (20214 :
19,019,000/ 7T) ° 2B 1EAIE
ReEX Gt AGERERERA
HiEE-
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—RIEEEMNBLATNER - HE
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MEZHELENEEHIR

Gold loans with cash settlement
Bank borrowings
Lease liabilities

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FAET

HERIEEEE 497,513 268,755
IRITER 1,383,391 711,508
HEas 357,611 420,428
2,238,515 1,400,691
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MEZHELENEEHIR (@

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c)
activities (Continued)

Liabilities from financing activities

MEIHEENER
Gold loans
with cash Bank Lease
settlement borrowings liabilities Total
RETE
HEf5H RITER HEafR a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TET TERT TERT
Net debt as at #2020F4R18 2
1 April 2020 E%eE 386,739 1,126,072 753,055 2,265,866
Net cash flows- REREFHE -
financing activities MEEH (112,529) (414,564) (401,848) (928,941)
Additions NE - - 116,197 116,197
Fair value change of gold ~ BHE&XEELEE
loans with cash seftlement 2 A NEEE) (5,455) - - (5,455)
Unwinding interest EEIRIS - = 17,316 17,316
Rent concessions related o~ MR R EE B
COVID-19 HERSRR - - (69,872) (69,872)
Exchange difference ERERE - = 5,580 5,580
Net debt as at 1202148182
1 April 2021 BP0 268,755 711,508 420,428 1,400,691
Net cash flows- REMEFE -
financing activities MEES 186,342 671,883 (395,582) 462,643
Additions HE - - 341,258 341,258
Fairvalue change of gold ~ HE&XE=&EE
loans with cash settlement 2 A A {ELE S 42,416 = = 42,416
Unwinding interest S ERS! - - 10,337 10,337
Rent concessions related to ¥R &= 15
COVID-19 HEEER% - - (14,421) (14,421)
Lease modification HAEE - - (4,338) (4,338)
Exchange difference ERE = = (71) (")
Net debt as at #2022%38318 2
31 March 2022 BHSE 497,513 1,383,391 357,611 2,238,515
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Contracted but not provided for: BETAERELEE
— property, plant and equipment e EN T
— investment in financial assets —RERANESA
at fair value through other Hh2mEmBAZ
comprehensive income THMEE
Total capital commitments contracted B E]&IBRIEHBEE 2
but not provided for B RIEARER

As at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, there are
no capital commitments which are authorised but not
contracted for.

As at 31 March 2022 the Group had entered into
properties lease agreements in respect of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of HK$38,033,000 (2021:
HK$2,804,000) which are contracted but not yet
commenced.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had commitments
under short-term leases of HK$10,091,000 (2021:
HK$10,330,000) which will be recognised as an
expense in the forthcoming consolidated income
statement.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TAT
15,779 30,404

6,866 6,591
22,645 36,995

20223831 H &2021E38 31
H> wEESREERTHNZEARK
o

R2022FE3H31H  KERBE
FHEE E X TH & & (&38,033,000/4
7t (20214F : 2,804,000 7T) 51 1L
MERERZ BRABERETVE
EENEEEEE

FR2022FE3H31H » AER 2 525
FHE &#10,091,000% 7T (2021
£ 110,330,000 7T) #& 7 BN T
B IRAEmRNER SRS



As at 31 March 2022, the Group issued corporate
financial guarantee amounting to HK$1,075,000,000
(2021: HK$1,075,000,000) to banks in respect of 50%
of the aggregated amount of bank facilities granted to an
associate. As at 31 March 2022, the bank facilities utilised
by the associate is approximately HK$1,564,000,000 (2021:
HK$1,486,000,000), which is secured by its pledged bank
deposits of HK$803,179,000 (2021: HK$764,725,000).

As at 31 March 2022, the Group recognised loss allowance
of HK$36,831,000 (2021: HK$20,000,000) in accordance
with expected credit loss model under HKFRS 9.

The major shareholder of the Company is Luk Fook (Control)
Limited (“Luk Fook Control”), a company incorporated in the
BVI, which directly owns 40.26% of the Company’s shares.
The remaining shares of the Company are widely held.

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung and Ms. LUK Chui Yee are the
founders and settlors of The WS WONG Family Trust (the
“Trust”). Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Ms. LUK Chui Yee, Mr.
WONG Ho Lung, Danny and Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy
are the discretionary beneficiaries under the Trust. The Trust
was interested in 237,854,722 shares in the Company,
comprising (i) the 1,511,050 shares in the Company held by
the Trust and (i) the 236,343,672 shares in the Company
attributable to Luk Fook (Control) Limited. The Trust
indirectly controls over one-third of the voting power of Luk
Fook (Control) Limited (being approximately 46.29%) and is
therefore deemed to be interested in the shares held by Luk
Fook (Control) Limited in the Company.

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny and
Ms. WONG Lan Sze, Nancy are directors of the Company.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the significant related party transactions are
disclosed as follows. The transactions with related parties
were conducted in the ordinary and usual course of
business in accordance with terms agreed between the
Group and its related parties.

2022 3H31H » AEBEM — K
EABMIRITHEME Z50%MEIRIT
B 1T (> B FHE1%R1,075,000,00078 7T
(20214 : 1,075,000,00087T) °i*
20224 3R31H  HMEABE AR
TREE 491,564,000,0005% 75 (2021
£ 1 1,486,000,000%8 7t) » LEHB &
$R17173803,179,0003 7T (20214 :
764,725,00078 70) {EHE I o

120223831 H » REREIRBEE B
WERERFEIKIB T EREEFEE
U HE R A5 8 5 536,831,000 7T (2021
£ 1 20,000,000 7T) ©

ERABZEERRANE (ER) BR
RE (RBER) AR EBERRE
SEMRIZAE BEREALRQF
40.26% & {7 o A B &R TR 0B
Ao

EEELRERERRL LT AThe WS
WONG Family Trust (TM55E1) BYAI A
BRETAN - BRERE - ERFLL &
EREAEREHESLTAEENEES
@m A o E5LHER A /AB)237,854, 722K %
MR BR)EENREATRFEZ
1,511,0508% B 17 K (ih7~ 8 (258) BIRA
SIFE(E 2 A T)236,343,67288 f& 17D o 15
ST R (R BRARBBE=
Dz —EBER (BN4946.29%) » I E IE#
BAERAE TR BRABNRAATF
BRI HEE L

BEREAE RARAKERERFYL
HREABEE-

PRz e M BRREMEBOAIREEI
EARMBAIRZHRBNT - HEEA
ITZREPR—RBEEBBRETE
PRAEE B HRE AN T E 2 RRUETT -
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Name Nature

4B 18

GS Tech Company Limited? License fees
EEENBERBRAT T RER
Maintenance services fees
HERBE
Rental income

AEWA

New Merit Corporation Limited* Interest expenses of lease liabilities
WETERRATN HEERZAERS
Addition of right-of-use assets
NEFREERE

Luk Fook Financial Services Limited* Licensee fee

NEEBRBEERAD HHFEER

China Gold Silver Group Company Limited" Sales of goods

FREEREEEERAR" HEEM
Sales return
HERS
Purchases of goods
B
Rental income
RGN
Licensing fee income
MREBE AR
Service fee income
FRFSEUA
Management fee income

EEEWA

# The company is 92% owned by a family trust of which Mr.
WONG Wai Sheung and his family members are discretionary
beneficiaries.

* The company is jointly controlled by Mr. WONG Wai Sheung
and other two independent third parties.

The company is an associate of the Group.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

2022
HK$'000
FERT

1,074

3,638

167

279

11,951

716

4,595

(269)

6,857

96

167

2021
HK$'000
TER
919
3,615

167

142

1,127

3,306

(12,250)

283

4,103

113

ZRBHRKEDHERERERH
RERERERRTEAZRIEES

wA-

ZABHERELRERSINMRE

K

B=HHREER -

ZABRAEBZHERT



During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group
borrowed physical gold of 106 kilograms (2021:
300 kilograms) amounting to approximately
HK$48,121,000 (2021: HK$136,424,000) with
interest bearing at 0.58% to 0.65% (2021: 0.60% to
0.65%) per annum from a director. Such borrowings
were fully settled on 31 March 2022 and the related
interest expense on gold loans of HK$246,000 (2021:
HK$603,000) is included in finance costs, net (Note
10).

Amount due from an associate

(Note 19(i)) (MF=E19())
Amount due to an associate BN —REFE R
(Note 19(i) (MFE19())
Rental deposit received BE—REEQABWEZ
from an associate He@se
Rental deposit related to BRE—%EEALT
a related party ZHREEE
Lease liabilities related to BRE—%BEEAL
a related party ZHEEE

Key management includes directors (executive
and non-executive) and senior management of the
Group. The compensation paid or payable to key
management for employee services is shown below:

Salaries, allowances and
benefits-in-kinds

Performance and discretionary
bonuses

Contributions to pension plan

eI — B E A B ARIE

e RN BEYN @
BRBERBEE WA

BRIREFT B

HZE2022FE3R831HLEEFE K
ERR—RLEETEAEYES
10672 fr (20214 : 300AfT) »
S FAHA48,121,000% 75 (2021
£F 1 136,424,000 7T) » REFK
0.58%%F0.65% (20214 : 0.60%ZE
0.65%) st B c ZEE B 520224
SEHEH EERESEEEM
BB £246,000/8 7T (20214
603,000 70) T A B ER » F 58
(MFE10) ©

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ET FHET

- 769

411 -

789 877
2,550 2,550
8,142 925

TEEEEORAEERES 1T
RIFATEE) heREEAE-
MESRBENHECNEIEZEE
BzMEWMT :

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FET
29,911 43,932
51,074 26,359
619 597
81,604 70,888
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At 31 March 2022, the Company had the following principal 202238310 AR Bl 2 FEME A

subsidiaries: W :
Proportion of
ordinary
Particulars of shares
Place of issued share Proportion of held by non-
incorporation/ Principal capital/registered ordinary shares controlling
Name establishment activities capital held by the Company interests
EI3E1 3
ML/ BETRE/ FresEiER
4] FRIL % TEER HRESHE FARFGE BRI in7]
Directly Indirectly
B g
Luk Fook Investment (B.V.I.) Limited ~ The BVI Investment holding HK$2 100 - -
REAAREE  REER 2B
China Gems Laboratory Limited Hong Kong Authentication of gemstones HK$2 - 100 -
RERBETTLOERAE A ERER 2B
Fancy Trend Investment Limited Hong Kong Property holding HK$12,100 - 100 -
RIEREBRAT &4 BEYE 1210087
Ice Collection (International) Limited ~ Hong Kong Retailing of gold and jewellery HK$100 - 100 N
KZ @B BRAR 58 products 1007
SHREENTEER
Jewellworld.com Limited The BVI Investment holding, and HK$8,000,000 - 51 49
LEHRBVI)ERAT HBERRES provision of software 8,000,000 7
development and services
relating to internet
REER RERHRE R
SRHBIEERE
Jewellworld.com Limited Hong Kong Investment holding, and HK$100 - 51 49
GEMR &8 BRAR &5 provision of software 1007
development and services
relating to internet
RELER RUERHRERL
SERPERRE
Luk Fook Bullions Dealers Limited Hong Kong Gold bullion trading HK$14,000,000 - 100 N
NEESERAT A BEMSHK 14,000,000%7%
Luk Fook Holdings Company Limited  Hong Kong Provision of management HK$2 - 100 -
NEEEERAF &8 services to group companies 2B

and wholesale distribution of

gold and jewellery products
REEERETERLGRME

YNBEERGEER

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]



Name

e

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith
(Australia) Pty Limited

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith
(HK) Company Limited
NEGEST (@8 FRAR

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith
(Macao) Company Limited
NEKREST (2P ARAR

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith
(Canada) Limited

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith
(Singapore) Pte. Limited

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith
(USA) Company Limited

Luk Fook 3D Management
Company Limited
VEDEREBRAF

Max Forum Development Limited
HEEEERAT

Maxigood Enterprises Limited

EHECXARAT

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

AL
ATRIE

Australia
b

Hong Kong
A

Macau
il

Canada
MEX

Singapore

M

USA
H

The BVI
ZEEMRES

Hong Kong
&4

Hong Kong
&4

Principal
activities

IELH

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products in Australia

RENEEERHFEERS
EX%

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products

EERAEERTERH

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products in Macau

REPEEERGEERS
EX%

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products in Canada

RNEARERERFEER
BELH

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products in Singapore

KR EEe RGEER
TEER

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products in USA

REENSHEERHEERT
EX%

Investment holding

REER

Property holding
SIS

Manufacturing and wholesale
distrioution of jewellery
products

RERMEIHREER

Particulars of
issued share
capital/registered
capital

BE#fksE/
HRESHE

AU$100,000
100,000 7

HK$100
100%7

MOP1,000,000
1,000,000 7%

CA$100
100MEATT

$$1,000,000
1,000,000% M7

UsD100
100%7T

HK$1
1B

HK$100
100%7T

HK$3,000,000
3,000,000%70

Proportion of
ordinary shares

held by the Company
TAFFRFLERLA

Directly Indirectly

E# itk

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

Proportion of
ordinary
shares

held by non-
controlling
interests
F300 4+
PSS ER
tfl
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Name

e

ENHBEHARAG

NERE (bw) BERATH

NEREES EB) BRAT:

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

AL
ATRIE

PRC
e

PRC
hEl

PRC
hEl

PRC

thEl

PRC
thEl

PRC

thEl

PRC
hEl

PRC
hEl

Principal
activities

IELH

Property holding in PRC
RAESENE

Wholesale of polished diamond
in PRC
RApERBEETEZER

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products in Beijing, PRC
REE R EEERGEE

BEEEH

Trademark licensing, brand
building, promotion
and provision of quality
examination services in PRC
RPEHSERRE AR
ERREURRMERETE
TR

Trademark licensing, brand
building, promotion
and provision of quality
examination services in PRC
RpEfSEREE AR R
EERBIRRHESRET
i3

Manufacturing, wholesale of gold
and jewellery products in PRC

RPERERERREEER
HEEM

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products in PRC

RABREEERHAEERT
ELH

Trademark licensing, brand
building, promotion
and provision of quality
examination services in PRC
R SERE- sk
ERMENRRRERET
%

Particulars of
issued share
capital/registered
capital

BE#fksE/
HRESHE

HK$35,000,000
35,000,000 7%
USD200,000

200,000%7T

HK$200,000,000
200,000,000 7

HK$60,000,000

60,000,000%7%

HK$8,000,000
8,000,000 7

HK$50,000,000

50,000,000%7%

HK$50,000,000
50,000,000%7¢

HK$3,000,000
3,000,000/ 7

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

Proportion of
ordinary shares
held by the Company
TAFFRFLERLA
Directly Indirectly
E# itk
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100

Proportion of
ordinary
shares

held by non-
controlling
interests
F300 4+
PSS ER
tfl



Name

e

BB RURKEMIARAS+

EEHZRHKEEHARAR

TMEHE (B BRA

BN BREREARAT

ARNEHEARAF

Luk Fook Prestige (Malaysia) SDN.

BHD.

Luk Fook Prestige Jewellery
Company Limited
NELILHKERRAT

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

AL
ATRIE

PRC
e

PRC
el

PRC
hEl

PRC
i

PRC
iz

PRC
el

Malaysia

BRAS

Hong Kong
&4

Principal
activities

IELH

Manufacturing of gold products
in PRC
RAEREEEER

Wholesale of jewellery products
in PRC
KRB EREER

Manufacturing, wholesale of gold
and jewellery products in PRC

RPEERERERE R
HEER

Manufacturing of gold and
jewellery products in PRC
RAEREEERFEER

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products in PRC

RAEREEERKEERS
E£%

Electronic retailing of gold and
jewellery products in PRC

RPEHERERGEERE
FEREEH

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products in Malaysia
RERAGRERERHEE

BEEEH

Retailing of gold and jewellery
products in Hong Kong

REBUSRERKEERT
EL%

Particulars of
issued share
capital/registered
capital

BE#fksE/
HRESHE

RMB5,000,000
A #5,000,00070

RMB10,000,000
AE#10,000,0007

RMB65,500,000
K #65,500,00070

RMB5,000,000
A #5,000,00070

RMB5,000,000
K #5,000,0007C

RMB5,000,000
K #5,000,0007

MYR?2,000,000
2,000,000
BRAZRE

HK$30,000,000
30,000,000%7%

Proportion of
ordinary shares
held by the Company
TAFFRFLERLA
Directly Indirectly
E# itk
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100

Proportion of
ordinary
shares

held by non-
controlling
interests
F300 4+
PSS ER
tfl
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Name

e

EETRRESRRAT

ERFTRYEZERAT

EETRBESRRAT

EFMALEERARAT

EETABMEERARA

K=l

EFTAERERARAT

EETIEESRRAT

EETREERARAT

Bright Bilion Corporation Limited

EETARAT

Green Rich Corporation Limited
ERERAF

Talent Up Corporation Limited
B#2ERRT

Ultra Power Corporation Limited
HAERRAR

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

AL
ATRIE

PRC
el

PRC
hEl

PRC
el

PRC
hEl

PRC
el

PRC
hEl

PRC
el

PRC
el

Hong Kong
&4

Hong Kong
&4

Hong Kong
&4

Hong Kong
&4

Principal
activities

IELH

Property holding in PRC
RAERENE

Property holding in PRC
ReERENE

Property holding in PRC
RAERENE

Property holding in PRC
ReERENE

Property holding in PRC
RAERENE

Property holding in PRC
ReERENE

Property holding in PRC
RAERENE

Property holding in PRC
ReERENE

Property holding in Hong Kong
REBRENE

Property holding in Hong Kong
REBSBENE

Property holding in Hong Kong
REBRENE

Property holding in Hong Kong
REBSBNE

Particulars of
issued share
capital/registered
capital

BE#fksE/
HRESHE

RMB1,000,000
A E#1,000,00070

RMB1,000,000
AR 1,000,007

RMB1,000,000
A E#1,000,00070

RMB1,000,000
AE1,000,0007

RMB1,000,000
A E#1,000,00070

RMB1,000,000
AE#1,000,0007

RMB1,000,000
A E 1,000,007

RMB1,000,000
AR 1,000,007

HK$100
100%7T

HK$100
100%7T

HK$100
100%7T

HK$100
100%7T

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

Proportion of
ordinary shares
held by the Company

SRS BRI
Directly Indirectly
E# itk

- 100

Proportion of
ordinary
shares

held by non-
controlling
interests
F300 4+
PSS ER
tfl



Name

BN BERERAT

(formerly know as & 3 55 1

ERREBRAT)
(IR EMEEE N EHRE
BRAF)

EMEHE N EHRABRAR

Luk Fook Diamond Company Limited

NMRERBRAF

Green Rich (Macao) Limited

Talent Up (Macao) Limited

Ultra Power (Macao) Limited

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

AL
ATRIE

PRC
el

PRC
i

PRC
thEl

Hong Kong
&4

Macau
B

Macau
il

Macau
B

Principal
activities

IELH

Trademark licensing, brand
building, promotion
and provision of quality
examination services in PRC
REREHEREE ARR
BEERBMURRHESEE
R

Trademark licensing, brand
building, promotion
and provision of quality
examination service in PRC
REREHERE ARR
EERENRREHESET
s

Trademark licensing, brand
building, promotion
and provision of quality
examination services in PRC
RABREHREE AER
ERMENRRHESETE
%

Provide handling services on
diamond subcontracting

RUEERDORERE

Property holding in Macau
RRFRENE

Property holding in Macau
REFREENE

Property holding in Macau
RERFRENE

Particulars of
issued share
capital/registered
capital

BE#fksE/
HRESHE

RMB1,000,000
A E#1,000,00070

RMB10,000,000
AB#10,000,00070

RMB1,000,000
AR #1,000,0007

HK$6,120,000
6,120,000%7T

MOP25,000
250008375

MOP25,000
25,0008

MOP25,000
2500087

Proportion of
ordinary shares
held by the Company
TAFFRFLERLA
Directly Indirectly
E# itk
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100

Proportion of
ordinary
shares

held by non-
controlling
interests
F300 4+
PSS ER
tfl
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Name

e

AMITREHEZARAT

RITEEEZERAT

Max Enterprises Company Limited

BHEEERAT

EFTRTHERARAT

EETREMESERAT

EETRSMERERAT

EETRAZERARAT

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

AL
ATRIE

PRC
el

PRC
hEl

Hong Kong
&4

PRC
el

PRC
thEl

PRC
hEl

PRC
e

PRC
hEl

PRC
el

Principal
activities

IELH

Property holding in PRC
RAERENE

Property holding in PRC
ReERENE

Wholesale of polished diamond
in Hong Kong
RERRBLITEZEA

Property holding in PRC
RAERENE

Property holding in PRC
RAERENE

Property holding in PRC
ReERENE

Property holding in PRC
RAERENE

Property holding in PRC
RAERENE

Property holding in PRC
RAPERENE

Particulars of
issued share
capital/registered
capital

BE#fksE/
HRESHE

RMB1,000,000
A E#1,000,00070

RMB1,000,000
AR 1,000,007

HKD10,000
(2021: Ni)
10,0075
(2021 : )

RMB70,000,000
(2021: Ni)

AR H70,000,0007
(20215 : )

RMB1,000,000
(2021: Nil

AR 1,000,007
(20215 : )

RMB1,000,000
(2021: Ni)

AR 1,000,007
(20215 : B)

RMB1,000,000
(2021: Nil
AR1,000,0007
(2001 )

RMB1,000,000
(2021: Ni)

AR 1,000,000
(2021 : B)

RMB1,000,000
(2021: Ni)

AR 1,000,000
(20214 : )

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]

Proportion of
ordinary shares
held by the Company

FARMFEERLA

Directly
E#

Indirectly
itk

100

100

100
(2021: Nil
(2015 : )

100
(2021: Nil
(2021 : &)

100
(2021 Ni)
(20215 : &)

100
(2021: Nil
(20215 : &)

100
(2021: Ni)
(2021 : &)

100
(2021: Nil
(20215 : )

100
(2021: Nil
(20215 : )

Proportion of
ordinary
shares

held by non-
controlling
interests
F300 4+
PSS ER
tfl



Place of
incorporation/ Principal
Name establishment activities
Bl ATy
&g R hEs TEER

EENEANEZERAT PRC Property holding in PRC
HE ReERENE

BEEMREREFERAT PRC Property holding in PRC
el RERENE

BEEMRESEEFERAT PRC Property holding in PRC
el RERENE

HImaRERFERAR PRC Property holding in PRC
HE REERFENE

FImHEEZEREC LT PRC Property holding in PRC
HE RERENE

Note:

+ The subsidiaries are established as wholly foreign-owned enterprises
in PRC.

The above list includes the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results of the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group re-assessed whether the
subsidiaries with non-controlling interests are considered
material to the Group based on their relative size in terms
of total assets, total liabilities and profit/(loss) before
income tax, and considered that they are not material, and
accordingly, the summarised unaudited financial information
of these subsidiaries are considered not necessary.

Proportion of

ordinary
Particulars of shares
issued share Proportion of held by non-
capital/registered ordinary shares controlling
capital held by the Company interests
El3ndii 3
BRTRE/ g iER
AmESHE TAFFRFLERLA ]
Directly Indirectly
Ei# itk
RMB1,000,000 - 100 -
(2021: Nil (2021: Nil
AR 1,000,007 (20215 1 )
(20214 1 B)
RMB1,000,000 - 100 -
(2021: Ni) (2021: Ni)
E 1,000,007 (20215 . )
(20015 )
RMB1,000,000 - 100 -
(2021: Ni) (2021: Ni)
AR1,000,0007 (20215 : &)
(20015 )
RMB1,000,000 - 100 -
(2021: Ni) (2021: Ni)
AE 1,000,000 (2021 : )
(20215 . B)
RMB1,000,000 - 100 -
(2021: Nil (2021: Nil
AR 1,000,007 (20215 1 )
(20214 : B)
5T

+ ZEMBRABABNPERILZZIHIERE-

EZRR LRI RFNB AR E
EHNAFEXEBRTEAENLTE
BEEEFEZIEED BEFAR R
HEMKB AR ZFBEELERBNRT
Eo

12202238310 » AEBIREHER IFE
KRiEDZ B AR EERE BER
BRBRFTERANER, (8B518) 2 aHR
B BT AREMB AR AEET
EEEBER URABELFEKX
Fit > ZEMNBABD 2 REERMBE
FHEZARAR AW N2 o
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On 31 July 2020, the Group acquired the remaining 50%
equity interest in Luk Fook Diamond Limited Company (“Luk
Fook Diamond”) at a consideration of HK$2,634,000. Luk
Fook Diamond was an associate of the Group in which the
Group had 50% equity interest, and it is mainly engaged
in manufacturing of diamond products in Mainland. Upon
completion of the transaction, Luk Fook Diamond becomes
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.

The following table summarises the consideration paid for
Luk Fook Diamond and the amounts of the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed recognised at the acquisition date.

(@) Details of purchase consideration in cash, net assets
acquired and gains/(losses) on step acquisition
recognised in the business combination are as
follows:

Total purchase consideration in cash

Add: Estimated fair value of previously held interest
before acquisition date (Note 19)

Less: Recognised amounts of identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at fair value

Property, plant and equipment (Note 16)
Inventories

Trade receivables

Other receivables, prepayments and deposits

Cash and cash equivalents
Other payables and accruals

Net identifiable assets acquired

No gains/(losses) recognised in the business
combination

R2020FE7H31H » KEB WS /<@
GERRAE (IRE#ER) ZHFT50%
Ba > 18 72,634,0008 7T o NABIE A
AREBERSONREMNREREHZ
RNE BEFERAMKPEREHELE
oM BT E NEEARAANE
B2EWB AT

TREARABEOEMN ZRERRI
BOREIZEWNBEEREREAR
ZEFe

@ REBERE CHBEEEFER
REBGHER 2 ES WHEIWE
(B518) sFIEE T

31 July 2020
2020FE7831H
HK$’000
FAET
HIRSEENRE 2,634
o RUEE B ERRT 2 JcRTiE A
R AT ARE
(MFzE19) 2,634
5,268
BB ARERIZBEWE
AR E E R B AIE
BE&HE
M- BEEE (EE16) 3,127
EFa 3,808
B EUNARIE 320
HahrgU AR IE ~ FA(I =18
Keya & 220
BERIREEEY 2,502
HhERIB R ERIE (4,709)
BUWER#RIEEFE 5,268
WENER A HRERINE
(E518) -
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(b)

Analysis of net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in (b)

respect of the step acquisition

Cash flow in relation to the acquisition,
net of cash acquired
— cash consideration
— cash and cash equivalents in a subsidiary
acquired

Net cash outflow on step acquisition

ERZTWBEZRERFEEE

(c) Revenue and loss contribution

The acquired business contributed revenue of
HK$7,336,000 and net loss of HK$3,372,000 to
the Group for the period from 1 August 2020 to
31 March 2021. If the acquisition had occurred
on 1 April 2020, consolidated pro-forma revenue
and consolidated profit for the year would have
been HK$8,862,729,000 and HK$1,016,019,000,
respectively.

On 30 June 2020, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement and completed the disposal of its
interests in a non-wholly owned subsidiary, namely EE
RELREEMHAMRAT (‘48E") at a cash consideration
of RMB30,850,000 (equivalent to HK$34,922,000) to the
non-controlling shareholder, which is also a licensee of the
Group. The principal activity of the subsidiary is retailing of
gold and jewellery products in Mainland.

YD B EE DT
HK$’000
FET
BRKEZIRERE Nk
BWEIRS
—RBERE (2,634)
—BlE—NBATZ
REXRIREEEY 2,502
ZHWEZ IR R R (132)

© WAKEEER

H2020E881HE20214E3R
STHHE FMKEEERLAE
B SR U A7,336,0008 T K
B51873 83,372,000 7T o fH Uk
BEN2020F481HEBE4% &F
NGEEBEZTRARGERME
P %48,862,729,000% 7T K&
1,016,019,00078 7z

R2020FE6H30R  AEBETUIEE
HEATHREEENR—RIEE2EWE
NB (FEBEREREEMARAT
(T38%))) 2R FIFERIRE (55
rEBZzRER) REREAARE
30,850,0007t (t8'& #234,922,0007%7T) ©
ZHB AR ZETBEXBANAMNER
ERBEERTEER.
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Details of net assets disposed and loss on disposal of a
subsidiary recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income are as follows:

Total disposal consideration (Note)

Less: Disposed amounts of net assets
Property, plant and equipment (Note 16)
Inventories

Trade receivables

Other receivables, prepayments and deposits

Cash and cash equivalents
Other payables to the Group (Note)

Other payables and accruals
Dividend payables to the Group (Note)
Dividend payables to non-controlling interests

Net assets disposed

Release of exchange reserve upon disposal
Release of non-controlling interests upon disposal

Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 9)

Note:

Upon the disposal of a subsidiary, the Group classified the consideration
receivables, other receivables and dividend receivables as “Other receivables
arose from prior disposal of a subsidiary” and included in “Deposits,
prepayment and other receivables” (Note 22) on the consolidated balance
sheet. Such receivable balances are repayable in 5 years by semi-annual
instalments, interest bearing at 5.50% per annum and secured by certain
types of collaterals.

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the
disposal of a subsidiary is as follows:

Consideration received
Cash and bank balances disposed of

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of
the disposal of a subsidiary

The consideration of HK$33,565,000 was determined after
arm’s length negotiations between the Group and the non-
controlling shareholder.

BEREEEFEANGEEEEBARE
HERZHE—RNBARBEZFBEU

T
30 June 2020
2020%6H30H
HK$’000
FET
HERBELRZE (:H 33,565
B EBHEEEFESRE
ME- BB REE (5E16) 3,803
F&8 81,746
B ZEWERTE 15,950
HhEUWERIE T EIRIB X
%% 59,387
BERIREEEY 32,148
FE{T AR EE 2 EAhBRIE
(M35%) (80,482)
HtE ([ RBRESFIE (22,177)
FEAEE KRS Fish) (10,992)
FEIEZERERZRKRE (10,576)
BHEEEFE 68,807
B H S B AR PR B e 1,489
B H B B AR PR JE AR M 2 (33,554)
HE—XRBATZEIE
(FF5E9) (199)
BizE

REE—RNBARER  AEIBEERE Hfth
EBERERERRENGEEEABRADES
MECAT & —RINE QB E L 2 HMAEUERE)
Wt A Mg  BAREREMEKIRE) (5
22) - ZEEURBAFANRSERUSF EN N
FEE B EFEE.60%51 8 R LUE TR 2 K #
G (EHER

BRHE—KNBARNZRERREFEY RN F

EAFWT
HK$'000
FHET
B rE -
BHEZRERIRTER (32,148)
ARLE—SHBARZRER
ReSBYRLFE (32,148)

(833,565,000 70/ A EE B EA JE
RN FIERBET

mL

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 755 E (BFE) HIRAE]



2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
ASSETS B'E
Non-current asset ERHEE
Interests in subsidiaries REAB Z #Em 3,138,225 3,138,225
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR I B A B BRIA 1,273,671 1,318,743
Deposits, prepayment and other deposits %<~ FETERIE K
Hhizs = 94
Cash and bank balances BE& MIRTT4EER 112,558 89,915
1,386,229 1,408,752
Total assets WEE 4,524,454 4,546,977
EQUITY =
Capital and reserve attributable to the ZRT)EHIFHA
equity holders of the Company e E AR
Share capital (&N 58,710 58,710
Share premium B i@ B 2,494,040 2,494,040
Reserves (Note (1)) REE (PHEE) 1,054,528 1,362,641
3,607,278 3,915,391
LIABILITIES afR
Current liabilities Pk i =i
Accruals FEETFRIA 1,865 1,984
Amounts due to subsidiaries N NI O] - 10,847
Bank borrowings RITE® 606,000 350,000
Gold loans =EEE 309,311 268,755
917,176 631,586
Total equity and liabilities HmkaEEEE 4,524,454 4,546,977
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the RABIzBEBBERITHEE 2022
Board of Directors on 28 June 2022 and was signed on its FeH28HAL EWKHE T EFKRE
behalf by the following directors: E:
Wong Wai Sheung Chan So Kuen
HIEE RER
Director Director
) 5%
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Note: BdsE -

0] The reserves movement of the Company is as follows: [0) KNBHEEEWNT -
Capital
Contributed redemption Retained
surplus reserve earnings Total
BRRE BErREEOEE wREEN 4R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT F#ET FHET FHET
For the year ended #F20223831H
31 March 2022 ILEE
At 1 April 2021 o001 £E4B1R 298,687 200 1,063,754 1,362,641
Profit for the year FERHF = = 601,904 601,904
2020/21 final dividend paid ~ B/2020/21 AR E = = (293,554) (293,554)
2020/21 special dividend paid B/2020/21 45 BI E = = (293,554) (293,554)
2021/22 interim dividend paid B {J2021/22EEHHRE - - (322,909) (322,909)
At 31 March 2022 1202235318 298,687 200 755,641 1,054,528
Representing: 5
Reserves (excluded proposed f#f (FaEHREE)
dividend) 298,687 200 432,732 731,619
Proposed final dividend RIKAHRE - - 322,909 322,909
At 31 March 2022 120224E3831H 298,687 200 755,641 1,054,528
For the year ended #F20213831H
31 March 2021 LHEE
At 1 April 2020 RR2020F481H 298,687 200 754,363 1,053,250
Profit for the year FERHT = = 896,499 896,499
2019/20 final dividend paid ~ Bff2019/20FERHERE - = (298,554) (293,554)
2020/21 interim dividend paid  B/2020/21 R AR S = = (132,099) (132,099)
2020/21 special dividend paid E{f2020/21 EEH5 3R E - - (161,455) (161,455)
At 31 March 2021 1#202143831H 298,687 200 1,063,754 1,362,641
Representing: =
Reserves (excluded proposed s (FBEEKERE)
dividend) 298,687 200 476,646 775,533
Proposed final dividend BRAHRE - - 293,554 293,554
Proposed special dividend BRI E - - 293,554 293,554
At 31 March 2021 120214E3831H 298,687 200 1,063,754 1,362,641

RATZ BERERIER QB AZHMLUk Fook
Investment (B.V.l.) LimitedZ 28 & 2517 3858
MEITRMN 2 EEEEA QB F1997FREER
SRR E RN B AR 2 EEFEM
EZEFE-RBARE(INBIEATR)
B5]) » BRRBADREFTRE HEAAT B
BRBHRCRER BAERaEIHES
& ; AARE 2 EEATERBEERLT
FUORHEBEH HEETRARERGHE
ZHEM-mAEEBEMS  BHRGEN
DIEAZ RN BAT 2 HEIED -

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares issued by the Company
in exchange for all the issued ordinary shares of Luk Fook
Investment (B.V.l.) Limited and the value of net assets of the
underlying subsidiaries acquired by the Company during the
Group’s reorganisation in 1997. Under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus is distributable to the
shareholders, provided that the Company would, after the payment of
dividends out of the contributed surplus, be able to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or the realisable value of the Company’s assets
would thereby not be less than the aggregate of its liabilities, its
issued share capital and its share premium. At the Group level, the
contributed surplus is reclassified into its component of reserves of
the underlying subsidiaries.
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